
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

               
 

AGENDA 
Community Room 101 – Clint G. Quilter Consolidated Office Building 

1360 N. Main St., Bishop 
 

NOTICES TO THE PUBLIC:  (1) This meeting is accessible to the public both in person and, for convenience, via Zoom webinar. The Zoom webinar is accessible to the 
public at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; 
(929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. Anyone unable to attend the Board meeting in person who wishes to make either a general 
public comment or a comment on a specific agenda item may do so by utilizing the Zoom "hand-raising” feature when appropriate during the meeting (the Chair will 
call on those who wish to speak). Generally, speakers are limited to three minutes. Remote participation for members of the public is provided for convenience only. In 
the event that the remote participation connection malfunctions for any reason, the Board of Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote 
access. Regardless of remote access, written public comments, limited to 250 words or fewer, may be emailed to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at 
boardclerk@inyocounty.us. (2) In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the 
Clerk of the Board at (760) 878-0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable 
arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the 
Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 
54954.2).  (3) If a writing, that is a public record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 
72 hours prior to the meeting, the writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, 
California and is available per Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

 

SPECIAL MEETING 
June 25, 2024 

  
 Start Time 

8:30 A.M. 
 

 1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s)  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

CLOSED SESSION  
  

 

  2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government 
Code §54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s 
Association (DSA); Elected Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo 
County Correctional Officers Association (ICCOA); Inyo County Employees 
Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers Association 
(ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association 
(LEAA). Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – 
Administrative Officer Nate Greenberg, Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, 
County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Assistant County Counsel Christy Milovich, 
and Assistant Director of Budgets and General Services Denelle Carrington. 

  
 

OPEN SESSION (With the exception of timed items, which cannot be heard prior to their scheduled 
time, all open-session items may be considered at any time and in any order during the meeting in 
the Board’s discretion.) 

  
 

10 A.M. 3) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  4) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

  
 

  5) Introductions - The following new employees will be introduced to the Board:  

• Health & Human Services: Social Worker Steven Anderson, Office 
Clerk Supervisor Yesenia Arellano, Social Worker Makenna Batchelder, 
Office Clerk Cierra Dorame, Addictions Counselor Maria Fierro, HHS 
Specialist Shyann Harvey, Residential Caregiver Faith-Celeste Dulay, 
and Program Supervisor-Housing April Powell. 

  
 

  6) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  7) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 8) Memorandum of Understanding between the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone 
Reservation and Inyo County for Mosquito Abatement Services 

  County Administrator & Agricultural Commissioner - OVMAP | Nathan Reade 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Reservation and Inyo County for the purpose 
of mosquito abatement services on the Reservation, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
9) 

 
Inyo Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual Compliance Forms  

  County Administrator | Denelle Carrington 
 

Recommended Action: Authorize the Chairperson to sign the California 
Department of Veterans Affairs Annual Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance Program 
Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and the California 
Department of Veterans Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal 
Year 2024-2025. 

 

   

  
10) 

 
Health Officer Contract 

  Health & Human Services | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the contract between the County of Inyo and 
James Richardson, MD of Bishop, CA for the provision of Health Officer 
services in an amount not to exceed $205,000 for the period of July 1, 2024 
through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 
2024-2025 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
11) 

 
County of Mono Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging Amendment No. 2 

  Health & Human Services - ESAAA | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and County of Mono for the provision of Eastern 
Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) service to Mono County eligible 
residents, to recognize additional funding and increasing funding over the term 
of the contract in an amount not to exceed $264,781 for the period beginning 
July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, and not exceeding the total four-year 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

contract amount of $924,917 for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2024, and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 
signatures being obtained. 

 

   

  
12) 

 
North American Mental Health Services Contract Amendment No. 1 

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and North American Mental Health Services of 
Redding, CA, for the provision of Mental Health Tele-psychiatry services, 
increasing the monthly service hours from 24 to 50, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
13) 

 
Memorandum of Understanding for the California Department of Aging 

  Health & Human Services | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between 
the County of Inyo and California Department of Aging of Sacramento, CA for 
the provision of Coordination of Older Americans Act Services to Residents of 
Planning Service Area 16 for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2029, 
contingent upon the Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign the MOU, California Civil Rights Law Certification, Information 
Integrity and Security Statement, and Contractor Certification Clauses. 

 

   

  
14) 

 
Crestwood Behavioral Health FY 23-24 Contract Amendment No. 3  

  Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. of 
Sacramento, CA, adding Psychiatric Health Facilities (PHFs) to the facilities 
where conservatees may be placed, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 

 

   

  
15) 

 
Grant Award Notification for First 5 CA Small Population County Funding 
Augmentation Services 

  Health & Human Services | Anna Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Grant Award Notification (GAN) between 
the County and First 5 California for Small Population County Funding 
Augmentation services which ensures an additional $250,590 of SPCFA 
funding through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the 
Fiscal Year 24-25 Budget, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the GAN and 
related documents. 

 

   

  
16) 

 
Contract Award to Tek84 of Poway, CA for the Purchase of a Body 

Scanner  

  Sheriff | Mark Smith 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Approve and award the contract for whole body scanner and 

maintenance to Tek84 of Poway, CA, in an amount not exceeding 
$186,872.50;  

B) Enter into a service and maintenance contract for the period of June 18, 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

2024 through June 30, 2029, contingent upon the Board's approval of 

future budgets; and  
C) Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign any documents necessary for 

the contract term. 
 

   

  
17) 

 
Inyo County Jail Security and Camera System 

  Sheriff | Shane Scott 
 

Recommended Action: Approve and award the contract for the Inyo County 
Jail Security and Camera Project to Integrated Security Controls, Inc. (ISC) of 
Santa Rosa, CA, in an amount not exceeding $1,234,770, and enter into 
standard county contract 116 for the period of June 25, 2024 through project 
completion, contingent upon approval of future budgets, and authorize the 
Sheriff or designee to sign any documents needed for the project. 
  

 

REGULAR AGENDA  

  
 

   

 18) Sierra Jobs First Presentation by Sierra Business Council 

  Board of Supervisors | Steve Frisch - Sierra Business Council 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive presentation on activities of the Sierra Jobs 
First program to date and provide comments about strategic plan elements.  

 

   

  
19) 

 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Appendix 

  County Administrator | Meaghan McCamman 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 
Recommended Action:  Approve the incorporation of the County of Inyo Project 
List as an appendix to the regional Comprehensive Economic Development 
Strategy (CEDS).   

 

   

  
20) 

 
Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City 
of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation 
and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project 

  Water Department | Holly Alpert 
15 minutes (5min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve Amendment No. 2 to the "Agreement 
Between the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project" 
and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign. 

 

   

  
21) 

 
Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, Budget, and 
Schedule 

  Water Department | Holly Alpert 
15 minutes (5min. Presentation / 10min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action:  Adopt the 2024-25 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River 
Project Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule. 
 
 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

 
  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  22) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  23) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-496  

 

Memorandum of Understanding between the Lone Pine 
Paiute-Shoshone Reservation and Inyo County for 

Mosquito Abatement Services 
County Administrator & Agricultural Commissioner - OVMAP 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner Nathan Reade, Ag Commissioner 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Reservation and 
Inyo County for the purpose of mosquito abatement services on the Reservation, and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Over the last year, Inyo County has been in conversation with the Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone 
Reservation with regard to providing mosquito abatement services on the Reservation using standard 
treatment methods. These proposed services not only benefit the residents of the Reservation, but also 
the surrounding community of Lone Pine due to point sources for mosquitos. This item presents a formal 
Memorandum of Understanding with respect to that program for consideration by the Board of 
Supervisors.  Please note that the County was unable to include standard indemnification language in 
the MOU due to the Lone Pine Paiute Shoshone Tribe's sovereign status.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There is no financial impact associated with this item. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not support this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), or direct staff to 
modify the terms and conditions of that MOU. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Reservation 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County LPPSR Mosquito Abatement Service MOU  
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

APPROVALS: 
Nate Greenberg Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Nathan Reade Approved - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/20/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Between the County of Inyo and the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Reservation  

Concerning Mosquito Abatement Services On Reservation Lands 
 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (“County”), through the establishment of the Mosquito 
Abatement Assessment District (the “District”), provides a Mosquito Abatement Program within 
the Owens Valley in order to enhance public health and comfort through provision of safe, 
effective and economical mosquito control in the Owens Valley using methods employed 
throughout the state by other programs aimed at protecting public health through vector control; 
and   
 
WHEREAS, in carrying out the Mosquito Abatement Program, Inyo County is regulated by the 
California Department of Public Health and certified pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 
106925; and  
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 2040 Inyo County is able to undertake 
mosquito abatement activities on lands affecting the Mosquito Abatement District boundaries; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lone Pine Paiute-Shoshone Reservation (“LPPS Reservation”) lands are 
contiguous with the boundaries of the District and mosquitos from LPPS Reservations lands 
affect lands within the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the LPPS Reservation and Inyo County intend by this MOU to authorize Inyo 
County to carry out Mosquito Abatement activities on and about LPPS Reservation lands in 
compliance with any and all applicable regulations of outside agencies, for the mutual benefit of 
the LPPS Reservation and Inyo County. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the County and the LPPS Reservation hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The LPPS Reservation hereby grants to Inyo County permission for Inyo County to 
access LPPS Reservation lands in order to perform Mosquito Abatement Program 
activities. 
 

2. The LPPS Reservation will obtain and maintain any permit, including an NPDES permit, 
required to authorize Inyo County’s  Mosquito Abatement Program activities on LPPS 
Reservation lands.  Inyo County will provide any data required that it has reasonable 
access to for the LPPS Reservation to conduct the required annual reporting to EPA for 
maintaining NPDES permit. 
 

3. The LPPS Reservation agrees to undertake reasonable efforts to obtain, and to assist Inyo 
County in obtaining, grant funding to help offset any costs incurred by Inyo County in 
conducting Mosquito Abatement Program activities on LPPS Reservation lands. 
 



 

 

4. Inyo County, as it deems necessary and appropriate in its sole discretion, will perform 
Mosquito Abatement Program activities within the LPPS Reservation lands.  Inyo 
County’s Mosquito Abatement Program activities on LPPS Reservation lands will include 
those referenced in the document entitled “Integrated Pest Management Strategies for the 
Control of Mosquitoes in the Owens Valley”, as may be updated from time to time, and is 
incorporated herein by reference.  Inyo County and LPPS Reservation agree to work 
together in good faith to explore and implement abatement strategies on LPPS 
Reservation lands that are environmentally sustainable and reduce potential adverse 
health impacts. 
 

5. Inyo County will provide notice to the LPPS Reservation of any adulticide applications at 
least 24 hours prior to said application on LPPS Reservation lands by 1) providing 
written notice to the LPPS Reservation’s designated contact listed under paragraph No. 8, 
below, and 2) providing written and/or telephonic notice to the LPPS Reservation’s 
Environmental Department - Mel Joseph, Environmental Director: mel.joseph@lppsr.org, 
760-876-4690. Additionally, Inyo County will provide notice to the LPPS Reservation of 
any adulticide applications in a manner consistent with Inyo County’s past practices via 
issuance of a press release and distributing the press release to media outlets. Inyo 
County will not to apply any pesticides on LPPS Reservation residences that have opted 
out of pesticide applications in their area, provided that the LPPS Reservation gives 
reasonable notice of said opt-out residences to the County prior to the application of any 
pesticide.  
 

6. LPPS Reservation and Inyo County will endeavor to meet annually in March in order to 
discuss Inyo County’s expected Mosquito Abatement Program activities for the upcoming 
mosquito season, to establish a list of LPPS Reservation residences, if any, that would 
like to opt out of pesticide applications in their area, and to consult on any other relevant 
item regarding the Mosquito Abatement Program on LPPS Reservation lands.  
  

7. Generally, there will be no cost for Inyo County’s Mosquito Abatement Program 
activities conducted pursuant to this MOU because those activities provide a mutual 
benefit to both parties to this MOU.  However, in the event of an emergency, such as a 
disease outbreak, high runoff, flooding, and other such situations exacerbating mosquito 
activities within LPPS Reservation lands that require a higher level of Mosquito 
Abatement Program activities than typically provided, the LPPS Reservation agrees to 
negotiate in good faith with Inyo County to offset the reasonable amount of increased 
costs to Inyo County in providing the increased level of Mosquito Abatement Program 
activities pursuant to this MOU. 

  



 

 

 
8. This MOU shall be administered on behalf of the LPPS Reservation and the County by 

the following persons, to whom any notices or correspondence concerning the MOU shall 
be directed. If either party changes its designated person, it shall immediately advise of 
the change to the other party: 
 
LPPS Reservation: 
 
Thomas Swab, Jr., Tribal Chairman 
chair@lppsr.org 
760-876-1034 
 

Inyo County: 
 
Nathan Reade, Agricultural Commissioner 
nreade@inyocounty.us 
760-873-7846 
 

 
9. This MOU shall take effect when it is duly signed by authorized representatives of the 

LPPS Reservation and the County. It shall remain in effect until terminated by the LPPS 
Reservation or the County, which either may do, without cause or legal excuse, and 
without incurring any liability to the other party, by giving the other party 30 days' 
written notice of its intent to terminate the MOU. 

 
10. Nothing in this MOU will be construed as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the LPPS 

Reservation.  
 
 
  



 

 

 

COUNTY OF INYO       CONTRACTOR    
  

 

By:______________________________  By:_________________________________ 

                 Signature                                                                                             Signature  

 

________________________________________   ___________________________________________ 

                 Type or Print Name            Type or Print Name  

 

Dated:____________________________   Dated:____________________________  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   

             
  

                                                                               

County Counsel      Legal Counsel 

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-494  

 

Inyo Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual 
Compliance Forms  

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Denelle Carrington, Assistant Director of Budget 
and General Services  

Denelle Carrington, Assistant Director of Budget 
and General Services  

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize the Chairperson to sign the California Department of Veterans Affairs Annual Medi-Cal Cost 
Avoidance Program Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and the California Department 
of Veterans Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
These two annual forms are required to be reviewed and signed each fiscal year in order to be eligible 
for Subvention funding and Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance funding from the California Department of Veterans 
Affairs. The Subvention funds are distributed to counties that certify that they have appointed a veteran 
to serve as the County Veterans Services Officer. The Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance funds are provided to 
ensure that the program reasonably benefits the Department of Health Care Services.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund Budget Unit 056600 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4473 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These funds are budgeted annually in the VSO Budget to offset County General Fund expenditures 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Your Board could choose not to authorize the Chairperson signing these required annual forms. This is 
not recommended as the Veterans Services Program would no longer be eligible to receive State 
funding.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Medi-Cal Certificate of Compliance FY 2024-25 
2. Subvention Certificate of Compliance FY 2024-25 
  
APPROVALS: 
Denelle Carrington Created/Initiated - 6/18/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/18/2024 
Denelle Carrington Approved - 6/18/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/18/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 
1227 O Street 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814 
Telephone:  (800) 952-5626 

Annual Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance Certificate of Compliance 
Fiscal Year 2024/2025

I certify that _______________________County has appointed a County Veterans Service 
Officer (CVSO) in compliance with California Code of Regulations, Title 12, Subchapter 4.  
Please consider this as our application to participate in the Medi-cal Cost Avoidance Program 
authorized by Military and Veterans Code Section 972.5   

I understand and will comply with the following: 

1. All activities of the CVSO for which payment is made by the CalVet under this
agreement will reasonably benefit the Department of Health Care Services (DHCS) or
realize cost avoidance to the Medi-Cal program.  All State and County Medi-Cal
Eligibility Workers who generate a Form MC 05 (Military Verification and Referral
form) will be instructed to indicate the applicant’s Aid Code on the face of the form.

2. All monies received under this agreement shall be allocated to and spent on the
salaries and expenses of the CVSO.

3. This agreement is binding only if federal funds are available to CalVet from the
DHCS.

4. The CVSO is responsible for administering this program in accordance with California
Code of Regulations, Title 12, Subchapter 4 and the CalVet Procedure Manual for
Subvention and Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance for the current state fiscal year.

__________________________ ____________________ 
Chair, County Board of Supervisors Date 
(or other County Official authorized 
by the Board to act on their behalf) 

SCAN AND UPLOAD THIS COMPLETED FORM VIA THE AGENCY ATTACHMENTS IN VETPRO 

Rev (05/24)

Inyo



STATE OF CALIFORNIA GAVIN NEWSOM, Governor

DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS 
1227 O Street 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 95814 
Telephone:  (800) 952-5626 

Annual Subvention Certificate of Compliance 
Fiscal Year 2024/2025

Charge: 

Funds are distributed under this program to counties as partial reimbursement for expenses incurred in the 
operation of the County Veterans Service Office.  Funds are distributed according to Military and Veterans 
Code Sections 972, and 972.1, a State General Fund Expenditure, and 972.2 a Special Fund Expenditure.  

County Certification: 

I certify that __________________________County has appointed a veteran to serve as the County Veterans 
Service Officer according to California Code of Regulations Title 12, Subchapter 4.  This County Veterans 
Service Officer will administer the aid provided for in Military and Veterans Code Division 4, Chapter 5.  
This County Veterans Service Officer must achieve and maintain accreditation from the California 
Department of Veterans Affairs within 18 months of employment or within 18 months of the County 
Veterans Service Officer position becoming vacant, whichever occurs first.  Veterans Service Representative 
staff filing claims must also achieve and maintain accreditation from the California Department of Veterans 
Affairs within 18 months of employment.  

I certify that the County Veteran Service Officer will assist every veteran of the United States, as well as 
their dependents and survivors, in presenting and pursuing such claim as they may have against the United 
States.  The County Veterans Service Officer and all accredited staff will also assist in establishing veterans, 
dependents and survivors’ rights to any privilege, preference, care or compensation provided for by the laws 
and regulations of the United States, the State of California, or any local jurisdiction. 

I certify that information contained within the VetPro database will not be distributed to any entity outside of 
the County Veteran Service Office, including other County Departments. Additionally, I certify that all 
College Fee Waiver Approval and Denial letters will be generated within the VetPro database. I also 
authorize the County Veterans Service Officer to actively participate in the promotion of the California 
Veterans License Plate program. 

I certify that this county, through the County Veterans Service Office, will maintain records for audit.  These 
records will be maintained for a minimum of two years.  The county agrees to submit reports in accordance 
with the procedures and timelines established by CalVet and in accordance with the CalVet Procedure 
Manual for Subvention and Medi-Cal Cost Avoidance for the current state fiscal year.  The County Veterans 
Service Officer will permit CalVet representatives to inspect all records upon request. 

__________________________ ____________________ 
Chair, County Board of Supervisors Date 
(or other County Official authorized 
by the Board to act on their behalf) 

SCAN AND UPLOAD THIS COMPLETED FORM VIA THE AGENCY ATTACHMENTS IN VETPRO 

Rev (05/24)

Inyo



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-394  

 

Health Officer Contract 
Health & Human Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Deputy Director - Public Health 
& Prevention 

Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the contract between the County of Inyo and James Richardson, MD of Bishop, CA for the 
provision of Health Officer services in an amount not to exceed $205,000 for the period of July 1, 2024 
through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Budget, and 
authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Dr. James A. Richardson has served his current term as lnyo County Health Officer since December 
2016. During this time, he has been responsible for all Health Officer duties mandated by the California 
Health and Safety Code and other California regulations, including, but not limited to: oversight of 
communicable disease issues, reporting and prevention; enforcement of local orders and ordinances 
pertaining to public health; declaration and/or provision of leadership during a local health 
emergency/disaster preparedness for those situations in which a local public Health Officer may declare 
a local health emergency; and ensuring that immunizations are available to the public. Dr. Richardson 
also serves as the Corrections Medical Director, as required by CA Code of Regulations Title 15, which 
is separate from, and in addition to, his Health Officer duties. As the Corrections Medical Director, Dr. 
Richardson provides health services to the lnyo County Jail and Juvenile Center (when in use), including 
24/7 availability to correctional and on-call nursing staff. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  and Grant Funded (Health 
Realignment, Disaster grants, and ELC#2) 

Budget Unit 045100 and 
610390 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5001-5043 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Up to $205,000 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
If this agreement is not approved, Inyo County would not be meeting the requirement of having a Health 
Officer.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Health Officer Contract  
  
APPROVALS: 
Stephanie Tanksley Created/Initiated - 6/6/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/6/2024 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/7/2024 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/10/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/10/2024 
Christian Milovich Approved - 6/18/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/18/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 1 
 0902020 

 
  
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND _________________________________________________________                                             

FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

 
 INTRODUCTION 
 
 WHEREAS,                                                      (hereinafter referred to as "Officer") has 
been duly appointed as                                                      for Inyo County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Officer desire to set forth 
the manner and means by which Officer will be compensated for performance of duties; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions 
hereinafter contained, County and Officer hereby agree as follows: 
 
 TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK. 
 
 The Officer shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in 
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein.  Requests by the County to the Officer 
to perform under this Agreement will be made by                                                   , whose title is: 
__________________________. Requests to the Officer for work or services to be performed under this 
Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services.  The County makes no guarantee or 
warranty, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Officer 
by the County under this Agreement.  County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to 
request from Officer the performance of any services or work at all, even if County should have some need 
for such services or work during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 Services and work provided by the Officer at the County's request under this Agreement will be 
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal, 
state, and County laws, ordinances, resolutions, and directions. 
 
2. TERM. 
 
 The term of this Agreement shall be from __________________ to _________________, unless 
sooner terminated as provided below. 
 
3. CONSIDERATION. 
 
 A. Compensation.  County shall pay Officer in accordance with the Schedule of Fees (set forth 
as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by Officer.  
 
 B. Travel and Per Diem.  County shall reimburse Officer for the travel expenses and per diem 
which Officer incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement.  Officer shall 
request approval by the County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses.  Requests by Officer for 
approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to                             
        , title                                           .  Travel and per diem expenses will be reimbursed 
in accordance with the rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem Payment (Attachment C).  
County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Officer for travel or per diem expenses which are either 
in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in Attachment C, or which are incurred by 
the Officer without the prior approval of the County. 

James Richardson, MD

James Richardson, MD

Health Officer

Stephanie Tanksley

HHS Deputy Director

July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025

Stephanie Tanksley
HHS Deputy Director



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 2 
 0902020 

 
  
 

 C. No Additional Consideration.  Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Officer shall 
not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages, or 
other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement.  Specifically, Officer shall not be 
entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits, 
retirement benefits, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves 
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever. 
 
 D. Limit upon amount payable under Agreement.   The total sum of all payments made by the 
County to Contractor for services and work performed under this Agreement, including overtime, travel, and 
per diem expenses, if any,  and all payments made by the County to any Federal, State, County, or municipal 
agency by reason of Contractor's employment under this Contract, including employer's social security 
contributions and state disability insurance payments, if any, shall not exceed                     
          dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").  County expressly reserves the right to deny 
any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or work performed, including overtime, 
travel or per diem, which is in excess of the contract limit. 
 
 E. Manner of Payment.  Officer will be paid in the same manner and on the same schedule of 
frequency as other County officers and employees.  
 
 F. Federal and State Taxes.  From all payments made to Officer by County under the terms 
and provisions of this Agreement, County shall withhold all appropriate federal and state income taxes 
(resident and non-resident), including social security. 
 
4. WORK SCHEDULE. 
 
 Officer's obligation is to perform the services and work identified in Attachment A which are needed 
within the County.  It is understood by Officer that the performance of these services and work will require a 
varied schedule.  Officer, in arranging his schedule, will coordinate and make arrangements to fulfill the 
requirements of all services and work which is necessary. 
 
5. PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL. 
 
 Contractor is required as a condition of this Agreement to take and pass a County pre-employment 
physical.  Failure to take or pass County's pre-employment physical, constitutes default under this 
Agreement, and may at the County's sole discretion, be grounds to terminate this entire Agreement.   
 
 County will provide Contractor, at County's sole expense, a pre-employment physical.  Such pre-
employment physical may include, but shall not be limited to, a medical history, a complete physical exam, a 
tuberculosis test, complete blood workup, mammogram, glaucoma test, X-rays, urine drug screen, and any 
other testing related to the physical requirements of the position as outlined in the County's Pre-Employment 
Physical Requirements Manual.  The County Personnel Department, in its sole discretion, will resolve any 
question as to exactly what examination, testing, and procedures are required of Contractor under the 
County's Pre-Employment Physical Requirements Manual.  The County's Personnel Department will issue all 
medical clearances.  The County's Personnel Department will issue such clearances based upon the results 
of Contractor's pre-employment physical.   
   
 Except as provided below, Contractor's pre-employment physical must be taken and passed not 
more than 120 days prior to the date on which the term of this Agreement commences.  The County's 
Personnel Department may, in its sole discretion, accept a pre-employment physical taken by Contractor 
more than 120 days prior to the date upon which the term of this Agreement commences, if Contractor has 
been continuously employed by the County since the date of that pre-employment physical.  County is not 
bound by the results of any pre-employment physical taken by Contractor more than 120 days before the 
commencement date of this Agreement where the physical requirements of the position Contractor is 
assuming under this Contract, are different from those of the position Contractor was to assume when he 
took his pre-employment physical.   

205,000



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 3 
 0902020 

 
  
 

 Contractor will not commence any work, or provide any services, under this Agreement until 
Contractor receives a written medical clearance from County to commence work.  No work or services 
provided under this Agreement by Contractor prior to the Contractor's receipt of the written medical clearance 
from County, will be paid for by County.  Further, until Contractor receives medical clearance from County, 
Contractor shall not be entitled to any other consideration or benefit under the terms of this agreement from 
County. 
 
6. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS. 
 
 Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by  the federal, state, county, or municipal governments 
 for Officer to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by Officer and be 
valid at the time Officer enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.  Further, during the term 
of this Agreement, Officer must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits in full force and effect.  
Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses, professional licenses 
or certificates, and business licenses.  Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be procured and 
maintained in force by Officer at no expense to the County.  Officer will provide County, at County's request, 
with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which are required to perform the 
services identified in Attachment A.  Where there is a dispute between Officer and County as to what 
licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, County 
reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement. 
 
7. SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC. 
 
 County shall provide Officer with such supplies, reference materials, and telephone service as is 
deemed necessary by the County for Officer to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this 
Agreement.  Officer is not authorized to incur any expense, and County is not obligated to reimburse or pay 
Officer, for any expense or cost incurred by Officer in procuring such items.  Responsibility for other costs and 
expenses incurred by Officer in providing the services and work identified in Attachment A, will be the sole 
responsibility and obligation of Officer. 
 
8. COUNTY PROPERTY. 
 
 A. Supplies, Equipment, etc.  All supplies, equipment, tools, protective or safety devices, 
badges, identification cards, keys, uniforms, vehicles, reference materials, furniture, appliances, etc. provided 
to Officer by County pursuant to this Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the 
sole and exclusive property of County.  Officer will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain 
such items while they are in Officer's possession.  Officer will be financially responsible for any loss or 
damage to such items, partial or total, which is the result of Officer's negligence. 
 
 B. Products of Officer's Work and Services.  Any and all compositions, publications, plans, 
designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer 
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual 
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or 
intellectual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result, 
product, or manifestation of, Officer's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of 
this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County.  At the termination of the Agreement, 
Officer will convey possession and title to all such properties to County. 
 
9. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. 
 
 County shall provide workers' compensation insurance coverage to Officer for all acts performed in 
the course and scope of providing the services described in Attachment A to this Agreement.  In the event a 
claim is made by Officer for injuries received in the course and scope of providing such services, County's 
liability shall be limited to workers' compensation benefits payable under the California Labor Code.   



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 4 
 0902020 

 
  
 

10. STATUS OF OFFICER. 
 
 All acts of Officer relating to the performance of this Agreement shall be performed by Officer as the 
                                                  of the County.  Officer has no authority to bind, incur any obligation 
on behalf of, or exercise any right or power vested in, the County, except as expressly provided by law or set 
forth in Attachment A.  This Agreement creates no statutorily or judicially recognized property rights in Officer 
to employment with the County.   
 
11. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION. 
 
 In the event the Officer is sued for acts performed within the course and scope of providing services 
and work described in Attachment A of this Agreement, County shall defend, indemnify, and hold the Officer 
harmless from any and all liability arising from such acts as required by law.   
 
12. TERMINATION. 
 
 This Agreement creates no statutorily or judicially recognized property rights in Officer to employment 
with the County. This Agreement may be terminated by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by 
giving to Officer fourteen (14) days written notice of such intent to terminate. Officer may terminate this 
Agreement without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of 
such intent to terminate the County. 
 
13. ASSIGNMENT. 
 
 This is an agreement for the personal services of Officer.  County has relied upon the skills, 
knowledge, experience, and training of Officer as an inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Officer shall 
not assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of the County. 
 Further, Officer shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior 
written consent of the County. 
 
14. DEFAULT. 
 
 If the Officer abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by the 
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by 
the County, the County may declare the Officer in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days 
written notice to Officer.  Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Officer all amounts owing to 
Officer for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.  For purposes of this 
Agreement, abandonment of work is defined to include failure to report to work or to perform the work or 
services requested by County for a period of three (3) consecutive days 
 
15. NONDISCRIMINATION. 
 
 Officer agrees to comply with various provisions of the federal, state, and county statutes, laws, and 
ordinances applicable to the County, and providing that no person in the United States shall, on the grounds 
of race, color, religion, ancestry, sex, age, physical handicap, or national origin, be subjected to 
discrimination. 
 
 
 
16. CONFIDENTIALITY. 
 
 Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws, 
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by 
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted, 
or confidential.  Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records.  Disclosure of such 

Health Officer



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 5 
 0902020 

 
  
 

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express 
writtenconsent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information by Contractor without the County’s 
written consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.  
 
 Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social 
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45, 
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, 
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and Institutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant 
thereto.  For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to 
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.  
 
17. CONFLICTS. 
 
 Officer agrees that he has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which 
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement. 
 Officer agrees to complete and file a conflict of interest statement. 
 
18.   POST AGREEMENT COVENANT. 
 
 Officer agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained from 
the County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit, gain, 
or enhancement.  Further, Officer agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this Agreement, not 
to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who, during the term of 
this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has been an adverse party 
in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Officer by virtue of this Agreement has gained access to 
the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information. 
 
19.   FUNDING LIMITATION. 
 
 The ability of the County to enter into this Agreement is based upon available funding from various 
sources.  In the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County 
has the option to terminate, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its 
notifying Officer of the termination, reduction, or modification of available funding.  Any reduction or 
modification of this Agreement effective pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of 
paragraph 20 (Amendment). 
 
20. AMENDMENT. 
 
 This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual 
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed with the same 
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21.   NOTICE. 
 
 Any notice, amendments, or additions to this Agreement, including change of address of either party 
during the term of this Agreement, which Officer or County shall be required, or may desire, to make shall be 
in writing and shall be sent by prepaid first class mail to the respective parties as follows: 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 6 
 0902020 

 
  
 

 
 
 
   County of Inyo 
   ___________________________Department 
   ___________________________Street 
   ___________________________City and State 
 
   Officer: 
   ___________________________Name 
   ___________________________Street 
   ___________________________City and State 

Health & Human Services
1360 N Main St, 

James Richardson, MD
307 Academy Ave
Bishop, CA

Bishop, CA 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 7 
 0902020 

 
  
 

 
22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. 
 
 This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements, 
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by 
reference, shall be of any force or effect.  Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived, 
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto. 
 
 
                 ////       //// 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 8 
 0902020 

 
  
 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND ______________________________________ 

 FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 
 AS A COUNTY OFFICER 
 
 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                                         . 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO    OFFICER 
 
 
By:                                        By:                                                  
    
 
Dated:                                  Dated:                                                
     
 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
 
                                           
County Counsel  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM: 
 
                                               
County Auditor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
                                                                                                                                            
Director of Personnel Services 

James Richardson, MD

Christian E. Milovich (Jun 6, 2024 12:37 PDT)
Christian E. Milovich

James Richardson (Jun 7, 2024 10:18 PDT)
James Richardson

Jun 7, 2024



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 9 
0902020

ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND ______________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM:                  TO:                    

SCOPE OF WORK: 

James Richardson, MD

July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 10 
0902020

ATTACHMENT B 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND ______________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM:                   TO:          

SCHEDULE OF FEES: 

James Richardson, MD

July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025

County shall agree to pay a flat rate of $7884.61 per pay period, not to exceed $205,000 per year. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract - 201 
(Appointed County Officer) 

Page 11 
0902020

ATTACHMENT C 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO 
AND ______________________________________ 
FOR THE PROVISION OF PERSONAL SERVICES 

AS A COUNTY OFFICER 

TERM: 

FROM:                   TO:                     

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND  PER DIEM PAYMENT: 

James Richardson, MD

July 1, 2024 June 30, 2025

1. Subject to Paragraph 2 below, County will reimburse Health Officer for travel and 
per diem expenses in the same amount and to the same extent as County 
reimburses its permanent status merit system employees.
2. Health Officer will not be reimbursed for intra-county travel by private automobile 
to destinations less than seventy-five (75) miles from lndependence, California.
3.Mileage and meal per diem reimbursement is authorized only in conjunction with 
travel that is preauthorized by the Assistant HHS Director or the HHS Deputy 
Director of Public Health and Prevention.



Health Officer Contract
Final Audit Report 2024-06-07

Created: 2024-06-06

By: Ralph Cataldo (rcataldo@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAkT8EuIEX_4chEbth5AbS_QFYra7gQN0a

"Health Officer Contract" History
Document created by Ralph Cataldo (rcataldo@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-06 - 6:09:33 PM GMT

Document emailed to lyska22@aol.com for signature
2024-06-06 - 6:12:08 PM GMT

Document emailed to Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-06 - 6:12:08 PM GMT

Document emailed to Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-06 - 6:12:08 PM GMT

Document emailed to Christian Milovich (cmilovich@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-06 - 6:12:08 PM GMT

Email viewed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-06 - 7:15:27 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-06 - 7:17:03 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Email viewed by Christian Milovich (cmilovich@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-06 - 7:35:37 PM GMT

Signer Christian Milovich (cmilovich@inyocounty.us) entered name at signing as Christian E. Milovich
2024-06-06 - 7:37:13 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Christian E. Milovich (cmilovich@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-06 - 7:37:15 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Email viewed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-07 - 0:12:53 AM GMT



Document e-signed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-07 - 0:14:09 AM GMT - Time Source: server

Email viewed by lyska22@aol.com
2024-06-07 - 4:25:38 PM GMT

Signer lyska22@aol.com entered name at signing as James Richardson
2024-06-07 - 5:18:48 PM GMT

Document e-signed by James Richardson (lyska22@aol.com)
Signature Date: 2024-06-07 - 5:18:50 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-06-07 - 5:18:50 PM GMT



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-335  

 

County of Mono Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging 
Amendment No. 2 

Health & Human Services - ESAAA 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Melissa Best-Baker, Deputy Director - Fiscal 
Oversight and Special Operations 

Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Amendment No. 2 to the contract between the County of Inyo and County of Mono 
for the provision of Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging (ESAAA) service to Mono County eligible 
residents, to recognize additional funding and increasing funding over the term of the contract in an 
amount not to exceed $264,781 for the period beginning July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, and not 
exceeding the total four-year contract amount of $924,917 for the period of July 1, 2020 through June 30, 
2024, and authorize the HHS Director to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This contract amendment comes before your Board with revision to the total amount of the 
contract.  When this contract was created in 2020, the program allocations were fairly steady and there 
was little-to-no additional funding over base allocations.  However, the senior programs have received 
additional monies from several of the COVID relief funds, increased allocations, and new infrastructure 
funding.  This amendment incorporates infrastructure funding for Mono County and increases the 
amount of the multi-year contract commissurately.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded (California Department of Aging) Budget Unit 683000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5539 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Future Year Impacts 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
Up to $924,917 over the period between July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2024 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could chose to not approve this amendment. This is not recommended as it prevent Inyo 
County from passing on additional California Department of Aging funding to Mono County. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
County of Mono 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Mono County Senior Services FY 23-24 Amendment No. 2 
  
APPROVALS: 
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 4/25/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/25/2024 
Anna Scott Approved - 5/14/2024 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/12/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/18/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/18/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/18/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No 116 
Page 1 

 12/2023 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
COUNTY OF MONO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF SENIOR SERVICES 
 
 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Mono County Social 
Services (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of 
Independent Contractor Services dated February 16, 2021, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No.116, 
for the term from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2024. 
 
 WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth 
below; 
 
 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written 
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement 
to maintain continuity.  
 
 County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:  
 
SECTION 3.D., LIMIT ON AMOUNT PAYABLE UNDER AGREEMENT, is amended as follows: 
 
The contract limit, as outlined in Section 3.D., shall be amended from $660,136 to $984,817. ($106,000 for 
Infrastructure funding and $218,681 in base allocation and One Time Only monies) 
 
ATTACHMENT A, SCOPE OF WORK, is amended to add the following language to the end of Attachment 
A: 
 
During FY 2023/2024, with the addition of Infrastructure funding, CONTRACTOR shall use this funding to 
enhance, expand, and increase senior nutrition infrastructure.  Monies shall prioritize purchasing, 
upgrading, or refurbishing infrastructure for the production and distribution of congregate or home-delivered 
meals.   
 
CONTRACTOR shall also pay invoices from Inyo for meals and RD services provided by Inyo staff. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall submit a separate invoice reflecting allowable expenses incurred with infrastructure 
funding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract  -  No 116 
Page 2 

 12/2023 

AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 
 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  
COUNTY OF MONO 

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES 
 

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is July 1, 2023. 
 

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same. 
 

 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
_____ DAY OF _________________________,  __________. 
 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONTRACTOR 
 
By: ____________________________________              By: __________________________________ 
                Signature  
Dated:_________________________________         
             ___________________________________ 
                 Type or Print  
        
       Dated: ________________________________ 
        
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
County Counsel  
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:  
 
 
_________________________________________ 
County Auditor 
 
APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Personnel Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
County Risk Manager  
 
 
 

Christie Martindale (Jun 13, 2024 15:49 PDT)
Christie Martindale

Grace Weitz (Jun 14, 2024 16:06 PDT)
Grace Weitz



AMENDMENT NUMBER ONE {1 ) TO
AGREEiJIENT BETWEEiI THE COUNTY OF INYO AI{D

THE COUNW OF MONO

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

! /H-EFEAS, the County of lnyo {hereinafter refened to as',Count/) and
lle Cgunly of Mgno , 6f Briggeporr, Califomia " '
(hereinafterreferredtoas,.Contraaot!tEyqenteredintoinAgre@noent

3:1il::1"^1":?u''"'leFi lfilslv#tlnvo 
standarb

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consenl to annend such Agreement as set forlh
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amendsd, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual conssnl of lhe parties thereto, if such amendment or chinge is in written
form, and executed with the sarne formalities ag such Agreement, and attached to the originalAgreement
to maintain continuity.

Coung and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

See Attached"

The effective date cf this Amendment to the Agreement is Juna 1 2423

All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - gs. 116 
_

Page 1

062912



AMENDMENT Nunasen 9tt (t) ro
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTYOF INYO AND

THE COUNry OF MONO

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
18rh DAYOF Ausust )o)4

INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

08t18t2023
Signature

Type or Print

Dated:

APPROVEDAS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

By;

&^Arn }vrdrli-.
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County Risk

116
County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. _

Page 2

062912



AMENDMENT NUMBER
oNE (1)

TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

THE COUNry OF MONO

FOR THE PROVISION OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By: By:

halarl.
Signature

Type or Print

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

&^AAr. }wr/,b
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

Cou Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County Risk Manager

116
County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. _

Page2

062912

1st August 2023

tdavis
Stamp



- SECTION 3(D)' LIMIT ON AMOLTNT PAYABLE UNDER AGREEMENT, is arnended as
follows:

The o'contract limit," as that term is used in Section 3(D), shall be amended from $600,000 to
$660,136.00

'ATTACHMENTA, SCOPE OF WORK, is amended to add the following language to the end
ofAttachmentA:

During FY 2A22/2A23 andFY 2AnD02\ withthe additional OARR tunding, CONTRACTOR
shall expand existing services that will be utilized for Intergenerational activities to support the
goal of connecting older adults with children, youth, and adults through (OCNP) Oldei-
cal i fornians Nutrition Pro gram and lntergeneratio nal Acti vities.

Before initiating expanded services, CONTRACTOR shall provide a plan to the COLINTy that
clearly outlines how services provided with OARRI OCNP funding will expand current services
offered under the original terms of the contrast to include Intergenerational Nutrition Activities.
The expansion may include but is not limited to the following:

r Development or maintenance of partnerships and collaborative efforts with programs
serving children to foster intergenerational connections befween older adulti an-d
children,

I Planning, development, or implementation of shared sites with programs serving meals to
children to promote intergenerational socialization among the partiiipants.

r Planning, development, or implementation of intergenerational cooking demonstrations
or classes to support healthy eating habits.

r Planning, development, or implementation of a shared garden site(s) and
intergenerational gardening activities and nutrition education.

r Vinual or in-person lunoh companicn for OCNP participants to socialize with children,
youths, or adults while enjoying a meal.

o Virtual or in-person intergenerational social activities related to the OCNP.

CONTRACTOR shall comply with program monitoring by ESAAA staffas required by the
State, or otherwise determined, that includes distinct reporting of expanded services funded with
OARR.

Contractor shall submit monthly to County an invoice reflecting allowable expenses incurred by
its staffin providing those services:

r Supplies or equipment
r The service units (meals) and unduplicated client oount for congregate (C-l) and

homedelivered (c-2) meals provided to ocNp clients using OARR funds.
o The service units and estimated participant count for meals provided to intergenerational

participants who are ineligible for OCNp meals.

contractor's invoices shall not exceed $60,tr36.00 annually fbr year zaa.



Funding for Expanded OARR/OCNP Services is separate from all other Title IIIClArea Plan
funding. Nothing in this amendment is intended to impact or alter the existing provisions in the
Schedule of Fees as they pertain to Title IIIClArea Plan fimds.



In the Rnms of the Board of Supwisors
Connty of Inyo. State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY. that at a meetilg of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

lrelcl in their roorns at the County Adrninistrative Celter in Independence or the l6th dayof February202l an order rvas eluly

made and entered as follows:

HHS-ESAAA _
Mono County
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to ratify and approve the
contract with the County of Mono for the provision of Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging
(ESAA4) services to Mono County eligible residents, in the amount of $600,000 for the period of
July 1 , 2024 through June 30, 2421, and negotiable for a maximum of three additional fiscal
year (one-year) periods, contingent upon the Board's adoption of future budgets, and authorize
the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this l dh

Dal,of Febnnnt, 2A2I

CLINT G, QLNLTER
Clerk ofthe Board ofSupervisors

Routing

CC
Pur&asing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Aher: HHS
DATE. March 2,2A21

By:

/ ,\
/n t L(kxh)*1"-



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO AND THE COUNTY OF MONO
FOR THE PROVISION OF SENIOR SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the Coun$ of lnyo (hereinafter refened to as "County'') may have the need for
the Community-Based Senior services of Mono County Social $ervices of the County of Mono (hereinafter
refened to as "Contacto/'), and in consideration of lhe mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions
hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follows:

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

The Contractor shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Atlachment A, aftached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requesls by lhe County to the
Conkactor lo perform under this Agreement will be made by Marilyn Mann, wfiose title is Director of Health
and Human Services. Requests to the Contractor for work or services to be performed under this Agreement
will be'based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or wananty, of any
nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of the Contractor by lhe
County under this Agreement. County by lhis Agreement incurs no obligation or requirement to request from
Contractor the performance ol any services or work at all, even if County should have some need for such
services or work during the term of this Agreement,

Services and work provided by lhe Contractor al the Count/s request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with he requirements and standards established by applicabla federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement.

2. INTIAL TERM AND OPTIONS.

The initial term of this Agreement shall be from July 1 , 202A to June 30, 2021 unless sooner
terminated as provided betow. ln addition, County shall have three options to extend the Agreement for
additional one-year periods as follows:

a, From July 1,2021through June30,2Q22
b. From July 1,2022 through June 30, 2023
c. From July 1,2023 through June30,2024

County may exercise such options by giving writtefl notice to Contractor at least thirty (30) days
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an extension lhereof.

The notice shall specify the period of the options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
the same termg and conditions as stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Co.mpensation. County shall pay to Contractor for the services and work dessibed in

AttaehmentA to be performed by Contractor at the County's request as follows:
Each year, lnyo County receives money from the Callfornia Deparfnent of Aging (CDA) to fund
services provided in Program Service Area (PSA) 16. PSA 16 includes lnyo and Mono Counties.
Funds aro disbursed from the CDA to lnyo County, and lnyo County passes a certain percentage
of the funds on to Mono County. The percentages to be passed on to Mono County are dictated
by the PSA '16 Area Plan that is developed and approved by the Eastern Sierra Agency on
Aging, the lnyo County Board of Supervisors, and tha CDA. Pursuant to the current PSA 16 Area

County of lnyo Modified Contract
with Mono County for Senior Services

Page 1 10112n020



Plan, the percentages for each service area to be disbursed to Mono County are (these
percentages may change w{th Area Plan updates within the term of the contract):

lllB Supportive Seruices: Assisted Transportation - 2Ao/o ol funds received from
CDA tllB Supportive Services: Transportation - 14n1a of funds received trom CDA
C1 Congregate Meals - 13% of funds raceived from CDA
C2 Home Delivered Meals - 20o/o ol funds received from CDA

The parties understand that the exact dollar amount that lnyo County wi*l pay to Mono County under lhis
contmct is dependent upon the allocations &at lnyo County receives each fiscal year from the CDA.
However, the exact dollar amounts shall be dictated by the percentages set forth above.

The parties agree and understand that the CDA releases its annual allocations on or about April of each
year, that the CDA releases one-timeonly {OTO) monies andlor adjustunents on or about September of
each year, and that the CDA may be releasing special COVID-19 response monies. The parties agree that
all three types of allocations shall be distributed between and lnyo and Mono Counties pursuant to the
percentages set forth above. ln order to receive its percentage of the CDA allocations, Mono County wlll
gubmit an Area Plan Budget (CDA122) to lnyo County each fiscalyearwithin 30 days of lnyo County's
receipt of allocations, as required by theCDA.

lnyo County expressly reserves lhe righl to deny any payment or reimbursament requesled by Mono
Gounty for services or worlr performed which is in excess of the contract limit.

B. Travel and per diem. Contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreernent.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Conlractor
shallnot be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agre€ment. Specifically, Contractor shall not
be entitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, health insurance benefits,
retirement benefits, disabilily retirement benefils, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind wfiatsoever.

D. Limit upon amount pavable undef Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by lnyo
County lo Mono County for services and wprk performed under for all terms of this Agreement shall not

exceed slr hundred thousand dollars (S600,000.00).
E. Bi$ing and payrnent.

Contractor will also submit an invoice for the actual monthly expenditures and County of lnyo will reimburse
based on the actual expenditures. The monlhly invoice shall be submitted by Contractor to County of lnyo by
the 20th of the month for services delivered in the previous monlh, and shall be paid by County of lnyo by the
end of the month after the invoice is received. Appropriale baekup shodng the actual expenditures must
also be attached to the invoice.

Contractor will also provide a monthly summary of service activity by fhe 10th of the lollowing month in the
categories in the categories specified in lhe PSA 16 Area Plan. The monthly summary shall identiff units of
service provided in each category according to administrative requirements specified by the County.
Paymenl will be conditioned on monthly submission of these service activity reports.

Conlractor will submit, as required by the CDA, the Financial Closeout Report (CDA 180) within 25 days
following the end of the fiscal year or within 30 days fotlowing termination prior to the end of the contract
period, unless othenruise specilied by the CDA.

Budgets, invoices, service activity reports and close-out reports shall be submitted to lnyo County Health &
Human SeMces, P.O. Drawer A, lndependence, CA 93526 or by electronic means specified by the County
of lnyo.

F. Federaland $tate taxes.

County of lnyo Modilied Contract
with Mono County for Senior Services

Page 2 14h2t2020



(1) Except as provided in subparagraph {2) below, County will not withhold any federal
or state income taxes or social security fom any payments made by County to Contraclor under the terms
and conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California Slate income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-California resident independont contrac{ors when il is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed ons lhousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
{$1,4ee.00). (3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or
payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Paynent of all taxes and other
assessments on such sums is the sole responsibility of Contraclor. County has no responsibility or liability for
payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by County lo Contractor, and taxes wi$rheld from payments
to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the Califomia
State Franchise Tax Board, To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service {lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractofs obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. ll is undErstood by Contractor that the performance of
theso services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will anange hi#her own schedule, but will
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requesled by County under lhis Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS,

A. Any licensos, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Conhactor enters into this Agreement or as othenvise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in fullforce and effect. Licenses, certificales, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or cerlificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permils will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contr:actor will provide County,
upon execution of ttis Agreement, with evidence of cunent and valid licenses, cerlificates and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Attachment A, Where there is a dispute belween Conlractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reserves the right to make such cleterminations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor wanants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency, Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http:/iwww.sam.gov.

8. OFFTCE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQU|PMENT, ETCETERA.

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement, County is not obligaled to reimbursie or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by
Contractor in procuring or maintaining such iiems. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incuned by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Conlractor.

County of lnyo Modified Contnct
with Mono County for Senior Services

page 3

7, COUNTY PROPERW.

14t1212020



A. Personal Propertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or
safety devices, badges, identilication cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this
Agreement are, and at lhe lermination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of County.

Contractor witl use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Contracto/s possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
partial or total, which is the result of Contrac-tor's negligence,

B. Products of Contracto/s Work and ServiceE. Any and all compositions, publications, plans,

designs, specifications, blueprints, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, filma, audio-visual
presentations, exhibils, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrighls, or
intellec{ual properties of any kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the resutt,
product, or manifaslation of, Contracto/s services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of
this Agreement remain, the sde and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,
Contractor will convey possession and title to all such properties to Coun$.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment B and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR,

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officerc, and employees, relating to the performance of lhis
Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, ofiicers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of lhis Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behall of
County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to

exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be

considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contraclor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contracton

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
servicos to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contracts shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
conkol with respect to the physical action or activities of Conlractor in fulfillment of this Agreernent.

C. Contractor, its agents, officers, and amployees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFrcANON.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its otficers, offieials, employees
and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs {including without
limiiation costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with Contractor's
performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations eontained in the
agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct
of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT

A. Records. Contractor shalt prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and dirsctions.
Conlractor shall rnaintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from tle termination or completion of
this Agreemenl. Contractor may futfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substitute photographs, microphotographs, or olher authentic reproduction of such records.

Coung of lnyo Modified Contract
with Mono Counly for Senior Services

Page 4 10t12t2024



B. lnspections and Audits, Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable limes, to audil, inspecl, or olhenrvise evaluate the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performarce of this Agreement, Corrtractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawlully discriminate in violation of any federal, s*ate, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medicalcondition, marital status, age, or sex. Conlractor and its agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Cods sectaon 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 {P.L, S&
352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without 6ause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor ninety {90} days written notice of such inlent lo cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at wil[, for any reason whatsoever by giving ninety (90) days written notice of such intent
io cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Conhactor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducemenl to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contrastor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

'5. 
DEFAULT

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
Counly in a limely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct lhe wsrk and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon live {5) days written
notice lo Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to
Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination"

'8. 
WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed ts be waiver of any
subseguent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this
Agreernent unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

,7. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor fudher agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and counly laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such informatisn and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express written

County of lnyo Modilied Contract
wiih Mono County for Senior Services

page 5 10t12t2020



consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidentiai information by Contractor without the Countls writen
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsitility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding any{hing in the Agreernent to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social

services are csnfidential and are to be protected lrom unauthorized disclosure in accordance wilh Titte 45,

Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabili$ Act of 1996,

and Sactions 10850 and 14144.2 of theWelfare and lnslitulions Code, and regulations adopted pufst€nt
lhereto. For the purpose of this Agreemenl, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
baneficiaries shall be protected by lhe provider from unauthorized disclosure.

r8. coNFLtcTs.

Contracior agre€s that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which

would conllict in any manner or degree with lhe performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT

Contractor agrees not to use any confidenlial, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the County in the course of providing services and work under lhis Agreement, for any personal benefit,

gain, or enhancement. Furlher, Conlractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this

Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any ontity, association, corporation, or person who,

during the term of lhis Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest w'th the County, or who has

been an adverse party in litigation with the Coun$, and conceming such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the Coung's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information"

20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any psreon or circumstance shall be

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravenlion of any federal, state, or

county stalute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereof, shall noi be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable,

21. FUNDING UMITATION.

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sourc€s.

ln lhe event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, fiom one or more sources, County has lhe
option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any ol its terms within ten (10) days of ils notifying

Conlractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two

{22) {Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted ftom, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendrnent or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the odginalAgreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be

County of lnyo Modified Contrad
with Mono County for Senior Services

Page 6 10fi22020



required, or may desire, to make, shall be in wriling and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first
class maillo, the respeclive parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Health and Human $erviceE
PO Drarrrer H
lndependence, CA

Contractor:
County of Mono $ocial Services
PO Box 576
Bridgeport, CA

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement contains the enlire agreement of the parties, and no represenlations, inducementrs,
promises, or agreements othenruise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or efhct. Furlher, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless lhe same be in writing exacuted by lhe parties hereto.

iltt ilil

County of lnyo Modified Conirad
with Mono County for Senior Services

Page 7 1At1Z2A2o



AGREEMENT BETWEEN GOUNTY OF INYO AttlD THE cOUNw OF niOilO
FOR THE PROVISION OF SEHIOR SERVICES

IN WINESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS
TH|S 2nd - DAY oF _ Mav , 2021

coulrtw oF tNYo CONTRACTOR

APPROVEDAS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

Signature

Jennifer Kreitz
Prinl or Type Name

Dated: Feb 4, 202I

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

*-r#-
jr:.:rt5ir6D iFet, J, 2tt1 i$rrt P$ir

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

,7atoh
-.'iJ ) :'i., r! r:Lb J..rilrl ;:r :l :15 "i

County Risk Manager

Jeff Griffiths

Dated:

PrintorType Name

a3-02-2021

b^^fr(" Cfr,^r.!^!*-

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

&"'rb"%a*;ree.
CountyAuditor

ASTO EL REQUIREMENTS:

APPROVED TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

County Risk

Goun$ of lnyo Modified Contracl
wih Mono County for Senior Serviceg

PagE I ,on2n020



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 6OUNW OF INYO AND THE COUNTY OF MONO
FORTHE PROVISION OF SENIOR SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2020 TO:,lune 30,2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

Contractor will provide the senior services identified in the most cunent PSA 16 Area Plan (i.e. Home
Delivered Meals, Congregale Meals, Transportation and Assisted Transporlation) wilhin Mono Coung
according to the requiternents of the statutory provisions of the Title lll and Title lV Programs [OAA 306] in
accordance with Slate and federal laws and regulations. A copy of the PSA 16 Area Plan is incorporated
herein by reference.

Contractor will provide a monthly summary of service activity by the 10th of the following month for Home
Delivered Meals, Congregate Meals, Transportation and Assisted Transportation an terms of identified units of
service according to adminisiralive requirements specified by the County.

Contractor will participate in annual monitoring for program and flscal activities. Contractor will provide a copy
of lheir County Single Audit by April 1 5 each year.

ATTACHMENT B

Coung of lnyo Modifed Contract
with Mono Coung for Senior Services

Page 9 10t12t2020



AGREEiIIENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF IT{YO AITID THE GOUNTY OF iJIONO
FOR THE PROVISION OF SEI{IOR SERVICES

TERM:

FROM:_Jg!y1,20?0 TO: June 30.203!

SEE ATTAC}IED INSURA}ICE PROVISIOTTS

Counly of lnyo Modifiad Confac{
with Mono County for Senior $ervicas

Page 10 1011a2020



Attachment B: lnsurance Requirements for Professional Seruices

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
emplayees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND TIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General tiability ICGLJ: Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL

on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily iniury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Statr.ts. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and vslunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, cr
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance [at least as broad
as I5O Fsrm CG 2A 7A 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 2A 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile tiability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 (hiredJ and 9 (non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with lirnit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certi$ring that
contractor has no employees.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andfor the higher
limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance soverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG ZA 01 04 13 as respects Inyo Counff, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1e

Nonprofessional Services

Page

Notice of Cancellation



Attachment Br Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiverof Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affecl
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo Coung
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of [nsurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a

curuent A.M, Best's rating of no less than A:VIl, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyc County,

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1, The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before lhe date of the ccntract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be rnaintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5J years after completion of the contract of work.
3" If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements {or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clauseJ and a copy of the Declarations and Endorsernent Page of the
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documenls prior to lhe work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any tirne,

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure thaf Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subconffactors.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. le
Nonprofessional Services

Page



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professtonal Senlces

Special Risks or Circumstance$
Inyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including lirnits, based on the
nature of the rislq prior experiencg insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

Countyoflnyo lnsurance Standards- No, 1e
Nonprofessional Services

page



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-388  

 

North American Mental Health Services Contract 
Amendment No. 1 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and North American 
Mental Health Services of Redding, CA, for the provision of Mental Health Tele-psychiatry services, 
increasing the monthly service hours from 24 to 50, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Through a formal procurement process, North American Mental Health Services (NAMHS) was selected 
to provide telepsychiatry services to adults, children, and adolescents in Inyo County. Initially, the 
contract stipulated a projected number of service hours. However, it became evident that to adequately 
meet the needs of clients and individuals who are incarcerated in Inyo County Jail, an increase in service 
hours was necessary. Consequently, the agreed-upon monthly hours have been adjusted from 24 to 50, 
significantly improving the quality of care and access to care we provide. Now, the psychiatrist conducts 
weekly sessions with inmates instead of bi-weekly, while the psychiatric physician's assistant (PA) 
engages in bi-weekly meetings with behavioral health staff to assess cases and offer consultation on 
care coordination, in addition to the direct services she is providing through the behavioral health 
outpatient clinic. Contracting with two different levels of providers has allowed us to add more hours and 
stay within the limit of the contract.  Moreover, the modification permits the PA to accommodate two 
additional clients on her regular appointment day. We kindly request your Board's approval to formalize 
this amended agreement. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Mental Health MediCal and Mental Health 
Realignment 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could decide not to approve this contract amendment with North American Mental Health 
Services; however, this would prevent us from adequately providing the psychiatry services that are 
required as part of our contract with the state, as well as making it difficult to schedule case consultations 
for care coordination. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. North American Health Services Contract Amendment No. 1 
2. North American Mental Health Services Telepsychiatry Services Agreement 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 6/19/2024 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/19/2024 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/19/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Contract Amendment 

 

Page 1 

3/30/04   

AMENDMENT NUMBER ___1___ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

NORTH AMERICAN MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES  

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and North American Mental Health 

Services (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of Mental 

Health Services dated October 17, 2023, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 144, for the initial term of 

November 30, 2023, to June 30, 2024. 

 

 WHEREAS,  County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below;  

 

 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted 

from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed 

with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

 

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

 

The first paragraph of Attachment A (Scope of Work) shall be amended to: 

  

North American Mental Health Services will assist the County of Inyo with initial assessments for both children 
and adolescents looking for specialty mental health services and severe emotional disturbances. NAMHS 
providers will send referrals to contracted CBOs for the term of the agreement. These services will be either in 
person or provided through telepsychiatry for 50 hours per month. NAMHS agrees to be flexible and can add 
additional support services if the county's needs change. We will work closely with Inyo County's behavioral 
health team, participating in multidisciplinary team meetings, and provide additional billable consultation upon 
occasion to ensure continuity of care. 
 
The second paragraph of Attachment A (Scope of Work), bullet point #2, shall be amended to: 
 
2.   General psychiatric in-person and/or telepsychiatry services for inmates of Inyo County Jail  
for 18 hours monthly. 
 

The first paragraph of Attachment B (Scope of Fees) shall be amended to:  

 
NAMHS will provide either In-Person or Telepsychiatry with a licensed provider for 50 hours per month. These 
hours will remain flexible. The services will be provided in a mutually agreed upon block of time schedule in 
advance. During these blocks, a patient can be seen virtually, by phone, or in-person. During the blocks of time 
agreed upon for services, in case of a no-show, NAMHS will allow for substitution. 
 
 

. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



County of Inyo Contract Amendment 

 

Page 2 

3/30/04   

 

 

 

AMENDMENT NUMBER ___1___ TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

NORTH AMERICAN MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES  

FOR THE PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH SERVICES 

 

 

 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS 

_________ DAY OF   ___________________________________. 

 

      

 

COUNTY OF INYO 

 

By:_________________________________________ 

 

 

Dated:______________________________________ 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY: 

  

         

 

____________________________________________  

County Counsel  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING   FORM: 

 

____________________________________________ 

County Auditor 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT: 

 

 

______________________________________________ 

County Risk Manager 
 

 

CONTRACTOR  

 

By:________________________________________  

 

 

Dated:______________________________________ 
 

 

 

ASSIGNEE 

 

By:________________________________________  

 

 

Dated:______________________________________ 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A

6/14/2024

Grace Weitz (Jun 14, 2024 12:36 PDT)
Grace Weitz

Christie Martindale (Jun 17, 2024 18:31 PDT)
Christie Martindale



 

 

In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Inyo, State of California 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held 

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 17th day of October 2023 an order was duly made and 

entered as follows: 

Routing 

CC  
Purchasing  
Personnel  
Auditor  
CAO  
Other:  HHS 
DATE: October 27, 2023 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 17th 

Day of  October, 2023

NATHAN GREENBERG 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By: _____________________________

HHS-Behavioral  
Health – 
North American 
Mental Health 
Services 
Telepsychiatry 
Services Agreement 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the agreement 

between the County of Inyo and North American Mental Health Services of Redding, CA for 
the provision of Mental Health Tele-psychiatry services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 
for the period of November 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 
unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Kingsley absent. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



Jennifer Roeser

10/27/2023

DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



Jennifer Roeser

Chairperson

10/27/23

DocuSign Envelope ID: E06F98AE-AAE1-42E5-B80E-0470CEEA283A



 

 

In the Rooms of the Board of Supervisors 
County of Inyo, State of California 

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held 

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 17th day of October 2023 an order was duly made and 

entered as follows: 

Routing 

CC  
Purchasing  
Personnel  
Auditor  
CAO  
Other:  HHS 
DATE: October 27, 2023 

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 17th 

Day of  October, 2023

NATHAN GREENBERG 
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 

By: _____________________________

HHS-Behavioral  
Health – 
North American 
Mental Health 
Services 
Telepsychiatry 
Services Agreement 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the agreement 

between the County of Inyo and North American Mental Health Services of Redding, CA for 
the provision of Mental Health Tele-psychiatry services in an amount not to exceed $100,000 
for the period of November 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson 
to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 
unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Kingsley absent. 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

October 17, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-4222  

 

Agreement between County of Inyo and North American 
Mental Health Services for Telepsychiatry Services 

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent Anna Scott, Acting HHS Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the agreement between the County of Inyo and North American Mental Health Services of 
Redding, CA for the provision of Mental Health Tele-psychiatry services in an amount not to exceed 
$100,000 for the period of November 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Since Inyo County's long-time psychiatrist retired in 2021, the Health and Human Services Department 
has sought to meet our contractual obligations to provide psychiatry services via a contracted 
telepsychiatry provider. Our current provider of telepsychiatry services, Iris Telehealth, has provided 
HHS with notice to end their contract as of November 9, 2023.  Upon learning that the Iris Telehealth 
contract would be ending, HHS initiated a request for proposals to identify a new provider.  North 
American Mental Health Services (NAMHS) was selected through a formal procurement process to 
provide tele-psychiatry services to adults, children and adolescents in Inyo.  NAMHS provides 
telepsychiatry services to nine other rural counties in California, including Mono County. NAMHS was 
selected based upon several criteria that best meet Inyo County's needs from the standpoint of network 
adequacy and fiscal prudence. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Mental Health MediCal and Mental Health 
Realignment 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
These expenses are budgeted. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could decide not to approve this contract with North American Mental Health Services. This 
is not recommended as the Inyo County HHS Department has selected this vendor through a 
competitive process and found that North American Mental Health Services provides the best value for 
psychiatry services that are required as part of our contract with the state. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. North American Mental Health Services Contract 
  
APPROVALS:  

- 10/4/2023  
- 10/5/2023  
- 10/9/2023  
- 10/9/2023  
- 10/9/2023  
- 10/12/2023  
- 10/12/2023  
- 10/12/2023  
- 10/12/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

























Jennifer Roeser

10/27/2023





















































Jennifer Roeser

Chairperson

10/27/23



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-478  

 

Memorandum of Understanding for the California 
Department of Aging 
Health & Human Services 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Melissa Best-Baker, Deputy Director - Fiscal 
Oversight and Special Operations 

Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the Memorandum of Understanding between the County of Inyo and California Department of 
Aging of Sacramento, CA for the provision of Coordination of Older Americans Act Services to Residents 
of Planning Service Area 16 for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2029, contingent upon the 
Board’s approval of future budgets, and authorize the HHS Director to sign the MOU, California Civil 
Rights Law Certification, Information Integrity and Security Statement, and Contractor Certification 
Clauses. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The California Department of Aging has moved away from the State standard contract and attachments 
to a multi-year Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) to remove the administrative burdens and allow 
timely access to funding and programmatic changes.  A program guide is now available to be used as a 
reference for program requirements.   
 
The FY 2024/25 allocations were also recently released.  The total annual funding allocated to Program 
and Services Area 16 is $1,559,355, which is a slight decrease of $1,231 of the base allocation from the 
prior year.  Acceptance of this MOU ensures the receipt of federal and state funds to keep existing 
services going.  Funding in the amount of $214,038 will be allocated to Mono County to provide services 
to seniors in that county. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded  Budget Unit 683000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4499 and 4552 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditures  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
This MOU allows for the contract to be in place and access to allocations in a more timely manner. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this MOU. This is not recommended, as failure to move forward 
on these actions will disrupt services to seniors in the region. Receipt of any funding for ESAAA is 
contingent upon execution of this contract. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Mono County Social Services and California Indian Legal Services 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Memorandum of Understanding 
2. Contractor Certification Clauses  
3. Info Integrity and Security Statement 
4. California Civil Rights Law Certification 
  
APPROVALS: 
Melissa Best-Baker Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/19/2024 
Christian Milovich Approved - 6/19/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 1 of 15 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

between the 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 

and 

COUNTY OF INYO 

for 

Coordination of Older Americans Act Services to 
Residents of  

Planning Service Area 16 

 

This MOU shall become effective July 1, 2024 and shall 
remain in effect until June 30, 2029. 

 

_____________________________ ___________________________ 

Anna Scott      Andy Sachs 
HHS Director      Assistant Deputy Director 
County of Inyo     Office of Finance & Administration Svs 
1360 North Main Street Suite 201   California Department of Aging  
Bishop, CA 93514     2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200 
       Sacramento, CA 95833



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 2 of 15 
 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING (CDA) AND 

COUNTY OF INYO 
 

1. PURPOSE 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into between the 
California Department of Aging, hereinafter referred to as “CDA,” and County of 
Inyo, hereinafter referred to as “County of Inyo” or “AAA,” in compliance with 
federal law (42 USC § 3001 et seq.), state law (Welfare and Institutions Code, 
Division 8.5), federal and/or state regulations, and any other authorities or 
policies.  

This MOU provides the transfer or continued transfer of responsibility for Older 
Americans Act (OAA) and Older Californians Act (OCA) assistance and/or 
related support services to eligible older adults, adults with disabilities, family 
caregivers, and residents in long-term care facilities within County of Inyo’s 
service area. 

2. PARTIES 

“Parties” shall mean County of Inyo and CDA. Each individually is a “Party.” 

3. POLICY 

County of Inyo has been approved by the Administration for Community Living 
(ACL) to administer OAA and OCA activities in accordance with 42 USC § 3001 
et seq., and Welfare and Institutions Code (WIC), Division 8.5. 

4. APPLICABLE PROGRAMS 
 
The programs selected below are applicable to this MOU between County of Inyo 
and CDA. 
 
☒ Area Plan (AP) 
 
☐ Health Insurance Counseling and Advocacy Program (HICAP) 
 
☐ Medicare Improvements for Patients and Providers Act (MIPPA) 
 
☐ Title V Senior Community Services Program (TV SCSEP) 

  



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 3 of 15 
 

5. DEPARTMENT CONTACT 
 

A. The name of CDA’s contact to request revisions, waivers, or modifications 
affecting this MOU or the Program Guide (as referenced in Section 10, 
below), will be provided by the State to the AAA upon full execution of this 
MOU. 
 

B. AAA shall submit to CDA changes to AAA’s legal name, main address, 
and remit to address to bmbsubvention@aging.ca.gov.  

 
C. AAA shall submit to CDA changes to AAA Director or any key staff to be 

added or removed from the distribution list by submitting a Contact Report 
to AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. You may request the Contact Report by 
emailing AAAcontactinfo@aging.ca.gov. 

 
6. NOTICES 

 
A. Any notice to be given hereunder by either Party to the other may be 

effected by personal delivery in writing or by registered or certified mail, 
overnight mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, provided the 
AAA retains receipt, and shall be communicated as of actual receipt. 
 

B. All other notices, apart from those identified in Section 5 of this MOU, shall 
be addressed to the California Department of Aging, AAA Based Teams, 
2880 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 200, Sacramento, California, 95833.  
Notices mailed to the AAA shall be to the address indicated on the 
coversheet of this MOU. 
 

C. Either Party may change its address by written notice to the other Party in 
accordance with Section 5. 

 
7. COMMENCEMENT OF WORK 

 
Should the AAA or its subcontractor begin work in advance of receiving notice 
that this MOU is approved, that work may be considered as having been 
performed at risk as a volunteer and may not be reimbursed or compensated and 
done at risk of assuming any and all liabilities that stem from said work.  
 

8. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

A. MOU Authorization 
 

i. If a public entity, the AAA shall submit to CDA a copy of an 
approved resolution, order, or motion referencing this MOU number 
authorizing execution of this MOU.  If a private nonprofit entity, the 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 4 of 15 
 

AAA shall submit to CDA an authorization by the Board of Directors 
to execute this MOU, referencing this MOU number. 
 

ii. These documents, including minute orders must also identify the 
action taken. 
 

iii. Documentation in the form of a resolution, order, or motion by the 
Governing Board of the AAA is required for the original and each 
subsequent amendment to this MOU.  This requirement may also 
be met by a single resolution from the Governing Board of the AAA 
authorizing the AAA Director or designee to execute the original 
and all subsequent amendments to this MOU. 
 

B. UEI Number and Related Information 
 

i. The Unique Entity Identifier changed from the DUNS Number to the 
Unique Entity ID (generated by SAM.gov) on April 4, 2022. The UEI 
number must be provided to CDA prior to the execution of this 
MOU. Business entities may register for a UEI number at 
https://sam.gov/content/duns-uei. 
 

ii. The AAA must register the UEI number and maintain an “Active” 
status within the federal System for Award Management available 
online at https://www.sam.gov/portal/SAM/#1. 
 

iii. If CDA cannot access or verify “Active” status by way of the AAA’s 
UEI information, which is related to this federal subaward on the 
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act Subaward 
Reporting System (SAM.gov) due to errors in the AAA’s data entry 
for its UEI number, the AAA must immediately update the 
information as required. 
 

E. Consultation 
 

i. CDA will issue a Program Guide and Program Memos to provide 
guidance, insight, and direction to the AAAs on topics related to the 
activities applicable to this MOU. 
 

ii. CDA and the AAA shall follow guidance provided by the Program 
Guide and Program Memos to promote cooperation, 
communication, and coordination of service and program 
implementation. 
 

9. ASSURANCES 
 

A. Standards of Work 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 5 of 15 
 

 
The AAA agrees that the performance of work and services pursuant to 
the requirements of this MOU and the Program Guide shall conform to 
accepted professional standards. 

 

B. Corporate Status 
 

i. The AAA shall be a public entity, private nonprofit entity, or Joint 
Powers Authority (JPA). If a private nonprofit corporation or JPA, 
the AAA shall be in good standing with the Secretary of State of 
California and shall maintain that status throughout the term of this 
MOU. 
 

ii. The AAA shall ensure that any subcontractors providing services 
under this MOU shall be of sound financial status. 

 
iii. Any subcontracting private entity or JPA shall be in good standing 

with the Secretary of State of California and shall maintain that 
status throughout the term of this MOU. 
 

iv. Failure to maintain good standing by the AAA shall result in 
suspension or termination of this MOU with CDA until satisfactory 
status is restored. Failure to maintain good standing by a 
subcontracting entity shall result in suspension or termination of the 
subcontract by the AAA until satisfactory status is restored. 

 
C. Nondiscrimination 

 
The AAA shall comply with all federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination. These include those statutes and laws contained in the 
Contractor Certification Clauses (CCC 04/2017), located 
https://www.dgs.ca.gov/OLS/Resources/Page-Content/Office-of-Legal-
Services-Resources-List-Folder/Standard-Contract-Language,  which is 
hereby incorporated by reference. The CCC 04/2017 is required to be 
signed and submitted to CDA once every three (3) years and shall be 
furnished upon request by CDA. In addition, the AAA shall comply with the 
following: 

 

i. Equal Access to Federally-Funded Benefits, Programs and 
Activities 
 
The AAA shall ensure compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights 
Act of 1964 [42 USC 2000d; 45 CFR 80], which prohibits recipients 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 6 of 15 
 

of federal financial assistance from discriminating against persons 
based on race, color, religion, or national origin. 
 

ii. Equal Access to State-Funded Benefits, Programs and Activities 
 
The AAA shall, unless exempted, ensure compliance with the 
requirements of Cal. Gov. Code § 11135 et seq. and 2 CCR § 
11140 et seq., which prohibit recipients of state funds from 
discriminating against persons based on race, national origin, 
ethnic group identification, religion, age, sex, sexual orientation, 
color, or disability.  [See 22 CCR § 98323.] 
 

iii. California Civil Rights Laws 
 
The AAA shall ensure compliance with the requirements of 
California Public Contract Code § 2010 by submitting a completed 
California Civil Rights Laws Certification prior to execution of this 
MOU. The certificate is available at: 
http://www.dgs.ca.gov/ols/Forms.aspx. 
 
The California Civil Rights Laws Certification ensures the AAA’s 
compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Civ. Code § 51) 
and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Cal. Gov. Code § 
12960) and further ensures that the AAA’s internal policies are not 
used in violation of California Civil Rights Laws. 
 

iv. The AAA assures the State that it complies with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and 
guidelines issued pursuant to the ADA.  [See 42 USC § 12101 et 
seq.] 
 

v. The AAA agrees to include these requirements in all contracts it 
enters into with subcontractors to provide services pursuant to this 
MOU and the Program Guide. 
 

D. Lobbying Certification 

The AAA, by signing this MOU, certifies to the best of its knowledge and 
belief, that: 

i. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by 
or on behalf of the AAA, to any person for influencing or attempting 
to influence an officer or employee of any agency; a Member of 
Congress; an officer or employee of Congress; or an employee of a 
Member of Congress; in connection with the awarding of any 
federal contract; the making of any federal grant; the making of any 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 7 of 15 
 

federal loan; the entering into of any cooperative agreement; and 
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of 
any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 

ii. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid 
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 
influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a Member 
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee 
of a Member of Congress in connection with this federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the AAA shall complete and 
submit Standard Form-LLL, Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in 
accordance with its instructions. 
 

iii. The AAA shall require that the language of the lobbying certification 
be included in the award documents for all subcontracts at all tiers 
(including contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative 
agreements which exceed $100,000) and that all subcontractors 
shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

iv. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which 
reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered 
into. 
 

v. This certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this 
transaction imposed by 31 USC § 1352. 
 

vi. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be 
subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than 
$100,000 for each such failure. 

 
E. Conflict of Interest 

 
i. The AAA shall prevent employees, consultants, or members of 

governing bodies from using their positions for purposes including 
but not limited to the selection of subcontractors that are or give the 
appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain for 
themselves or others, such as family, business, or other ties.  In the 
event that the State determines that a conflict of interest exists, any 
increase in costs associated with the conflict of interest may be 
disallowed by the State and such conflict may constitute grounds 
for termination of the MOU. 
 

ii. This provision shall not be construed to prohibit employment of 
persons with whom the AAA’s officers, agents, or employees have 
family, business, or other ties, so long as the employment of such 
persons does not result in a conflict of interest (real or apparent) or 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 8 of 15 
 

increased costs over those associated with the employment of any 
other equally qualified applicant, and such persons have 
successfully competed for employment with the other applicants on 
an open and competitive merit basis. 
 

F. Covenant Against Contingent Fees 
 

i. The AAA warrants that no person or selling agency has been 
employed or retained to solicit the work outlined within this MOU 
and the Program Guide.  There has been no agreement to make 
commission payments in order to obtain the work outlined within 
this MOU and the Program Guide. 
 

ii. For breach or violation of this warranty, CDA shall have the right to 
terminate the MOU without liability or at its discretion to deduct from 
the program allocation or consideration, or otherwise recover, the 
full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or 
contingency fee. 
 

G. Payroll Taxes and Deductions 
 
The AAA shall promptly forward payroll taxes, insurances, and 
contributions, including State Disability Insurance, Unemployment 
Insurance, Old Age Survivors Disability Insurance, and federal and State 
income taxes withheld, to designated governmental agencies as required 
by law. 

 

H. Program Allocations in Excess of $100,000 
 

i. If all funding provided in support of the services outlined within this 
MOU and the Program Guide exceeds $100,000, the AAA shall 
comply with all applicable orders or requirements issued under the 
following laws: 
 

1. Clean Air Act, as amended. (42 USC § 7401) 
 

2. Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended. (33 USC § 
1251 et seq.) 
 

3. Environmental Protection Agency Regulations (40 CFR 29) 
(Executive Order 11738) 
 

4. State Contract Act (Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 10295 et seq.) 
 

5. Unruh Civil Rights Act (Cal. Pub. Con. Code § 2010) 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 9 of 15 
 

 
I. Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters 

 
i. The AAA certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and 

its subcontractors: 
 

1. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
disbarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
covered transactions by any federal department or agency. 
 

2. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this MOU, 
been convicted of, or had a civil judgment rendered against 
them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in 
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or 
performing a public (federal, State, or local) transaction or 
contract under a public transaction; violation of federal or 
State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 
making false statements, or receiving stolen property. 
 

3. Are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (federal, State, or 
local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in 
paragraph (i)(2) of this certification. 
 

4. Have not, within a three-year period preceding this MOU, 
had one or more public transactions (federal, State, or local) 
terminated for cause or default. 
 

ii. The AAA shall report immediately to CDA in writing, any incidents 
of alleged fraud and/or abuse by either the AAA or subcontractors. 
 

iii. The AAA shall maintain any records, documents, or other evidence 
of fraud and abuse until otherwise notified by CDA. 
 

iv. The AAA agrees to timely execute any and all amendments to this 
MOU and the Program Guide or other required documentation 
relating to the Subcontractor’s debarment/suspension status. 
 

J. AAA’s Staff 
 

i. The AAA shall maintain adequate staff to meet the AAA’s 
obligations under this MOU and the Program Guide. 
 

ii. This staff shall be available to the State for training and meetings 
which the State may find necessary from time to time. 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 10 of 15 
 

 
10. PROGRAM GUIDE 

 
A. A Program Guide (or “Guide”) has been created and is intended for use by 

CDA and the AAAs as a reference tool for the provision of OCA and OAA 
programs. It is also intended to be used as a reference tool for monitoring 
and for internal and external audits. 
 

B. The Program Guide defines the responsibilities for providing OAA and 
OCA assistance and/or related support services to eligible older adults, 
adults with disabilities, family caregivers, and residents in long-term care 
facilities. 
 

C. The Program Guide shall be maintained, updated, and/or revised by CDA. 
Updates shall be made on an annual basis, at the beginning of each state 
fiscal year, or whenever there is an update to federal and/or state laws, 
regulations, policies, and/or directives that impact guidance provided 
within the Program Guide. 
 

D. The official copy of the Program Guide shall be kept and maintained on 
CDA’s webpage. 
 

11. FISCAL PROVISIONS 
 

A. This MOU must be approved prior to release and disbursement of any 
program funding. 
 

B. Upon release of an original or revised budget display, a separate budget 
for all programs affected shall be submitted electronically to CDA’s Local 
Finance Bureau within 30 days of release. 
 

C. Budgets must be approved by CDA’s Local Finance Bureau prior to any 
disbursement of funding. 
 

D. CDA cannot disburse funds until the enactment of the Budget Act has 
occurred and/or CDA has received funding authority. 
 

E. Budget Displays reference terms specific to each program funding source, 
which shall be used to determine disbursement of funding. 
 

F. AAAs shall follow other fiscal provisions and terms as outlined in the 
program guide. 

  



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 11 of 15 
 

12. RESOLUTION OF LANGUAGE CONFLICTS 
 

A. If a dispute arises in connection with this MOU involving the interpretation, 
implementation, or conflicts with the laws, policies, and regulations, the 
AAA and CDA will meet to attempt to resolve the problem in a manner that 
is allowable under federal and state laws. Both parties will strive to ensure 
that the dispute will not result in a disruption of OAA or OCA services. 
 

B. The terms and conditions of federal awards and other requirements have 
the following order of precedence, if there is any conflict in what they 
require: 

 
i. The Grant Terms and Conditions 

 
ii. The Older Americans Act and other applicable federal statutes and 

their implementing regulations 
 

iii. If applicable, the Older Californians Act and other California State 
codes and regulations 
 

iv. This MOU and the Program Guide 
 

v. Program Memos and other guidance issued by CDA 
 

vi. Any other documents incorporated herein by reference including, if 
applicable, the federal HHS terms and conditions found in Part II of 
the HHS Grant Policy Statement. The HHS Grant Policy Statement 
is available under the HHS Policy Requirements Topic at 
https://www.hhs.gov/grants/grants/grants-policies-
regulations/index.html 
 

13. TERMINATION 
 

A. Termination Without Cause 
 
CDA may terminate performance of work under this MOU, in whole or in 
part, without cause upon ninety (90) days written notice if CDA determines 
that a termination is in the State’s best interests. The Notice of 
Termination shall specify the extent of the termination and shall be 
effective ninety (90) days from the delivery of the Notice. The Parties 
agree that if the termination of the MOU is due to a reduction or deletion of 
funding by the Department of Finance (DOF), Legislature, or Congress, 
the Notice of Termination shall be effective thirty (30) days from the 
delivery of the Notice. Upon receipt of a Notice of Termination, the AAA 
shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in the Program Guide. 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 12 of 15 
 

The Parties agree that for the terminated portion of the MOU, the 
remainder of the MOU shall be deemed to remain in effect and is not void. 

 

B. Termination for Cause 
CDA may terminate, in whole or in part, for cause the performance of work 
under this MOU. CDA may terminate the MOU upon thirty (30) days 
written notice to the AAA. The Notice of Termination shall be effective 
thirty (30) days from the delivery of the Notice of Termination unless the 
grounds for termination are due to threat to life, health, or safety of the 
public and in that case, the termination shall take effect immediately. The 
AAA shall submit to CDA a Transition Plan as specified in the Program 
Guide. The grounds for termination for cause shall include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

 

i. In case of threat of life, health, or safety of the public, termination of 
the MOU shall be effective immediately. 
 

ii. A violation of the law or failure to make progress so as to endanger 
performance of this MOU. 
 

iii. Inadequate performance or failure to make progress so as to 
endanger performance of this MOU. 
 

iv. Failure to comply with reporting requirements. 
 

v. Evidence that the AAA is in an unsatisfactory financial condition as 
determined by an audit of the AAA or evidence of a financial 
condition that endangers performance of this MOU and/or the loss 
of other funding sources. 
 

vi. Delinquency in payment of taxes or payment of costs for 
performance of this MOU in the ordinary course of business. 
 

vii. Appointment of a trustee, receiver, or liquidator for all or a 
substantial part of the AAA’s property, or institution of bankruptcy, 
reorganization or the arrangement of liquidation proceedings by or 
against the AAA. 
 

viii. Service of any writ of attachment, levy of execution, or 
commencement of garnishment proceedings against the AAA’s 
assets or income. 
 

ix. The commission of an act of bankruptcy. 
 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 13 of 15 
 

x. Finding of debarment or suspension. 
 

xi. The AAA’s organizational structure has materially changed. 
 

xii. CDA determines that the AAA may be considered a “high risk” 
agency as described in 2 CFR 200.205 and 45 CFR 75.205. If such 
a determination is made, the AAA may be subject to special 
conditions or restrictions. 
 

C. AAA’s Obligation After Notice of Termination 
 
After receipt of a Notice of Termination, and except as directed by CDA, 
the AAA shall immediately proceed with the following obligations, as 
applicable, regardless of any delay in determining or adjusting any funds 
due under this clause. 
 
The AAA shall: 

 

i. Stop work as specified in the Notice of Termination. 
 

ii. Place no further subcontracts for materials or services, except as 
necessary, to complete the continued portion of the MOU. 
 

iii. Terminate all subcontracts to the extent they relate to work 
terminated. 
 

iv. Settle all outstanding liabilities and termination settlement 
proposals arising from the termination of subcontracts, (the 
approval or ratification which will be final for purposes of this 
clause). 
 

D. Effective Date 
 
Termination of this MOU shall take effect immediately in the case of an 
emergency such as a threat to life, health, or safety of the public. The 
effective date for Termination with Cause or for funding reductions is thirty 
(30) days and Termination without Cause is ninety (90) days subsequent 
to written notice to the AAA, respectively. The notice shall describe the 
action being taken by CDA, the reason for such action, and any conditions 
of the termination, including the date of termination. 

  



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 14 of 15 
 

E. Notice of Intent to Terminate by AAA (applicable to non-Title III Programs) 
 
In the event the AAA no longer intends to provide services under this 
MOU, the AAA shall give CDA Notice of Intent to Terminate. Such notice 
shall be given in writing to CDA at least one hundred eighty (180) days 
prior to the proposed termination date. Unless mutually agreed upon, the 
AAA does not have the authority to terminate the MOU. The Notice of 
Intent to Terminate shall include the reason for such action and the 
anticipated last day of work. The AAA shall submit a Transition Plan in 
accordance with the Program Guide. 

 

F. In the Event of a Termination Notice 
 
CDA will present written notice to the AAA of any condition, such as, but 
not limited to, transfer of clients, care of clients, return of unspent funds; 
and disposition of property, which must be met prior to termination. 

 

14. Remedies 
 
The AAA agrees that any remedy provided in this MOU is in addition to and not 
in derogation of any other legal or equitable remedy available to CDA as a result 
of breach of this MOU by the AAA, whether such breach occurs before or after 
completion of the project. 

 

15. Dissolution of Entity 
 
The AAA shall notify CDA immediately of any intention to discontinue existence 
of the entity or to bring an action for dissolution. 

 

16. AMENDMENTS 
 

A. No amendment or variation of the terms of this MOU shall be valid unless 
made in writing, signed, and approved by both parties. No oral 
understanding or agreement not incorporated in this MOU is binding on 
any of the parties. 
 

B. Any provision of this MOU or the Program Guide which conflicts with 
current or future applicable federal or state laws is hereby amended to 
conform to the provisions of those laws. Such amendment of this MOU 
and/or the Program Guide shall be effective on the effective date of the 
laws necessitating it and shall be binding on the parties even though such 
amendment may not have been reduced to writing and formally agreed 
upon and executed by the parties. 



California Department of Aging  County of Inyo 
AAA-2425-16  Page 15 of 15 
 

 
C. Failure by the AAA to take necessary actions required by amendments to 

this MOU and/or the Program Guide shall constitute a material violation. 
 

D. The State reserves the right to revise, waive, or modify the MOU to reflect 
any restrictions, limitations, or conditions enacted by Congress or the 
Legislature or as directed by the Executive Branch of State government. 

 



Contractor/Bidder Firm Name (Printed) Federal ID Number 

Date Executed Executed in the County of 

Contractor Certification Clauses 
CCC 04/2017 

CERTIFICATION 

I, the official named below, CERTIFY UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY that I am 
duly authorized to legally bind the prospective Contractor to the clause(s) listed 
below. This certification is made under the laws of the State of California. 

By (Authorized Signature) 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing 

CONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION CLAUSES 

1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: Contractor has, unless exempted, complied with the
nondiscrimination program requirements. (Gov. Code §12990 (a-f) and CCR, Title 2,
Section 11102) (Not applicable to public entities.)

2. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor will comply with the
requirements of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1990 and will provide a drug-free
workplace by taking the following actions:

a. Publish a statement notifying employees that unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensation, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited and specifying
actions to be taken against employees for violations.

b. Establish a Drug-Free Awareness Program to inform employees about:

1) the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2) the person's or organization's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3) any available counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and,

4) penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations.

c. Every employee who works on the proposed Agreement will:

1) receive a copy of the company's drug-free workplace policy statement; and,



2) agree to abide by the terms of the company's statement as a condition of employment 
on the Agreement. 

Failure to comply with these requirements may result in suspension of payments under 
the Agreement or termination of the Agreement or both and Contractor may be ineligible 
for award of any future State agreements if the department determines that any of the 
following has occurred: the Contractor has made false certification, or violated the 
certification by failing to carry out the requirements as noted above. (Gov. Code §8350 et 
seq.)  

3. NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD CERTIFICATION: Contractor certifies that 
no more than one (1) final unappealable finding of contempt of court by a Federal court 
has been issued against Contractor within the immediately preceding two-year period 
because of Contractor's failure to comply with an order of a Federal court, which orders 
Contractor to comply with an order of the National Labor Relations Board. (Pub. Contract 
Code §10296) (Not applicable to public entities.)  

4. CONTRACTS FOR LEGAL SERVICES $50,000 OR MORE- PRO BONO 
REQUIREMENT: Contractor hereby certifies that Contractor will comply with the 
requirements of Section 6072 of the Business and Professions Code, effective January 1, 
2003.   

Contractor agrees to make a good faith effort to provide a minimum number of hours of 
pro bono legal services during each year of the contract equal to the lessor of 30 
multiplied by the number of full time attorneys in the firm’s offices in the State, with the 
number of hours prorated on an actual day basis for any contract period of less than a full 
year or 10% of its contract with the State. 

Failure to make a good faith effort may be cause for non-renewal of a state contract for 
legal services, and may be taken into account when determining the award of future 
contracts with the State for legal services. 

5. EXPATRIATE CORPORATIONS:  Contractor hereby declares that it is not an 
expatriate corporation or subsidiary of an expatriate corporation within the meaning of 
Public Contract Code Section 10286 and 10286.1, and is eligible to contract with the 
State of California. 

6. SWEATFREE CODE OF CONDUCT:   

a. All Contractors contracting for the procurement or laundering of apparel, garments or 
corresponding accessories, or the procurement of equipment, materials, or supplies, 
other than procurement related to a public works contract, declare under penalty of 
perjury that no apparel, garments or corresponding accessories, equipment, materials, or 
supplies furnished to the state pursuant to the contract have been laundered or produced 
in whole or in part by sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor, 
or with the benefit of sweatshop labor, forced labor, convict labor, indentured labor under 
penal sanction, abusive forms of child labor or exploitation of children in sweatshop labor.  
The contractor further declares under penalty of perjury that they adhere to the Sweatfree 
Code of Conduct as set forth on the California Department of Industrial Relations website 
located at www.dir.ca.gov, and Public Contract Code Section 6108. 

b. The contractor agrees to cooperate fully in providing reasonable access to the 
contractor’s records, documents, agents or employees, or premises if reasonably 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/


required by authorized officials of the contracting agency, the Department of Industrial 
Relations, or the Department of Justice to determine the contractor’s compliance with the 
requirements under paragraph (a). 

7. DOMESTIC PARTNERS:  For contracts of $100,000 or more,  Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.3.  

8. GENDER IDENTITY:  For contracts of $100,000 or more, Contractor certifies that 
Contractor is in compliance with Public Contract Code section 10295.35. 

 

DOING BUSINESS WITH THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

The following laws apply to persons or entities doing business with the State of California. 

1. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: Contractor needs to be aware of the following provisions 
regarding current or former state employees.  If Contractor has any questions on the 
status of any person rendering services or involved with the Agreement, the awarding 
agency must be contacted immediately for clarification.  

Current State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10410):  

1). No officer or employee shall engage in any employment, activity or enterprise from 
which the officer or employee receives compensation or has a financial interest and 
which is sponsored or funded by any state agency, unless the employment, activity or 
enterprise is required as a condition of regular state employment.  

2). No officer or employee shall contract on his or her own behalf as an independent 
contractor with any state agency to provide goods or services. 

Former State Employees (Pub. Contract Code §10411): 

1). For the two-year period from the date he or she left state employment, no former state 
officer or employee may enter into a contract in which he or she engaged in any of the 
negotiations, transactions, planning, arrangements or any part of the decision-making 
process relevant to the contract while employed in any capacity by any state agency. 

2). For the twelve-month period from the date he or she left state employment, no former 
state officer or employee may enter into a contract with any state agency if he or she was 
employed by that state agency in a policy-making position in the same general subject 
area as the proposed contract within the 12-month period prior to his or her leaving state 
service. 

If Contractor violates any provisions of above paragraphs, such action by Contractor shall 
render this Agreement void. (Pub. Contract Code §10420) 

Members of boards and commissions are exempt from this section if they do not receive 
payment other than payment of each meeting of the board or commission, payment for 
preparatory time and payment for per diem. (Pub. Contract Code §10430 (e)) 

2. LABOR CODE/WORKERS' COMPENSATION: Contractor needs to be aware of the 
provisions which require every employer to be insured against liability for Worker's 
Compensation or to undertake self-insurance in accordance with the provisions, and 



Contractor affirms to comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of 
the work of this Agreement. (Labor Code Section 3700) 

3. AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT: Contractor assures the State that it complies 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of disability, as well as all applicable regulations and guidelines issued pursuant 
to the ADA. (42 U.S.C. 12101 et seq.) 

4. CONTRACTOR NAME CHANGE: An amendment is required to change the 
Contractor's name as listed on this Agreement. Upon receipt of legal documentation of 
the name change the State will process the amendment.  Payment of invoices presented 
with a new name cannot be paid prior to approval of said amendment.  

5. CORPORATE QUALIFICATIONS TO DO BUSINESS IN CALIFORNIA:  

a. When agreements are to be performed in the state by corporations, the contracting 
agencies will be verifying that the contractor is currently qualified to do business in 
California in order to ensure that all obligations due to the state are fulfilled.   

b. "Doing business" is defined in R&TC Section 23101 as actively engaging in any 
transaction for the purpose of financial or pecuniary gain or profit.  Although there are 
some statutory exceptions to taxation, rarely will a corporate contractor performing within 
the state not be subject to the franchise tax. 

c. Both domestic and foreign corporations (those incorporated outside of California) must 
be in good standing in order to be qualified to do business in California.  Agencies will 
determine whether a corporation is in good standing by calling the Office of the Secretary 
of State. 

6. RESOLUTION: A county, city, district, or other local public body must provide the State 
with a copy of a resolution, order, motion, or ordinance of the local governing body which 
by law has authority to enter into an agreement, authorizing execution of the agreement. 

7. AIR OR WATER POLLUTION VIOLATION: Under the State laws, the Contractor shall 
not be: (1) in violation of any order or resolution not subject to review promulgated by the 
State Air Resources Board or an air pollution control district; (2) subject to cease and 
desist order not subject to review issued pursuant to Section 13301 of the Water Code for 
violation of waste discharge requirements or discharge prohibitions; or (3) finally 
determined to be in violation of provisions of federal law relating to air or water pollution. 
 
8. PAYEE DATA RECORD FORM STD. 204: This form must be completed by all 
contractors that are not another state agency or other governmental entity. 
 



 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT  
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)                                                                       

In compliance with California Government Code Section 11019.9, California Civil 
Code Section 1798 et seq., Department of General Services Management Memo  
06-12, and Statewide Information Management Manual (SIMM) 5300 the California 
Department of Aging (CDA) hereby requires the Contractor/Vendor to: 

ACKNOWLEDGE: 

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, or disclosure of Personal, Confidential or 
Sensitive Information (PSCI) is a crime and is prohibited under state and federal 
laws, including but not limited to California Penal Code Section 502, California 
Government Code Section 15619, California Civil Code Section 1798.53 and 
1798.55, and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. 
Acknowledge.  

• Any wrongful access, inspection, use, disclosure, or modification of PSCI 
information may result in termination of this Contract/Agreement. 

MEET THE FOLLOWING REQUIREMENTS: 

• PSCI information shall be protected from disclosure in accordance with all 
applicable laws, regulations, and policies.  

• PSCI data be protected by authorized access using the principles of least privilege. 
• Any occurrence that actually or potentially jeopardizes the confidentiality, integrity, 

or availability of an information system or the information the system processes, 
stores, or transmits or that constitutes a violation or imminent threat of violation of 
security policies, security procedures or acceptable use policies will immediately be 
reported to CDA by completing a Security Incident Report CDA (1025A and 1025B). 

• All access codes which allow access to confidential information will be properly 
safeguarded. 

• Obligations to protect PSCI information obtained under this Contract/Agreement will 
continue after termination of the Contract/Agreement with CDA.  

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor will complete the required 
Security Awareness Training module located at 
https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/ within 30 days of the start date of the 
Contract/Agreement or within 30 days of the start date of any new employee or 
subcontractor.   This training must be completed annually. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contractor/Vendor must comply with CDA’s 
confidentiality and data security requirements as outlined in the 
Contract/Agreement. 

• All employees/subcontractors of the Contract/Vendor must comply with the 
Appendix D, section XVIII encryption and self-certification requirements as outlined 
in the contract.  

https://aging.ca.gov/Information_security/


Page 2 of 2 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
INFORMATION INTEGRITY AND SECURITY STATEMENT 
CDA 1024 (REV 03/2020)         

CERTIFY: 

To protect PSCI information by: 

• Accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing or modifying PSCI information only for the 
purpose of performing official duties.

• Never accessing, inspecting, using, disclosing, or modifying PSCI information for 
curiosity, personal gain, or any non-business-related reason.

• Securing PSCI information in approved locations.
• Never removing PSCI information from the work site without authorization. 

Meets the encryption requirements in Exhibit D Article 18: 

Is in full compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements.

Is not in compliance with the 128 Encryption requirements and will achieve 
compliance by ___________. 

I hereby certify that I have reviewed this Confidentiality Statement and will comply 
with the above statements.  

Contractor/Vendor Printed Name and Title 

Contractor/Vendor Signature Date 

CDA Program/Project Contract Number 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF AGING 
CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS CERTIFICATION 
CDA 9026 (NEW 04/2018)                                                     

 

Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 2010, a person that submits a bid or 
proposal to, or otherwise proposes to enter into or renew a contract with, a state 
agency with respect to any contract in the amount of $100,000 or above shall certify, 
under penalty of perjury, at the time the bid or proposal is submitted or the contract is 
renewed, all of the following: 

 
1. CALIFORNIA CIVIL RIGHTS LAWS:  For contracts executed or renewed after 

January 1, 2017, the contractor certifies compliance with the Unruh Civil Rights Act 
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) and the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 
12960 of the Government Code); and 

 
2. EMPLOYER DISCRIMINATORY POLICIES: For contracts executed or renewed 

after January 1, 2017, if a Contractor has an internal policy against a sovereign 
nation or peoples recognized by the United States government, the Contractor 
certifies that such policies are not used in violation of the Unruh Civil Rights Act 
(Section 51 of the Civil Code) or the Fair Employment and Housing Act (Section 
12960 of the Government Code). 

 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, the official named below, certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State 
of California that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Contractor Name (Printed): Federal ID Number: 

By (Authorized Signature): 

Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 

Date Executed: Executed in the County and State of: 

Indicate all California Department of Aging contracts your organization participates in: 

 Area Plan (AP)  Financial Alignment (FA) 

 HICAP (HI)  MIPPA (MI) 

 MSSP (MS)  SNAP-Ed (SP) 

 Title V (TV)   
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-465  

 

Crestwood Behavioral Health FY 23-24 Contract 
Amendment No. 3  

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Lucy Vincent, Administrative Secretary Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Crestwood 
Behavioral Health, Inc. of Sacramento, CA, adding Psychiatric Health Facilities (PHFs) to the facilities 
where conservatees may be placed, and authorize the Chairperson to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The original contract and subsequent amendment allow Health & Human Services (HHS) to place 
individuals who are in need of a higher level of residential mental health treatment into a variety of 
facilities operated by Crestwood in the State of California. The current contract does not specifically 
include Crestwood's locked Psychiatric Health Facility.  Psychiatric emergency situations required the 
placement of two individuals who are conserved under the Lanterman-Petris-Short Act in Crestwood's 
Psychiatric Health Facility prior to having this contract amendment in place.  In lieu of the amendment, 
two Negotiated Rate Agreement forms were signed. This amendment does not require a change to the 
not-to-exceed monetary limit of the contract.  Your Board approved Amendment No. 2 to this contract on 
June 13, 2023 and HHS is now respectfully requesting the approval of this amendment No. 3.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund (Mental Health Realignment 
Funds) 

Budget Unit 045200 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5508 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract amendment.  This would jeopardize the placement 
of the conservatees currently placed at Crestwood Psychiatric Health Facilities. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo County Superior Court 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Crestwood Amendment No. 3 
2. Crestwood Behavioral Health Amendment No. 2  
3. De-identified Negotiated Rate Agreements 
  
APPROVALS: 
Lucy Vincent Created/Initiated - 6/3/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/3/2024 
Lucy Vincent Approved - 6/3/2024 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/17/2024 
Anna Scott Approved - 6/17/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/18/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/18/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Contract Amendment 

 

Page 1 

3/30/04   

AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND  

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.  

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES 

 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and Crestwood Behavioral Health, 

Inc. (hereinafter referred to as “Contractor”), have entered into an Agreement for Provision of Independent 

Residential Treatment Services dated June 23, 2022, on Standard Contract No. 157 for the initial term of July 1, 

2022 to June 30, 2022. 

 

 WHEREAS, Amendment number 2, executed on June 13, 2023, extended the term of the Agreement to 

June 30, 2024.  

 

 WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted 

from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and executed 

with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity. 

 

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows: 

 

 

1. County and Contractor agree to amend Attachment A (Scope of Work) to include:  

 

Additionally, Crestwood shall provide Inpatient Psychiatric Health Facilities services as described in the attached 

document “Crestwood Psychiatric Health Facility”. 

 

2. County and Contractor agree to amend Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) to include:  

The fee for inpatient psychiatric health facilities is based on a negotiated rate agreement. This rate is provided 

by the facility at the time of placement and varies. The fees for the services provided under this Agreement shall 

be based on a mutually negotiated net agreement between the Parties.  

 

 

 



3

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC. RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

Christie Martindale (Jun 3, 2024 14:56 PDT)
Christie Martindale



1 

 
Crestwood Psychiatric Health Facility 

 
 
MISSION, GOALS AND SERVICE MODEL 
 
The mission of Crestwood’s Psychiatric Health Facilities (PHFs) is to provide an alternative to 
traditional psychiatric care through collaboration, empowerment, a healing environment, peer 
providers, family partners, and a recovery-oriented milieu.  The Crestwood PHF provides the 
structure and support needed to promote stabilization and foster recovery.  Crestwood 
Behavioral Health, Inc., with consultation from Recovery Innovations, shall provide acute 
psychiatric services licensed as a Psychiatric Health Facility in the community setting, for clients 
experiencing psychiatric crisis of such magnitude, that it is unmanageable in the community.  
Our goals are to restore a sense of hope, self-empowerment and realized potential of recovery 
in each of our clients. 
 
The PHF services are for clients who require stabilization, medication management, behavioral 
interventions, psychosocial education, and a transition plan to successfully reduce the 
symptomology, increase the client’s management of the disease process, reduce lengthy and 
costly acute and subacute hospitalizations, and to increase a successful return to their 
community.  The Psychiatric Health Facility (PHF) treatment team shall include a psychiatrist, 
general practitioner or internist, registered nurses, licensed clinicians, case managers, peer 
mentors, a dietician, and creative arts therapists. 
 
Crestwood shall screen, admit, assess, and treat utilizing recovery-oriented services to clients 
requiring acute psychiatric services.  Our services shall support each client to recover with an 
enhanced sense of resilience, accessing a wide range of wellness tools, peer, staff and natural 
supports offered at this program.  The mission of this program is to restore a sense of hope, 
empowerment, community/natural support inclusion, and realized potential in each client, as 
well as psychiatric stabilization during the crisis. 
 
These services shall be instrumental in supporting each individual transition to the most 
independent level of services and support possible, including peer support, wellness and 
recovery programs, housing, and natural supports.  Individuals requiring extended services shall 
be referred to the least intensive services, including supported housing programs; as needed, 
clients requiring more structure and support shall be transitioned to augmented adult residential 
services, board and care; and lastly as needed in extreme situation to IMD services.  These 
clients shall be transitioned with their WRAP and with a transition plan which can enable them to 
continue to transition to independence.  
 
The staff, including peer providers, and the system of services provided at the PHF may be the 
first point of access for many.  We provide hope, choice, empowerment, and a restored belief in 
the self so that people will recover, and that the likelihood of future hospitalization will be 
reduced.  We also believe that if additional services are required that having a system of county 
providers (including ACT, vocational, housing and IMDs) united by trained peer providers, 
Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) and recovery-oriented services, that clients will 



2 

transition safely and softly to any level of support needed and be fully integrated into the 
community.  We shall commit to providing the training and support needed to unite the county 
providers with trained peer providers, WRAP, and recovery-oriented services. 
 
Program Features: 

• 24-hour nursing supervision and care. 
• 24-hour psychiatric and mental health consultation. 
• Staff trained in treatment of chemical dependence and significant and long-term 

mental health issues. 
• Individual therapy with a licensed clinician. 
• Integrated treatment planning process. 
• Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) – individual and team approach. 
• Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP). 
• Psycho-educational groups, individual counseling, and support. 
• Independent living skills training. 
• Motivational strategies to engage and continue engagement for this population. 
• Trauma informed environments.  
• Care and education for medical complexities not requiring skilled nursing. 
• Linkage to community supports. 
• Individualized recovery plans to achieve personal goals. 
• Wellness and fitness support. 
• Nutritional education, counseling, and support. 
• Yoga, meditation, and support for a spirituality path. 
• Peer support. 
• Dreamcatchers Empowerment Network vocational services as needed. 
• Meditation groups. 
• Family support. 
• Discharge and transition planning to create and support movement as possible. 

 
Recovery Philosophy 
 
At Crestwood we believe that recovery is a supportive process where a person is encouraged to 
maximize their life and achieve a sense of balance and fulfillment.  It is a deeply personal and 
self-directed process built on hope, empowerment, meaningful roles and spirituality.  We create 
an environment that fosters personal choice and active participation in daily activities and life 
direction.  Our services continually evolve based on client needs.  We place a high value on 
client input by involving clients in designing, planning, implementing and evaluating our 
services; f ind ways for clients to make choices on a daily basis; and provide the tools to support 
and validate those choices. 
 
Crestwood holds the following values as core to recovery for all individuals: 
 

• Hope - Hope is the cornerstone in the journey of recovery.  Hope is the belief 
in life's possibilities. 

• Empowerment - Empowerment is the belief that one has power and control in 
one’s life.  It involves taking responsibility and advocating for self and others. 

• Meaningful Roles - Meaningful Roles are positive identities within the places 
we live, learn, work and socialize, creating a sense of purpose and value. 

• Spirituality - Spirituality is the connection to a greater power, others and self.  
It is the way to find meaning, hope, comfort and inner peace in life.  Many 



3 

people find spirituality through religion.  Some find it through music, art or a 
connection with nature.  Others find it in their values and principles. 

 
Through our Crestwood Recovery and Resilience Solutions, we provide training to certify peer 
provider specialists, parent partner providers, advanced peer and parent training, professional 
recovery training and ongoing support and consultation from recovery experts.  Crestwood 
meets Performance Improvement expectations utilizing external and internal reviews to ensure 
that we are applying the most current and effective evidenced-based practices. 
 
Services 
 
Crestwood shall provide intensive psychiatric services in the 16-bed, co-ed Psychiatric Health 
Facility (PHF) for clients requiring 24-hour professional observation.  The clients shall be 18 
years or older and may be admitted on either a voluntary or an involuntary basis. 
 
All admissions will be consistent with the treatment philosophy and will focus on a healthy 
transition of the client to lower intensity services, as independent and integrated into the 
community as possible.  Flexible and accessible linkage shall be provided. 
 
The Psychiatric Health Facility (PHF) treatment team (Medical-Clinical Staff) shall include a 
psychiatrist to deliver psychiatric client care services.  Psychiatrists shall provide active 
psychiatric treatment and support to clients in the program seven days a week/24 hours per 
day, and provide psychiatric administrative services, including a qualif ied psychiatrist to act as 
facility medical director. 
 
The Psychiatric services shall include the following services: 
 

1. Psychiatric assessments. 
2. Dr to Dr consultation. 
2. Medication prescribing and monitoring. 
3. Daily visits to persons served. 
4. Supportive counseling. 
5. Documentation of psychiatric services. 
6. Coordination of services of overall client health care needs. 
7. Coordination of services with Outpatient Services as needed. 

 
The multi-disciplinary team will also include a staff of registered nurses, a licensed clinician, 
case managers, vocational coach, peer mentors, family partners, quality assurance, culinary 
specialist, and creative arts therapist. 
 
Clinical Team services shall include the following services: 
 

1. Complete a thorough evaluation and diagnostic formulation. 
2. Provide medication education and management.  Education shall include the 

medication education modules. 
3. Provide support and skills formulation to support independence.  
4. Identify and mobilize individual and family resources through family therapy, 

support, education and linkage. 
5. Provide Wellness Recovery Action Planning education and support (WRAP), 

including the Crisis WRAP. 
6. Assist the client with identif ication and utilization of community resources. 
7. Recreation therapy and creative arts therapy program. 



4 

8. Discharge the client to the least restrictive appropriate setting. 
9. Work with the County to provide a benefit specialist who ensures Medi-Cal 

eligible clients are enrolled in the program. 
10. Complete a Client Satisfaction Survey upon discharge of each client; and 
11. Provide clients a monthly or more frequent visit by representatives of the National 

Alliance of the Mentally Ill. 
 
COUNTY AND CENTER PARTNERSHIP 
 
The partnership between Crestwood PHF and the County starts with the goal of working in 
concert with the county to provide a variety of innovative recovery services to individuals 
experiencing acute psychiatric needs.  The center provides an environment fostering recovery 
for clients as they are in the greatest distress or as they are beginning their psychiatric 
treatment.  This level of commitment shall start with implementing a Crisis Plans and WRAP 
from the beginning of treatment.  This plan shall be a shared tool utilized by the County in their 
system of wellness services and treatment options. 
 
Crestwood PHF provides clients from varying levels of needs the supports and options to move 
towards independence and re-integration into the community.  The focus on supportive holistic 
healing practices provides consistency in the recovery process from the time of the referral 
through post discharge.  The anticipated length of stay is 7-14 days. 
 
The Clinical Director and clinical staff shall maintain frequent contact with the county to review 
clients’ progress, troubleshoot concerns and provide opportunity to discuss needs and 
feedback.  The PHF shall establish routine meetings with the county, family and client to set 
forth program goals, review current needs and provide an opportunity to discuss any issues or 
concerns.  The center, the county, and the clients have a vested interest in the success of each 
client and shall take every measure to assure that success is achieved. 
 
SECURITY AND SAFETY 
 
The PHF shall provide security and a structured program to enable the client to attend 
therapeutic groups, classes, one-to-one counseling sessions, physical activities, pre-vocational 
support programs, and peer led support groups.  The program is located on a locked, self-
enclosed unit. The PHF shall conform to the state and federal f ire requirements for f ire and life 
safety, state requirements for environmental impact, and local f ire safety and building 
ordinances.  The PHF shall be inspected annually to ensure compliance with regulations and 
ordinances.  The PHF maintenance staff shall maintain the site in a safe structural condition at 
all times.  Security at the PHF includes a comprehensive security video camera system, a 
restraint room and all staff members are trained in Crisis Prevention Intervention and shall 
adhere to strict training and educational guidelines and renewals.  Staff will be required to be 
always on the unit and assess the clients’ status at least every fifteen (15) minutes for safety.  In 
the event that a client is in need of further monitoring for safety, such as 1:1 observation, 
interventions will be made to provide such monitoring and addressed in their RSP.  Any visits by 
outside persons, not including County personnel, will be monitored by staff.  There will be no 
visitor allowed in the facility that is deemed under the influence of alcohol or illegal substances.  
It is also at the discretion of the PHF to end any visits that would interfere with the program 
milieu, other clients receiving services and/or pose a threat to any persons at the site. 
 
 
 
 



5 

PSYCHIATRIC, PSYCHOLOGICAL AND COUNSELING SERVICES 
 
Psychiatric services shall be provided by licensed physicians with training and experience in 
psychiatry. 
 
Duties and Administrative Services of the Medical Director/Psychiatrist shall include: 
 

1. Daily participation in facility treatment planning meetings. 
2. Provision of the direct psychiatric services. 
3. Coordination with outpatient psychiatrists as indicated. 
4. Participation in monthly Medical-Clinical Staff meetings. 
5. Coordination and general supervision of physical health care physicians and 

provide appropriate documentation in medical records of coordination between 
psychiatry and physical health care physicians, or assurance that such 
documentation is provided by other psychiatrists. 

6. Assurance that facility psychiatric practices are in compliance with regulatory 
standards. 

7. Participation in legal hearings as required. 
8. Participation in preparation of Temporary Conservatorship Applications. 
9. On-Call for telephone response to facility for twenty-four (24) hours per day, 

seven  days (7) per week, within fifteen minutes of being paged. 
10. It is expected that these services will require approximately eighteen (18) hours 

per week, on average, of onsite time by the Medical Director.  Time spent on 
these services may vary on a daily basis, but must be documented at least 
weekly on a  time study log. 

11. The On-Call service will include responding to requests to evaluate referrals, give 
admitting orders, medication and change of status orders and such other 
psychiatric  services as may be legitimately delivered telephonically. 

12. The Medical Director may arrange for temporary coverage for their duties by a 
qualif ied psychiatrist who is also a current member in good standing of the 
Medical-Clinical staff of the facility.  Substitute coverage would be limited to 
illness, vacation, holidays and other legitimate reasons for temporary absence. 

13. Provide assurance that facility psychiatric practices are in compliance with 
regulatory standards. 

 
Psychiatrist 
The psychiatrist (non-Medical Director) providing services will: 

1. Be responsible for adhering to the Medical Staff standards  
2. Be responsible for providing documentation in the client medical records that 

meets facility rules and regulatory standards 
3. Be responsible for documenting evidence of medical necessity daily. 
4. Provide a discharge summary for every client discharged from the facility. The 

discharge summary shall be completed within 24 hours of discharge and shall 
include: 

• Reason for admission 
• Acute medical problems during hospitalization 
• Laboratory results obtained during hospital stay 
• Discharge diagnoses  

The psychiatric and medical coordination services shall require approximately 35 hours per 
week, on average, of onsite time by the Psychiatric Services Coordinator and/or designee.  
Time spent on these services may vary on a daily basis but must be documented at least 
weekly on a time study log. 



6 

 
We shall provide the County with all information necessary to establish professional credentials 
for each psychiatrist applying to the Medical-Clinical Staff for privileges. 
 
PSYCHIATRIC NURSING SERVICES 
 
Psychiatric nursing services shall be designed to meet the objectives of each client’s 
interdisciplinary treatment team.  There shall be a full clinical nursing policy and procedure 
manual to direct and document all nursing services.  The nursing department shall have 
documented staffing pattern reflecting the identif ied PHF staffing pattern and the needs of the 
clients served at the PHF. 
 
The psychiatric nursing services shall be under the direction of the full-time Registered Nurse. 
 
The nursing policies and procedure shall address medication administration.  There shall be a 
full Pharmacy Manual that will address all aspects related to Pharmacy Services. 
 
SOCIAL SERVICES 
Social Services shall be designed to meet the objectives of each person’s interdisciplinary 
treatment plan in accordance with the program goals and objectives. 
 
Social services shall be under the direction of a licensed clinical social worker. 
 
REHABILITATION SERVICES  
The master schedule of therapies, activities and events will be prepared by our clinical staff in 
partnership with the County.  The schedule will include peer support; WRAP; group therapies; 
skill development; vocational support; client education activities; family therapy; and introduction 
to NAMI’s family to family education and support and multifamily groups; and scheduled 
community meetings; independent living skill support; meals; and exercise.  The treatment team 
is expected to coordinate and support each client to participate in activities tailored to each 
person’s individual needs. 
 
We will have the formal scheduled activities provided by staff members that are specifically 
trained to provide these services.  The schedule shall be based on clients’ needs and 
preferences and will always be client-directed through the input from the peer providers. 
 
A licensed psychologist, psychiatrist or social worker will direct most formal group therapy, 
family therapy and multifamily therapy sessions.  The recreation therapist and Clinical Director 
will supervise other therapeutic activities and the nursing staff will support activities, including 
providing medication education and support.  The nursing staff will largely be responsible for 
attending the milieu, providing for client safety, activities of daily living and supporting the client 
throughout treatment. 
 
The multi-disciplinary staff will develop effective working relationships that will be professional, 
collegial, respectful, and collaborative.  All PHF staff shall be responsible for adhering to all 
licensing and regulatory standards and facility rules and regulations. 
 
 
DAILY SCHEDULE 
 
  6:00 -  7:00 - Get Up and Dress 
  7:15 -  8:15 - Breakfast 



7 

  8:00 -  9:00 - Life Skills Training Group (concurrently) 
 - Personal Hygiene Training 
 - Daily Motivation/Organizational training on a 1:1 basis 

   - Morning Meditation 
    Social Break 
  9:00 - 10:00 - Medication Education 
10:00 - 10:50 - Life Skills Training Classes 
   - WRAP 
   - Impulse Control 
   - Stress Management 
   - Self Esteem Building 
   - Assertiveness Training 

 - Preparation Training 
11:00 - 11:50 - Life Skills Training 
   - WRAP 
   - Medication Management 
   - Money Management / Personal Organization 
   - Insight Training 
   - Wellness 
   - Job Skills 
12:00 -  1:00 - Lunch 
  1:00 -  1:45 - Medication Education 
  2:00  -    2:45 - Recreation 
   - Recreation Club 
   - Crafts 
   - Music Appreciation 
   - Sports 
  3:00 -  4:30 - Recreation 
   - Creative dance 
   - Journal writing 
   - Exercise 
   - Art Therapy 
   - Physical f itness 
  4:30 -  5:00 - Medication Education 
  5:00 -  6:00 - Dinner 
  6:00 -  7:00 - Life Skills training/Relaxation 
   - Vocational Preparation Training 
  7:00 -  9:00 - Recreation 
   - WRAP 
   - Videos 
   - Table Games 
   - Open Recreation Room 
   - Poker Night 
 
 
AFTERCARE SERVICES 
Aftercare services are designed for a client being discharged from the PHF for the purposes of 
being integrated into the community, to live as independently as possible. 
Prior to or at the time of discharge, each person served will be evaluated concerning the 
persons individual needs for aftercare services and noted in the medical record.  
 
The aftercare services may include, but not be limited to the following: 



8 

•       Arranging for out-of-home placement if necessary.  
• Arranging for medication linkages to community clinics and pharmacy services 

and supervision if indicated. 
• Obtaining community social, vocational, and educational services. 
• Linkage to wellness and recovery services provided for the community. 

 
Aftercare services may be provided by PHF staff or a contractor through agreement as needed, 
and as directed by the PHF Clinical Director.  Aftercare plans shall be provided to all clients 
discharged from the PHF, the responsible party or designated support system and the county 
designee.  The aftercare plan shall meet all of the Title 22 regulations and the standards set 
forth by CARF. 
 
DOCUMENTATION 
 
Our documentation will include in each client’s record: all intake information; pre-admission 
assessment; other assessments; history and physical; laboratory work; legal authorizations for 
admissions; consultation reports; treatment plans; physician’s orders; nursing assessment and 
progress notes; physician’s progress notes; social service evaluation and progress notes; and 
other documents as required by Title XXII and Title XVIII. 
 
Our charting requirements include a physician progress note at least once every 24 hours, and 
a nursing progress note at least once a shift. We will conduct and document observation of 
clients in seclusion and/or restraints as required by California state law and CARF standards.  
Provider must document all dispensation of medications, known medications, the client was 
taking prior to admission, and unusual responses to medications. 
 
 
 
ADMISSION CRITERIA 
 
The counties contracting with the PHF for a recovery-based acute psychiatric services program 
shall authorize all referrals and subsequent admissions.  They shall make an initial contract with 
the admission coordinator which shall stipulate: 
 

a. Estimated length of stay 
b. Level of symptoms, needs 
c. Expected behavioral outcome 

 
The purpose of the screening process is to provide clients and their representatives a thorough 
eligibility screening process in the most expedient manner.  If necessary, the clients are referred 
to more appropriate programs if Crestwood Behavioral Health, Inc. is not able to provide the 
level of care needed. 
 
PROCEDURE: 

1. The admission coordinator (or facility designee) shall obtain copies of all 
pertinent information (social history, discharge summary, current physical 
examination, laboratory reports, chest x-ray, and billing information) in advance 
of the admission.  

2. The admissions coordinator determines suitability for admission.  Using the 
facilities criteria for admission and considering the best interests of the client.  
The center retains the right to determine if the client can be effectively treated at 
this center, and to deny or accept referrals based on this determination 



9 

3. Clients who could be served at a lower level of care shall not be admitted to this 
program.  Referrals with a history of violence or predatory behavior shall receive 
increased screening to assure that we maintain a safe and secure environment 
for all clients. 

4. The admissions coordinator is to consider the specific needs of the clients and 
the outcome expected by the referring county. 

5. Clients admitted shall have an admission agreement signed by the client or legal 
representative describing the services to be provided and the expectations and 
rights of the client regarding program rules, client empowerment and involvement 
in the program, and fees. 

6. Clients shall be admitted to this center only upon the written referral of and 
remain under the care of a psychiatrist licensed to practice in the State of 
California. 

7. Clients shall not be denied admission by reason of race, color, religion, ethnic 
background, sex, age, or physical disability.  Clients are assigned rooms within 
the facility without regard to race, color, religion, ethnic background, or disability, 
however preference and compatibility with be taken into account. 

8. When making decisions on admissions, the Admissions Coordinator shall take 
the following into consideration. 
 

ADMISSION CRITERIA 
• Current diagnosis. 
• The client must exhibit behavioral symptoms, which prohibits them from being 

admitted to a lower level of care. 
• The client must exhibit a need for stabilization and rehabilitation potential with 

evidence of responsiveness to behavioral interventions. 
 
EXCLUSIONARY CRITERIA 
  1.Persons served with a primary diagnosis of an eating disorder.  
  2.Persons served with a primary diagnosis of chemical dependency, chemical   
     intoxication, or chemical withdrawal.  
  3.Persons served requiring medical interventions beyond the level appropriate to a    
     PHF including detoxification from substance abuse or substance induced delirium.  
  4.Persons served with conditions requiring skilled or intensive nursing care or  
     treatment that the facility cannot provide. 
  5. Inability to exit the building independently.  
 
The Admission Coordinator shall obtain copies of all pertinent information (current physical 
examination, laboratory reports, chest x-ray and billing information) in advance of the admission.  
The PHF retains the right to determine if the client will benefit from the program, if the client can 
be effectively treated at this facility and to deny or accept referrals based on this determination.  
The Clinical Director and the Nursing Services Supervisor shall assess all referrals to establish 
that they meet the criteria for the facility.  If a client develops a communicable disease, this shall 
be reported to the County Health Officer and his recommendation followed. 
 
Tuberculosis screening procedures shall be determined by the attending physician.  A 
tuberculosis screening procedure may not be required if there is satisfactory written evidence 
available that tuberculosis screening procedure had been completed within 24-hours of 
admission. 
 
The client's health records from admission to discharge are maintained and preserved 
according to State and Federal Regulations and in accordance with the Standards of 



10 

Professional Practice of the American Medical Record Association.  An inventory of all personal 
effects, valuables, and monies, retained in the custody of the facility shall be made at the time of 
admission and a record maintained in the medical record. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE ASSESSMENT 
 
I. PURPOSES: 

 
A. To assess the immediate needs of the newly admitted patient. 
B. To provide data to be used in developing an appropriate treatment plan. 
C. To comply with California Administrative Code, Title 22 § 77065©. 
 

II. DEFINITION: 
 

A. An Integrated Assessment form is used to collect clinical information about the 
patient upon admission and is divided into 5 sections by discipline. The 
Integrated Assessment form includes the nursing assessment, psychiatrist 
assessment, social worker assessment, therapeutic recreation assessment, and 
a history and physical by a physician or nurse practitioner. 

 
III. POLICY STATEMENT: 

 
A. It is the policy of the psychiatric unit that the assessment and reassessment of 

the patient receiving treatment for mental behavioral disorders will include at 
least the following: 

1. A history of mental, emotional, behavioral and substance use 
problems, their co-occurrence and treatment. 

2. Current mental, emotional, and behavioral functioning, including a 
mental status examination. 

3. Maladaptive or problem behaviors. 
4. And a psychosocial assessment. 

 
IV. PROCEDURE: 

 
A. An initial nursing assessment is completed as part of the Integrated Assessment 

for every patient receiving nursing care.  The initial nursing assessment is started 
within 2 hours and should be completed within 24 hours of admission.  
Information may be collected from any source available, family member, old 
chart, or outpatient case managers. Nursing staff will continue to collect 
information until the assessment is complete. 

 
B. A psychiatric evaluation is initiated within 24 hours of admission by a licensed 

psychiatrist.  A working diagnosis, mental status examination and medical 
necessity review for admission are completed within the first 24 hours.  Additional 
information is collected with each subsequent interview and therapy session until 
the psychiatric evaluation is complete. 

 
C. A complete history and physical must be completed immediately before 

admission or within 24 hours after admission unless a history and physical 
examination has been completed within the previous 30 days and is determined 
by the attending physician to be current. The history includes a review of the 
presenting illness, past medical history, social history, personal history, and 



11 

review of systems.  The physical includes a neurological and physical exam.  The 
Assessment, diagnosis recommendations and orders complete the history and 
physical process.   

 
D. A Primary Assessment is completed within 24 hours of admission by the Service 

Coordinator. The Primary assessment includes the patients’ social, personal, 
childhood, vocational, trauma and military history as well as the family living 
situations and spiritual support systems.  The service coordinator assists with 
financial, legal and discharge needs. 

 
E. Psychological assessments are performed by licensed psychologist, LCSW, 

LMFT or psychological intern at the order of the psychiatrist.  A variety of 
personal, social, or functional tests are available upon request. 

 
F. Reassessment with emphasis on changing metal status dangerous behaviors 

and physiological changes are conducted every 12 hours by psychiatric nursing 
staff. Additional complete reassessments are conducted by all other disciplines 
as required by the patients’ condition. 

 
V. SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS: 

 
A. When patients are unable or unwilling to participated in the initial assessment 

process, gather any historical information available, begin the Treatment Plan, 
write the admission nursing note, indicated the patient’s inability/unwillingness to 
participated, and notify the patient that the assessment will be done at a later 
time. 

 
VI. EDUCATION: 

 
A. Patient/Family:  Patients and family are encouraged to participate in the 

treatment planning process and provide as much information as possible to 
assist with discharge planning. 

 
B. Staff: 

1. The nurse and floor staff will be oriented to this process during 
unit orientation. 

2. Floor staff will be oriented to data collection methods during unit 
orientation. 

 
DISCHARGE CRITERIA 
 
The discharge criteria are based on the needs and goals of the client.  The criteria are intended 
to be used as guidelines to assist in preparing for and identifying the goals for each client’s 
discharge. 
 

• Medication and treatment compliant. 
• Meets goals set in recovery service plans. 
• Is adequately stable in targeted behaviors to re-enter the community. 
• Participates in individual recovery program. 
• Lack of self-harm or harm to others. 
• Exhibits insight regarding their recovery process. 

 



12 

Discharge Planning 
Discharge starts at the time of admission with the shortest stay possible to reduce the crisis and 
return the client to former levels of functioning.  Client resources, goals, and support are all part 
of the assessment.  The written discharge summary shall reflect the client’s progress and efforts 
made toward achieving their personal goals, and the goals and objectives set toward 
transitioning to independent living in the community.  The discharge summary shall include an 
overview of the service plans, with specific interventions that were most effective.  The Wellness 
Recovery Action Plan (WRAP) shall be included in the client gives permission.  The referrals to 
community-based agencies shall be included with the specificity required to maintain continuity 
of care. 
 



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l3th day of June 2023 an order was duly made and entered

as follows

HHS-Behavioral
Health - Crestwood
Behavioral Health
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to approve Amendment No.
2 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. of
Sacramento, CA increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $406,000, and
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the
Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

II/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I 3th

ooy ofJ_uug-2-/$

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Nr

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cA0
Other HHS
DATE: lune 26, 2023

By:



INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL. JEFF GRIFFITHS o SCOTT MARCELLIN . JENNIFER ROESER . MATT KINGSLEY

NATE GREENBERG DARCY ELLIS
Co u NTY A D M I N lsr RAT lv E O F F I cE R Assr. CLERK oF rHE BoaRD

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM

June 13,2023

Amendment No. 2 Grestwood Behavioral Health,
Residential Treatment Services

Health & Human Services - Behavioral Health
ACTION REQUIRED

Reference lD:
2023-3787

lnc.

ITEM SUBMITTED BY
Lucy Vincent

ITEM PRESENTED BY
Marilyn Mann, HHS Director

RECOMMENDED AGTION:
Approve Amendment No. 02 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral
Health, lnc. of Sacramento, CA increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $406,000, and
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board's approval
of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION:
Your board approved a contract in the amount of $60,000 with Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. for the
provision of residential treatment services for FY 2022-2023 on June 7,2022. The Department brought
contract amendment No. 1 before your board on November 8,2022, requesting your Board amend the
Community Mental Health Budget by increasing revenue in Operating Transfer ln from Mental Health
Realignment by $143,000 and increasing the appropriation in Support and Care by the same amount to
cover costs related to an additional person being adminitted to the facility. Amendment Number 2
amends the existing Agreement to extend the term to June 30,2024, and increases the contract amount
by $206,000, bringing the total amount of the contract for the period of July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 lo
$406,000, which allows the department to maintain the placement of clients at the residential facility and
also recognizes the increase to fees (See attachment B).

FISCAL IMPAGT:

Funding
Source

Non-General Fund (100o/o Mental Health
Realiqnment Funds.

Budget unit 
lo+szoo

Budgeted? Yes Object Code lssoe
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure

Current Flscal Year lmpact
N/A

Future Fiscal Year lmpacts
N/A

Additional lnformation

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93526
(760l, 878-0292



ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEAUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve this contract amendment. This would jeopardize the placement
of the conservatees.

OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
lnyo County Courts

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Crestwood Contract Amendment No. 2

APPROVALS:
Lucy Vincent
Darcy Ellis
Lucy Vincent
Kimball Pier
Marilyn Mann
Melissa Best-Baker
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd
Marilyn Mann

Created/lnitiated - 51812023
Approved - 51912023
Approved - 51912023
Approved - 511612023
Approved - 61112023
Approved - 61512023
Approved - 61512023
Approved - 61512023
Final Approval - 61512023

P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street I lndependence, CA 93526

17601 878-0292



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Crestwood Behavioral
Health, lnc. (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of
lndependent Residential Treatment Services dated June 23,2022, on County of lnyo Standard Contract
No. 157, for the term from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Paragraph 2 (Term) shall be amended to extend the term of the Agreement until June 30,2024.

Paragraph 3(D) (Limit upon amount payable under Agreement) shall be amended to increase the not to
exceed amount to Four Hundred and Six Thousand Dollars ($406,000).

Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new Schedule of
Fees, which is attached hereto.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is _.
All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By: a/kn&ok-t-{ot/t-
Signature

Elena Mashkevich, Executive Director of Contracts

Dated

Type or Print

05t48t2023

&^ann"
Coun$ Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

Cl"'AnZ
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County

Page 2

13th June 2023

06/13/2023



aRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/1/2023

SNF' TP - IMD Desianation Room and Boord Rote/Per Cou ntv Supplementol Rate
Diem*

Crestwood Wellness and
Recovery Ctr
Redding IMD-1722
NPt - 1194743088

SNF. TP

Crestwood Manor
Stockton SNF/STP - 7704

NPr - 1730128174

Crestwood Manor
Modesto SNF/STP - 7712
NPr - 1508884487

Crestwood Manor - Fremont
Alameda SNF/STP - 1,134

NPt - 1902828403

5/VF

Crestwood Treatment Center
Fremont SNF - 1120
NPt - 1942228838

$2s6.oo

Room ond Boord Rate'- .
Diem*

Medi-Cal Published Rate
For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Room ond Boord Rote'- .
Diem*

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

s2e.oo
Ss+.oo
570.oo

s13s.00
Negotiated

Countv Supplemental Rate

s41.00
s43,oo

s6e.oo
s100.00
5134.00

Negotiated

s47.00
s5s.oo

s100.00
s134.oo

Negotiated

s37.00
s6e.oo

$110.00
51s9.00

Negotiated

Countv Supplemental Rote

slse.oo
Negotiated

* The rates above include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity
program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services

are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title22, CCR, section
51511C.

t2/2s/2022



CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.

Mental Heolth Rehobilitation
Centers

7fi/2023

Room ond Boord'- 'Diem*

s4o3.oo
S366.oo
s332.00

s439.00
s3s2.oo
s343.00

s346,00

s74s.oo
s403.oo
$366.00
s33o.oo

s393.oo
5313.00
s261.oo

ss11.00
s4s2.oo
S3s8.oo

s40s.00
s344.00
s3o4.oo
s290.00

Ss04.oo
s432.00
$36o.oo

Crestwood Center
Sacramento MHRC - 1106

NPt - 1356411656

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
San Jose MHRC - TLOT

NPt - 1376623256

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Eureka MHRC - 1110
NPr - 1124046008

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Bakersfield MHRC - 1115

NPt - L275610800

Crestwood C. E.N.T.E.R.

Angwin MHRC - IILG
NPr - 1316024953

Kingsburg Healing Center
Kingsburg MHRC - II4O
NPt - 1073989661

Crestwood Recovery and Rehab
Vallejo MHRC - II4I
NPr - 1508935834

Crestwood San Diego
San Diego MHRC - 1754
NPr - 1295146934

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level L
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level (1:1)

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3
Level 4

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

*The rates above include room and board, nursing care, program services, activity programs,

OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services
are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 9.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

12/2e/2022



oRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, tNC.

Mentdl Health Rehahilitation
Centers

7n/2023

Room ond Bodrd 
- , Diem*

ss04.00
s432.00
5360.oo

Ssgz.oo

ss04.00
s432.oo
s360.oo

5s50.00
5474.0O

s3e3.oo

Crestwood Chula Vista
Chula Vista MHRC -L164
NPt - 1023495181

San Francisco Healing Center
San Francisco MHRC - 1155

NPt - 7447758024

Fallbrook Healing Center
Fallbrook Healing - It67
NPr - 1639738297

Champion Healing Center
Lompoc Healing Center - ILTO
NPr - 31487282273

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

*The rates above include room and board, nursing care, program services, activity programs, OTC

medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are

not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 9.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

t2/2e/2022



aRESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/1/2023

Psvchiatric Health Focilities Room and Diem* Room and Bodrd/Per Diem

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
American River PHF - 1153

NPt - 1972827343

see7.0o

for indiaent client

S1,097.oo

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Sacramento PHF - 1156

NPt - 1669734075

s997.00 s1,097.00

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
San iose PHF - 1157
NPr - 1598065047

s1,164.00 5r,264.O0

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Bakersfield PHF - 1158

NPt - 1194034645

S1,o44.oo s1,144.00

Crestwood Solano PHF Psych

Health Facility
Solano PHF - 1159

NPt - 1780009142

s1,074.00 $I,774.OO

Crestwood Sonoma PHF Psych

Health Facility
Sonoma PHF - 1175
NPt - 1043848831

S1,o9z.oo S1,192.00

* The rates above include room and board, nursing care, activity program, program services, OTC

medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are not
included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

12/29/2022



ORESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC, ry!,/2023

AdultResidential Focilities ^ialRehabilitationFacilities* Countv Supplemental Rate

Pathways
Eureka Pathways RTF - 1125

NPr - 1811374564

s229.00

Our House
Solano Our House ARF - 1136
NPt - 1750452199

Bridge Program - Bakersfield
Bakersfield Bridge TRTP - 1137
NPr - 1265501597

American River Residential Services
American River ARF - L739
NPt - 110490564s

s173.00

s241.00

s173.00

Bridge Program - Pleasant Hill
Pleasant Hill Bridge ARF - 1143

NPt - 1559s4300s

s162.00

The Pathway
Pleasant Hill Pathway RTF - 1144
NPt - 157863497r

5226.O0

Bridge Program Fresno
Fresno Bridge RTF - 1145

NPr - 1093892663

s228.00

Crestwood Hope Center
Vallejo RCFE - 1152
NPt - 1962702324

s173.00

Hummingbird Healing House
San Diego - 1158
NPr - 1992206734

s139.00

* Room and board rate is paid by the responsible party. The room and board rate includes program services,

activity program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical

services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

t2/2e12022



CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC,

Soci o I Re ha bi litati o n F a ci I itv

Freise Hope House
Bakersfield - It32
NPt # 1124479845

7/u2A23

Room and Board-- , Diem*

s483.oo

* The rate above includes room and board, program services, activity program, OTC medications,
dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are not included in
the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

12/2912022



In tlte Rooms of the Boatd of Supewinrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CDRTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 8th day of November 2A22 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Budget AmendmenV
Crestwood
Agreement
Amendment I

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to: A) Amend the Fiscal
Year 2022-2023 Community Mental Health Budget (045200) as follows: increase revenue
in Operating Transfer ln (4998) by $143,000 and increase appropriation in Support and
Care-1099 (5508) by $143,000 (4/5ths vote rcquiredl; B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Local Health & Welfare-Mental Health Realignment (500463) as follows: increase
appropriation in Operating Transfers Out (5801) by $143,000 (4/5ths vote required)i and
C) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract behveen the County of lnyo and Crestwood
Behavioral Health, lnc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract by S143,000 to an
amount not to exceed $203,000, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon
all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 4-0, with Supervisor Totheroh
absent.

I/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 9th

ttoy ofW!!tb!?L2022

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supen,isors

Nn

Routins

cc
Purchasing

Petsonnel
Auditor
C'4O

Olfiar HHS
DATE: Nwamber 15, 2022

By:



Alf,EtttDmENT t{UmAER I ra
AGREETUENT BEru,EEt{ ntE idffiirdFlnio ano

,o r*

od*, 
wHEREAS' counly and contractor do dssire and consenr to amend such Agreement as set forth

WHEFEAS, such Agreemeil providas lhat it may ba modilied, amended, changed, added to. orsubtracted kom, by the mutial conri,i oi'rr,e- parfies td,retq ii rii'i'.r*undment or change ia in wmon
ftfi!,ifrrtffculednrllh 

lhe sEme rormaliiiesle such asreamil;iio ailactred m rne oifiiiir'A*-ur"nt

County and Conhactor hereby amend such Agreernent as fdlows:

3, Paagnph 0. ls to read as follows;

thsLlmltuponrmounlpayablounderAgreemenl. thslotal sumofallpaymenlsmarlebyt\eCoonlytoContrnc{orfor
servlcos ond wo* petformod under lhls Agreemenl shili not axceed Two Hunor;Jitrea rnouana Dollsrs and no cents(3203,000) (hcrctnafter rateredr.r as "coniiacr l;;i;i - '

WHEREAS, Thg of lnyo (heaefnafter refenod b as "Gountf) and

roferrsd
of

Seillces
heve anterd into an

Confact[rte. 157e, hr heterm frcm

The effective dale of this Amendment lo the Agreement is

All the olher t€rma End condltlons of the Agreemenl are uncfianged end rcmah lhe garnE,

Countyof lnyo Sisndard Conhacl - No. l57mor
Pege 1

062912



FOR THE PROT'ItIOI{ OF IITIDEPEI{DEIIT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF. THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANOS AND SEALS THIS
8th DAyOF No.qe$bei 2A22

COUNTY

By;

APPROVED

Co

.&-^etuM
County Audibr

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

AFPROVEO AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Rlek

AitEl{omEl{T l{utEER I ro
AORE€UEI{T BETWEEiI THE COUNTYOF I1{I/O ATIID

CREgTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. INC.

ta8t2a22

LEGALITY:

TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

CONTRACTOR

Bl': ---
q/"w*rte{-f-u,L*

Slgnalure

Elena Mashkevich, Executive Director of County Contracts
Type or Prht

Dered: 10l1a/2a .

County ol lnyo Statldard Gontract . No.
Psge 2

r5r Mod

062912



In the Rooms of the Board af Supewisors
County of lnyo, Statc of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a mceting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in lndependence on the 7'h day of June 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Crestwood
Behavioral Health
Contract

Moved by Superuisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the contract
between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. of Sacramento, CA for the
provision of Residential Treatment services in an amount not to exceed $60,000.00 for the
period of July 1,2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of the
Fiscal Year 2CI22-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

llrlTNESS my hand and the seal of said Eoard this 7il'

DayofJuu9.2022.

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk otthe Board of Eupenisors

frd*X UMl,t,ta-',
By:

Routing

cc
Purchaslng
Personnal

Adttor
cA0
Olher: HHS

DATE: June7,2022



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crestwood Behavloral Health. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of
Residential treatment services of

lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the
Crestwoori Behavioral lnc.

of (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor''), and in
consideration of the mutual
hereby agree as follows;

promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafler contained, the parties

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. SCOPEOFWORK,

The Contractor shall fumish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Conkactor to perform under this Agreement will be made OV Ximhatl pier pir.O 

, whose
title is: HHS Deputv Director of Behavioral Health . nequesii io tne Contractor tor wort< or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the Coun$'s need for such services. The
County makes no guarantee or wanang, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement
incurs no obligation or reguirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all,
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the Coung's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolulions include, but are not limited to those which are refened to in this Agreement.

2. TERt't.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and oer diem. Conlractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or pel
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement,

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive from County, any addilional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shdfnot
be enlitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, heaith insurance benefils,
retirement beneflts, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

_ D._ Limit uoon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractorfor services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

Slxlv Thorrcnnd Dollars and no cents

The term of this Agreement shall be from July i.2022 to
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

($ 60,000 ) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").
deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for

.lrrnrl 3O

County expressly reserves the right to
services or work performed which is in

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 {modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 1

excess of the contract limit.

04108t202a



E. Billino and.oavnlent. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the Rnh (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1s$ day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identifo the date on which the iervices and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day, Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Conkactor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-Califomia resident independent conlractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligalion to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contracto/s taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Coung to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that lhe performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange hislher own schedule, but witl
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, and municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Conlractor must maintrain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide Gounty,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reseryes the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available al http:l/www.sam.oov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page2
04t08t2020



Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necassary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Coniractor in procuring or maintiaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incuned by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Conlractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERW.

Eersonal Propgrtv of Qountv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety
devices, badges, identificalion cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement
are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of Coung. Contractor
will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's
possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total,
which is the result of ContractoCs negligence.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment G and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent conlractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provlded in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Conlractol its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County,

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County, its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses
including attorney fees arising out of the performance of work described herein, caused in whole
or in part by any alleged or proven negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may
be liable, except to the proportionate extent that such loss or damage was caused by the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

B. The County shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify Contractor and its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against liability, loss, damage, expense, costs
(including without lirnitation costs and fees of litigation) arising out of or in connection with the
County's performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contraclor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 3
g4toaza2a



contained in the agreement except for the proportionate percentage that liability, loss, damage,
expense, or costs were caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor. ln no
event shallthe cost to defend charged to the County exceed the County's proportionate percentage
of fault.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreemenl, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, certification and licensing
regulations, and direclions. Records shall be permanent, either typewritten or legibly written in ink and shall
be kept on all patients accepted for treatment. All health records of discharged patients shall be completed
and filed within thirty (30) days after termination of each episode of lreatment and such records shall be kept
for a minimum of seven (7) years, except for minors whose records shall be kept at least unlil one (1) year
after the minor has reached the age of 18, but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California
Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 75054, and 75343. All psychologist records shall also be maintained
on each patient for seven years from the patienfs discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after
the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent with California Business and Professions Code Section 2919,

B. lnsoections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited lo, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluaiion,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluale the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers and employees shall not
unlaMully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, ancestry,
gender, sexual orientation, age, nalional origin, or mental or physical handicap. Contractor and its agenls,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. S8-
352) and all amendments lhereto, and all administrative rules and regulalions issued pursuant to said act.

13. PATIENTS RIGHTS.

Contractor shall comply with applicable patients' rights provisions in W&l Division 5, Part l; Title 9,
California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in lhe provision of services to
patients hereunder. Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a wriften policy on patient rights
in accordance with Section 707Q7 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Section 5325.1 of the
Welfare and lnstitutions Code. Complaints by patients or beneficiaries with regard to substandard conditions
may be investigated by the Counly's Patients' Rights Advocate, County or State Department of Mental
Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or such other agency, as
required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting information on grievance and appeal
processes accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries receiving services at the facility. Contractor
shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at Contractor sites, without requiring either
written or verbal request, grievance and appeal forms and lnyo County Mental Health self-addressed
envelopes.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days'written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirly (30) days' written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 4
a4taa2a20



15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon flve (5) days'
written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts
owing lo Contractor for seryices and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed lo be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless ihis Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALIW.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express wriiten
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential infiormation by Contractor without the Coung's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabilig Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstilutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the Coun$ in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with lhe County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 5
04lo8l202a



21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application lhereof to any peftion or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereol shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNOING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modiff this Agreement, or any of its terms wilhin ten (10) days of its notifuing
Contraclor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three
(23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and aftached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terrns of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or sent by prepaid first
class mail to the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
HHS - Behavioral Health Department

Street
Gity and State

136O Nnrlh lUlain Suite 124

Contractor:
Elena Mashkevich Name

Bishoo. CA 93514

520 Caoitol Mall. Suite 800
Sacramento. CA 95814

Street
City and State

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties herelo.

ilil illl

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 6
a4rc812020



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

Cr€Btwood Bahavioral Health. lnc.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTLAL TREATTT'IENT SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
23rd DAy OF June 2422

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By ' dltau+pt turl-
SignaUre

Dan Totheroh
Type or Prlnt Nam€

06t23t2022

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Risk l@ry{er

Ereq@
Dated 5/ J/ Ao"t"t/

ConsVaoXs

&',r;*"Wl*
County Auditor

fr,*?ili.t

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

K,Vvw'l--
Personnel Servicfs

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Gounty of lnyo Standard Confad - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Confador - Residental Treatrnent Services)

PageT
0/,t08t2020



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
ANO Crachannrl Health lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2022 TO: June 30.2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

Residential care in a locked Psychiatric Skilled Nursing Facility Provided by Crestwood Behavioral Health lnc.
Facility shall maintain skilled nursing licensure and certification. Treatment services to include daily needs:
food, bed, monthly barber, hairstyling servioes, and basic hygiene products. Special needs to be provided:
activities, nursing services, special treatment program to provide a structured educational living
enviionment, which provides for each residenfs psychosocial needs.

Additionally, Crestwood shall provide lnpatient Mental Health Rehabilitation $ervices as described on the
attached document "Mental Health Rehabilitation Center Program Description."

County of lnyo Standad Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 8
04to8t202a



Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC)
Program Description

Mission
Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. is providing sub-acute psychiatric inpatient treatment in a secure
setting for severely mentally ill individuals who also have co-occurring substance use disorders 18 years
old and older, who are within the following target populations:

r Adults diagnosed as having a disabling psychiatric disorder such as schizophrenia or
affective disorders and who require treatment in a 24-hour locked residential setting

o Lanterman-Petris-Short Act (LPS) Conservatorship
. MurphyConseruatorship
r Post Certification/ 180 Day Hold
r Misdemeanants lncompetent to Stand Trial (MIST)

These individuals with severe mental disorders would otherwise be placed in a more acute facilities such
as the State or local Psychiatric Hospital.
The program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), with
the environmental focused milieu recognized by both CARF and Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA),
The mission of this program is to restore a sense of hope, empowerment, community/natural support
inclusion, and realized potential in each client, as well as psychiatric stabilization during the crisis.

Services
Program staff are screening, admitting, assessing, and treating clients utilizing recovery-oriented services
requiring sub-acute psychiatric services. Our services support each client to recover with an enhanced
sense of resilience, accessing a wide range of wellness tools, peer, staff and natural supports. These
services are instrumental in supporting each individual's transition to the most independent level of
services including peer support, wellness and recovery programs, housing and natural supports.
There are three or four levels of service with varying costs per day per client. MHRC Levels 1-4 offers
increasingly enhanced services for clients at higher acuity levels, with Level 1 being the highest and 4
being the lower.
Level 1 - 1:1 supervision, Clients who display frequent severe behavioral problems, physically assaultive
behavior and require one-to-one supervision to maintain their safety. These individuals are the most
unstable, require medication observation and unable to do self-care.
Level 2 - clients, who are subacute with behaviors that may require some additional supervision and have
high level of behavioral interventions,
Level 3 - clients, who will be signiflcantly impaired, may be more chronic and require routine and frequent
interventions, intensive programing and supervision and support.
Level 4- clients with greater stabilization, who are low-level of need, require fewer but regular behavior
intervention, psychoeducation, and community living skills development for a successful transition to
independence. Usually, it's the clients who have been stabilized and looking for appropriate placement.
The professional staff, paraprofessionals including peer providers, and the system of services
provided at the MHRC are a vital point of access for many clients. Crestwood's staff are providing hope,
choice, empowerment, and a restored belief in the self, that people will recover and that the future
hospitalization will be reduced.

Target Population
The description of the population group to be served includes the following

- age range -18 years old and older
- gender- male and female
- ethnicity - all threshold populations and all referred clients



degree or level of impairment - mild to severe impairment
diagnosis as listed in the most current edition of the diagnostic and statistical manual of
mentaldisorders
expected needs of the population: behavioral challenges, social skills deficits, nursing
complexity, social skills deficits

Program Features:
- 24-hour nursing supervision and care.
- 24-hour psychiatric and mental health consultation.
- Staff trained in treatment of significant and long-term mental health issues
- lndividual therapy with a licensed clinician.
- lntegrated treatment planning process.
- Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) - individual and team approach.
- Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP)
- Psycho-educational groups, individual counseling and support.- lndependent Living skills training.
- Dual recovery training and support
- Motivational strategies to engage and continue engagement for this population.
- Care and education for medical complexities not requiring skilled nursing.- Linkage to community supports.
- lndividualized recovery plans to achieve personalgoals.
- Wellness and fitness support.
- Nutritional education, counseling and support.
- Yoga, meditation and support for a spirituality path.
- Peer support.
- Dreamcatchers Empowerment Network vocationalservices as needed.
- Meditation groups.
- Family support.
- Discharge and transition planning to create and support movement as possible.

Program Goals
1. Clients shall demonstrate improved functional behavior, as measured by movement through the

facility levels of (1) assessment and evaluation, (2) recovery engagement and (3) community
reintegration phase.

2. Clients shall have sustainable medication levels reflecting Evidenced-Based Practice Guidelines,
as measured through medication administration records.

3. The program shall offer benefil to clients through a variety of rehabilitation services such as (but
not limited to) the following: lndividualized Counseling; AA/12 step groups.
educational sessions; wellness and recovery groups; art therapy; relapse prevention groups;
nutritional counseling; life skills training; stress reduction; self-management skills; exercise group,
social skills groups; DBT; CBT; peer support; voclrehab groups; personal motivation groups;
pharmacology groups; and anger management.

4. Contractor shall be successful in preventing direct placements of its clients in acute
psychiatric hospitals, state hospitals or other locked long-term care facilities.

Glinical Program Description - Major Component
1 . Basic needs rehabilitation is an integrated approach to the treatment of clients who have a serious

and persistent mental illness with the following goals:
- Stabilization from acute psychiatric symptoms
- Resolution or reduction of psychiatric symptoms or problems
- Treatment and stabilization of medication



- lrnprovement in function: physical, emotional, social, family, interpersonal and spiritual
development of recidivism prevention skills

- Early intervention in the process of relapse of the psychiatric disorder
2. Vocational rehabilitation program with the following goals:

- Achievement of fundamental scholastic skills with assessment and testing by qualified
professional staff

- Training of vocational skills
- lmprovement in functioning: social, interpersonal, financial, occupational and academic
- lmprove cognitive, behavioral, interpersonal coping skills
- Positive lifestyle change
- lntegration back into the community

3. Dual Diagnosis rehabilitation is an integrated approach to treatment of clients who have a
psychiatric disorder and a comorbid substance use disorder with the following goals:
- Achievement and maintenance of abstinence from alcohol andlor other drugs of abuse
- Development of relapse prevention skills
- Early intervention in the process of relapse to either the substance use or psychiatric disorder
- Helping the client to identify, prioritize and work on problems and recovery issues helshe

identifies as important
- Monitoring addiction recovery issues
- Helping client develop specific recovery skills
- Developing relapse prevention strategies

Assessment Process
The following assessments are completed within the designated time frames.

24 hr. Admission
- Nursing Health Assessment
- lnitialadmissionscreening
- Primary Assessment initiated
- Recovery Service plans initiated
- lnventory of belongings
- Records include program orientation, inventory of behavior and client rights
- Sexual risk assessment

7 Days

10 Days

f+ Oays

Primary Assessment

Behavioral Assessment
Psychiatric Evaluation- Basis 32
Reinforcement Assessment
Dietary Assessment
Brief Psychiatric Rating Scale
Vocational Assessment
Psycho-Social Assessment
Recreation Assessment
Group Referral Assessment
Self-Appraisal
Transitional Appraisal
Level Assessment

lnterdisciplinary Team (lDT) Summary



30 Days
Psychological Evaluation
Psychiatrist Evaluation
History and Physical

Admission Process
1. Admissions will only be accepted with authorization from the County.
2. Crestwood is providing services with the expectation that clients have co-occuning substance use
issues and disorders that require integrated attention to achieve successful outcomes.
3. Approvalor Denial of Acceptance of all LPS, Murphy, MIST, and 180 Day Hold referrals is determined
by Crestwood within 24-48 hours. Referrals shall include the most recent psychiatric evaluation,
lnterdisciplinary Team (lDT) plan, Plan of Care, medication list, intake assessment, current health and
physical note within the past year for LPS, Medical/Mental Health lnformation Transfer Summary to
include known medicallmental health problems and current medications for MIST and 180- Holds, and
Purified protein derivative (the PPD skin test for tuberculosis) whenever possible. Denials must include
justification for basis of decision.

Discharge Process
Prior to any client discharge, Crestwood is notifying County designee to ensure coordination and transfer
of care to appropriate community outpatient team.

Crestwood's treatment program is developed with brief lengths of stay, anticipated for most clients. All
clients are expected to demonstrate increased self-control and autonomy in preparation for discharge to
less restrictive placements within the community,
Crestwood is providing a restoration program to include restoration services specific to the needs of MIST
clients.



ATTACHi'ENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND llroehrrmd l.{eallh lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2022 TO: June 30.2023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

See attached schedule of fees for treatment sltes and programs. Refer to Stockton facility fees
for current $ervices. Fee is for the Special Treatment Program patch rate of $67.00 per day.

The schedule of fees for inpatient mental health rehabilitation services at Bakersfleld MHRC ie
as follows:

Level {:1 -$720 perday
MIST - $450 per day
Level I -$389 perday
Level 2 - $354 per day
Level 3 - $319 per day

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contraclor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page I
0410w2a20



CRESNilOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC. 7/t/2022

SNFlSTP - lMD Deslonatlan Roam and BaardfPer Dle& Patch/EnhEncement

Crestwood Wellness and
Recovery Ctr
Redding IMD - LL22
NPI - 1194743088

SNFISTP

Crestwood Manor
Stockton SNF/STP - 1104

NPI - 1730128174

Crestwood Manor
Modesto sNF/sTP - 71L2
NPr - 1508884487

Crestwood Manor - Fremont
Alameda SNFISTP - L734
NPt - 1902828403

s'VF

Crestwood Treatment Center
Fremont SNF - 1120
NPt - 1942228838

Medi-Cal Published Rate
rlndigentlMedi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
rlndigentlMedi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
*lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
*lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible

243.40 28.00
51.00

67.00
r.29.00

Negotiated

Room and EoordlPer Diem PatchlEnhancement

28.00
40.00

42.oCI

57.00
97.00
129.00

Negotiated

Room and Eoard/Per Diem PotehtEnhancement

28.00
45.00
67.00
97.00
129.00

Negotiated

28.00
36.00
57.00
106.00
1s4.00

Negotiated

154.00

Negotiated

L



CRESNMOOD BEHAV'ORAL HEALTH, INC. 7/t/2022

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program seruices,
activity programs, OTC medications, dietary etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with
Title 9.

Mental Health Rehahilitation
Centers.

Crestwood Center
Sacramento MHRC - 1105
NPI - 1356411656

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
San Jose MHRC - L1A7

NPt - 13755232s6

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Eureka MHRC - 1110
NPI - 1124046008

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Bakersfield MHRC - 1115
NPr- 127s61_0800

Crestwood C.E.N.T.E.R.

Angwin MHRC - LL15
NPI - 1316024953

Kingsburg Healing Center
Kingsburg MHRC - 1140
NPI - 1073989651

Crestwood Recovery and Rehab
Vallejo MHRC - 1741
NPt - 1508935834

Crestwood San Diego
San Diego MHRC - 1154
NPt - 1295145934

Level l"
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level (1:1)

MIST

Level 1
level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

Level l.
Level 2

Level 3

Level 4

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

389.00
354.00
321.00

424.00
340,00
331.00

334.00

720.00
450.00
389.00
3s4.00
319.00

380.00
302.00
249^OO

494.44

$7.40
375.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost'*

391.00
332.00

294.44
276.00

469.00
402.00
334.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost**

2



C,RESTWOOD BEHAV//ARAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/r/2A22

469.00

402.00
334.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost*t

s19.00
Current Rate minus Raw Food Costrr

487.00

477.4O

348.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Costtr

s50.00
541.00
4s8.00
380.00

Crestwood Chula Vista
Chula Vista MHRC -LI64
NPt - 1023495181

San Francisco Healing Center
San Francisco MHRC - 1166
NPI - 14477s8024

Fallbrook Healing Center
Fallbrook Healing - LL67
NPI - 1639738297

Champion Healing Center
Lompoc - fi7A
NPI - 31487282273

Level I
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

Bedhold

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

MIST

Level I
Level 2
Level 3

** Bed hold rate raw food reduction is 58.73 for F\ 2U22

3



0RESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7fi/2022

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services,
activity program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician seruices, pharmacy and other ancillary
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with
Title 22.

Psvc hlat rle H e alth Fo cl litle s Room ond EoordlPer Diem RaoV aq( Eoard/P?r Diem
far lndlaent cllent

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
American River PHF - 1153
NPt - 1972827343

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Sacramento PHF - 1155
NPt - 155973407s

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
San Jose PHF - 1157
NPI - 1598065047

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Bakersfield PHF - 1158
NPt - 1194034645

Crestwood Solano PHF Psych

Health Facility
Solano PHF - 1159
NPt - 1780009142

Crestwood Sonoma PHF Psych
Health Facility
Sonoma PHF - 1175
NPt - 1043848831

963.00

963.00

1,125.00

1,038.00

1,038.00

1,040.00

1,113.00

1,113.00

1_,275.00

1,L88.00

1,188.00

1,190.00

4



CRESNMOOA BEHAVIORAL'IEAITH, I NC

Adult Restdentlal Facllltles/Social Rehabilitation Center

Pathways
Eureka Pathways RTF - 1125
NPr - 1811374564

Our House
Solano Our House ARF - 1136
NPt - 17s0452199

Bridge Program - Bakersfield
Bakersfield Bridge TRTP - 1137
NPt - 1265501597

American River Residential Seruices
American River ARF - 1139
NPt - 1104905545

Eridge Program - Pleasant Hill
Pleasant Hill Bridge ARF - 1143
NPt - 165954300s

The Pathway
Pleasant Hill Pathway RTF - 1144
NPt - 1s78634911

Bridge Program Fresno
Fresno Bridge RTF - 1145
NPt - 1093892663

Crestwood Hope Center
Vallejo RCFE - 1152
NPt- t9627A2324

Hummingbird Heallng House
San Diego - LL68
NPr - 1992206734

7/,12a22

PatchtEnhancement
Per Dav

218.00

15s.00

230.00

15s.00

165.00

223.4O

230.00

155.00

182.00

5



ATTACHMETTIT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crcslwnnd Health lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July L2A?2 TO: Jrrna 3O. 2O23

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Strandard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

page 10
44nu2020



Atta chmen t C= 2O22 Ins urance Requirements fo r P rofessional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance
of the work hereunder by the contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

L. Commercial General tiability {CGL}: lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an
"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence. lf a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this
project/location {lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile tiability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 {hired) and 9 (non-owned}, with limit no less
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived
with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be
used for/during the execution ofthe contract.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

4. Professional tiability (Errors and Omissions) lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 54,000,000 aggregate.
Check with Risk Management if Professional Liability is required for the contract to which these
requirements are attached.

5, Cyber liability lnsurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. provision
may be waived if contractor will not be receiving/storingltransmitting personally identifiable
information (Pll) or personal medical information (PMl). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to
respond to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall
include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including
but not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic inforrnation, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The
policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties
as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.
Professional liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage.

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage andlor higher limits than the minimums shown above,
lnyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of
insurance and coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER I NSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services; Page



Atta chmen t c: 2o22 Insurance Requirements for professional services

Additlonal lnsured .ftotus: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equiprnent
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the
form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance {at least as broad as lSo Form cG 20 10 11 g5 or
if not available, through the addition of both cG 20 10, CG 2A 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if
a later edition is used).

Ptimary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shalt be
primary and non'contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or seJf-insurance maintained by lnyo
County, lts officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall atso apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrello or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity. and defense requirernents. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional
lnsureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notiee of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Waiver ol Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentionsi Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County, lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention
may be satisfied by either the named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000
unless approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the
lndemnified Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo county may deduct from any amounts otherwise due
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR)
provision that limits the satisfaction of the 5lR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfil the SIR or deductible. lnyo County
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification.

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services; Page



Attachment Cz 2O22 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Acceptobility al lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the
state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning

of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years
after completion of the contract of work.

3' lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Caverage: Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage requlred by this clause and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by lnyo county before work commences. However,
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. lnyo
County reserves the right to modifli these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk,
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional insured
on insurance required from subcontractors.

Duration ol Coverage; CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided for at least five {5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Speclal Risks or Circumstances: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.
-end-

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professiona I Services; Page







Crestwood Amendment #3
Final Audit Report 2024-06-17

Created: 2024-06-17

By: Gina Ellis (gellis@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAtzNeWSBOd2YiLrKNGkiDfW__BZNURKfX

"Crestwood Amendment #3" History
Document created by Gina Ellis (gellis@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-17 - 8:23:30 PM GMT

Document emailed to Aaron Holmberg (aholmberg@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-17 - 8:24:03 PM GMT

Email viewed by Aaron Holmberg (aholmberg@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-17 - 8:39:48 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Aaron Holmberg (aholmberg@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-17 - 8:40:18 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-06-17 - 8:40:18 PM GMT



In tlte Rooms of tlte Board of Supewircrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, held

in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the l3th day of June 2023 an order was duly made and entered

as follows

HHS-Behavioral
Health - Crestwood
Behavioral Health
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Scott Marcellin to approve Amendment No.
2 to the contract between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. of
Sacramento, CA increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $406,000, and
extending the term end date from June 30, 2023 to June 30, 2024, contingent upon the
Board's approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to
sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

II/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this I 3th

ooy ofJ_uug-2-/$

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supenisors

Nr

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cA0
Other HHS
DATE: lune 26, 2023

By:



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and Crestwood Behavioral
Health, lnc. (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor"), have entered into an Agreement for the Provision of
lndependent Residential Treatment Services dated June 23,2022, on County of lnyo Standard Contract
No. 157, for the term from July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023.

WHEREAS, County and Contractor do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth
below;

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written
form, and executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement
to maintain continuity.

County and Contractor hereby amend such Agreement as follows:

Paragraph 2 (Term) shall be amended to extend the term of the Agreement until June 30,2024.

Paragraph 3(D) (Limit upon amount payable under Agreement) shall be amended to increase the not to
exceed amount to Four Hundred and Six Thousand Dollars ($406,000).

Attachment B (Schedule of Fees) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with a new Schedule of
Fees, which is attached hereto.

The effective date of this Amendment to the Agreement is _.
All the other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and remain the same

Page 1



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO THE
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By:

Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

By: a/kn&ok-t-{ot/t-
Signature

Elena Mashkevich, Executive Director of Contracts

Dated

Type or Print

05t48t2023

&^ann"
Coun$ Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

Cl"'AnZ
County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel

APPROVED AS TO RISKASSESSMENT:

County

Page 2

13th June 2023

06/13/2023



aRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/1/2023

SNF' TP - IMD Desianation Room and Boord Rote/Per Cou ntv Supplementol Rate
Diem*

Crestwood Wellness and
Recovery Ctr
Redding IMD-1722
NPt - 1194743088

SNF. TP

Crestwood Manor
Stockton SNF/STP - 7704

NPr - 1730128174

Crestwood Manor
Modesto SNF/STP - 7712
NPr - 1508884487

Crestwood Manor - Fremont
Alameda SNF/STP - 1,134

NPt - 1902828403

5/VF

Crestwood Treatment Center
Fremont SNF - 1120
NPt - 1942228838

$2s6.oo

Room ond Boord Rate'- .
Diem*

Medi-Cal Published Rate
For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

Room ond Boord Rote'- .
Diem*

Medi-Cal Published Rate

For lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible clients

s2e.oo
Ss+.oo
570.oo

s13s.00
Negotiated

Countv Supplemental Rate

s41.00
s43,oo

s6e.oo
s100.00
5134.00

Negotiated

s47.00
s5s.oo

s100.00
s134.oo

Negotiated

s37.00
s6e.oo

$110.00
51s9.00

Negotiated

Countv Supplemental Rote

slse.oo
Negotiated

* The rates above include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services, activity
program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services

are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title22, CCR, section
51511C.

t2/2s/2022



CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC.

Mental Heolth Rehobilitation
Centers

7fi/2023

Room ond Boord'- 'Diem*

s4o3.oo
S366.oo
s332.00

s439.00
s3s2.oo
s343.00

s346,00

s74s.oo
s403.oo
$366.00
s33o.oo

s393.oo
5313.00
s261.oo

ss11.00
s4s2.oo
S3s8.oo

s40s.00
s344.00
s3o4.oo
s290.00

Ss04.oo
s432.00
$36o.oo

Crestwood Center
Sacramento MHRC - 1106

NPt - 1356411656

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
San Jose MHRC - TLOT

NPt - 1376623256

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Eureka MHRC - 1110
NPr - 1124046008

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Bakersfield MHRC - 1115

NPt - L275610800

Crestwood C. E.N.T.E.R.

Angwin MHRC - IILG
NPr - 1316024953

Kingsburg Healing Center
Kingsburg MHRC - II4O
NPt - 1073989661

Crestwood Recovery and Rehab
Vallejo MHRC - II4I
NPr - 1508935834

Crestwood San Diego
San Diego MHRC - 1754
NPr - 1295146934

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level L
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level (1:1)

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3
Level 4

Level 1
Level 2
Level 3

*The rates above include room and board, nursing care, program services, activity programs,

OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services
are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 9.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

12/2e/2022



oRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, tNC.

Mentdl Health Rehahilitation
Centers

7n/2023

Room ond Bodrd 
- , Diem*

ss04.00
s432.00
5360.oo

Ssgz.oo

ss04.00
s432.oo
s360.oo

5s50.00
5474.0O

s3e3.oo

Crestwood Chula Vista
Chula Vista MHRC -L164
NPt - 1023495181

San Francisco Healing Center
San Francisco MHRC - 1155

NPt - 7447758024

Fallbrook Healing Center
Fallbrook Healing - It67
NPr - 1639738297

Champion Healing Center
Lompoc Healing Center - ILTO
NPr - 31487282273

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

*The rates above include room and board, nursing care, program services, activity programs, OTC

medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are

not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 9.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

t2/2e/2022



aRESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/1/2023

Psvchiatric Health Focilities Room and Diem* Room and Bodrd/Per Diem

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
American River PHF - 1153

NPt - 1972827343

see7.0o

for indiaent client

S1,097.oo

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Sacramento PHF - 1156

NPt - 1669734075

s997.00 s1,097.00

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
San iose PHF - 1157
NPr - 1598065047

s1,164.00 5r,264.O0

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Bakersfield PHF - 1158

NPt - 1194034645

S1,o44.oo s1,144.00

Crestwood Solano PHF Psych

Health Facility
Solano PHF - 1159

NPt - 1780009142

s1,074.00 $I,774.OO

Crestwood Sonoma PHF Psych

Health Facility
Sonoma PHF - 1175
NPt - 1043848831

S1,o9z.oo S1,192.00

* The rates above include room and board, nursing care, activity program, program services, OTC

medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are not
included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

12/29/2022



ORESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC, ry!,/2023

AdultResidential Focilities ^ialRehabilitationFacilities* Countv Supplemental Rate

Pathways
Eureka Pathways RTF - 1125

NPr - 1811374564

s229.00

Our House
Solano Our House ARF - 1136
NPt - 1750452199

Bridge Program - Bakersfield
Bakersfield Bridge TRTP - 1137
NPr - 1265501597

American River Residential Services
American River ARF - L739
NPt - 110490564s

s173.00

s241.00

s173.00

Bridge Program - Pleasant Hill
Pleasant Hill Bridge ARF - 1143

NPt - 1559s4300s

s162.00

The Pathway
Pleasant Hill Pathway RTF - 1144
NPt - 157863497r

5226.O0

Bridge Program Fresno
Fresno Bridge RTF - 1145

NPr - 1093892663

s228.00

Crestwood Hope Center
Vallejo RCFE - 1152
NPt - 1962702324

s173.00

Hummingbird Healing House
San Diego - 1158
NPr - 1992206734

s139.00

* Room and board rate is paid by the responsible party. The room and board rate includes program services,

activity program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical

services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

t2/2e12022



CRESTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC,

Soci o I Re ha bi litati o n F a ci I itv

Freise Hope House
Bakersfield - It32
NPt # 1124479845

7/u2A23

Room and Board-- , Diem*

s483.oo

* The rate above includes room and board, program services, activity program, OTC medications,
dietary, etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary medical services are not included in
the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with Title 22.

Bedhold - same as last inhouse level/rate

12/2912022



In tlte Rooms of the Boatd of Supewinrs
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CDRTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 8th day of November 2A22 an order was duly made

and entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Budget AmendmenV
Crestwood
Agreement
Amendment I

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to: A) Amend the Fiscal
Year 2022-2023 Community Mental Health Budget (045200) as follows: increase revenue
in Operating Transfer ln (4998) by $143,000 and increase appropriation in Support and
Care-1099 (5508) by $143,000 (4/5ths vote rcquiredl; B) Amend the Fiscal Year 2022-
2023 Local Health & Welfare-Mental Health Realignment (500463) as follows: increase
appropriation in Operating Transfers Out (5801) by $143,000 (4/5ths vote required)i and
C) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract behveen the County of lnyo and Crestwood
Behavioral Health, lnc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract by S143,000 to an
amount not to exceed $203,000, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon
all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried 4-0, with Supervisor Totheroh
absent.

I/ITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 9th

ttoy ofW!!tb!?L2022

NATHAN GREENBERG
Clerk of the Board of Supen,isors

Nn

Routins

cc
Purchasing

Petsonnel
Auditor
C'4O

Olfiar HHS
DATE: Nwamber 15, 2022

By:



Alf,EtttDmENT t{UmAER I ra
AGREETUENT BEru,EEt{ ntE idffiirdFlnio ano

,o r*

od*, 
wHEREAS' counly and contractor do dssire and consenr to amend such Agreement as set forth

WHEFEAS, such Agreemeil providas lhat it may ba modilied, amended, changed, added to. orsubtracted kom, by the mutial conri,i oi'rr,e- parfies td,retq ii rii'i'.r*undment or change ia in wmon
ftfi!,ifrrtffculednrllh 

lhe sEme rormaliiiesle such asreamil;iio ailactred m rne oifiiiir'A*-ur"nt

County and Conhactor hereby amend such Agreernent as fdlows:

3, Paagnph 0. ls to read as follows;

thsLlmltuponrmounlpayablounderAgreemenl. thslotal sumofallpaymenlsmarlebyt\eCoonlytoContrnc{orfor
servlcos ond wo* petformod under lhls Agreemenl shili not axceed Two Hunor;Jitrea rnouana Dollsrs and no cents(3203,000) (hcrctnafter rateredr.r as "coniiacr l;;i;i - '

WHEREAS, Thg of lnyo (heaefnafter refenod b as "Gountf) and

roferrsd
of

Seillces
heve anterd into an

Confact[rte. 157e, hr heterm frcm

The effective dale of this Amendment lo the Agreement is

All the olher t€rma End condltlons of the Agreemenl are uncfianged end rcmah lhe garnE,

Countyof lnyo Sisndard Conhacl - No. l57mor
Pege 1

062912



FOR THE PROT'ItIOI{ OF IITIDEPEI{DEIIT CONTRACTOR SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF. THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANOS AND SEALS THIS
8th DAyOF No.qe$bei 2A22

COUNTY

By;

APPROVED

Co

.&-^etuM
County Audibr

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

AFPROVEO AS TO RISK ASSESSMENT:

County Rlek

AitEl{omEl{T l{utEER I ro
AORE€UEI{T BETWEEiI THE COUNTYOF I1{I/O ATIID

CREgTWOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH. INC.

ta8t2a22

LEGALITY:

TO ACCOUNTING FORM;

CONTRACTOR

Bl': ---
q/"w*rte{-f-u,L*

Slgnalure

Elena Mashkevich, Executive Director of County Contracts
Type or Prht

Dered: 10l1a/2a .

County ol lnyo Statldard Gontract . No.
Psge 2

r5r Mod

062912



In the Rooms of the Board af Supewisors
County of lnyo, Statc of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a mceting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of lnyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in lndependence on the 7'h day of June 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

HHS-Behavioral
Health -
Crestwood
Behavioral Health
Contract

Moved by Superuisor Pucci and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to approve the contract
between the County of lnyo and Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. of Sacramento, CA for the
provision of Residential Treatment services in an amount not to exceed $60,000.00 for the
period of July 1,2022 through June 30, 2023, contingent upon the Board's approval of the
Fiscal Year 2CI22-2023 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

llrlTNESS my hand and the seal of said Eoard this 7il'

DayofJuu9.2022.

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk otthe Board of Eupenisors

frd*X UMl,t,ta-',
By:

Routing

cc
Purchaslng
Personnal

Adttor
cA0
Olher: HHS

DATE: June7,2022



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crestwood Behavloral Health. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of
Residential treatment services of

lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for the
Crestwoori Behavioral lnc.

of (hereinafter referred to as "Contractor''), and in
consideration of the mutual
hereby agree as follows;

promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafler contained, the parties

TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. SCOPEOFWORK,

The Contractor shall fumish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Attachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to the
Conkactor to perform under this Agreement will be made OV Ximhatl pier pir.O 

, whose
title is: HHS Deputv Director of Behavioral Health . nequesii io tne Contractor tor wort< or
services to be performed under this Agreement will be based upon the Coun$'s need for such services. The
County makes no guarantee or wanang, of any nature, that any minimum level or amount of services or
work will be requested of the Contractor by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement
incurs no obligation or reguirement to request from Contractor the performance of any services or work at all,
even if County should have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the Coung's request under this Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such laws, ordinances, regulations, and
resolulions include, but are not limited to those which are refened to in this Agreement.

2. TERt't.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by
Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and oer diem. Conlractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or pel
diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement,

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor
shall not be entitled to, nor receive from County, any addilional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or other type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Contractor shdfnot
be enlitled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the form of overtime, heaith insurance benefils,
retirement beneflts, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind whatsoever.

_ D._ Limit uoon amount pavable under Aoreement. The total sum of all payments made by the
County to Contractorfor services and work performed under this Agreement shall not exceed

Slxlv Thorrcnnd Dollars and no cents

The term of this Agreement shall be from July i.2022 to
unless sooner terminated as provided below.

($ 60,000 ) (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit").
deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contractor for

.lrrnrl 3O

County expressly reserves the right to
services or work performed which is in

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 {modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 1

excess of the contract limit.

04108t202a



E. Billino and.oavnlent. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all services and work described in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This
statement will be submitted to the County not later than the Rnh (sth) day of the month. The statement to be
submitted will cover the period from the first (1s$ day of the preceding month through and including the last
day of the preceding month. This statement will identifo the date on which the iervices and work were
performed and describe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day, Upon timely
receipt of the statement by the fifth (sth) day of the month, County shall make payment to Conkactor on the
last day of the month.

F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal or state
income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this
Agreement to non-Califomia resident independent conlractors when it is anticipated that total annual
payments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety-nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligalion to withhold any taxes or payments from
sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on
such sums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for payment of
Contracto/s taxes or assessments.

(4) The total amounts paid by Coung to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments to non-
California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California State
Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate this reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County an
lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those services and work identified in
Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that lhe performance of
these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange hislher own schedule, but witl
coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will
be performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, and municipal
governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Contractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenruise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Conlractor must maintrain such licenses, certificates, and permits
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,
professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be
procured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County. Contractor will provide Gounty,
upon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates, and permits which
are required to perform the services identified in Aftachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor
and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in
Attachment A, County reseryes the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

B. Contractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Contractor also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available al http:l/www.sam.oov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ETC.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page2
04t08t2020



Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necassary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incuned by
Coniractor in procuring or maintiaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incuned by
Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Conlractor.

7. COUNTY PROPERW.

Eersonal Propgrtv of Qountv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or safety
devices, badges, identificalion cards, keys, etc. provided to Contractor by County pursuant to this Agreement
are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of Coung. Contractor
will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard, and maintain such items while they are in Contractor's
possession. Contractor will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items, partial or total,
which is the result of ContractoCs negligence.

8. INSURANCE.

For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope
and amount specified in Attachment G and with the provisions specified in that attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent conlractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Except as expressly provided in Aftachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to
exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both Contractor and County that this Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement.

B. Contractor shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
this Agreement, and except as expressly provlded in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Conlractol its agents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent contractors, and not as employees of
County,

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

A. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify the County, its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses
including attorney fees arising out of the performance of work described herein, caused in whole
or in part by any alleged or proven negligent act or omission of the Contractor, any subcontractor,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may
be liable, except to the proportionate extent that such loss or damage was caused by the sole
negligence or willful misconduct of the County.

B. The County shall hold harmless, defend, and indemnify Contractor and its officers,
officials, employees, and volunteers from and against liability, loss, damage, expense, costs
(including without lirnitation costs and fees of litigation) arising out of or in connection with the
County's performance of work hereunder or its failure to comply with any of its obligations

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contraclor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 3
g4toaza2a



contained in the agreement except for the proportionate percentage that liability, loss, damage,
expense, or costs were caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of the Contractor. ln no
event shallthe cost to defend charged to the County exceed the County's proportionate percentage
of fault.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Records. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various
provisions of this Agreemenl, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, certification and licensing
regulations, and direclions. Records shall be permanent, either typewritten or legibly written in ink and shall
be kept on all patients accepted for treatment. All health records of discharged patients shall be completed
and filed within thirty (30) days after termination of each episode of lreatment and such records shall be kept
for a minimum of seven (7) years, except for minors whose records shall be kept at least unlil one (1) year
after the minor has reached the age of 18, but in no case less than seven (7) years consistent with California
Code of Regulations, Title 22 Section 75054, and 75343. All psychologist records shall also be maintained
on each patient for seven years from the patienfs discharge date, or in the case of a minor, seven years after
the minor reaches 18 years of age consistent with California Business and Professions Code Section 2919,

B. lnsoections and Audits. Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited lo, financial records of Contractor, which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluaiion,
examination, excerpts, and transcripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or otherwise evaluale the work
performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers and employees shall not
unlaMully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, ancestry,
gender, sexual orientation, age, nalional origin, or mental or physical handicap. Contractor and its agenls,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the
California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. S8-
352) and all amendments lhereto, and all administrative rules and regulalions issued pursuant to said act.

13. PATIENTS RIGHTS.

Contractor shall comply with applicable patients' rights provisions in W&l Division 5, Part l; Title 9,
California Code of Regulations, Subchapter 4; and other applicable law in lhe provision of services to
patients hereunder. Contractor shall adopt and post in a conspicuous place a wriften policy on patient rights
in accordance with Section 707Q7 of Title 22 of the California Code of Regulations and Section 5325.1 of the
Welfare and lnstitutions Code. Complaints by patients or beneficiaries with regard to substandard conditions
may be investigated by the Counly's Patients' Rights Advocate, County or State Department of Mental
Health, or by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organization, or such other agency, as
required by law or regulation. Contractor is responsible for posting information on grievance and appeal
processes accessible to individuals and their beneficiaries receiving services at the facility. Contractor
shall make available for use by patients or beneficiaries at Contractor sites, without requiring either
written or verbal request, grievance and appeal forms and lnyo County Mental Health self-addressed
envelopes.

14. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Contractor thirty (30) days'written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement
without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirly (30) days' written notice of such intent to
cancel to County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 4
a4taa2a20



15. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,
experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not
assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County.
Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior
written consent of County.

16. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon flve (5) days'
written notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts
owing lo Contractor for seryices and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

17. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of any breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a
waiver of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed lo be a modification of the terms of this
Agreement unless ihis Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-three (23) below.

18. CONFIDENTIALIW.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,
regulations, and ordinances providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Contractor only with the express wriiten
consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential infiormation by Contractor without the Coung's written
consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects.

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabilig Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 14100.2 of the Welfare and lnstilutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure.

19. CONFLTCTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which
would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

20. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from the Coun$ in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a period of two years after the termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who,
during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has
been an adverse party in litigation with lhe County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 5
04lo8l202a



21. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application lhereof to any peftion or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
thereol shall not be invalidated thereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

22. FUNOING LIMITATION

The ability of County to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.
ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the
option to cancel, reduce, or modiff this Agreement, or any of its terms wilhin ten (10) days of its notifuing
Contraclor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification of
this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-three
(23) (Amendment).

23. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same
formalities as this Agreement, and aftached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

24. NOT|CE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including
change of address of either party during the terrns of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be
required or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served or sent by prepaid first
class mail to the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
HHS - Behavioral Health Department

Street
Gity and State

136O Nnrlh lUlain Suite 124

Contractor:
Elena Mashkevich Name

Bishoo. CA 93514

520 Caoitol Mall. Suite 800
Sacramento. CA 95814

Street
City and State

25. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,
promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by
reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,
discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties herelo.

ilil illl

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 6
a4rc812020



AND
AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTYOF INYO

Cr€Btwood Bahavioral Health. lnc.
FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTLAL TREATTT'IENT SERVICES

IN WTNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
23rd DAy OF June 2422

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

By ' dltau+pt turl-
SignaUre

Dan Totheroh
Type or Prlnt Nam€

06t23t2022

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM:

County Risk l@ry{er

Ereq@
Dated 5/ J/ Ao"t"t/

ConsVaoXs

&',r;*"Wl*
County Auditor

fr,*?ili.t

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

K,Vvw'l--
Personnel Servicfs

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Gounty of lnyo Standard Confad - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Confador - Residental Treatrnent Services)

PageT
0/,t08t2020



ATTACHMENTA

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
ANO Crachannrl Health lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2022 TO: June 30.2023

SCOPE OF WORK:

Residential care in a locked Psychiatric Skilled Nursing Facility Provided by Crestwood Behavioral Health lnc.
Facility shall maintain skilled nursing licensure and certification. Treatment services to include daily needs:
food, bed, monthly barber, hairstyling servioes, and basic hygiene products. Special needs to be provided:
activities, nursing services, special treatment program to provide a structured educational living
enviionment, which provides for each residenfs psychosocial needs.

Additionally, Crestwood shall provide lnpatient Mental Health Rehabilitation $ervices as described on the
attached document "Mental Health Rehabilitation Center Program Description."

County of lnyo Standad Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page 8
04to8t202a



Mental Health Rehabilitation Center (MHRC)
Program Description

Mission
Crestwood Behavioral Health, lnc. is providing sub-acute psychiatric inpatient treatment in a secure
setting for severely mentally ill individuals who also have co-occurring substance use disorders 18 years
old and older, who are within the following target populations:

r Adults diagnosed as having a disabling psychiatric disorder such as schizophrenia or
affective disorders and who require treatment in a 24-hour locked residential setting

o Lanterman-Petris-Short Act (LPS) Conservatorship
. MurphyConseruatorship
r Post Certification/ 180 Day Hold
r Misdemeanants lncompetent to Stand Trial (MIST)

These individuals with severe mental disorders would otherwise be placed in a more acute facilities such
as the State or local Psychiatric Hospital.
The program is accredited by the Commission on Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF), with
the environmental focused milieu recognized by both CARF and Substance Abuse and Mental Health
Services Administration (SAMHSA),
The mission of this program is to restore a sense of hope, empowerment, community/natural support
inclusion, and realized potential in each client, as well as psychiatric stabilization during the crisis.

Services
Program staff are screening, admitting, assessing, and treating clients utilizing recovery-oriented services
requiring sub-acute psychiatric services. Our services support each client to recover with an enhanced
sense of resilience, accessing a wide range of wellness tools, peer, staff and natural supports. These
services are instrumental in supporting each individual's transition to the most independent level of
services including peer support, wellness and recovery programs, housing and natural supports.
There are three or four levels of service with varying costs per day per client. MHRC Levels 1-4 offers
increasingly enhanced services for clients at higher acuity levels, with Level 1 being the highest and 4
being the lower.
Level 1 - 1:1 supervision, Clients who display frequent severe behavioral problems, physically assaultive
behavior and require one-to-one supervision to maintain their safety. These individuals are the most
unstable, require medication observation and unable to do self-care.
Level 2 - clients, who are subacute with behaviors that may require some additional supervision and have
high level of behavioral interventions,
Level 3 - clients, who will be signiflcantly impaired, may be more chronic and require routine and frequent
interventions, intensive programing and supervision and support.
Level 4- clients with greater stabilization, who are low-level of need, require fewer but regular behavior
intervention, psychoeducation, and community living skills development for a successful transition to
independence. Usually, it's the clients who have been stabilized and looking for appropriate placement.
The professional staff, paraprofessionals including peer providers, and the system of services
provided at the MHRC are a vital point of access for many clients. Crestwood's staff are providing hope,
choice, empowerment, and a restored belief in the self, that people will recover and that the future
hospitalization will be reduced.

Target Population
The description of the population group to be served includes the following

- age range -18 years old and older
- gender- male and female
- ethnicity - all threshold populations and all referred clients



degree or level of impairment - mild to severe impairment
diagnosis as listed in the most current edition of the diagnostic and statistical manual of
mentaldisorders
expected needs of the population: behavioral challenges, social skills deficits, nursing
complexity, social skills deficits

Program Features:
- 24-hour nursing supervision and care.
- 24-hour psychiatric and mental health consultation.
- Staff trained in treatment of significant and long-term mental health issues
- lndividual therapy with a licensed clinician.
- lntegrated treatment planning process.
- Dialectical Behavior Therapy (DBT) - individual and team approach.
- Wellness Recovery Action Plan (WRAP)
- Psycho-educational groups, individual counseling and support.- lndependent Living skills training.
- Dual recovery training and support
- Motivational strategies to engage and continue engagement for this population.
- Care and education for medical complexities not requiring skilled nursing.- Linkage to community supports.
- lndividualized recovery plans to achieve personalgoals.
- Wellness and fitness support.
- Nutritional education, counseling and support.
- Yoga, meditation and support for a spirituality path.
- Peer support.
- Dreamcatchers Empowerment Network vocationalservices as needed.
- Meditation groups.
- Family support.
- Discharge and transition planning to create and support movement as possible.

Program Goals
1. Clients shall demonstrate improved functional behavior, as measured by movement through the

facility levels of (1) assessment and evaluation, (2) recovery engagement and (3) community
reintegration phase.

2. Clients shall have sustainable medication levels reflecting Evidenced-Based Practice Guidelines,
as measured through medication administration records.

3. The program shall offer benefil to clients through a variety of rehabilitation services such as (but
not limited to) the following: lndividualized Counseling; AA/12 step groups.
educational sessions; wellness and recovery groups; art therapy; relapse prevention groups;
nutritional counseling; life skills training; stress reduction; self-management skills; exercise group,
social skills groups; DBT; CBT; peer support; voclrehab groups; personal motivation groups;
pharmacology groups; and anger management.

4. Contractor shall be successful in preventing direct placements of its clients in acute
psychiatric hospitals, state hospitals or other locked long-term care facilities.

Glinical Program Description - Major Component
1 . Basic needs rehabilitation is an integrated approach to the treatment of clients who have a serious

and persistent mental illness with the following goals:
- Stabilization from acute psychiatric symptoms
- Resolution or reduction of psychiatric symptoms or problems
- Treatment and stabilization of medication



- lrnprovement in function: physical, emotional, social, family, interpersonal and spiritual
development of recidivism prevention skills

- Early intervention in the process of relapse of the psychiatric disorder
2. Vocational rehabilitation program with the following goals:

- Achievement of fundamental scholastic skills with assessment and testing by qualified
professional staff

- Training of vocational skills
- lmprovement in functioning: social, interpersonal, financial, occupational and academic
- lmprove cognitive, behavioral, interpersonal coping skills
- Positive lifestyle change
- lntegration back into the community

3. Dual Diagnosis rehabilitation is an integrated approach to treatment of clients who have a
psychiatric disorder and a comorbid substance use disorder with the following goals:
- Achievement and maintenance of abstinence from alcohol andlor other drugs of abuse
- Development of relapse prevention skills
- Early intervention in the process of relapse to either the substance use or psychiatric disorder
- Helping the client to identify, prioritize and work on problems and recovery issues helshe

identifies as important
- Monitoring addiction recovery issues
- Helping client develop specific recovery skills
- Developing relapse prevention strategies

Assessment Process
The following assessments are completed within the designated time frames.

24 hr. Admission
- Nursing Health Assessment
- lnitialadmissionscreening
- Primary Assessment initiated
- Recovery Service plans initiated
- lnventory of belongings
- Records include program orientation, inventory of behavior and client rights
- Sexual risk assessment

7 Days

10 Days

f+ Oays

Primary Assessment

Behavioral Assessment
Psychiatric Evaluation- Basis 32
Reinforcement Assessment
Dietary Assessment
Brief Psychiatric Rating Scale
Vocational Assessment
Psycho-Social Assessment
Recreation Assessment
Group Referral Assessment
Self-Appraisal
Transitional Appraisal
Level Assessment

lnterdisciplinary Team (lDT) Summary



30 Days
Psychological Evaluation
Psychiatrist Evaluation
History and Physical

Admission Process
1. Admissions will only be accepted with authorization from the County.
2. Crestwood is providing services with the expectation that clients have co-occuning substance use
issues and disorders that require integrated attention to achieve successful outcomes.
3. Approvalor Denial of Acceptance of all LPS, Murphy, MIST, and 180 Day Hold referrals is determined
by Crestwood within 24-48 hours. Referrals shall include the most recent psychiatric evaluation,
lnterdisciplinary Team (lDT) plan, Plan of Care, medication list, intake assessment, current health and
physical note within the past year for LPS, Medical/Mental Health lnformation Transfer Summary to
include known medicallmental health problems and current medications for MIST and 180- Holds, and
Purified protein derivative (the PPD skin test for tuberculosis) whenever possible. Denials must include
justification for basis of decision.

Discharge Process
Prior to any client discharge, Crestwood is notifying County designee to ensure coordination and transfer
of care to appropriate community outpatient team.

Crestwood's treatment program is developed with brief lengths of stay, anticipated for most clients. All
clients are expected to demonstrate increased self-control and autonomy in preparation for discharge to
less restrictive placements within the community,
Crestwood is providing a restoration program to include restoration services specific to the needs of MIST
clients.



ATTACHi'ENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND llroehrrmd l.{eallh lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1.2022 TO: June 30.2023

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

See attached schedule of fees for treatment sltes and programs. Refer to Stockton facility fees
for current $ervices. Fee is for the Special Treatment Program patch rate of $67.00 per day.

The schedule of fees for inpatient mental health rehabilitation services at Bakersfleld MHRC ie
as follows:

Level {:1 -$720 perday
MIST - $450 per day
Level I -$389 perday
Level 2 - $354 per day
Level 3 - $319 per day

Counly of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contraclor - Residential Treatment Services)

Page I
0410w2a20



CRESNilOOD BEHAVIORAL HEALTH, INC. 7/t/2022

SNFlSTP - lMD Deslonatlan Roam and BaardfPer Dle& Patch/EnhEncement

Crestwood Wellness and
Recovery Ctr
Redding IMD - LL22
NPI - 1194743088

SNFISTP

Crestwood Manor
Stockton SNF/STP - 1104

NPI - 1730128174

Crestwood Manor
Modesto sNF/sTP - 71L2
NPr - 1508884487

Crestwood Manor - Fremont
Alameda SNFISTP - L734
NPt - 1902828403

s'VF

Crestwood Treatment Center
Fremont SNF - 1120
NPt - 1942228838

Medi-Cal Published Rate
rlndigentlMedi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
rlndigentlMedi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
*lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible

Medi-Cal Published Rate
*lndigent/Medi-Cal lneligible

243.40 28.00
51.00

67.00
r.29.00

Negotiated

Room and EoordlPer Diem PatchlEnhancement

28.00
40.00

42.oCI

57.00
97.00
129.00

Negotiated

Room and Eoard/Per Diem PotehtEnhancement

28.00
45.00
67.00
97.00
129.00

Negotiated

28.00
36.00
57.00
106.00
1s4.00

Negotiated

154.00

Negotiated

L



CRESNMOOD BEHAV'ORAL HEALTH, INC. 7/t/2022

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program seruices,
activity programs, OTC medications, dietary etc. Physician services, pharmacy and other ancillary
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with
Title 9.

Mental Health Rehahilitation
Centers.

Crestwood Center
Sacramento MHRC - 1105
NPI - 1356411656

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
San Jose MHRC - L1A7

NPt - 13755232s6

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Eureka MHRC - 1110
NPI - 1124046008

Crestwood Behavioral Health Ctr
Bakersfield MHRC - 1115
NPr- 127s61_0800

Crestwood C.E.N.T.E.R.

Angwin MHRC - LL15
NPI - 1316024953

Kingsburg Healing Center
Kingsburg MHRC - 1140
NPI - 1073989651

Crestwood Recovery and Rehab
Vallejo MHRC - 1741
NPt - 1508935834

Crestwood San Diego
San Diego MHRC - 1154
NPt - 1295145934

Level l"
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level (1:1)

MIST

Level 1
level 2

Level 3

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

Level l.
Level 2

Level 3

Level 4

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

389.00
354.00
321.00

424.00
340,00
331.00

334.00

720.00
450.00
389.00
3s4.00
319.00

380.00
302.00
249^OO

494.44

$7.40
375.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost'*

391.00
332.00

294.44
276.00

469.00
402.00
334.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost**

2



C,RESTWOOD BEHAV//ARAL HEALTH, tNC. 7/r/2A22

469.00

402.00
334.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Cost*t

s19.00
Current Rate minus Raw Food Costrr

487.00

477.4O

348.00

Current Rate minus Raw Food Costtr

s50.00
541.00
4s8.00
380.00

Crestwood Chula Vista
Chula Vista MHRC -LI64
NPt - 1023495181

San Francisco Healing Center
San Francisco MHRC - 1166
NPI - 14477s8024

Fallbrook Healing Center
Fallbrook Healing - LL67
NPI - 1639738297

Champion Healing Center
Lompoc - fi7A
NPI - 31487282273

Level I
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

Bedhold

Level 1
Level 2

Level 3

Bedhold

MIST

Level I
Level 2
Level 3

** Bed hold rate raw food reduction is 58.73 for F\ 2U22

3



0RESTWOOD BEHAVTORAL HEALTH, tNC. 7fi/2022

The following rates include room and board, nursing care, special treatment program services,
activity program, OTC medications, dietary, etc. Physician seruices, pharmacy and other ancillary
medical services are not included in the per diem rate and are separately billable in accordance with
Title 22.

Psvc hlat rle H e alth Fo cl litle s Room ond EoordlPer Diem RaoV aq( Eoard/P?r Diem
far lndlaent cllent

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
American River PHF - 1153
NPt - 1972827343

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Sacramento PHF - 1155
NPt - 155973407s

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
San Jose PHF - 1157
NPI - 1598065047

Crestwood Psychiatric Health
Facility
Bakersfield PHF - 1158
NPt - 1194034645

Crestwood Solano PHF Psych

Health Facility
Solano PHF - 1159
NPt - 1780009142

Crestwood Sonoma PHF Psych
Health Facility
Sonoma PHF - 1175
NPt - 1043848831

963.00

963.00

1,125.00

1,038.00

1,038.00

1,040.00

1,113.00

1,113.00

1_,275.00

1,L88.00

1,188.00

1,190.00

4



CRESNMOOA BEHAVIORAL'IEAITH, I NC

Adult Restdentlal Facllltles/Social Rehabilitation Center

Pathways
Eureka Pathways RTF - 1125
NPr - 1811374564

Our House
Solano Our House ARF - 1136
NPt - 17s0452199

Bridge Program - Bakersfield
Bakersfield Bridge TRTP - 1137
NPt - 1265501597

American River Residential Seruices
American River ARF - 1139
NPt - 1104905545

Eridge Program - Pleasant Hill
Pleasant Hill Bridge ARF - 1143
NPt - 165954300s

The Pathway
Pleasant Hill Pathway RTF - 1144
NPt - 1s78634911

Bridge Program Fresno
Fresno Bridge RTF - 1145
NPt - 1093892663

Crestwood Hope Center
Vallejo RCFE - 1152
NPt- t9627A2324

Hummingbird Heallng House
San Diego - LL68
NPr - 1992206734

7/,12a22

PatchtEnhancement
Per Dav

218.00

15s.00

230.00

15s.00

165.00

223.4O

230.00

155.00

182.00

5



ATTACHMETTIT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO
AND Crcslwnnd Health lnc

FOR THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: July L2A?2 TO: Jrrna 3O. 2O23

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Strandard Contract - No. 157 (modified)
(lndependent Contractor - Residential Treatment Services)

page 10
44nu2020



Atta chmen t C= 2O22 Ins urance Requirements fo r P rofessional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for
injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance
of the work hereunder by the contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

L. Commercial General tiability {CGL}: lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an
"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily
injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence. lf a
general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separate to this
project/location {lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the
required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile tiability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code 8 {hired) and 9 (non-owned}, with limit no less
than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. Provision may be waived
with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that no auto or mobile equipment will be
used for/during the execution ofthe contract.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,
and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

4. Professional tiability (Errors and Omissions) lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's
profession, with limit no less than $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 54,000,000 aggregate.
Check with Risk Management if Professional Liability is required for the contract to which these
requirements are attached.

5, Cyber liability lnsurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim. provision
may be waived if contractor will not be receiving/storingltransmitting personally identifiable
information (Pll) or personal medical information (PMl). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to
respond to the duties and obligations as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall
include, but not be limited to, claims involving infringement of intellectual property, including
but not limited to infringement of copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy
violations, information theft, damage to or destruction of electronic inforrnation, release of
private information, alteration of electronic information, extortion and network security. The
policy shall provide coverage for breach response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties
as well as credit monitoring expenses with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.
Professional liability or general liability may be endorsed to include cyber coverage.

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage andlor higher limits than the minimums shown above,
lnyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained
by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of
insurance and coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER I NSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services; Page



Atta chmen t c: 2o22 Insurance Requirements for professional services

Additlonal lnsured .ftotus: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be
covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or
operations performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equiprnent
furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the
form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance {at least as broad as lSo Form cG 20 10 11 g5 or
if not available, through the addition of both cG 20 10, CG 2A 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if
a later edition is used).

Ptimary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shalt be
primary and non'contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01 04 13 as respects lnyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or seJf-insurance maintained by lnyo
County, lts officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and
shall not contribute with it. This requirement shall atso apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Umbrello or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability
limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the
Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
including, but not limited to, primary and non-contributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity. and defense requirernents. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the
underlying Commercial General Liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional
lnsureds, whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called
upon to contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Notiee of Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

Waiver ol Subrogation: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any
loss under such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has
received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentionsi Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County, lnyo
County may require the Contractor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of
ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the
retention. The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention
may be satisfied by either the named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess
liability policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000
unless approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole
responsibility of Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the
lndemnified Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo county may deduct from any amounts otherwise due
Contractor to fund the SIR/deductible. Policies shall NOT contain any self-insured retention (SlR)
provision that limits the satisfaction of the 5lR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense
costs, including the Allocated Loss Adjustment Expenses, will satisfil the SIR or deductible. lnyo County
reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and endorsements for verification.

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services; Page



Attachment Cz 2O22 Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Acceptobility al lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the
state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Made Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the beginning

of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years
after completion of the contract of work.

3' lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form
with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase
"extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Caverage: Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage requlred by this clause and
a copy of the Declarations and Endorsement Page of the CGL policy and any Excess policies listing all
policy endorsements. All certificates and endorsements and copies of the Declarations and
Endorsements pages are to be received ad approved by lnyo county before work commences. However,
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. lnyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all
required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any time. lnyo
County reserves the right to modifli these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of the risk,
prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

Subcontractors: Contractor shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting
all the requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that lnyo County is an additional insured
on insurance required from subcontractors.

Duration ol Coverage; CGL & Excess liability policies for any construction related work, including, but
not limited to, maintenance, service, or repair work, shall continue coverage for a minimum of 5 years
for Completed Operations liability coverage. Such lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of
insurance must be provided for at least five {5) years after completion of the contract of work.

Speclal Risks or Circumstances: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including
limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.
-end-

2022 County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professiona I Services; Page







 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-498  

 

Grant Award Notification for First 5 CA Small Population 
County Funding Augmentation Services 

Health & Human Services 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Stephanie Tanksley, Deputy Director - Public Health 
& Prevention 

Anna Scott, Health & Human Services Director 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the Grant Award Notification (GAN) between the County and First 5 California for Small 
Population County Funding Augmentation services which ensures an additional $250,590 of SPCFA 
funding through June 30, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of the Fiscal Year 24-25 Budget, 
and authorize the HHS Director to sign the GAN and related documents. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
In April 2021, your Board approved the agreement between County of Inyo and First 5 California for the 
provision of Small Population County Funding Augmentation (SPCFA) services. That agreement is valid 
through June 30, 2024 and was for the initial amount of $814,415.00.  Now, the State requests that the 
County sign a Grant Award Notification (GAN) to ensure First 5 Inyo County receives SPCFA funding for 
an additional year (2024/2025) in the additional amount of $250,590. The goal of the SPCFA is to 
support the success of small counties in their work and to ensure Proposition 10 is truly a statewide effort 
that impacts the lives of young children throughout California. For counties with a small number of annual 
births, the statutory funding alone does not provide sufficient funding to fully operate a county 
commission or effective First 5 programs. SPCFA funding makes it possible for Proposition 10 to be a 
statewide effort that promotes, supports, and improves the early development of children ages 0 to 5. 
The Department respectfully requests the board approve the Grant Award Notification and authorize the 
Health & Human Services Director to execute the GAN and related documents. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Funded (State First 5) Budget Unit 643000 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 4998 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
The small county augmentation allows us to keep our program whole and meet the program 
requirements. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve this funding, but it would affect our FTEs and limit our ability to 
provide services to this vulnerable population.  
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Grant Award Notification 
  
APPROVALS: 
Stephanie Tanksley Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Melissa Best-Baker Approved - 6/19/2024 
Christian Milovich Approved - 6/19/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 4 

Small Population County Funding Augmentation 
Grant Award Notice 

GRANTEE NAME AND ADDRESS 

County of Inyo, 568 W. Line Street, Bishop, CA 93514 

Grant Agreement 
Number 

SPCFA-2021-14-A2 
Attention 
Katelyn Lent, Executive Director Date 

Website 
https://www.inyocounty.us/first5 May 14, 2024 

Telephone 
760-873-6453

GRANT 
DETAILS 

Grant Award Amount Grant Award Start Date Grant Award End Date 

$1,065,005.00 04/01/2021 06/30/2025 

First 5 California (F5CA) hereby informs the GRANTEE (above) that the agency has been funded for Small Population County 
Fund Augmentation (SPCFA) Grant. By signing this Grant Award Notice, the GRANTEE shall comply with and agrees to the 
terms and conditions set forth in the SPCFA Grant, Request for Application 
https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/partners/investments.html#spcfa, all associated attachments, exhibits, and samples. 

This award is contingent upon the availability of funds. The State of California is not obligated to provide this award if funds are 
not available at the time the award is set to be made. If funds are not available, the state may amend, delay or cancel the award 
until funds become available. 

In the event of any inconsistency between the articles, attachments, specifications or assurances which constitute this Grant 
Agreement, the following order of precedence shall apply: 

1. This Grant Agreement
2. Request for Application
3. Application response to Request for Application

Please return the signed Grant Award Notification within 10 business days to: 

First 5 California 
Attn: Laxmi Gurajada 

2389 Gateway Oaks Drive, Suite 260 
Sacramento, CA 95833 
SPCFA@ccfc.ca.gov 

First 5 California Grant Representative 
Laxmi Gurajada 

Title 
Education Programs Consultant 

E-mail Address
lgurajada@ccfc.ca.gov

Telephone 
(916) 263-1155

Signature of the First 5 California Delegated Authority and Title or Designee 

X

Date  

Printed Name of Delegated Authority Title 
Executive Director 

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF GRANT REQUIREMENTS 

Jackie Wong

https://www.ccfc.ca.gov/partners/investments.html#spcfa


Page 2 of 4 

I, as the Authorized Agent, certify that the amount requested is for actual and allowable expenditures incurred for these 
activities in accordance with this Grant Agreement, and that I am authorized to request this amount on behalf of First 5 
Inyo County.  

Printed Name of Authorized Agent Title 

E-mail Address
.

Telephone 

Signature of the Authorized Agent and Title 

X

Date 
 

F5CA Fiscal Services Office Use Only 

Fund Title Item FY Chapter Statute Projected 
Expenditures 

Education 0634 2020-21 to 2024-25 Prop 10 1998 $426,002.00 
Research and 
Development 0637 2020-21 to 2024-25 Prop 10 1998 $213,001.00 

Unallocated 0639 2020-21 to 2024-25 Prop 10 1998 $426,002.00 

TOTAL $1,065,005.00 

Funding History Term From Term Through Total Cost of This Transaction 
Original 2020-21 2023-24 $814,415.00 

Amendment 1 2020-21 2023-24 $0.00 

Amendment 2 2020-21 2024-25 $250,590.00 



 
Page 3 of 4 

 

Grant Award Notification (Continued) 

Fiscal Details: 

 Grantee is required to comply with any applicable state law relating to this grant and will meet all fiscal and auditing 
standards required by F5CA.  

 Any grantee receiving these grant funds is required to use the funds only for the intended purposes of this grant. 

 Grantee is required to comply with the evaluation, data information requests, and reporting requirements. 

 Grantee is required to ensure all tasks, activities, and functions are completed effectively and in a timely manner. 

 Grantee is required to submit a written Annual Performance Report (APR), as prescribed by F5CA, describing activities 
and accomplishments for the entire grant period as indicated on the Request for Application. 

 To be an eligible grantee, the Grantee is required to provide all stated deliverables in the RFA to be an eligible grantee for 
the subsequent fiscal year.  

  

Invoice Details: 

 Grantee shall submit invoices quarterly, in accordance with Section B, Fiscal Reporting, shall be submitted as follows: 
 

o By April 15, for the period January 1 through March 31 
o By July 15, for the period April 1 through June 30 
o By October 15, for the period July 1 through September 30 
o By January 15, for the period October 1 through December 31 

 
 Payment of any invoice will be made only after receipt of a complete, adequately supported, properly documented, and 

accurately addressed invoice detailing all charges and expenses. Failure to provide information will result in return of the 
invoice to the Grantee. Payment may be delayed until the required information is provided. All invoices shall be approved 
by the F5CA Grant Manager or their designee prior to releasing payment.  

To receive reimbursement for SPCFA expenditure, lead agencies must: 

• Have an approved grant agreement, which includes a Budget Template and Narrative setting forth the planned 
expenditures. 

• Maintain accurate fiscal data, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and standards for 
governmental entities and report actual expenditures by categories. 

• Maintain documentation to substantiate that all costs are reasonable, necessary, allowable, and allocable to the 
grant (e.g., invoices, receipts, and agreements). 

• Maintain time and effort records to support all salaries, wages, and benefits charged to the grant. If an employee 
works on more than one activity or cost objective, the lead agency must maintain time and effort records to 
support the distribution of the employee’s salary or wages among the activities or cost objectives. 

• Retain all records related to this grant for at least five years or when an audit has been requested, until the date 
the audit is resolved, whichever is longer. 

 

Deliverables Details: 

All grantees are required to comply with the data and reporting requirements of this grant, including the following: 

a. Comply with the statutory reporting requirements of the Children and Families Act (Act) and as detailed in the 
Health and Safety Code, Section 130140-130150 (RFA Section Ill.A). 

b. Submit the Systems Change and Impact Evaluation by June 30, 2021, and then in conjunction with the Annual 
Performance Report beginning October 2022 (RFA Section II1.B). 

c. Submit an Annual Performance Report, due annually by October 1, which reflects activities in which reflects 
activities in which the county engaged during the prior fiscal year (RFA Section II1.D). 



 
Page 4 of 4 

 

d. Additional evaluation activities as requested by F5CA or its contractor (RFA Section II.1.E.) 

e. Valid Insurance Certificate as detailed in Insurance Requirement Section. 

 

Amendment 2 appends the following documentation to this document: 

1. SPCFA Budget and Budget Revision Request FY 2020-21 through FY 2023-24 

2. SPCFA Budget Revision Narrative Request – FY 2024-25 

 

Right to Terminate 

The F5CA reserves the right to terminate this Grant Agreement subject to thirty (30) days written notice to the Grantee. 
The Grantee may submit a written request to terminate this Grant Agreement only if F5CA should substantially fail to 
perform its responsibilities as provided herein. 

F5CA also reserves the right to terminate this Grant Agreement immediately for cause. The term “for cause” shall mean 
that the Grantee fails to meet the terms, conditions, responsibilities, and/or assurances of the Grant Agreement. In this 
instance, the Grant Agreement termination shall be effective as of the date indicated on F5CA’s notification to the 
Grantee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Small Population County Funding Augmentation (SPCFA)
FY 2021 - 2025

1-Year Extension Budget

Please select one: Budget Revision RequestFY 2024-25 Date: May 10, 2024

First 5 County Commission: Inyo First 5 Address: 

Website: www.inyocounty.us City, Zip Code:

Executive Director (ED): Katelyn Lent Fiscal Contact:Melissa Best-Baker

ED Phone Number: Fiscal Phone Number: 760-878-0232

ED Email: klent@inyocounty.us Fiscal Email:

If this is a budget revision request, highlight fields that changed from current approved budget, and explain in separate document. $250,590.00

Budget Category
April 1, 2021, - June 

30, 2021
July 1, 2021, - June 

30, 2022
July 1, 2022, - June 

30, 2023
July 1, 2023, - 
June 30, 2024

2021 - 2024 
Total

FY 2024-25
Total for 4.25 years 

(2021 - 2025)

A. PERSONNEL

1. Salaries 812.66$ 103,059.31$             99,287.35$  163,600.75$        366,760.07$    97,175.00$     463,935.07$      

2. Benefits 213.16$ 53,630.40$ 49,922.49$  53,631.00$          157,397.05$    53,631.00$     211,028.05$      

Total Personnel 1,025.82$ 156,689.71$             149,209.84$  217,231.75$        524,157.12$    150,806.00$   674,963.12$      

B. OPERATIONS

1. Materials and Supplies -$  6,503.18$ 6,311.99$  155.52$  12,970.69$      -$ 12,970.69$        

2. Travel -$  2,250.00$            2,250.00$        1,512.00$       3,762.00$          

3. Equipment -$  -$ -$ -$  -$  -$ -$

4. Incentives/Stipends -$  31.48$ 31.48$             -$ 31.48$  

5. Contractual -$  12,861.10$ 1,098.06$  13,959.16$      -$ 13,959.16$        

6. Other -$  69,629.08$ 67,400.79$  92,710.96$          229,740.83$    92,723.65$     322,464.48$      

Total Operations -$  89,025.44$ 74,810.84$  95,116.48$          258,952.76$    94,235.65$     353,187.81$      

C. TOTALS

Total Direct Costs (A+B) 1,025.82$ 245,715.15$             224,020.68$               312,348.23$        783,109.88$    245,041.65$   1,028,150.93$   

Indirect Cost Rate (Based on Personnel 
only)

0% 4.32% 4.17% 8.43% 5.97% 3.67% 5.46%

Total Indirect Costs -$  6,770.86$ 6,220.50$  18,313.76$          31,305.12$      5,548.35$       $        36,854.07

GRAND TOTAL 1,025.82$              252,486.01$          230,241.18$           330,661.99$     814,415.00$  250,590.00$   $   1,065,005.00

Certification

Signature of Executive Director (or other authorized signatory) Date Signed

First 5 CA Staff Only:
Indirect perpc Supervisor:

mbestbaker@inyocounty.us

1360 North Main Street

Bishop, CA 93514

I, the official signed below below hereby requests SPCFA grant funding in the amounts represented in the table above. I certify that the information 
represented on this form is true and correct to the best of my knowledge and compliant with the requirements and conditions in the SPCFA Grant RFA.

5/10/2024

Laxmi Gurajada

FY 2021-22 Operations total 
has a discrepancy of 60 cents. 
These are actuals. (program 
initials - LG)

Indirect percentages
FY 2021-22 4.321190%
FY 2022-23: 4.168961%
FY 2023-24: 8.430517%
FY 2024-25: 3.679131%Total 
(4.25 years): 5.4601605%

Program initials:
LG 5/14/24
KT 5/14/24

mbestbaker
Anna Scott



SPCFA Budget Narrative – April 1, 2021, through June 30, 2025 
 

Please review the Request for Application, Attachment C-5, for information about details 
required in the narrative. Add additional lines to the tables, if necessary. 

 

Please enter all figures in accounting format (dollars and cents). 

County Commission: Inyo First 5 

A. Personnel 
 

1. Personnel/Salaries 
 

Position Title Position Description Salary Basis: 
Time Unit 

Salary Basis: 
Rate 

Total 

First 5 Director Oversee program 
activities, convene 
meetings, provide 
trainings 

.5 FTE x 36 
months + 
$4000.00 for 
20/21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FY 23/24  
.75 FTE x12 
month+ 
$17.00 
 
 
FY 24/25 
.5 FTE x 12 
month 
 

 
 
 
 
FY 21/22 
$79,868.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FY 22/23 
$79,868.00 
 

  FY 23/24 
$86,076.00  
 
 
 

 
FY 24/25 
$86,076.00 

$160,858.81 
 
FY 20/21 
$812.66  
FY 21/22 
$45,862.28 
($45,832.28
+$30.00 
(incorrect 
invoiced 
amount) 
 
FY 22/23 $ 
49,609.87 
 
FY 23/24 
$64,574.00 
 
 
 
 

FY 24/25 
$43,038.00 
 

Prevention 
Specialist 
 

Implement Home Visiting 
and developmental 
screenings 

.50 FTE x 36 
Months 
 
 
 

 
 
 
FY23/24 
.75 FTE x 12 
Months 
 

 
 
FY 21/22 
$54,895.00 
 
FY 22/23 
$54,895.00 
 
FY 23/24 
$36,989.00 
 
 

$98,240.54 
 
FY 21/22 
$35,620.54 
 
FY 22/23 
$34,878.25 
 
 
FY 23/24 
$27,741.75 

 



FY 24/25 
.5 FTE x 12 
month 
 

FY 24/25 
$36,989.00 
 

FY 24/25 
$18,494.50 
 
 

Prevention 
Specialist 
 

Implement Triple P 
Positive Parenting 
classes and workshops 

.65 FTE x 36 
Months 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
FY 23-24  
1.00 FTE x 12 
Months 
 
FY 24/25 
.5 FTE x 12 
month 

 
 
FY 21/22 
$54,895.00 
 
FY 22/23 
$54,895.00 
 
 
FY 23/24 
$71,285.00 
 
 
FY 24/25 
$71,285.00 
 

$107,660.72 
 
FY 21/22  

$21,576.49 
 
FY 22/23 
$14,799.23 
 
 
FY 23/24 
$71,285.00 
 
 
FY 24/25 
$35,642.50 

Grand Total: $366,760.07 
$463,935.07 

 
2. Benefits (explain calculation below) 

 
 

B. Operations 
 

1. Materials and Supplies 
 

Item/Type of Item Purpose of Item Unit cost # units Total 
Triple P curriculum Triple P curriculum for 

workshops and classes, 
such as workbooks, 
handouts, and tip sheets 

$160.00/participant 150 
participants 

$9,781.76 
 
FY 21/22  
$4,266.17 
FY 22/23 
$5,447.62 
FY 23/24  
$67.97 

52% ($53,631.00 Only per year = 
): Retirement and Social Security (estimated $8,150.00 per year); PERS retirement 
(estimated $10,140.00 per year); Unfunded Lia (estimated $8,420.00 per year); 
Insurance (estimated 
$23,459.00 per year); Disability Insurance (estimated $1,055.00 per year); and other 
benefits (estimated $2,407.00 per year) 
FY 20/21 $213.16 
FY 21/22 $53,630.40 
FY 22/23 $49,922.49 
FY 23/24 $53,631.00 
FY 24/25 $53,631.00 
Total $157,397.05 
          $211,028.05 
 
 



FY 24/25 
$0.00 
 
 
 

General Office 
Supplies 

Day to day operations to 
implement programs 

$250.00/month 36 months $1,400.07 
 
FY21/22 
$535.70 
FY 22/23 
$864.37 
FY 23/24 
$0.00 
FY 24/25 
$0.00 
 
 
 

Developmental Play 
Supplies 

Purchase supplies to 
encourage play and 
learning, in order to 
complete a developmental 
screening and encourage 
child development 

$100.00/participant 25 
participants 
per year for 
three years 

$1,788.86 
 
FY 21/22 
$1701.31 
FY22/23 
$0.00 
FY 23/24 
$87.55 
FY 24/25 
$0.00 

 
Grand Total: $12,970.69 

$0.00 
 

 

2. Travel 
 

Trip Name Purpose of Trip Cost basis for calculation or 
estimate 

Total 

Motorpool costs Travel countywide for staff 
to conduct meetings, 
classes, and home visits. 
Typical distances include 
trips of 40 miles and 60 
miles to rural towns. 

(Estimated around $750.00 per 
year x 3 years) 

• 14 trips x 60 miles x 
$0.56 cent/mile 
=$470.40 

• 13 trips x 40 miles x 
$0.56 cent/mile = 
$291.20 
 
 
 
 
 
FY 24/25 
(Estimated around 
$1512.00 per year x 12 
Months) 
 

• 25 trips x 60 miles x 
$0.56 cent/mile 
=$840.40 

• 30 trips x 40 miles x 
$0.56 cent/mile = 

$2,250.00 
 

FY 21-22 
$0.00 
FY 22-23 
$0.00 
 
 
FY 23/24 
$2,250.00 
 
 
 
FY 24/25 
$1512.00 
 



$672.00 

    

Grand Total:  
$2,250.00 
$3,762.00 
 

 
3. Equipment 

 
Item Purpose Cost basis for calculation or 

estimate 
Total 

    

    

Grand Total:  

 
4. Incentives 

 
Incentive Type Purpose of Incentive Cost basis for calculation or 

estimate 
Total 

Parent Education 
Supports and 
Motivational 
Redirectives 

Education supports and 
motivational directives to 
encourage parent participation 
in Triple P workshops and 
classes 

$80.00/participant x 50 
participants per year for three 
years 

$31.48 
 
FY 21/22 
$31.48 
FY 22/23 
$0.00 
FY 23/24 
$0.00 
FY 24/25  
$0.00 
 

 
    

Grand Total: $31.48 
$0.00 
 

 
5. Contractual 

 
Contract Purpose of Contract Amount of Time or Cost Total 

  Basis and Fiscal Year, as 
applicable 

 

Triple P trainings Triple P Positive Parenting 
Program trainings 

Triple P trainings range from 
$1,525.00,to $2,856.00 each x 
7 practitioners (average cost of 
$2,190.00) =  $15,000.00/year 
 
 

$13,959.16 
 
FY 21/22  
$12,861.10 
FY22/23 
$1,098.06 
FY 23/24 
$0.00 
FY 24/25 
$0.00 



 
 

    

Grand Total: $13,959.16 
$0.00 
 

 

6. Other 
 

All of these are estimated costs for the whole contract. 
 

Advertising ($15,000.00); media promotion of Triple P Positive Parenting classes; ¼ 
page ad in local paper $250.00 x 20 ads = $5,000.00/year; FY21-22 to FY23-24 
FY 21/22 $2,417.32 
FY 22/23 $232.35 
FY 23/24 $467.06 
FY 24/25 $ 467.06 
 
ASQ ($6,000.00): cost for ASQ Online database with Brooke’s Publishing; $1,041.00 
annual account fee + $0.50 per screen use x 1,918 screens; $2,000.00/year; FY21-22 to 
FY23-24(This item is paid by monthly invoice and does not require a contract) 
FY 21/22 $1,053.90 
FY 22/23 $1,052.90 
FY 23/24 $ 1,626.46 
FY 24/25 $1,626.46 

 
FIRST Program ($154,909.00); sub-agreement; staff time study by each family the 
work with who have children 5 years of age and younger. The cost is estimated at 
$51,636.00 per year; FY21-22 to FY23-24.(This is an interagency agreement that does 
not require a contract) 
FY 21/22 $51,680.00 
FY 22/23 $52,780.62 
FY 23/24 $68,000.00 
FY 24/25 $68,000.00 
 
Employee Training ($18,000.00); Training Dates TBD- Training for employees to attend 
virtually to aid in parenting skills for families they work with. 3 Employees x $6,000.00 
each. 
 
FY 23/24 $18,000.00 
FY 24/25 $18,000.00 
 

 
Other costs include audit, Association fees, time study, rents, utilities and tech refresh 
that are matched with Prop 10 funds: 

 
Annual Audit ($15,000.00); $5,000.00 x 3years 
FY 21/22 $5,000.00 
FY 22/23 $5,500.00 
 FY 23/24 $4,500.00 
FY 24/25 $4,500.00 

 



First 5 Association Fees ($5,175.00): $1,72.00$1725.00 x3 years 
FY 21/22 $1,725.00 
FY 22/23 $1,725.00 
 FY 23/24 $0.00 
FY 24/25 $0.00 

 

Time study ($191.00); $63.75 x 3 years 

FY21/22 $70.75 

FY 22/23 $67.83 

FY 23/24 $52.42 

FY 24/25 $0.00  

Rents ($9,744.00); $3,248.00/year x 3 years  

FY 21/22 $3,375.64 

FY 22/23 $980.64 

FY 23/24 $0.00 

FY 24/25 $0.00 

FY 23/24 0.00Utilities ($5,910.00); $1,970.00/year x 3 years 
 FY 21/22 $11.24 
FY 22/23 $0.00 
 FY 23/24 $0.00 
FY 24/25 0.00 

 
Internal charges ($4,950.00); $1,650.00 x 3 years (Information Services and Building 
and Maintenance-these costs are charged to the department and then split by FTE to 
programs for the location or for specific charges to the program due to program 
requests)  
FY 21/22 $3,046.77 
FY 22/23 $3,795.45 
FY 23/24 $65.02 
FY 24/25 $130.13 

 

 
 
Tech Refresh ($3,798.00); $1,266.00 x 3 years  
FY 21/22 $ 1,248.46 
FY 22/23 $1,266.00 
FY 23/24 $0.00 

FY 24/25 $0.00 

Totals 



FY 21/22 $69,629.08 

FY 22/23 $67,400.79 

FY 23/24 $92,710.96 

FY 24/25 $92,723.65 

 
Grand Total ($220,677.00); $75,332.00 x 3 years 
Grand Total ($229,740.83) + $92,723.65=$322,464.48 

 
 

C. Totals 
Funding Category Totals 

Total Personnel $524,157.12 
$674,963.12 

 
Total Operations $258,952.16 

$353,187.81 
 

Total Direct Costs (Sections A+B) $783,109.88 
$1,028,150.93 

 
Indirect Cost Rate (%) (may not exceed 15%) 5.97% 

5.46% 
%** 

Indirect Costs $31,305.12 
$36,853.47 

 
Total First 5 Funds (Direct + Indirect costs) $814,415.00 

$1,065,004.40 
 

 

**Indirect is calculated by percentage of Total Personnel costs for years 2, 3, 
and 4 ($18,803.00/$470,085.00). 

 
Please check figures in this narrative to be sure they match the figures in the county’s 
budget. If you have questions, please email SPCFA@ccfc.ca.gov. 

mailto:SPCFA@ccfc.ca.gov


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-365  

 

Contract Award to Tek84 of Poway, CA for the Purchase 
of a Body Scanner  

Sheriff 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Office of the Sheriff Mark Smith 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Approve and award the contract for whole body scanner and maintenance to Tek84 of Poway, CA, in 
an amount not exceeding $186,872.50;  
B) Enter into a service and maintenance contract for the period of June 18, 2024 through June 30, 2029, 
contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and  
C) Authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign any documents necessary for the contract term. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Whole-body scanners are a crucial tool in modern security practices, balancing effective threat detection 
and considerations for privacy and health. Ongoing technological advances and regulatory oversight 
continue to shape their use, ensuring they remain essential to correctional facility security while 
addressing public concerns. The effectiveness of whole-body scanners in detecting non-metallic threats, 
such as liquid explosives, wires, narcotics, pills, and unconventional weapons (ceramic, plastic, wood, 
stone), makes them valuable in a comprehensive security strategy. Utilizing whole-body scanners as part 
of the jail intake process will maximize our ability to provide a safe and controlled environment in the 
county jail. 
 
The Sheriff’s staff evaluated each proposal received and determined that the Tek84 proposal best suited 
the jail's needs. The Tek84 Intercept, with its small footprint, onsite storage, and a five-year warranty, 
met the bid criteria. 
 
Responses to RFP-002-JAIL for Whole Body Scanner were received as follows: 

• Secure Technology Value Solutions       $186,461.38 STVS HT3000SV w/ three-year warranty 
• Tek84 $151,272.50-$214,869.75           $186,272.50 with options that meet RFP Tek84 Intercept 

w/ five-year warranty 
• Linev System US, Inc                            $169,900.08 Clearpass w/ one-year warranty 
• Linev Systems US, Inc.                         $199,658.47 Clearpass CI w/ one-year warranty 

 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund CCP AB109 Budget Unit 022900 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5650 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$186,272.50 body scanner with an initial one-year and additional four-year warranty. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$8,900 annual maintenance agreement - The department will request CCP funding from AB109 or RAN 
to cover this ongoing expenditure.  
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could reject the bid and direct staff to initiate a new Request For Proposals (RFP) process. 
This is not recommended as the Sheriff received four responses to the RFP and selected the proposal 
that meets the County's needs. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Tek84 Quotes 
2. Body Scanner Contract - signed 
  
APPROVALS: 
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Riannah Reade Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/20/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/20/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 6/20/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4r"k84 Quote

Please see the quotation below for the Tek84 lntercept Body Scanner

April L9,2024

quote:2023-4-08

ATTN: Lt. Scott

lnyo County Sheriff's Department

55 S. Clay St.

lndependence, CA 93525

760-A78-0322

Ext Price

1 ssD-018-0100 Tek84 lntercept Whole Body Security Scanning System s 139,000.00

r.,soo.oo s

lncluded

lncluded
lncluded

20,000.00 s

13,000.00 s

2,000.00 $

1,900.00 s
8,900.00 s

139,000.00

1,500.00

to,772,5O

t51,272,5O

1

L

OPTIONAT

I
7

High Strength Aluminum Unibody Frame. 106Kv Monoblock Oil

Cooled Generator. 34" x72" x 90" (79" top removed) foot print. 4

Second Scan Time. Variable Scanning Dosage from 0.25 usv to 8.0

uSv

Tethered Ethernet Connected work Station with 27" Vertically

Mounted Touch Screen Monitor. PC with Win OS and (2) 1 TB HDD,

RAID. 1 million image storage capacity. Transportable on Built in

Heaw Duty Caster System. Corner Mounting Feet. 16 million Grey

Scale Levels. 110 V/60h2. lKva

Freight from San Diego, CA to lndependence, CA 93526 S

One Year Parts and Labor on Entire System from Time of lnstallation

1/2 Day lnstallation
2.5 days Formal, classroom, on-site

s
s

0

0

0

0
0

INT-Shipping

INT-WARRANTY

INT.INSTALL

INT-Training

ssD-018-9950

ssD-020-1000

ssD-020-1100

ssD-017-2103

INT.EXT-WAR

lcl Thermal Skin Temperature Sensor - FDA Tested

TekNET-Connects lntercept body scanners for data exchange,

dose compilation, lmage storage, and data back up

lntercept Manager - Software loaded on customer PC; Allows

remote Admin of body scanner system (Compliance/lntell

TekREADER - Barcode Wristband Scanner

Additional Extended wa.ranty - Per year, Per machine

Discounted at S40,000 for Five Years

s

5

s

sub Total

8y erecution of this agreement, by an signature, the customer agtees to the products specified subject to the terms

and conditions set forth in the atreement and subject to Tek84 and conditions available at www'Tek84.com.

This quote will expire on: o7/L8124 fax@7'7so'6

Delivered-at-place: lndependence, CA 93525 Total

Terms: Net 30

Taxes: Circle one Exemption certificate attached

$

$

Accepted By:

Printed Name and

Authorized Signature-

ereparcd by:

Brian Amos - Western Regional Sales Manager

?^- 4^^ 4/!stzoz4
brian.amos@tek84.com I (9161 606-0733

13495 Gregg Street Poway, CA 92064 858-676-5382 www.Tek84.com



4r"kB4 Quote

Please see the quotation below for the Tek84 lntercept Body scanner with oPTloNS:

Aptil 19,2024

Quote:2023-4-08

ATTN: Lt. Scott
lnyo County Sheriff's Department

55 S. Clay St.

lndependence, CA 93526

760-878-0322

Ext PricePart Number

1 SSD-018-0100 Tek84 lntercept Whole Body Security Scanning System s 139,000.00 s 139,000.00

I

1

OPTIONAT

1

0

0

1

1

INT-Shipping

INT-WARRANW

INT-INSTALL

INT-Training

ssD-018-9950

ssD-020-1000

5SD-020-1100

55D-017-2103

INT-EXT-WAR

This quote will expire on: O7h8l24

Delivered-at-place:

Terms:

Taxes:

Accepted By:

Printed Name and

High Strength Aluminum Unibody Frame. 106Kv Monoblock Oil

Cooled Generator. 34" x 72" x 90" (79" top removedl foot print. 4

Second Scan Time. variable Scanning Dosage from 0.25 uSv to 8.0

uSv

Tethered Ethernet Connected work Station with 27" Vertically

Mounted Touch Screen Monitor. PC with Win OS and (2) 1 TB HDD.

RAID, 1 million image storage capacity. Transportable on Built in

Heavy Duty Caster System, Corner Mounting Feet. 16 million Grey

Scale Levels. 110 V/60h2. lKva

Freight from San Dieto, CA to lndependence, CA 93526 I

One Year Parts and Labor on Entire System from Time of lnstallation

1/2 Day lnstallation
2.5 days Formal, classroom, on-site

1,s00.00 s

lncluded

lncluded
lncluded

20,000.00 s

13,000.00 s

2,000.00 s

1,900.00 s
8,000.00 s

1,500.00

20,000.00

1,900.00

40,000.00

L2,469.75

2L4,869.75

lcl Thermal Skin Temperature Sensor - FDA Tested

TekNET-Connects lntercept body scanners for data exchange,

dose compilation, image storage, and data back up

lntercept Manager - Software loaded on customer PC; Allows

remote Admin of body scanner system (Compliance/lntel)

TekREADER - Barcode Wristband Scanner

Additlonal Extended warranty - Per year, Per machine

Discounted at 540,000 for Five Years

s

s

s

s
s

L

5

subTotat

By execution of this agreement, an authorlzed signature, the customer agrees to the products specified subject to the terms

and conditions set forth in the agreement and subject to Tek84 and conditions available at www.Tek84'com.

Tax@7.75% 9

Total Ilndependence, CA 93526

Net 30

circle one Exemption certificate attached

lrcpared by:

Brian Amos - Western Regional Sales Manager

?"*- 4-^
brian.amos@tek84.com | (916) 605-0733

Authorized

13495 Gregg Street Poway, CA 92064 858-676-5382 www.Tek84.com

4/L9/2024



4rbkB4 Quote

Please see the quotation below for the Tek84 lntercept Body Scanner

Aptil 29, 2024

Quote: 2023-4-08

ATTN: Lt. Scott

lnyo County Sheriff's DePartment

55 S. Clay st.

lndependence, CA 93526

760-878-0322

Ext Price

1 SSD-018-0100 Tek84 lntercept Whole Body 5ecurity Scanning System s 139,000.00

1,500.00 I

lncluded

lncluded

lncluded

20,000.00 s

13,000.00 5

2,000.00 s

1,900.00 s
8,000.00 s

139,000.00

1,500.00

High Strength Aluminum Unibody Frame. 106Kv Monoblock oil

cooled Generator. 34" x72" X 90" (79" top removed) foot print 4

Second Scan Time. Variable Scanning Dosage from 0.25 usv to 8 0

uSv

Tethered Ethernet Connected Work Station with 27" Vertically

Mounted Touch Screen Monitor. PC with Win OS and (2) 1TB HDD.

RAID. 1 million image storage capacity. Transportable on Built in

Heavy Duty Caster System. corner Mounting Feet 16 million Grey

Scale Levels. 110 V/60h2. lKva

Freight from san Die8o, CA to lndependence, CA 93526 S

One Year Parts and Labor on Entire System from Time of lnstallation

1/2 Day lnstallation

2.5 days Formal, classroom, on-site

OPTIONAL

L

I

7

I

0
4

I NT-Shipping

INT.WARRANTY

INT-INSTALL

INT-Training

ssD-018-9950

ssD-020-1000

ssD{20-1100

ssD-017-2103

INT-EXT.WAR

Accepted By:

Printed Name and

0

0

0

lcl Thermal Skln Temperature Sensor - FDA Tested

TekNET-Connects lntercept body scanners for data exchange,

dose compilation, image storage, and data back up

lnt€rcept Manager - Software loaded on customer PC; Allows

remote Admin of body scanner system {Compliance/ntel}
TekREADER - Barcode Wristband Scanner

Addftional Extended Watranty - Per year, Per machlne 32,000.00

Prepared by:

Brian Amos - Western Regional Sales Manager

9^* /4*b 4/zs/2024
brian.amos@tek84.com I {916) 606-0733

s

s

s

5

5

By execution of this agreement, by an authorized signature, the customer agrees to purchase the products specified subiect to the terms

and conditions set forth in the agreement and subject to Tek84 and conditions available at www'Tek84.com.

Thls quote will expire on: 07/28/24 fa\@7'75% i IO'772'SO

Delivered-at-place: lndependence, CA 93526 Total $ 183,272'50

Terms: Net 30

Taxes: Circle one Exemption certificate attached

Authorized Signature-

13495 Gregg Street Poway, CA 92064 858-676-5382 www.Tek84.com



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Tek84 lnc,

FOR THE PROVISION
nce SERVICES

F

the maintenance and installation services of Tek84 lnc'

of powav, CA . (nereinatter referred to as "Contractor"), and in consideration of

the mutual promises, covenants, terms, and conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") may have the need for

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPEOFWORK.

of absence
The total sum of all payments made by the

D
under this Ag reement shall not exceed

County to
two and fiftv Dollarseioht h red

Services and work provided by the Contractor at the County's request under this Agreement will be

performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and standards established by applicable federal,

state, and county laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. such laws, ordinances, regulations' and

resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement'

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be from June 25,2024 to JUne 30. 2029

unless sooner terminated as provided below'

3. CONSIDERATION.

of any type or kind whatsoever.
Limit unon amount oavable undgr Aorgement

coniffiservices and work Performed

A. Comoensation. County shall pay to Contractor in accordance with the Schedule of Fees

(set forth ", 
ntt"cnment By for the services and work described in Attachment A which are performed by

Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travel and per dieF. contractor will not be paid or reimbursed for travel expenses or per

diem which Contractor incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement'

C. No additionaf consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Contractor

shallnotbeentitledto@nty.anyaddrtional.consideration,compensation'salary,wageS'
or other type of remuneration for services renolreo under this Agreement. specifically, contractor shall not

be entifled, by virtue of this Agreement, to consideration in the forir of overtime, health insurance benefits'

retirement benefits, oisaoilitvietiremeni benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves

follows:

scanner

One red e stx

05t2112019

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116

(lndePendent Contractor)
Page I



186,872.50 (hereinafter referred to as "contract limit") County expressly

or reimbursement requested by Contractor for services or workreserves the right to deny any payment
performed which is in excess of the contract limit.' E. Billino and oavment. Contractor shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized

statement ot att servE6S?iffiT[ oescribed in Attachment A, which were done at the County's request. This

statement will be submitted to the County not later than the fifth (sth) day of the month. The statement to be

submitted will cover the period from theiirst (1st) day of the preceding month through and including the last

day of the preceding month. This statement will identify the date on which the services and work were

performed and desciibe the nature of the services and work which were performed on each day. Upon timely

receipt of the statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Contractor on the

last day of the month.
F. Federaland State taxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not withhold any federal

or state income taxes or social security from any payments made by County to Contractor under the terms

and conditions of this Agreement.
(2) County will withhold California State income taxes from payments made under this

Agreement to non-California iesident independent contractors .when it is anticipated that total annual

pjyments to Contractor under this Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars

($1,499.00)
(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes or

payments from sums paid by County to Contractor under this Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other

asiessments on such iums is the sole responsibility of Contractor. County has no responsibility or liability for

payment of Contractor's taxes or assessments.
(4) The total amounts paid by County to Contractor, and taxes withheld from payments

to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the lnternal Revenue Service and the California

State Franchise Tax Board. To facilitate tlris reporting, Contractor shall complete and submit to the County

an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE,

Contractor's obligation is to perform, in a timely manner, those seruices and work identified in

Attachment A which are requested by the County. lt is understood by Contractor that the performance of

these services and work will require a varied schedule. Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will

coordinate with County to ensure that all services and work requested by County under this Agreement will

be performed within the time frame set forth by County,

5. REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, municipal

governments, for contractor to provide the services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by

bontractor and be valid at the time Contractor enters into this Agreement or as othenrvise may be required.

Further, during the term of this Agreement, Contractor must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permits

in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's licenses,

professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permits will be

frocured and maintained in force by Contractor at no expense to the County, Contractor will provide County,

lpon execution of this Agreement, with evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and permits which

are required to perform t[e seryices identified in Attachment A. Where there is a dispute between Contractor

and County as to what licenses, certificates, and permits are required to perform the services identified in

Attachmeni A, County reserves the right to make such determinations for purposes of this Agreement.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page2 05121t2019



B. Gontractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for

debarment, declared in"ilgiol", or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any

federal department oi .g'"n"y. Contractoi also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from

receiving iederal funds is tisteo in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-

procureirent programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: http://www'sam-oov'

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT' ET CETERA'

Contractor shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and

telephone service as is necessary for Contractor to provide the services identified in Attachment A to this

Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Contractor, for any expense or cost incurred by

Contractor in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for the costs and expenses incurred by

Contractor in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Contractor'

7. COUNTYPROPERTY.

A, personal prooertv of Countv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective or

safetydevices,@keyi,.etc'providedtoContractorbyCoun$pursuanttothis
Agreement are, and at ihe termination of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of county'

Contractor will use reasonable care to proteit, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in

Contractor's possession. Contractor will be financially-responsible for any loss or damage to such items,

partial or total, which is the result of Contractor's negligence'
B. producis olContractols Work and Services. Any and allcompositions, publications, plans,

designs,speciticrocesses,photographs,slides,.videotapes,computer
progi"r., computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual

ireientatrons, 
'exhibits, reporti, studies, works 6t art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or

intellectual properties of 
"ny 

kind which are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,-

froouct, or manifestation of, Contractor's seryices or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination of

ini, ngreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of the County. At the termination of the Agreement,

ContrJctor will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE.
For the duration of this Agreement Contractor shall procure and maintain insurance of the scope

and amount specified in Attachment C and with the provisions specified in that attachment-

9. STATUSOFCONTRACTOR.

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating to the performance of this

Agreement, shall be performed as independent contractors, and not as agents, officers, or employees of

County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of

County. Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility to

exercise any rights or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Contractor is to be

considered an employee of County. lt is understood by both contractor and county that this Agreement shall

not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a

joint venture. As an independent contractor:

A. Contractor shall determine the method, details, and means of performing the work and

services to be provided by Contractor under this Agreement'
B. Contractrcr shall be responsible td County only for the requirements and results specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's

controiwith respect to the physical action br activities of Contractor in fulfillment of this Agreement'

C. Contracio'r, 
'its igents, officers, and employees are, and at all times during the term of this-

Agreement shall, represent and Ionduct themselves as'independent contractors, and not as employees of

County.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 116
(lndePendent Contractor)

Page 3 o5t21t2019



10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify County and its officers, officials, employees

and volunteers from and against any and all liability, loss, damage, expense, costs (including without

limitation costs and fees of-litigationi of every natuie arising out of or in connection with Contractor's

performance of work hereund6r or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in the

agreement, except such loss or damages which was caused by the sole negligence or willful misconduct

of the County.

11. RECORDS AND AUDIT.

A. Recsrds. Contractor shall prepare and maintain all records required by the various

provisions of tnilg-ement, federal, state, county, municipal, ordinances, regulations, and directions'

bontractor shall mainlain these records for a minimum of four (4) years from the termination or completion of

this Agreement. Contractor may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by

substiiute photographs, microphotographs, or other authentic reproduction of such records.

B. -tn;pe;tons ;nO . Any authorized representative of County shall have access to any

books,documefficluding,butnotlimitedto,financialrecordsofContractor,which
County determines to be pertinent to this Agreement, for the pulposes of making audit, evaluation,

examihation, excerpts, and iranscripts during th-e period such records are to be maintained by Contractor.

Further, County nas ine right, at all reasoiable iimes, to audit, inspect, or othenruise evaluate the work

performed or being performed under this Agreement.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the per-formance of this Agreement, Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees shall not

unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for

employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national

origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Contractor and its agents'

officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act

(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and the applicable regulations promulgated thereunder in the

California Code of Regulations. Contractor shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P. L. 88-

352) and all amendments thereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to

Contractor thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to cancel. Contractor may cancel this Agreement

without cause, and at will, for any reason whatsoever by giving thirty (30) days written notice of such intent to

cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This is an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has relied upon the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not

assign or subcontract this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express written consent of County'

Further, Contractor shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the prior

written consent of CountY.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 4 o5t2112019



15. DEFAULT.

lf the Contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by

County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct the work and services as required by

County, County may declare the Contractor in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days written

notice to Contractor. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Contractor all amounts owing to

Contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termtnation

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any

subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver

of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of the terms of this

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below'

17. CONFIDENTIALITY.

Contractor further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laws,

regulations, and ordinancei providing that information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by

contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,

or confidential. contractor agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such

confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by contractor only with the express wriften

consent of the county. Any disclosure of confidential information by contractor without the county's written

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all respects'

Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social

services are confidential and are to be protected from unauthorized disclosure in accordance with ritle 45'

code of Federal Regulations section 20s.s0, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountability Act of '1996,

and sections 10850 and 14100.2 0f the welfare and lnstitutions code, and regulations adopted pursuant

thereto. For the purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elements pedaining to

beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider from unauthorized disclosure'

18. CONFLICTS.

Contractor agrees that it has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which

would conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of the work and services under this Agreement'

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Contractor agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained

from the county in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,

gain, or enhancement. Further, Contractor agrees for a perrod of lwo years after the termination of this

Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any entity, association, corporation, or person who'

during the term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest with the County, or who has

been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Contractor by virtue of this

Agreement has gained access to the County's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 5 0512112019



20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or application thereof to any person or circumstance shall be

declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any federal, state, or

county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application

thereof, shall not be invalidated thereby and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the

provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of county to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.

ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources, County has the

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying

Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of availabb funding. Any reduction or modification of

this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-two

(22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted from, by the mutual

consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in written form and executed with the same

formalities as this Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain continuity.

23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to this Agreement, including

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement, which Contractor or County shall be

required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of lnyo
Office of the Sheriff Attn: Sgt. Maik Smittl

-550 S. Clav Street, P.O. Drawer S 
.

Department
Address
Ci$ and State

Name
Address
City and State

cA 93526

Contractor:
Tek84 : Brian Amos
13495 Greqg Street
Powav, CA 92064

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducements,

promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incorporated herein by

reference, shall be of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writing executed by the parties hereto

ltt llll

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No 116
(lndePendent Contractor)

Page 6 05t2112019



By

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Tek84, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF whole body scanner sYstem , training and maintenance SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS

THIS DAY OF

COUNTY OF INYO CONTRACTOR

9rr*- 4^^
Signature Signature

Print or Type Name Print or Type Name

Dated L
Dated;

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING FORM

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

&a'tp*{"Mry

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No. 116

(lndePendent Contractor)
Page 7

County Risk Manager

o5t21t2019



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND Tek84, lnc.

FOR THE PROV|S|ON OF whole body scanner system, training and maintenance

TERM:

FROM . June 1 8,2024 TO: 
June 30'2029

SGOPE OF WORK:

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 116
(lndependent Contractor)

Page 8

SERVICES

05t21t2019



ATTACHMENTA

Contractor shatt provide a Whote Body Security Scanning System ("body scanner")to the County

that meets the foltowing specifications:

- Tek84 tntercept Whote Body Security Scanning System

-High strength Atuminum Unibody Frame. 106Kv Monoblock Oit cooted Generator. 34" x72" x90"

(79" top removed)foot print. 4 second Scan Time. Variable Scanning Dosage from 0 25 usvto B 0

uSv.

-Tethered Ethernet Connected Work Station with 2T" Verticatty Mounted Touch Screen Monitor.

pC with Win OS and {2) 1TB HDD. RAID. 1 mittion image storage capacity. Transportabte on Buitt in

Heavy Duty Caster System. Corner Mounting Feet. 16 mittion Grey Scate Levets. 11OV/60h2. 1 Kva

- lnctudes f reight f rom San Diego, CA to lndependence, CA 93526

- One Year Parts and Labor on Entire System from Time of instattation

- 1/2Day instatlation

- Four year additionaI extended warranty

Contractor shatt provide training to lnyo County Sheriff Department staff on the use and operation

of the body scanner. This training shattconsist of 2.5 days of on-site ctassroom training in

lndependence, CA.

Contractor shatt provide annuaI body scanner service, which inctudes the fottowing:

- Coverage of att repair parts, tabor, and shipping as needed for the continuous operation of the

body scanner

- One (1) Preventative Maintenance visit for the purpose of review, inspection, and potentiat

reptacement of att "wear"components prior to their end of tife. Software system review to assure

the system is operating at the tatest tevet of software. This appties to any software upgrades that do

not atso require hardware upgrades and is a courtesy check. Any software change made witt be

authorized and reviewed with customer before doing so.

- One (1) Radiation Safety Survey of the lntercept as required by ANSI regutations and California

Iaw.

contractor shatt provide warranty and support for the body scanner per the fotlow terms:

- lnitiat warranty and support shatt be provided for 1 year from the instattation date. lnitial' warranty

and Support inctudes: (i) instattation. (ii) initiat operator training , (iii) 24- 7 technicaI phone support



(iv) on-site repair during normaI working hours; (v) reptacement parts; (vi) tabor expense; (vii)travet

expenses and (viii)annuat preventative maintenance inspection inctuding radiation survey.

- Buyer may purchase Continuing Warranty and Support Services from Selter prior to the expiration

of the tnitiat Warranty and Support.

- lnitiat and Continuing Warranty and Support shatt not appty to any products or parts of products

which have been (a) repaired or altered by any party other than authorized Sell'er, (b) subjected to

misuse, negtigence, or accident, inctuding, without [imitation, physicat damage to the outer

enctosure, internaI damage by physicat breaching of the outer enctosure, dropping or overturning

the apparatus, damage to the touchscreen monitor, acts of God such as earthquake, ftood, buitding

cottapse, and vermin infestation, damage by unauthorized service personnet, or intentional or other

gross damage outside the scope of normaI operation, or, (c) used in a manner or apptication other

than recommended bY Setter.

- Extended Warranty/Service Agreement shatt inctude, on an annuaI basis:

1 . Coverage of att repair parts, [abor, and shipping as needed for the continuous operation of the

body scanner

2. One (1) Preventative Maintenance visit for revieq inspection, and potentiaI reptacement of att

"wear" compongnts

before their end of tife.

3. Software System review to enSure the System is operating at the tatest tevet of software. This

appties to software

upgrades that do not require hardware upgrades and is a courtesy check. Any software change

made wil.t be

authorized and reviewed with the customer before doing so.

4. One (1) Radiation safety survey of the body scanner as required by ANSI regutations and

Catifornia [aw.



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND TecB4. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF whole bodY scanner sYstem, training and maintenance SERVICES

TERM:

,pg*. June 25, 2024 June 30,2029

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Tekg4 rntercept whore Body security scanning system - $139,000 (incrudes one ye.ar parts and rabor on the entire

system from time ot instattaiio n, 112 day instaliitLn, i.s c.yr formal'classroom training in lndependence' cA)

Freight from San Diego, CA to lndependence, CA 93526 - $1'500

Four year additional extended warranty/service agreement - $8,900 per year for a total of $35'600 (4 years)

lnyo County sales tax @7 15% - $10,772'54

Total contract price for all of the above = $186,872'50

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No 116

(lndePendent Contractor)
Page 9 05t2112019



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND TEK84 lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION OF whole bodv scanner training and maintenance

TERM:

FROM, 
Jrn" ?5, 

2024 June 30, 2029

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 116
(l ndePendent Contractor)

Page 10

SERV|CES

05t21t2019



Attachme ntz 2O24 Insurance Requirements for
SUPPLIERS / VENDORS WITH TRAINING AND/OR MAINTENANCE

Vendor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to

persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with products and materials

supplies to lnyo county. The cost of such insurance shall be borne by the Vendor'

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability: Coverage shall be at least as broad as lnsurance Services Office Form

CG 00 01 covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations,

property damage, bodily injury and personal & advertising injury, with limits no less than

51,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit

shall apply separately to this project/location (lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate

limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit'

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services office Form Number cA 0001 covering any auto (code

1), or if Contractor has no owned autos, covering hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9),

with limit no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage'

3. Workers, Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,

and Employer,s Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily

injury or disease.

lf the Vendor maintains broader coverage andlor higher limits than the minimums shown ahove, lnyo

county requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the

contractor, Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and

coverage shall be available to lnyo County'

Setf-tnsured Retentions:Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County' lnyo

County may require the Vendor to purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability to

pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention'

The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention maY be

satisfied by either the named insured or lnyo County'

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contaln, the following provisions:

Additional Insured status: lnyo county, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered

as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations

performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in connection

with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement

to the Vendor,s insurance at least as broad as lSo Form cG 20Lo1'1' 85 or if not available, through the

addition of both cG 20 LO, cG 2A 26, cG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 i'f a later edition is used.

primory Coveroge: For any claims related to this contract, the Vendor's insurance coverage shall be

primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20OL0413 as respects lnyo County, its

officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo county'

its officers, officials,'employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Vendor's insurance and shall not

contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies'

county of tnyo tnsurance standards for suppltERs/vENDoRs with training/maintenan ce - 20240528/ah



Attachme ntt 2O24 Insurance Requirements for
suPPttERS / VENDORS WITH TRAINING AND/OR MAINTENANCE

Notice of Concellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be

canceled, except with notice to lnyo County'

Acceptdbitity of lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the

state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County'

IJmbrella or Excess policy:The Vendor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability limits

as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that allof the-Primary

and Umbrella or Excess pOliCies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required, including, but

not limited to, primary and noncontributory, additional insured, self-lnsured Retentions (slRs), indemnity,

and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true "following form"

or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying commercial

General liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional lnsureds, whether primary

or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to contribute to a loss

until the Vendor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted'

verification of coverage: Vendor shalt furnish lnyo county with original certificates and amendatory

endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause' All

certificates and endorsements and copies of all Declarations and Endorsements pages are to be received

and approved by Inyo county before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required

documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Vendor's obligation to provide them' lnyo

County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including

endorsements required by these specifications, at any time'

Waiver of Subrogation: Vendor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which

any insurer of said Vendor may acquire against lnyo county by virtue of the payment of any loss under

such insurance. The Vendor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver

of subrogation, butthis provision applies regardless of whetheror not lnyo county has received a waiver

of subrogation endorsement from the insurer'

Speciat Risks or Circumstdnces: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including

limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other specialcircumstances'

County of tnyo tnsurance Standards for SUPPLIERS/VENDORS with training/maintenan ce - 2024a528/ah



Body Scanner Contract
Final Audit Report 2024-06-20

Created: 2024-06-20

By: Riannah Reade (rreade@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAB1g78PD3tGAbhy7_QRxobAepXOVoEosH

"Body Scanner Contract" History
Document created by Riannah Reade (rreade@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-20 - 9:45:26 PM GMT

Document emailed to Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-20 - 9:46:34 PM GMT

Email viewed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-20 - 9:46:46 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-20 - 9:46:59 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Document emailed to Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-20 - 9:47:01 PM GMT

Email viewed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-20 - 9:47:28 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Keri Oney (koney@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-20 - 9:48:08 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-06-20 - 9:48:08 PM GMT



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-367  

 

Inyo County Jail Security and Camera System 
Sheriff 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Office of the Sheriff Shane Scott, Lieutenant 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve and award the contract for the Inyo County Jail Security and Camera Project to Integrated 
Security Controls, Inc. (ISC) of Santa Rosa, CA, in an amount not exceeding $1,234,770, and enter into 
standard county contract 116 for the period of June 25, 2024 through project completion, contingent 
upon approval of future budgets, and authorize the Sheriff or designee to sign any documents needed for 
the project. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Inyo County Sheriff's Office has been working diligently to upgrade the security system at the Inyo 
County Jail in order to improve the safety of staff and occupants of the Inyo County Jail facility.  The 
Sheriff's Office initiated a formal procurement process, and a committee of Inyo County employees 
evaluated the RFP responses. Integrated Security Controls, Inc. scored the highest and was the least 
costly.   
 
Responses to the RFP were as follows: 
 
ICS base price was $1,152,996 
                Alternate 1 was replacing the Tower Control Console was an additional $81,774 
                We scored this at 70,81,78, & 79 out of 100. 
 
Siemens base price was $2,125,0000 
                Add Alt. – for cable certification – Fiber/Copper was an additional $25,000 
                We scored this at 70,73, 69, & 68 out of 100. 
 
Sierra Security base price was $2,111,432.62 
                We scored this at 39, 31, 44, & 40 out of 100. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
in 
 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund CCP (AB109) funds Budget Unit 022706 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code 5700 
Recurrence One-Time Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
$900,000 encumbered to start work in fiscal year 2023-2024 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
$334,770 encumbered to complete work in fiscal year 2024-2025 
Additional Information 
The CCP Board authorized an estimate of $900,000 for the Jail Security Project in April 2023, prior to 
the (RFP) request for proposal process was completed. All the (RFP) responses exceeded the 
estimated $900,000. In June 2024, the CCP Board authorized the additional amount $334,770 for the 
project. 
Although money will be encumbered and some work started in June 2024, expenses will mostly occur 
during the next fiscal year, 2024-2025 and is included in the preliminary budget. The vendor will invoice 
the County monthly for work completed. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could reject the bid and direct staff to initiate a new process. This is not recommended as 
Integrated Security Controls was selected as the vendor after following a full procurement process and 
the selected proposal fully meets the County's needs and requirements for this project. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. ISC Scoring Sheets 
2. ICS Proposal 
3. Jail Security Contract - signed-1 
  
APPROVALS: 
Riannah Reade Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Riannah Reade Approved - 6/19/2024 
Grace Chuchla Approved - 6/20/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/20/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/20/2024 
Nate Greenberg Approved - 6/20/2024 
Stephanie Rennie Final Approval - 6/20/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1o

Request for Proposat (RFP) Score Sheet

Project Titte: Jait security, controt Boards, and Video Surveitlance system

Evaluator Name: A \,,\o.n\ J-\{nar q.) U

Company Name: Co o*.\

Date: 6\ L^

.L -)-
Criteria 1: Technicat Specifications (30 points)

1.1 Compl.iance with Jaitsecurity Standards (10 points) 3-
r Does the proposal, meet at[ necessary security standards required for a jait environment?

r Are the proposed systems capabte of ensuring secure operations within the jail' facitity?

1 .2 Controt Board Functionatity (10 points) q

. How wett does the proposat address the controt board requirements specified in the RFP?

r Does the proposed controt board offer the necessary functional'ities for effective jait

management and controt?

1 .3 Video Surveitl.ance System Quatity (10 points) 5

.Whatisthequatityoftheproposedvideosurveittancesystem?

. Does it provide high-definition video footage, sufficient coverage, and advanced features

such as motion detection and remote access?

ro a
Criteria 2: Cost and Vatue (2O points) b
2.1 cost Competitiveness (#points) $-\

.lstheproposedcostreasonabl'eandcompetitiveincomparisontomarketstandards?

. Does the proposat offer vatue for money considering the features and functionatities

Provided?
6

2.2Long-term Vatue (14 Points) /-

r How does the proposed sotution demonstrate tong-term vatue, incl'uding factors such as

ma i ntenance costs, scatabitity, and u pgrad eabitity?

Criteria 3: Vendor Experience and Reputa tion?lOpoints) - 3 O

I

3.1 Vendor ExPerience (@ Roints; Qszo



. What is the vendor's experience in providing security sotutions for jaitfacitities?

. Have they successfutty imptemented simitar projects in the past?

3.2 Reputation and References (10 pointsl lb
. What is the reputation of the vendor in the industry?

. Are there positive references or testimoniats f rom previous cLients that speak to the

vendor's retiabitity and quatity of service?

-4
Criteria 4: lmptementation Ptan and Support (20 points) - \ b
4.1 lmptementation Timel.ine (t O points) 4

. Does the proposat inctude a reatistic and detaited timetine for the imptementation of the

security system?

rArekeymitestonesanddetiverabtescteartyouttined?

 .2frainingand Support (10 points) 6

. What provisions are made for training jait staff in using the security and surveittance

systems?

. Does the proposat.incLude comprehensive support services, such as maintenance'

troubteshooting, and technicat assistance?

criteria 5: Innovation and Future Readiness (10 points) - b

5.1 lnnovative Features (5 points) 2

r Does the proposat incl.ude any innovative features or technotogies that differentiate it from

standard securitY sotutions?

5.2 Future Readiness (5 Points) \

r How wett does the proposed sotution adapt to future advancements and changes in

secu ritY req ui rements?

Total, Score 1O out of 1oo

de\en\.orr \**\\.el' SAV \w-
Comments: LoY 6V err-\crren Le Bero\ \:b

\ {\te
c-,\\"o\A 'Ak- k\ qv\ o

\J a-$6

Cqore-vc^,5 2)n co.tA bc- Vc-\te-l'

Ad*tei *\t^ \\^o\{ \\^nA' S.'Fe$Is \toe- trd
---"-+\ \c"r o\e

U
a\t-n hrn kD |t"z- fTP P i - e'r l'ht{ nap onea Jo" onlF V-I ('e

^\rl&d



af//t / z" z4

0feu_D -- ' - 

6i, ll{6 il'+'

Request for Proposat (RFP) Score Sheet

Secu rity, Controt Board s, and Video Su rvei tta nceProject Title: Jait

c-TyEvalualor Name:
0"o,n0"n, 

Name:

System

( c> NYiLoLt 7 lt C
I

7:f

Date:

Criteria 1: Technicat Specifications (30 points)

1.1 Comptiance with Jaitsecurity Standards (10 points) Q

. Does the proposat meet at[ necessary security standards required for a jait environment?

r Are the proposed systems capabte of ensuring secure operations within the jait facitity?

1 .2 Controt Board Functionatity (10 points) q

r How wetl. does the proposat address the controt board requirements specified in the RFP?

r Does the proposed controt board offer the necessary functionatities for effective jait

management and contro[?

1 .3 Video Surveil'tance System Quatity (10 points) 6

oWhatisthequatityoftheproposedvideosurveil'tancesystem?

r DoeS it provide high-definition video footage, sufficient coverage' and advanced features

such as motion detection and remote access?

tC
Criteria 2: Cost and Vatue (!O points)

C-

2.1 Cost Competitiveness (lQ points) I
. ls the proposed cost reasonabte and competitive in comparison to market standards?

. Does the proposat offer vatue for money considering the features and functionaLities

Provided? S
2.2Long-term Value (\O Points) Z

. How does the proposed solution demonstrate long-term value, incl'uding factors such as

mai ntena nce costs, sca La bitity, and u pgradea bi I'ity?

Lqt

Criteria 3: Vendor Experience and Reputation

3.1 Vendor Experience fffoint.l tt

Y
ifu points)



5

. what is the vendor's experience in providing security sotutions for jait facitities?

. Have they successfutty imptemented simitar projects in the past?

3.2 Reputation and References (10 points) ?'

r What is the reputation of the vendor in the industry?

o Are there positive references or testimoniats from previous ctients that speak to the

vendor's retiabitity and qual'ity of service?

Criteria 4: lmptementation Ptan and Support (20 points)

4.1 lmptementation Timetine (10 points) 4

. Does the proposat inctude a reatistic and detail,ed timetine for the imptementation of the

securitY system?

.Arekeymitestonesanddetiverabtescteartyouttined?

4.2Trainingand Support (10 points) {,

. What provisions are made for training jait staff in using the security and surveitlance

systems?

. DoeS the proposat inctude comprehensive suppOrt Services' such as maintenance'

troubteshooting, and technical' assistance?

Criteria 5: lnnovation and Future Readiness (10 points)

5.1 lnnovative Features (5 points) 3

o Does the proposat inctude any innovative features or technotogies that differentiate it f rom

sta ndard secu ritY solutions?

5.2 Future Readiness (5 Points) J
o How wett does the proposed sol,ution adapt to future advancements and changes in

securitY req uirements?

b

TotaI Score:

Comments:

B-]-out or 1oo



tfr

Request for Proposat (RFP) Score Sheet

Project Titte: Jait Security, Controt Boards, and Video Surveittance System

Evatuator Name: cb( c2x-

Company Name: I Lq-
L

Date:

cr?a\^t i l-\C*

t

Griteria 1: Technicat Specifications (30 points)

1 .1 Comptiance with Jaii Security Standards (10 points) tO

oDoestheproposatmeeta[[necessarysecurityStandardSrequiredforajail'environment?

.AretheproposedSystemscapabteofensuringSecureoperationSwithinthejaitfacitity?

1 .2 Control, Board Functionatity (10 point 'l 7

oHoWwettdoestheproposataddressthecontrotboardrequirementsspecifiedintheRFP?

r Does the proposed controt board offer the necessary functionatities for effective jait

management and control?

1.3 Video Surveitl'ance System Quatity (t o points) 7

.Whatisthequatityoftheproposedvideosurveitl'ancesystem?

rDoesitprovidehigh-definitionvideofootage,sufficientcoverage'andadvancedfeatures
such as motion detection and remote access?

t0
Criteria 2: Cost and Vatue gldpoints;

2.1 cost competitiveness dpoints) 5

o ls the proposed cost reasonable and competitive in comparison to market standards?

o Does the proposat offer vatue for money considering the features and f unctionatities

provided?

2.2 Long-term Va tue (5Q.poi nts) -_1

o How does the proposed sotution demonstrate tong-term vatue' inctuding factors such as

maintenancecosts,scatabitity,andupgradeabitity?

20
Criteria 3: Vendor ExFerience and Reputation ()Qpoints)

3.1 Vendor Experience ()6 points) / 14



t-

.Whatisthevendor.sexperienceinprovidingsecuritysotutionsforjaitfacitities?

oHavetheysuccessfuttyimptementedsimitarprojectsinthepast?

3.2 Reputation and References (t O points) 6
o What is the reputation of the vendor in the industry?

. Are there positive references or testimoniats from previous cLients that speak to the

vendor's retiabitity and quatity of service?

Griteria 4: lmptementation Ptan and Support (20 points)

4.1 lmpl.ementation Timetine (t o points) 6
e Does the proposat inctude a real.istic and detaited timetine for the imptementation of the

security sYstem?

rArekeymitestonesanddeLiverabtesctearl'youtlined?

4.2frainingand Support (tO points) 0

o What provisions are made for training jait staff in using the security and surveittance

systems?

r Does the proposat inctude comprehensive support services, such as maintenance'

troubteshooting, and technicat assistance?

criteria 5: lnnovation and Future Readiness (10 points)

5.1 lnnovative Features (S points)j

r Does the proposat inctude any innovative features or technotogies that differentiate it from

standard securitY sotutions?

5.2 Future Readiness (S Points) 3
r How wett does the proposed sotution adapt to future advancements and changes in

secu ritY req u irements?

TotaI Score:

Comments:

70 ourorloo

lru)/14P{"trrH slqTw {v} p.y f,?-ft lft(lNk I 
La{1' tdzHt-rl t'rF



7q

Request for Proposat (RFP) Score Sheet

Project Titte: Jait Security, Controt Boards, and Video Surveittance System

Evatuator Name:

Company Name:

b arrie l,\ e Sorh^

Date: S a

Griteria 1: Technicat Specifications (30 points)

1.1 Comptiance with Jait Security Standards (10 points) &
. Does the proposat meet at[ necessary security standards required for a jait environment?

. Are the proposed systems capabte of ensuring secure operations within the jait facitity?

1.2 Controt Board Functionatity (10 pointtl S
. How wett does the proposat address the controt board requirements specified in the RFP?

. Does the proposed controI board offer the necessary functionatities for effective jait

management and controt?

1 .3 Video Surveil.tance System Quatity (10 points) -]-b
o what is the qual.ity of the proposed video surveiltance system?

. Does it provide high-definition video footage, sufficient coverage, and advanced features

such as motion detection and remote access?

Griteria 2: cost and value &Spoinrr)

2.1 Cost competitiveness ttflpointsl 5
o ls the proposed cost reasonabte and competitive in comparison to market standards?

. Does the proposat offer vatue for money considering the features and functionatities

provided?

2.2Long-term vatue tfpolntrl S
. How does the proposed sotution demonstrate tong-term vatue, inctuding factors such as

ma i ntena n ce costs, sca ta bi tity, a n d u pgrad ea bi tity?

h

Criteria 3: Vendor Experience and Reputation

3.1 Vendor Experience (o points) J-b
tffpoin*rt



. What is the vendor's experience in providing security sotutions for jait facitities?

. Have they successfutty imptemented simitar projects in the past?

3.2 Reputation and References (t O points) Y

r What is the reputation of the vendor in the industry?

o Are there positive references or testimoniats from previous ctients that speak to the

vendor's retiabitity and quatity of service?

!p-u t G-a€,hlq.r,-\ -
Griteria 4: lmptementation Ptan and Support (20 points)

4.1 lmptementation Timetine (t O points)-]

o Does the proposat inctude a reatistic and detaited timetine for the imptementation of the

securitY system?

. Are key mitestones and detiverabtes ctearty outtined?

4.2Trainingand Support (10 points) 5

. What provisions are made for training jait staff in using the security and surveittance

systems?

o Does the proposat inctude comprehensive support services, such as maintenance,

troubteshooting, and technicaI assistance?

Criteria 5: lnnovation and Future Readiness (10 points)

5.1 lnnovative Features (5 points) S 3
. Does the proposat inctude any innovative features or technologies that differentiate it from

standard secu ritY sotutions?

5.2 Future Readiness (s points)SLl

r How wett does the proposed sotution adapt to future advancements and changes in

security req uirements?

J 9 ou. or 1ooTotaI Score:

Gomments:



\- ,/ INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.

€

3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. S54031{7071455-6785 IFAX {707}455-6689

-/\
lntegrated Security Controls, lnc

3401 lndustrial Dr

DtR# 1000034990
ccL# 968432

Contact: John Pegram
joh n. peg ram @icscontrols. net
(707) 455-6781

515124

Jarad Regan
jarad. regan @icscontrols. net
(707) 455-6782

Section 1

Cover Letter / Statement of Experience

The following proposal is in response to RFP #24-001-Jail, "Camera and Security

System Upgrades Project."

ISC is pleased to provide the attached proposal to provide the scope of work outlined in

RFP 24-001-Jail.

ISC specializes in detention facility security systems and has performed successful

upgrade/retrofit projects of similar scope for Yuba County as well as Humboldt,

Mendocino, Lassen, Stanislaus, Contra Costa, Sonoma and Amador counties. We

understand the unique challenges that come with working in a secured facility and have

the knowledge and experience required to the best possible service while minimizing

impact on operations during construction. All of our past customers are very satisfied

with our work and for the sites that are no longer under warranty, each has chosen to

continue working with us through an annual maintenance contract. We view all of our

projects as a long term commitment to taking the best possible care of our customers

and look forward to continuing to work with lnyo County.

lntegrated Security Controls, lnc.

John Pegram
President

E/s/z"(



SIGNATURE AFFIDAVIT

NAMEOF

STREET

zlP

CONTACT

FAX#:

lntegrated Security Controls, lnc

3401 lndustrialDrive

Santa Rosa, CA 95403

John Pegram

707479-9954

john. peg ram@icscontrols. net

Government Code Section 6250 et.seq., the "Public Records Acf', define a public record as any writing

containing information relating to the conduct of public business. The Public Records Act provides that

public reJords shall be disclosid upon written request, and that any citizen has a right to inspect any public

record, unless the document is exempted from disclosure.

In signing this proposal, I certifu that this firm has not, either directly or indirectly, entered into any

ugr""L"nl o. putti"iput"d in any collusion or otherwise taken any action in reshaint of free competition; that

ni attempt has been-made to induce any other person or firm to submit or not to submit a proposal; that this

proposal has been independently arrived at without collusion with any other proposer, competitor or potential

tompetitor; that this proposal has not been knowingly disclosed prior to the opening of proposals to any

other proposer or competitor; that the above statement is accurate under penaltyof perjury.

The undersigned is an authorized representative of the above named firm and hereby agrees to all the terms,

conditions, and specifications required by the County in this Invitation to Bid and declares that the attached

proposal and pricing are in conformity therewith.

President &
Sign Title

John 5/4/2024

Name (type or print) Date

This firm herby acknowledges receip / review of the following addendum(s) (If any)

Ammendment to RFP 24-001-J AIJ-#



J\L

INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403 | (7071455-6789 | FAX (7071455'6689

Section III - Table of Contents

l- lntroductory Letter

ll - Signature Affidavit

lll - Table of Contents

lV - Business Profile

V - Proposed Services, Configurations, and Documentation

Vl - Cost

Vll - Project lmplementation Management

Vlll- References

lX - Evidence of lnsurability and Business Licenses

X - Compliance, Exceptions, Objections, and Requested Changes

Page 1

Page 2

Page 3

Page 4

Page 7

Page 12

Page 13

Page 15

Page 22

Page 23



\, INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
340J INOUSTRIAL ORIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403l(7071455-6789lFAX (7071455-6689

J,T \

Section IV - Business Profile

p

Companv Overuiew

lntegrated Security Controls lnc. (lSC) is a corporation located in Santa Rosa

California. ISC is focused on meeting the needs of California Adult and Juvenile

detention facility's Security Electronics needs. Since 2011,Integrated Security

Controls has done work for the Counties of Amador, Colusa, LaSSen, Humboldt,

Mendocino, Monterey, Sacramento, San Luis Obispo, Santa Cn)z, Solano, Sonoma,

Stanislaus, Ventura and Yuba. We provide state of the art, custom, non-proprietary

security electronics controls solutions to adult and juvenile detention facilities in

California, We are currently working on projects in Contra Costa, Stanislaus,

Fresno, Colusa, Mendocino and Yuba Counties. We currently have 17 employees

working on these projects. Staffing levels range between 17 to 30 employees

depending on the number of projects in house.

ISC started in 2O11 as lntegrated Control Systems, LLC (lCS). lt was determined

that an S Corp would be a better structure for the company, so in 2015, the change

was made. The name "lntegrated Control Systems, Inc" was not available as an S

Corp, so the name was changed to Integrated Security Controls, lnc'

Q u alifi cati on s and E-peri en ce

John Pegram, Owner of lntegrated Control Systems, received his degree in

Electrical Engineering (BSEE) from California State University, Fresno (Fresno

State) in 1994, and has done Security Electronics Controls for detention facilities in

California and Washington State for his entire 30 year career. John holds C7 and

C10 contractors licenses and is also a Registered Communications Distribution

Designer (RCDD) with BlCSl.

Jarad Regan is the Operations Manager for lntegrated Security Controls. He is in

charge of Engineering and Service for lSC. Jarad has studied Engineering at UC

Davis, and Law at Ohio State University. He has been performing and managing jail

controls upgrades since 2014.

4



INTEGRATED SECURITV CONTROLS, INC.
3401 INDUSTRTAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403 l(707)455-678S I FAX {707}455'668S

^l'\

ISC has installed a complete integrated PlC/Touchscreen Control Systems for

several California Counties including Yuba, Colusa, Humboldt, Amador, Lassen and

Mendocino County Jails with door control, intercom, analog to digital video

conversion for existing surveillance cameras, lP camera installation, and video

retention for one year.

LegallLitigation
ISC has not had any legal action in our history

Fraud
Nothing to report

Debarmenfs. Suspensions and others
Nothing to report

Wolations
Nothing to report

Controllinq or Financial lnterest
John Pegram is the 100% owner of lntegrated Security Controls, lnc. ISC doEs not 

_ _

have dny ownership of other companies. No other Company has any ownership in ISC

Qualitv Control
ISC understands the challenges of working in an operating Correctional Facility. We

have strict tool management procedures that ensure that we are working in a manner

that minimizes the risk to our personnel as well as County Staff.

John Pegram and Jarad Regan will oversee the Engineering and Installation team for

this project. Stacy Pegram (The office manager) will handle all billing, insurance and

certification reporting requirements for the project.

ISC has 17 permanent employees with experience in performing or managing jail

control upgrades. As an IBEW union shop with IBEW local 551, ISC is able to hire

qualified field personnel as needed to complete large projects like the lnyo County Jail

upgrade.

5



\/ INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403l(7071455-6783 IFAX (7071455-66e9

-/ \-

Submittals will be provided to make sure the County understands the specifics of the

work that will be done, and the products that will be used.

Project communications will be directed through the proper designated channels to

ensure that allwork is done by means, methods, and on a schedule approved by the

County.

Any issues that arise from the view of the County would be reported to John Pegram,

who would communicate with the ISC team to resolve the issue.

6

6



\F

€

INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. S5403l{707}455-678S IFAX {707}455-66S9

Section V - Proposed Services, Configuration, and Documentation

Gamera Svstem

We propose using the Avigilon Control Center 7 Enterprise edition video management

system (VMS) with new Avigilon lP cameras to achieve the County's goals for this project.

Aviqilon Control Center 7 Enterprise

o Video retention for all cameras.

. Video will be recorded at 15 fps on motion, and at 1 fps all other times.

o RFP ltem #4 requires "7.5 up to 30 fps" as determined by Jail

personnel. For the purpose of this fixed cost bid we have

assumed all cameras will be recorded at 15fps. lf the average

frames per second across all cameras exceeds 15 fps there will

be additional cost.

. Full resolution video will be retained for 6 months.

o Low resolution video will be retained for an additional 18 months,

providing 24 months totalvideo retention.

o Ability to search for video by time, location and motion event and export video to

portable media including CD/DVD ROM, USB storage, or external drive for

investigation or use as evidence.

o Ability to watermark and export a secure video file for use as evidence.

o Additionalworkstations can be added anywhere on the network. Avigilon ACC

Enterprise permits an unlimited number of clients with no additional license required.

o Remote access is available through a web browser or iOS and Android applications.

o Requires connection to the internet / WAN. WAN connection is not

included and must be provided by County lT.

o H265 support in the VMS.

. Where camera cable is added, Cat 6 cable will be used.

o RFP ltem22 specifies "Cat 6E". Cat 6E is not an accepted TIA

standard, though it is used as a marketing term by some

manufacturers.

7



\. rF INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.

€

3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. 35403l(7071455-6789IFAX {707}455-668S

8\-
Video Workstations (Qtv 7)

o CentralControl

o Central Controlwill receive one workstation with two monitors.

o Booking

o Booking will receive one workstation with two monitors.

o Dispatch

o Dispatch will receive one workstation with one monitor

o Video workstations will consist of one Dell Precision 3460 tower and BenQ

24' 1O6OP monitors, qty as described above, running the Avigilon Control

Center 7 Client software.

o The Dellworkstations will have Windows 10, lntel Pentium i7 CPU, Radeon

GPU, SSD hard drive, and CD/DVD RW drives.

Avigilon HD-NVRS Premium (OtY 1)

o 96T8 of RAID 6 storage for performance and data redundancy. RAID 6 permits the

failure of 2 drives per disk array with no loss of data.

. Windows Server 2019 OS

o lntelXeon Processor.

o 16GB DDR4 RAM.

o Redundant Hot Swappable Power Supply.

ri

Stonefly Network Attached Storage

o 500TB Usable Storage SPace

o RAID 6 |SCSI network attached storage (NAS).

o RAID 6 with one hot spare per 12 drives for additional fault tolerance

. Can be expanded to allow additional storage in the future.

Aviqilon 2MP Domes

o 1080P resolution.

o On camera analytics to analyze video and trigger alarms.

o Low light capability.

o Outdoor, weather resistant (1P66) rated dome housing.

o Vandal resistant (1K10) for durability in a corrections environment.

8



.!tL\"
INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.

3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA FIOSA, CA.9$403 l{707}455-6789 | FAX (70714s5-668S

I power Over Ethernet (POE) provides power and data over a single cable to simplify

installation and maintenance, and reduce materials cost.

o Att cameras will reuse existing camera cables. lf any cables are found to have

existing damage, they will be replaced at additional cost'

Aviqilon 2MP PTZ

o 1080P resolution.

o 36 x Optical Zoom.

. Ability to create preset guard tours and other routines'

o On camera analytics to analyze video and trigger alarms.

o Low light capability.

o Outdoor, weather resistant (1P66) rated dome housing.

o Vandal resistant (1K10) for durability in a corrections environment.

o power Over Ethernet (POE) provides power and data over a single cable to simplify

installation and maintenance, and reduce materials cost.

Touchscreen Control Stations (TCS)

Touchscreen controlled workstations.
o ISC will provide seven complete TCS workstations

r Each will have a 32" touchscreen plus a 24" monitor to handle intercom call

ups.

r Workstations will be located in Central Control, Booking, Dispatch, and the

MedicalOffice.
o The TCS is a clienUserver based system. lt communicates with the other

systems via the lP network. The TCS serves as the access point to the Human

Machine lnterface System, or HMI System.

o New ELO lntellitouch technology 32" color HD 1080P touchscreen monitors will

be installed. ISC has used these monitors in several similar jailfacilities.

o Each TCS wil! have its own Dell Precision 3460 computer to run the HMI

application.
o Each TCS will receive a Harding Touchscreen Master Station to make and

receive intercom calls directly from the touchscreen.

o Surveillance video will be integrated with the intercom system to provide relevant

camera call ups for each intercom call.

o The Glient Computer will be supported by an Uninterruptible Power Supply (UPS)

sized to provide approximately 10 minutes of backup power, with the attached

load of the Client Computer and its associated TCS.

rl
d

o

s



INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRTAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403 | (7071455-6789IFAX {707}455-6689

.r\

Human Machine Interface Software (HMl)

o ISC proposes using lgnition by lnductive Automation, a Sacramento based company, as

the HMI software. lgnition is a server based, operating system agnostic HMI/SCADA
program that offers the flexibility, scalability, and power needed to control a jail. We have

used lgnition successfully in severalfacilities in Northern Californial. The lgnition license

includes an unlimited number of applications and client stations, allowing for future

expansion without the need to purchase additional licensing.
o lgnition will be hosted on redundant servers running linux OS software. The redundant

server configuration allows one server to take over in the event the other fails. This is

vital in facilities like a jailwhich require 100% uptime.
o ISC willwork with the county to develop an HMI application that meets the County's

needs. We will develop a theory of operations and work with the county to develop base

maps, touchscreen icons, and other HMI elements to work with the facility's operating

procedures. See Attachment 1 for a sample screenshot from an lgnition installation we

performed.

lntercom Svstem

The existing intercom head end hardware will be removed and replaced with Harding

digital intercom controllers.
o We propose using Harding 600 series VOIP intercoms to replace the existing analog

intercom stations.
o This proposal includes replacing existing intercom cable with Cat 6 cable to support

new VOIP intercoms.
Each new work station will receive a touchscreen master station to make and receive

intercom calls using the new TCS.

A Harding Paging Zone Expander (PZE-110) will be used to connect the existing paging

speakers with the new Harding head end.

Virtual Private Network (VPN)

ISC will provide a VPN for remote access to the video surveillance and controls system.

o This proposal includes a Ubiquiti Dream Machine Pro to establish a VPN.

o lf County lT requires specific hardware / software to create a VPN, there may be

additionalcost

\,

:*'r

o

o

a

o

1 Colusa, Mendocino, Lassen, Amador, Yuba, and Humboldt counties.

10



\/

€

INTEGRATED SECU RITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403117071455-6789IFAX 1707)455-668S

-/ \-
Air Conditioninq Unit

ISC will install a Tripp Lite SRCOOLTK rack mount air conditioning unit in the existing

central control rack.
o The AC unit will require 8U of rack space, and a dedicated 120V115A circuit.

Fiber Optic Backbone

ISC will install singlemode fiber between each of the switch locations being added as

part of this project.

a

o

11



\ INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3it01 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403l{707}455-6789 | FAX 1707}455-6689

Section VI - Cost

J\L

Base Price $1,152,996 (lncludes tax on Materials)

Alternate I
Replace Housing Control Console with Wlnsted SiUStand $81,774

12



th+ INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC
789 LOMBARDI CT. sTE. 204 SANTA ROSA, CA. 95407 I {707145s-67e9 | FAX {70714ss-6689

Section VII - Proiect Implementation Management

,$

^#' \

Project Approach

The first step will be to do further detailed field investigation in order to complete the design and

engineering of the new systems. Once engineering documents are complete, they will be

submitted to the County for review to make sure everyone is on the same page. Once

submittals are approved, materials will be ordered. While awaiting the arrival of materials,

raceway installation will proceed for backbone infrastructure. Once Backbone infrastructure is

in place, head end control equipment can be installed to support the new cameras and controls.

Work will be phased in such a way as to minimize downtime of any areas or systems.

ISC will coordinate all work with the jail staff to minimize downtime, ensure proper staffing, and

restore control functions as quickly as possible.

lmplementation Plan and Schedule

See Schedule on next page

Proiect Team Orqanization Ghart

John Pegram President - Administrative Project Manager

Jarad Regan Operations Manager - Project Manager

Blake Zuniga Electrical Engineer - Design/Programming

General Foreman TBD on award

Site Supervisor - TBD on Award

Proiect Control Document

Project Control documents will be provided upon award of Contract

lntegration of New Services

Training Plan to be provided on award of Project

13



,L

64 lqllqlqqlry
4d
4t s1hry
&r
rarr sr4ru
s. 5q-:o4{.

sr.
4r. Err&hrys

lrBgsrp'
lrrlryn&

q4 4Fa
4+! sqc+n*M4s
6h !r@64{.a

!

Mrnr4 l@ra! 4r!

*,orrMFF.+oasE

rbt ts6b.q:{ry
s. 4qr4!r@q
d4. p4qP@rM

qan@r4
4ao r4.4ry

44or qH/*.Srv

sq
&@ !*|@

!@
drpd Fgqqprsrrr€



\. rl INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.

*

3401 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403 | (7071455-6789lFAX (7071455-668S

Section VIII - References

Project References
1) lntegrated Security Controls has been doing business for over 12 years.

2) lntegrated Security Controls has been doing securi$ controls work in the State of

California for over 12 years.

3) Location of other control projects in use in California

a) Contra Costa County Martinez Detention Facility Controls Upgrade

b) Contra Costa County West Detention Facility Controls Upgrade

c) Humboldt JailVideo and Controls Upgrade

d) Stanislaus County PSC West Controls Upgrade

e) Yuba County Jail Controls Upgrade

0 Amador County Jail Control Systems Upgrade
g) Sacramento County Main Jail lntercom Upgrade

h) Monterey County New Juvenile Hall

i) Stanislaus REACT Center New Construction
j) Lassen County JailVideo Surveillance Upgrade

k) Sacramento County RCCC SBF lntercom System Replacement

l) Lassen County Juvenile Hall Controls Upgrade

m) Lassen County Jail Security Controls Upgrade 
,

n) Mendocino County Jail Security Controls Upgrade

o) Sonoma County Juvenile Hall lntercom System replacement

p) Mendocino County Juvenile Hall Security Controls Upgrade

q) Sonoma County Juvenile HallVideo Recording System

r) San Luis Obispo County JailWest Housing lnterposing Relays

s) San Luis Obispo County JailWest Housing Backup PLC

0 San Luis Obispo County JailWest Housing 300, 500, and 600 Unit PLC

Controls
u) San Luis Obispo County JailWest Housing Backup Computers

v) Sonoma County Energy Monitoring and Verification

w) Sonoma County MADF Dayroom lP Camera system Design

x) Sonoma County MADF Module Touchscreen Upgrades

y) Solano County Juvenile Justice Center CCry Recording Needs

Assessment

f

't5



INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. 95403l{707)455-678S I FAX {707}'+55'6689

\L

z) Santa Cruz County Juvenile Justice Center Touchscreen Replacements

4) All lntegrated Security Controls correctional projects have been for local county

government entities in the state of California.

Current Customers

1) 4Amador CountY Jail

a) Date of Original Contract

b) Type
c) FacilitY Name
d) Contact

2) Mendocino County Sheriffs Office

a) Date of Original Contract

b) Type
c) Facility Name

d) Contact

3) Lassen County Sheriff's Office

a) Date of Original Contract

b) Type
c) Facility Name

d) Contact

111712017

Adult Detention Facility, 76 lnmates

Amador CountY Jail

Capt. Brian Middleton
700 Court St
Jackson, CA 95642
(20e) 223-6522
bmidd leton @amadorgov.org

9t2412013
Adult Detention Facility, 364 lnmates

Mendocino CountY Jail

Captain Timothy Pearce

Mendocino County Sheriff's Office

951 Low Gap Rd

Ukiah, CA 95482
(707) 463-4559
pearcet@co. mendocino.ca. us

6t2212015
Adult Detention Facility, 156 lnmates

Lassen County Jail

John Mineau (Undersheriff)

Lassen County Sheriff's Office

1415 Sheriff Cady Ln.

16



\$

J\L

4) Sacramento Sheriff's Office
e) Date of Original Contract
f) Type
g) Facility Name
h) Contact:

5) Sacramento Sheriff's Office
i) Date of Original Contract

i) Tvpe
k) Facility Name
l) Contact:

INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 TNDUSTRTAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. 95403 | (7071455"6789 | FAX {7071455"6689

Susanville, CA 96130
530) 310-3102
mineau@co.lassen.ca.us

b

5t18t2016
Adult Detention Facility, 2,432 lnmates

Sacramento County Main Jail

Edward Go

County of Sacramento Architectural Services

9660 Ecology Lane
Sacramento, CA 95827
(e16) 876-0343
goe@saccounty.net

8t3t2015
Aduft Detention Facility, 1,625 Inmates

Rio Cosumnes Correctional Center
Christine Redlon
Sacramento County Sheriff's DePt

12500 Bruceville Rd.

Elk Grove, CA 95757
(916) 874-1954
cred lon @sacsheriff.com

17



\ INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 INDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA. 95403 | {707}455-6789 | FAX (707}455-6689

#\L

Recent Upgrade / Retrofit Contracts

Humboldt County Jail Control Panel Replacement

lnstalled new HMI (lgnition by lnductive Automation), PLC (Modicon M580), Harding

DXL intercom system, and Milestone VMS with 78 new lP cameras.

Date of Original Contract
Name
Location
Address
Type
Sl Role
Sl Contract Sum Original
Project References:

Owner Contact: Lt. Dennis Griffin
826 4th St
Eureka, CA 95501
(707) 441-5101
d g riffi n@co. h u mboldt.ca. us

Amador County Jail Control Panel Replacement

lnstalled new HMI (lgnition by lnductive Automation), PLC (Modicon M580), Harding

DXL intercom system, and Milestone VMS with 55 new IP cameras. This retrofit took
place in a jail that was operating at maximum capacity for the entire construction period

s

Date of Original Contract
Name
Location
Address
Type
Sl Role

Sl Contract Sum Original

7t23t2019
Humboldt County Controls Upgrade
Eureka, CA
826 4th St, Eureka, CA 95501

Adult Detention Facility, 41 7 lnmates
Complete controls upg rade.

$1,413,699.00

11t7t2017
Amador County Jail Control Panel Replacement

Jackson, CA
700 Court St. Jackson, CA 95642
Adult Detention Facility, 78 Inmates

Complete controls upgrade.

$537,346.00

18



\ ,F INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.
3401 INDU$TRIAL DRIVE SANTA ROSA, CA.95403l{707}455-6789IFAX (707}455-668S

j\
Project References:

Owner Contact: Lt. Adam Stone
700 Court St.

Jackson, CA95642
(209) 223-6319
astone@amadorqov.orq

Sacramento Main Jail lntercom Noise Level Monitoring System Replacement

This project involved the phased removal of existing intercom hardware and installation

of a new Harding DXL intercom system. ISC was initially hired to replace the intercoms

in a single unit, the facility was extremely happy with our work and hired ISC to replace

all intercoms in the facility. The project proceeded in phases by housing unit to

minimize impact on operations, and all intercoms in the facility will be replaced upon

project completion.

€-

Date of Original Contract
Name 

;

Location
Address
Type
Sl Role
Sl Contract Sum Original
Sl Contract Sum Final
Project References:

Owner Contact:

5t17t2016
Sacramento Main Jail NLM System Replacement

Sacramento Main Jail
651 I St, Sacramento CA 95814

Adult Detention Facility, 2,432 Inmates

lnstall new intercom stations and head end equipment.

$110,000 (first phase onlY)

$1,201 ,424 (with all phases included)

Edward Go

County of Sacramento Architectural Services

9660 Ecology Lane

Sacramento, CA 95827
(916) 876-6343
ooe(Osaccountv.net

19



\.- ,? INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC.

€-

3401 TNDUSTRIAL DRIVE SANTA RCSA, CA. 95403 | {707}455-6789 | FAX (707}455-668S

rf \L

Construction Manager: Abraham Vang

Northstar Construction
1282 Stabler Ln, #630-109
Yuba City, CA 95993
(530) 673-1732
abe@northstarco nstruction. biz

Lassen County Jail and Juvenile Hall Security Controls Replacement

This project was a complete controls retrofit for both the Jail and Juvenile Hall in Lassen

County. The project included the removal of PLC door and intercom controls for both

facilities, and the installation of all lP based controls including Modicon M340 PLC,

Harding lnstrumente DXL intercom cquipment, and seven 32" Touclrscreen HMI

Monitors. The system is server based using lgnition Software from lnductive

Automation. (a Sacramento company). The system also incorporated audio recording,

and the integration of inmate information into the touchscreen system.

Date of Original Contract
Name
Replacement
Location
Address
Type
Sl Role

Sl Contract Sum Original
Sl Contract Sum Final
Project References:

Owner Contact:

6t2212015
Lassen County Jail/ Juvenile Hall Security Controls

Lassen County Jail, Susanville CA

1405 Sheriff Cady Rd Susanville, CA 96130

Adult Detention Facility/Juvenile Detention Facility

Replace PLC Controls, lntercom System, Video

Surveillance, lnmate Data lntegration

$459,080
$504,772 (Added Video lntegration, Crimestar lntegration)

John Mineau (Undersheriff)

Lassen County Sheriff's Office
1415 Sheriff Cady Ln.

Susanville, CA 96130
(530) 310-3102
jmineau@co.lassen.ca. us

20



-\ -F TNTEGRATED sEcuRlrv coNTRoLs, lNc.
(l 

3401 TNDUsTRTAL DRrvE sANrA Ro$A, cA. es40r r{?02}4ss-6zss IFAX {20?}45s-Ecse

J\
Construction Manager: Larry Millar (Director)

Lassen County Public Works
Sacramento, CA 95827
(530) 251-8289
lmillar@ co.lassen.ca.us

Mendocino Countv Jail Securitv Controls Replacement

This project was a complete controls retrofit for the Mendocino County Jail. Prior to the

retrofit, the facility had two Central Control rooms, one for each of the two main jail

buildings. This project included the removal of all existing controls equipment from two

Central Control rooms in two separate buildings and the installation of Touchscreen/PlC

controls that allow the facility to be run entirely from one Central Control room. The

project included the installation of the same Harding lnstruments lP Intercom system

now being proposed by us for the Del Norte County Juvenile Hall system. The

Mendocino County Jail project also included the installation of a new integrated lP video

management system as well as RFID Key fob control for primary movement doors to

take some of the load off of Central Control.

Date of Original Contract
Name
Location
Address
Type
Sl Role
Sl Contract Sum Original
Sl Contract Sum Final

Project References:
Owner Contact:

9t24t2013
Security Controls Replacement
Mendocino County Jail, Ukiah 

1

951 Low Gap Rd Ukiah, CA 95482

Adult Detention Facility, 301 lnmates

Replace PLC Controls, lntercom System, Video Surveillance

$393,721
$431,227 (Additional lP Cameras added)

Captain Timothy Pearce
Mendocino County Sheriff's Office

951 LowGap Rd

Ukiah, CA95482
(707) 463-4559
pearcet@co. mendocino.ca. us

21



CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM'DD/YYYY}

o3l2'112024

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVEMGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

BELOW THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTMCT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

}musthaveADDlTloNALlNsUREDprovisionsorbeendorsed.
lf suBRoGATloN ls wAlvED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement' A statement on

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER

Calender-Robinson Company, lnc.

0267063

233 Sansome St. Ste 508

San Francisco cA 94104

Nenette Murata

(415) 978-3800 (415) 978-3825

nmurata@calrob.com

INSURER(S} AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

TNS|JRER a : U.S. Specialty lnsurance Company

INSURED

INTEGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC

789 LOMBARDI COURT#204

SANTA ROSA cA 95407

tNsuRER B . Amcuard lnsurance Company

tNsuRER c . Insurance Company of the West

tNsuRER D . Hartford Underwriters Ins. Co. 301 04

INSURER E

INSURER F

c NUMBER: CL2412337869 REVISION NUMBE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED

INDICATED. NOTWTHSTANDINGANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR
BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WTH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS

CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS'

EXCLUSTONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHO\rIN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
POLICY EFF

rM M'DD/YYYYT
POLICY EXP

.MM/DD/YYYY} LIMITStNqn POLICY NUMBERTYPE OF INSURANCE

FACH OCCI IRRFNCE s 1,000,000

$ 100,000

MFD FXP aAnv one Derson) $ 5,000

PFRSONAI & ADV INJTIRY $ 1,000,000

GFNFRAI AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000

PRODIJCTS - COMP/OPAGG $ 2,0oo,ooo

PER PROJ AGG $ 10,000,000

12t19t2023 12t1912024u23AC102068-06A

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILIry

.LA'M.-MADE lX o""u*

5F"9 l-1'o"POLICY

$ 1,000,000

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $

BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $

$

12t22t2024

$

1Np'U427922 12t22t2023B

ANYAUTO

o\ /ftED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILIry

FACH OCCURRENCE $ 2,0oo,oo0xx
AGGREGATE $ 2,0oo,oo0

OCCUR

CLAIIUS-IUADE

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB 1211912024

$

u23AC102068-06 1211912023

RFTFNTION $

A

DED

Xl RF"Ft"tt
I OTH.
IFR

EL EACHACCIDENT $ 1,0oo,ooo

o 1,000,000EL DISEASE-EAEMPLOYEE

{ 1,000,000

0112112025

E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

wPL 5069506 01 0112112024N/Ac

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY
ANY PROPRI ETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory in NH)
lf yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bEIOW

Y/N

$100,00012t19t2024 LIMIT57SBAAY1ZN9 1211912023D
INSTALLATION COVERAGE

DESCR|pTtONOFOPERATIONS/LOCATIONStVEH|CLES (ACORDl0l,Additional Remarksschedule,maybeattachedif moespacsisEquired)

Sonoma County Library

6135 State Farm Drive

Rohnert Park cA 94928

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WLL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESENTATIVE

nWrnoe-
O I 988-201 5 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved'

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 22



sectlon x compltance, ObJectlons

No. Comply Don't Comply Explain Non-Gompliance

New cameras shall be lP-based with a minimum 1080P resolution (i.e. Axis
M11 series) or lP 3 MP or better. Some cameras will need PTZ capability. All
should accommodate excellent low-lux and lR exposure, capable of
progressive scan, and lenses that accommodate the required coverage area

as determined by the Sheriffs Office. These cameras will vary from wider/tele

lens, outdoor rated, encased in tamper proof domes, some with PTZ

capability, plus appropriate
camera type/location being

mounting hardware/brackets specific to the
installed.

Yes

2 Encoding of H.265 or better Yes

3 Provide and install necessary servers and software to allow relention of
camera recording for all cameras for a two (2)-year duration. Six (6) months of
video shall be retained at full resolution (100%). The recordings shall be

compressed and retained for the remaining eighteen (18) months.

Yes

4 Recording system and cameras should accommodate variable frame rates on

each
camera as and determined jail .5 to 30

Yes

5 Provide necessary Type EMT conduit where needed, complying wilh all local'
state and federal regulations, California

Title 15 Division 1 and ntle 24.

Yes

6 lnstall necessary software and hardware for remote access via secure Virtual
Private
Network approved by County lT.

Yes

7 lnstall a rack air conditioning unit on existing rack in Central Control; lnyo
County Sheriff will be responsible for
exhaust of A,/C.

Yes

I Provide and install (quantity) 32" high definition monitors in (quantity) different

locations within the Jail; Monitors shall each be attached by individually
adjusting fully articulating monitor mounts for viewing on existing desks in
each location.

Yes

I Provide and install a locking wall mount rack for termination of cameras where
needed.

Yes

10 Provide and install (3) 48 port Gigabit Layer 3 network switches with 1oGB

transceivers.
Yes

11 Provide and install 1o GB fiber installation in all necessary locations, utilizing

existing conduit where applicable.

Yes

12 Provide and install all security fasteners and compression connectors for all

conduit. All security fasteners shall match what is currently being used by the
facility.

Yes

13 Ail cables all cables and electrical wires shall be

installed

Yes

14 Provide and install necessary software/hardware for ability to view
Countv Jail cameras by secure administration rights.

Yes

15
Maintain all existing security equipment operational and functional from the
time the contract is awarded, throughout the installation of upgrades for all

hardware and software components associated with this RFP, including
providing manufacture's latest version of software and/or firmware associated

with this project.

No There will be periods of down
time/key operation for parts of the
system during the demolition and
retrofit. ISC will minimize down
time and coordinate with lnyo
Sheriff

16 Remove and of all that are not and will not be used. Yes

17 Wananty on all equipment and systems for a period of two (2) years at no

additional cost to the Sheriff's Office. The wananty shall cover all costs for
WARMNTY SERVICES, including parts, labor, prompt field service, pick-up

and transportation.
Warranty begins when system commissioning is completed, punch list items

resolved, and Sheriff's Office provides written acceptance of system. Warranty

must be backed (in writing) by the manufacturer.

Yes

18 Provide remote interface for troubleshooting and maintenance that the user
will activate and de-activate to ensure lhat unauthorized remote access to the
security control system does not occur.

Yes

19 Provide extended Maintenance Service beyond the required 2-year warranty
period on a time and material basis for each of the systems. Service
Technician must respond within I hours 2417 (weekends and holidays

included).

Yes

20 lnclude enough camera licenses to
accommodate camera

Yes

21 All cameras will be installed in a workmanlike and secure fashion and

aimed/installed in accordance with the necessary field of view as described by

the Sheriff's Office and in accordance with
manufacturer's instructions.

Yes

22 lnstall and provide all cabling and connections. Camera lP cabling should be

robust enough for all necessary video bandwidth and rated for PoE (CAT-6E).
Yes

23



Yes23 using
LS-200 label

maker or

runbeshall atlabeled endsboth cableof thecabling
andlabels created by Bradlytypedpermanenvlegible

Yes24 Label each end of conduit and/or individual cable end in a clear manner by

designating the location of the other conduit end (i.e. room name, junction box

number,
Yes25 installed will be of continuous run - no splicing will be allowed.Ail
Yes26 or wire nuts be used.No connectors
Yesto unsecured access.will beNo27
Yes28 Awarded contractor will be responsible for removing cabling for old analog

cameras and any other unused equipment related to
the curent camera

cable and conduit will be installed.
cunent cable trays/conduit where available. V1/here notWring will be run in

available and where
29

Yes30 All wire runs will be EMT conduit unless above hard deck ceiling with the
of the Head End.

Yes31 All exposed EMT, accessible to inmates, shall be covered with a 1/8" mild

steel flanged metal channel. The channel shall be drilled for mounting to walls
and permanently mounted to the wall with tamper-resistant, hammer driven
security
anchors.

Yes32 All screws used shall be security type 4 (four). Copies of the security head
conclusion of theused will be to the owner

Yes33 Conduitwill be a minimum olylinch sized (post% filled standard) with 30%
room for

Yes34 terminateand withcondunew shallit reamedbe eliminateto edgessharpAny
awithlhroat each conduitinsulatedmetallic bushings. capgrounded

conduitsall orwith nylonplasticseal formechanicaFtype protection.
tb.200awith testminimum

Yes35
conduit, leaving at least inches slack at each end.
lnstall a nylon pullwire in each empty

Yes

to

llnslrre whal Cnilnly Decnr
Standards are, but will do our best

36
video equipment, cable, conduit or wiring shall conform to lhe interior d6cor

standards, and all applicable local state and federal codes.

Yes37 infrastructure installed will be expected to withstand the normal, routine
as such.actions in the area in which installed and shall be

YesProvide sleeves where required for wall and ceiling penetrations. Provide core
where for sleeve installation.

38

Yes39 Sleeves as needed shall be EMT conduit and shall be provided with insulated
throat for each end.

Yes40 Provide a qualified Project Manager to be in charge of the work at all times
and be present at the job site as required during the
installation.

The work shall be performed by skilled installers under the direction of a(n)
experienced technician(s), all ofwhom shall be properly trained and qualified
for this work.

41

Yes42 The Vendor shall provide initial onsite staff training on video
monitoring/recording platform upon completion of installation,
and ongoing quarterly remote training via web conferencing or video

Yes43 All work at the facility must be accomplished with the least amount of
downtime and disruption to Jail operations as possible. Work must be
performed in a phased approach so that only one housing area is without
cameras at any one time.

Yes44 Provide Sheriff's Office with two sets of Autocad printed (D50 size) drawings
and two flashdrives as backups containing the Autocad information in PDF

format and
DWG format.

=-.-24



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNW OF INYO

AND INTERGMTED SECURITY CONTROLS, I

SERVICES
FOR THE OF

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter refened to as may have the need for

the services of

of (heieinafier refened to as "Contractof'), and in consideration of

the .mutual promises, covenants, terms, and condilions hereinafter contained, the

I

I

parties hereby agree as

follows:
TERIUIS AND CONDITIONS

1. SCOPE OF WORK.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreernent shall be from,J,une L8*2824-to
unless sooner terminated as,provlded below'

3. CONSIDERATION.

of absence of anY or kind
The total sum cjf all PaYments made by the

D.
under this Agreement shall not exceed

County to Contractor seruices and work
Dollars

A. Colnpeng?tion. County shall pay to Contnactor in accordance wilh the Schedule of Fees

(set forth as Attachment B) for the services ano wort< described in Attachment A which are performed by

Contractor at the County's request.

B. Travet and oer diem. contractor will not be paid or reimburseb for travel expenses or per

diem which Contractor i*u,s i. protiding services and work requested by County under this Agreement'

C. tlg,altslitional consideration, Except as..e,rpressly prwlded inltnis Agreement, Contractor

shalt not be entifled to, i6ffiEilTointy, 
"riy 

addiilonalconiideration, compensatlon, salary, wages'

or other type of ,urrn*i"tion for'services renO!'reO inaer his Agreement. Spe!in5[' Co-{lactor shall not

be entifled, by virtue of thd'A;;;muni, to conriobiition in the forilr of overtime, health insurance benefits'

retirement benefits, oir"'niitvieui"r.ni oenetits, sicileave, vacation time, paid tiolidays, or other paid leaves

One two thlrtv

o5n1no1s

fnrrr seven

County of lnyo Standard Contrac-t - No. 116- 
(lndePendentContractor)

Page 1



and conditions of this AEreement.
(Zl County will withhold California State income taxes from'payments.,made under this

Agreement to nbri-Catitornia iesident indepenoent contractors when it is afticipated that total anhual

payments to conhactor under this Agreement wili exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars

4, VIIORKSCHEDULE.

Contractois obligation is to perform' in a timely manner, those services

Attachment A which are requested by the County' lt

these services and work will require a varied schedule'

coordinate with Gounty to ensure that all services and

be performed within the time frame set forth by Oounty'

is understood bY Contractor that the performance of

Contractor will arrange his/her own schedule, but will

work requested by Couniy under this Agreement will

5, REQUIRED LICENSES, CERTIFICATES, AND PERMITS'

and work identified in

County of tnyo Stendard Conlract - No. 116
(lndePendent Conkactor)

Page 2 0512112019



I

ll
B. Gontractor warrants that it is not presently debarred, $uspended, proposed for

debarment, declared i*iigioi"l oi votuntarity 
"r.tuo"o 

iiom participation in cdvered transactions by any

federal department 0r agerc!, Contractor iiio-*airtnts itrat it'is not susoeld3d or--debarred from

receiving federal tunos-;i tidteo in the List oipirties Excluded from Fedbral Procurement or Non-

procurement f rograms issued Oy tne General Services Administration availabl6 at .lji!?:./,4-twtv1$gq{fq'

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUPPLIES, EQUIPMENT, ET CETERA' 
I

Conlractor shali provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehiclds, reference materials, and

telephone service as is necessary for contractor to piovide the services identilied in Attachment A to this

Agreement. county is not obligated to reimburse 0r pay contractor, for any e,xpense or cost incuned by

Contraotor in procuring or mainiaining such items. Responsibility for the cosb and expenses incurred by

Contractor in provicting and maintaining such items is the sole responslbility anU optlgation of Contractor'

8.

and

9.

INSURANCE,
For the duration of this Ag reement Contractor shall procure and

amount specified in Attachment C and with the Provisions sPecified

STATUS OF CONTRACTOR.

of the scoPe

All acts of Contractor, its agents, officers, and employees, relating !o the performance of this

Agreement, shatt be performed as independent contractotl,u.nd,n?l t: agentb, 
"ffat:-t:^:l"mployees 

of

County. Contractor, by virtue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incui any obligation on behalf of

county, Except as expressly provided in Attachment A, Contractor has no authority or responsibility lo

exercise any rights or power vesteu in lhe County, No agent, officer, or employfe ?ltf-9o:tt"otor 
is to be

considered an ernptoyee of county, lt is understood by both contractor and couhtylthat this Agreement shall

not under any circumstances be construed or considered to create an employei-employee relationship or a

joint venture. As an independent contractot' 
i

A. Contractor shall determine the method, derails, and means df performing the work and

services to be provideO by Contractor under this Agreement'

B. Contractor shalt be responsibte to County only for the requiremfelp an-0, Jes.lllts 
specified in

this Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreeme-nt, shall not be subjected to County's

controtwith respect to tne tnylicat iction irr'actiuiii"r of Contra-ctor in fulfitlment oJ this Agreement'

C. Contractor, its agents, of1cers, and employees are,.and at all {imes during the term of this

Agreement shall, represent and Eonduct tnemietves as'iniepenaent contractoqs, bnd not as employees of

County. I

Coun$ of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 1 16 |' 
(lndePendentContractor)

Page3 OS21EO19



I
i
I

I

IO, DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

13. CANCELLATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County without cause'

Contractor thiQ (30) daYs writen notice of such intent to cancel.

without cause, and at will, for

cancelto County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

any reason whalsoever by giving thirty

This js an agreement for the services of Contractor. County has reliedlupon. the skills, knowledge,

experience, and training of Contractor as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Contractor shall not

assign or subcontract tnis Agreement, or any part of it, without the expressilvlttel :t-T.ttt 
of County'

Further, contractor shall not a-ssign any monies Jue or to become due under thisf Agreement wlthout the prior

wriften consent of County, I

I

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 118' 
(lndePendentGontractor)

Fage 4 0512112019



15. DEFAULT.

lf the contractor abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services reque6ted bY

Coun$ in a timely manner, or fails ln any way as required lo conduct the work servic6s as required bY

County, GountY maY declare the Conhactor in default and terminate this Agreemeht upon five (5) days writtbn

notice to Gontractor
contractor for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date

Upon such termination by default, County wi ll pay to Contractor all amounts owing to

of terminatiori.

16. wAlvER oF DEFAULT. 
i

Waiver of any default by either parg to this Agreemenf shall not be diemed to be waiver of any

subsequent default, Waiver or breach of any provision of thls {greement snall ndt be deemed to be a waiver

of any other or subsequent breach, and shall not be construed to be a modiflcation of the terms of this

Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-Mp (22) below'

17. CoNFIDENIALITY. I

Contractor furth et ag rees to comply with the various provisions of the fedLrdl, 
-state,

and couR$ laws,

regulations, and ordinances providi ng that information and records kept' meiintained, or accessible. by

Contractor in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement' shall be Privileged, restricted,

or confidential. Conlractol agrees to keep confidential allsuch information and records' Disclosure of such

confidential, prlvileged, or protected information shall be made by Conttactor only with the express written

consent of the County. Any disclosure of confidential information bY the Countt's written

consent is solely and exclusively the legal responsibility of Contractor in all res

18. CoNFLICTS.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 116
(lndePendent Conlraclor)

Page 5 o5l21no49



20. SEVERABILITY.

lf any Portion of
declared invalid bY a court

county statute, ordinance,

this Agreemerit or application thereof to any persot or circumstance shall be

of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contravention of any fe.deral, state, or

or regulation, the remaining provisions of this.Agreement, or the application

thereol shall not be invalidated thereby,

provisions of this Agreement are severable,

21. FUNDING LIMITATION,

and shall remain in full force 6nd to the'extent that the

The ability of county to enter this Agreement is based upon available funding from various sources.

ln the event that such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, from one or more sources' GountY has the

option to cancel, reduce, or modify this Agreement, or any of its terms within tLn (10) days of its notifring

Contractor of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of avallable funding. An reduction or modiflcation of

effect
I

I

Y,

lhis Agreemeni made pursuant to this provision must comply with the

(22) (Amendment).

22, AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may

consent of the Parties hereto,

formalities as ihis Agreement,

23. NOTICE.

be modified, amended, changed, added to, or s

if such amendment or change is in written form

D

of paragraPh twentY-two

from, by. the mutual

exdcuted with the same

and attached to the oliginal Agreement to maintain'qontinuity

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or delelions

change of address of either party during the terms of this Agreement' which

required, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and maY be PersonallY or sent bY PrePaid first

class mailto, the respective parties as follows:

County of
Departmenti
Address :

IFF

City and Sta le

Gontractor:
RITY Name

Address
City and Sta

toi this Agreement, including

Cdntractor or CountY shall be

serLed,
I

I

I

te

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. I

I

Th(s Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no reirresentations, inducements,

promises, or agreements otherwise between the parties not embodied Fi:i 1-:lt""ip:5ted 
herein by

reference, shall be of any force or effect, Further, no term or provlsion herecif may be changed' waived'

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in writlng executed by the parties 
fereto'
I

iltt tttt 
i

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No' 116
(lndePendenl Conlraclor)

Page I o5n1po19



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND INTERGRATED SECURITY CONTROLS, INC

FOR THE PROVISION OF COMPLETE INTEGRATED JAIL CONTROL SYSTEM SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS

THIS DAY OF

COUNTYOF INYO coNTRAgTOR

p
Signature

Toh
Print or Type Name Print or Name

By:

Dated e
Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALIW:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO NG FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:

Coun$ Risk Manager

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No' 116

(lndePendent Conkactor)
Page 7 o5,nlnug



AND

ATTACHII/IENT A

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

RATED SECURITY CONTROLS' INC.

February 28,202:5

video,

FORTHE PROVISION OF coMPLETE 1NTEGRATED JAIL CONTROL SERVIGES

The contractor will install a security Gamera system, intercom syslem, data

building control sysiem at the lnyocountyJail (address: 550 S. Clay St., ln

detailsind speciiicallons provlded on the following seven pages'

TERM:

rnorft J*" 21'2:24 
TO:

$COPE OFWORK:

Project control documents,will be provided upon award of contfact'

Training plan will be provided upon award of the contract'

tn

0ounty of lnyo Standard Conlract ' No. 116
(lndePendent Contractor)

Page 8 o5l21lzo19



l'
i

'".U,,, .r,,

,.g_irO i401 lNoustntal oRtv-r sRNtA Rosn, cA, s6403 | (70?){fo'078eil rex lrort*os'eoes

\*ii:.1!r 
I

' 
'{r-c-i

_":! 
|

i
,.:t,,z:l\' \,*,

SectionV - ProPosed Services, Conflguration, and Documentation

Camgra Syste,m

We propose using the Avigilon Control Center 7 Enterprlse

system (VMS)with new Avigllon lP cameras to achleve the

Ayj.oilon co.ntrol.Cqnler 1 Eqlgrplisa

o Video retention for all cameras'

e Video wlll be recorded at 15 fps on motion' and at

o RFP ltem #4 requires "7'5 up to 30 fps" as

i

I

\
I

I
I

fps all other times.

etermlned bY Jail

a

e

a

o

personnel. For,the purpose of this fixed cobt bid we have

assumed all cameras will ba recorded at 15fps' lf the average

framag per aecond aoroee all

be addltionalcost.

oameras excdeds 15 fPs thore will

r Full resolution video will be retained for 6 months'

o Low resolution video willbe retained for an add 18 months,

ot an acceptei TIR

included and must be provided by County lT'

r H265 suPPort in the VMS'

r Where camera cable is added, Cat 6 cable will be used'

o RFP ltem 22 specilies "Cat 6E'' Cat 6E is

standard, though it is used as a marketing

mahufacturers'

I

I

I

I

I,n

i

7

term by some



'--:.ti\ 
,# t\$Tffiffi.KATffi[} $HCt flRIW il,$, [N,e.

H

3401 INOUSTRIAL DRIVE-SANTA ROSA, CA. 96403 I

..ii:{i'-' '\t{q*

o lntelXeon Processor'

r 16GB DDR4 RAM.

o Redundant Hot $wappable Power Supply'

Center 7 Cllent software' 
I

e The Dell workstations will have Windows 10, lntel'Penlium i7 CPU' Radeon

GPU, SSD hard drlve, and CD/DVD RW drives' 
I

-d,r'::'r! " .

SUl':;,::i'::,

Hl,,i,*'

I FAX {rctlasi-oots

RAID 6 Permlts the

$trinetly l}letwpik Attneherl' Stfuage

e 500T8 Usable $torage $Pace

o RAID 6 |SCSI network attached storage (NAS)'

eRAID6withonehotspareperl2drivesforadditionalfault

r Can be expanded to allow additionalstorage ln the future'

Avigtlor.?MflFotfifls
o l0B0P resolution,

r On camera analytics to analyze video and trigger alarms'

o Low llght caPabilitY.

., Outdoor, weather resistant (1P66) rated dome housing'

I

r Vandal resistant (1K10) for durability in a corrections



-ot\lTRoLs' :lnlc'',\!'1i'5 *F 0NTHGRAI-ED sEct-'RIT'Y c
*3;iit, 

"' "rn;', 
tNousrRLqL DRIvE sANTA RosA' cA'e6403 lF07l4oo'eiagl FAx l?0?1455'668s

Kri3,.,J, i

-, 1q

uilr'ir 
rrr' 

'. 

h, over Ethernet (poE) provrdes power and data over a single cable to simplify

installatlon and maintenance' and reduce materlals cost'

e Ail cameras will reuseexisting cameracaD/as. lf any cabtes arrc found to have

exlsting damage, they will be replaced at additional cosf'

Sviqllon,2MP'PTZ

r 1080P resolution'

o 36 x OPticalZoom'

r Abillty to create preset guard tours and other routines'

roncameraanalyticstoanalyzevideoandtriggeralarms.
Low light oapability'

Outdoor, weather resistant

Vandal resistant (1Kl0) for

a

o

a

a

(1P66) rated dome housing'

durabili$ in a corrections environment'

Power Over Ethernet (POE) provides power and data over

installation and malntenance, and reduce materials cost'

Toughscre-en gontrol Statlgns,(fQSl

a cable to simPliff

o Touchscreen csntrolled workstations'

o ISC will provide t"u"n complete TCS workstatlons 
I

r Each will have a 32" touchsor""n piu* 
" 

24" monltor to handle intercom call

,UPS.'i:'
r workstations wilt be located in central control, Booki4g' Dispatch' and the

MedlcalOffice' L'
oTheTCsisaclienUserverbasedsystem..ltcommunlcatdswiththeother

systemsviatnelpnetwork.TheTCsservesastheaccebspointto.theHuman
trriachine lnterface System' or HMt System' I

o New ELO Inte[itouch technology 32;color HD 1080P touchscreen monitors will

beinstalled-lsChasusedthesemonitorsinseveralsimitarjailfacilities.
oEachTCswltlhaveitsownDellPrecision3460computeqtoruntheHMl

aPPlication.
oEachTCswillreceiveaHardingTouchscreenMasterStationtomakeand

receive lntercom calls directly from the touchscreen' I

o Surueillance video witl be integrated with the intercom sydtem to provlde relevant

camera call ups for each intercom call' I

o The ctient computer wiil be ,upportli by an unintenuptifp Power supply (uPs)

sizedioprovideapproximatelyl0minutesofbackuppower'withtheattached
load of the Cltent bomputer and its associated TCS'



"€

,r'#t't 
t\a*

H uman.Machlne lftterfaie Software (HMl)

:eC

#iir:ft
:*j'ii-

I h!:r'EG RATE D s Ec L! R ITV Co !! lr-B'O*}"lNG
3401 lNgusrRlAL oFlvE $ANTA ROSA, cA' 96403 I 170?f455'6789'tFAX (707t465-868S

I

I

*sclflrl.

a

a

Paformed'

lntercom Svstem

Vlrtual PIvate Network tVPN)
1

o lsc willprovide a vPN for remote access to the video surveillanie and controls system

oThisproposalincludesaUbiquitiDreamMachineProtoesta!|ti!.a.J|ttt.
olfcountylTrequiresspecifichardware/softt.'/aretocreatea[PN,theremaybe

additionalcost I

r The existing intercom head end hardware willbe removed and replaced with Harding

:'r'fljT:#:T"'rllilil'lill;ins 600 series vorp intercoms to repilce rhe exisrins anaros

intercom stations' {

o This proposalin.iuOt. replacing existing intercom cable with 
iat 

6 cable to support

. eu"l"I"l"J:ril:ffi:flin,.o.iu" a touchscreen masrer station {o maru and recelve

intercom catts using the naw TCS' I

o A Harding Paging Z;e Expander (PZE-110)w1l be used to conriectthe existing paging

speakers with the new Harding head end'

l Cotusa, Mendocino, Lassen, Amador' Yuba' and Humboldt counlies.

10



-\ tg !tuTEGRATED sFCI,JRIT"V COIVTRCIt-5, tr NIC'
3l0llNDUsIRIALDRIVESANTARosA,cA.gS40JlF0T|c15.6789|FAx170')466.6689

.,J,1

"f-ts'';' 
l''.

lfo.:1-;,.. .t

j,sij

.il?i$t^i 
\k&.

A lr Gon.d ltlon lno -Unlt

o lsG will install a Tripp Lite sRcooLTK rack mount air conditionlng unil in the existing

central control rack.

o The AC unit wlll require 8u of rack space, and a dedicated 120V/15A cirouit'

Fib.er opilc,-F.Ppltbone i '

. ISC willinstallsinglemode fiber between.each of the switch locations belng added as

Part of this Project.

11



BI\ITEG
3401 lNDu

RPTTED,era:,*,,.. c0TVIE5
I FA* rtoTlrsE{oeo(70?14666fi1de5t03

R
cA.

cLj l\l flNC"
k{

,r$.i" i .

#;it::.,'.Xqtii'.1-"'
]rt-q

,*ttll"l' \b,

DRIVESTFIAL ROgA.SANfA

Section VI - Cost

Base Prlce ${,'162'096 (lncludeg tax on lllaterlals}

Alternate {
Replace Housing Control Console wlth Winsted SlUStand $8'l'774

'|.2



seclibh-X.ciffini:mcA; eliUpiri'ns' Ofi6cu6nt 
- --

Don't
No.

Yes

lo lhe.

tibtler.

Arls
Art

Yes
2

YosandseNetstnstalland neoBssEryProvldB olh#odcamerBg foralllorrecordingcarnEftl
reaolullonlullbsshall al16lslnedvldeo

months.tot lhsletalned

3

syslom 8nd cameras should accommodals veliabla lrame rat65 on

t0 30.5

1

Yes

Calllomla
and lllle

local,condull wher€ neBded, complying wlthEMTneces6aryProvlde
fedcralstato.and

5

Y€5hardware for remote access vi8 secure'Becess8ry softwale

tT.

Vlrlusl

Pdvale
Network

I

Yesracl( ln Cenlral Conlrol: lnyo

€xhaust otA/C.

7

ln (quantltY) dllferenl
bv indlvlduallY
oxlstlng desks tn

3tlnslallnndProvide
b€eschthewlthln

onfor vlewlngmounlsmonilortully
localion.

B

mount tack tor lerrninallon of cameras
Provlde and lnstall a locllng wall

nesded.
I

Yes
Provide and lnstall (3) 48 Poil Gigablt Lay€r 3 netwolk with

10

Yes
1o GB liber lnslallatlon lnProvide and

ollllilnEall necarsary-1rt

lhebcing
alllnEtalland sBcuritYProvlds

shall mslchfsstenarsAll secutilycondult.
12

Il0 cableg and elect ical wlresaild shsll
sh0ll bocables

a

1A
vlewtoabllilylorsoftwde/haldwareand n0c€3garylnstallProvlde

admlnlslrallons€cut8Jail camola6
for pads o? the

demolllion and

ISC will lninimlzo down
cogrdloale wih,nyo

oidomwill be

lhe

and
Sherlfl

No

lhls

15

thst 8rs not and wlll not b€ used.
t0 oland

svstem comfilsslonln0 ls conplelEd' punch llg-t-ll€mB.

O'mce prov:doe written gccspl8nco oI system' vlE tr8nly

yedt! 8t
all costg

notwoof (2t
li/br,anty {orcovetshstl

sgrulce,liold ptck-up

IuhEn

the manulaclut€r.must bs

17

Ye$
r€molo inlerface tor10

wananty2-yeal
SeMcesysl€ms.

sird holidaYe(weekends

1g

camBftl
enoughlhclude20

Yea
21

lashlons6CUle andandaln wod<manllkeinstalledb€wiltcamefaS bydescrlbed88ol vlewfreldth6wilh neoe3sarya?rladanr3lnaimed/Snslalled
withaccordgnceancl lnOfliceSherill'glhe

lnstruclions.manulsctufeC$
Yesshould beIPCameraconnec-llons.andaland cablingpmvide

laled lotandband$,ldlhvldeo6llfor
22

23



"'*'Sbciidii
.l*.- r . _

.-=5.;i#ii"i':13r

:'i*;: ?/."'r'"

Yesruntheol cable usingendgbbthbeshall labbledcabling
LS-?O(} labelcreatedand BrEdlylabels by

23

Yesmannercleartnondblecaindivldualandlor6tend
box.room n8me,endconduit junclion

thoof olher (i.e'locallonthe
24

will b€will be ol tun - no25
Yeswlre nutB used.connectors26
Y6s

{vill be acc€ss,to27
Yesremovlng cabllng

relaled to
for old analoglor

equipment
conlraclorwlll be

csmeras and any olher
lhe currenl camela

28

.r?.;iis+3,t8=F-i- -
29 Durenl cable

andwherc

whers avollable. Where not
be hslallsd.and

will be

Yes
iuns wlll bo EMT conduit unless dec,k celling with theabove hErd

ol the Haad End'
30

anchots.

3t

Yesheadiheof4 Copies(fou4usedBCaews bo 5€curifyehalt typeAll
lheconcluslonbewlilused

32

JJ ofZ lnch slzed (Post% lilled slandard) wllh 30%

room for
will b6 a mlnlmum

34
wilhterminateandedgeslo ellminaleshallcondult be leamednew wthconduit acbuthlngs.lhroat 8plnsrrlaled groundedmetalllc orwith nyloncrnduitsall plasllcforseal Equip

lb,200ollesl
Yos

a[ sachal
eachlna wtre emptylnstall pullnylon35

nBrnrfinttnlywhnllnnttn
besldo ourbui vrillale,,landards

tb

Yes
30 ddcorlnteriorlo lheconfotmoreonduit shallwlringcable,vldeoArl

state
Vegthe notmal, routlnsto

asgndarea lnacllonS
AI inlraslrucluls lnetallod wlll be

Yes@repsn6trati0ns.

sleevewhere

andtorwallsleeves where tequlred

37

38

Ycalnsulaledbsandcondult provldedwilh6haltbeshall EIVITneededa3Sleeves
end,lor eBchthroal

39

Yes
40

allal time-Btheol workchargeln
lheduring

Yes
41

of a(n)
qualified

for thls work.

direcllonunder lhelnslallergby
andtralnedbEol

skilled
whom prcporlYthall

or vldsovreibrem0te

42

43 at lhe
8nd
lnPedolllred

one Ume.c&merss al
drar,vinggsire)olssls (D5oAutooadwlthOllice two printedSherift'sProvide PDFtninformallonA{,'tocadlheas mntalnlngflashdrives backupstwoa0d

lotmal and
OWG fotmat

44

..",*"*,-,*,r.*"*- . 24
'hbr#.4Fr1rl:lf'"_- 

_-'



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND SECURITY rNc

FORTHE PROVISION OF COMPLETE INTEGMTED JA]L CONTROL SERVICES

TERM:

FR.M,JIT ?s,, 3021- rq, j:!'y-39,29.202,q

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

The vendorwiil invoice the county monihly for work compleled, includlng detrails of labor provided and receipls for

any direct expenses passed on to the county.

Base Price $1,152,996 (lncludes tax on Materials)

Altemate I

nepla"" Housing Control Console with Wlnsted SiUStand $81,774

Project Totat: $ 1,234,770-00 
i

County of lnyo Standard Contracl - No' 1 16' 
(lndePendentContractor)

Page 9 o5t2112019



ATTACHII'IENT C

AGREETUENT BETTIUEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND lNc

FORTHE PROVISION OF COMPLETE INTEGRATED JAIL CONTROL $YSTEM

TERM:

FROTU:i,une -2-5', 
2024,,. February 28,2025

SEE ATTACHED INSURANCE PROVISIONS

SERVICES

CountY of lnvo Standard Contract - No' 116- 
(ndependeni Contrac'tor)

Page 10 a5l21na1g



Attachme nt: 2O24 Insurance Requirements for
MOST CONTRACTORS SUCH AS PAINTERS, PLUMBERS, TANDSCAPERS

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries

to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the

work hereunder and the results of that work by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or employees

or subcontractors.

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

L. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL on an

"occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage, bodily injury

and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence. lf a general

aggregate limit applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this

project/location (lSO CG 25 03 or 25 04) or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required

occurrence limit.
2. Automobite Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 00 01 covering any auto (Code

1), or if Contractor has no owned autos, covering hired (Code 8) and non-owned autos (Code 9),

with limit no less than 51,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. (Coveroge

requirement moy be waived if Controct scope of work specifies thot performance sholl be remote')

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits,

and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than 51,000,000 per accident for bodily

injury or disease. (Provision moy be woived if Contractor provides written declarotion of the

following: (a) Controctor hqs no employees ond ogrees to obtoin workers' compensotion insurance

and notify tnyo County if any employee is hired, (b) Contractor ogrees to verify proof of coveroge

for ony subcontroctor, ond (c) Controctor ogrees to hold lnyo County harmless and defend lnyo

County in the cose of claims arising for foilure to provide benefits.)

4. Professional tiability (Errors and Omissions): lnsurance appropriate to the Contractor's

profession, with limit no less than 52,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 52,000,000 aggregale. (lf
appticoble. Professionot liobitity insuronce coveroge is normally required if the controctor is

providing o professional service reguloted by the stote, though lnyo County moy require

professionot liobitity coveroge from certoin other types of service providers.)

lf the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimums shown above, lnyo

County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or the higher limits maintained by the

Contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and

coverage shall be available to lnyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Additionat tnsured Status: lnyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered

as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work or operations

performed by or on behalf of the Contractor including materials, parts, or equipment furnished in

connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage can be provided in the form of an

endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 IO 11 85 or if not

available, through the addition of both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37 if a later

edition is used).

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for MOST CONTRACTORS 20240325/ah



Attachme nt: 2024 Insurance Requirements for
MOST CONTRACTORS SUCH AS PAINTERS, PLUMBERS, LANDSCAPERS

Primary Coverage: For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be

primary and non-contributory and at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01.04 L3 as respects lnyo County, its

officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by lnyo County,

its officers, officials, employees, orvolunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's insurance and shall not

contribute with it. This requirement shall also apply to any Excess or Umbrella liability policies.

Notice ol Cancellation: Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be

canceled, except with notice to lnyo County.

IJmbrella or Excess Policy: The Contractor may use Umbrella or Excess Policies to provide the liability

limits as required in this agreement. This form of insurance will be acceptable provided that all of the

Primary and Umbrella or Excess Policies shall provide all of the insurance coverages herein required,
includes, but not limited to, primary and noncontributory, additional insured, Self-lnsured Retentions
(SlRs), indemnity, and defense requirements. The Umbrella or Excess policies shall be provided on a true
"following form" or broader coverage basis, with coverage at least as broad as provided on the underlying
Commercial General liability insurance. No insurance policies maintained by the Additional lnsureds,

whether primary or excess, and which also apply to a loss covered hereunder, shall be called upon to
contribute to a loss until the Contractor's primary and excess liability policies are exhausted.

Woiver ol Subrogatrbn: Contractor hereby grants to lnyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation
which any insurer of said Contractor may acquire against lnyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss

under such insurance. The contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect

this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not lnyo County has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-lnsured Retentions: Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by lnyo County. lnyo

County may require the Contractorto purchase coverage with a lower retention or provide proof of ability

to pay losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention.
The policy language shall provide, or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be

satisfied by either the named insured or lnyo County. The CGL and any policies, including Excess liability
policies, may not be subject to a self-insured retention (SlR) or deductible that exceeds 525,000 unless

approved in writing by lnyo County. Any and all deductibles and SlRs shall be the sole responsibility of the

Contractor or subcontractor who procured such insurance and shall not apply to the lndemnified

Additional lnsured Parties. lnyo County may deduct from any amounts otherwise due Contractor to fund

the SIE/deductible. Policies shall not contain any self-insured retention (SlR) provision that limits the

satisfaction pf the SIR to the Named. The policy must also provide that Defense costs, including ALAE, will
satisfy the SIR or deductible. lnyo County reserves the right to obtain a copy of any policies and

endorsements for verification.

Acceptability of lnsurers: lnsurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the

state with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to lnyo County.

Claims Mode Policies: lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1-. The Retroactive Date must be shown a nd must be before the date of the contract or the beginning of
contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained, and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five (5) years

after completion of the contract of work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for MOST CONTRACTORS 2024O325/ah



Attachme nE 2O24 Insurance Requirements for
MOST CONTRACTORS SUCH AS PAINTERS, PLUMBERS, TANDSCAPERS

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy form with

a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must purchase "extended

reporting" coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verificotion of Coverage: Contractor shall furnish lnyo County with original certificates and amendatory

endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause' All

certificates and endorsements and copies of all Declarations and Endorsements pages are to be received

and approved by lnyo County before work commences. However, failure to obtain the required

documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's obligation to provide them' lnyo

County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including

endorsements required by these specifications, at any time.

Speciol Risks or Circumstances: lnyo County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including

limits, based on the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards for MOST CONTRACTORS 20240325/ah



Jail Security Contract
Final Audit Report 2024-06-20

Created: 2024-06-20

By: Riannah Reade (rreade@inyocounty.us)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAULb89bkhdczhttIpMthhFzmDP_8xAJkl

"Jail Security Contract" History
Document created by Riannah Reade (rreade@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-20 - 8:35:36 PM GMT

Document emailed to Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us) for signature
2024-06-20 - 8:36:31 PM GMT

Email viewed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
2024-06-20 - 8:36:48 PM GMT

Document e-signed by Amy Shepherd (ashepherd@inyocounty.us)
Signature Date: 2024-06-20 - 8:37:08 PM GMT - Time Source: server

Agreement completed.
2024-06-20 - 8:37:08 PM GMT



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-329  

 

Sierra Jobs First Presentation by Sierra Business 
Council 

Board of Supervisors 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

Steve Frisch - Sierra Business Council 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive presentation on activities of the Sierra Jobs First program to date and provide comments about 
strategic plan elements.  
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The California Jobs First program is a California state grant supported program to develop a long-range 
strategic plan for directing future investments in economic development activities that will increase 
economic mobility for disinvested communities and workers while addressing state climate adaptation 
goals. Sierra Business Council is the fiscal agent, collaborative convener, and project manager. The 
program is composed of four parts, a regional summary report laying out existing conditions, a strategic 
plan laying out strategies and actions to increase economic mobility, a program “Catalyst” phase 
investing in regional capacity and pre-development funding totaling $14 million, and a program 
implementation phase developing and submitting projects in a statewide competitive grant process over 
three years to fund projects. 
  
Sierra Business Council will provide an update on progress made to date on the program, to present 
draft strategic plan elements, and seek input from the board on the draft goals, strategies and 
implementation actions likely to be included in the strategic plan to be submitted to the state program 
managers by August 30, 2024.  Strategic planning documents and updates can be found 
at https://sierrajobsfirst.org/strategic-plan/.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://sierrajobsfirst.org/strategic-plan/%E2%80%8B


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
This is an informational item only. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo County BOS Update 
2. Regional Specific Catalyst Criteria Info 
  
APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra Jobs First 
Program Update
Inyo County Board of Supervisors

June 25, 2024



● Current Status of Sierra Jobs First Program

● Key Strategic Plan Areas & Strategies

● Opportunities for Comment and Input

● Status of Program Funding

● Q&A

2

Agenda 



Where we are in the CA Jobs First Process

3



Sierra Jobs First Planning Process

4



Strategic Planning Process

5



Funding Overview

6



Strategic Plan
Core Issues & Target Industry Sectors



Sierra Jobs First Outcomes

8



Priority Industry Sectors 

9



Core Issues and Opportunities + Strategies to Get Us There

10



Sierra Region Core Issues

Content Source
Part 1 and a team from regional economic development organizations developed the 
summary of key issues to today’s conversations. Listed in your Highlights booklet on page 9. 11



Priority Industry Sector Overview

12



Strategic Plan - Timeline for
Comment & Input

● June 21st: Strategic Plan Draft & Summary of 
Community Feedback Posted

● June 21st - July 12th: First Public Review Period
● July 12th - July 31st: SBC Internal Revisions
● July 31st: Strategic Plan 2nd Draft & Summary of Public 

Comments Posted
● July 31st - August 9th: Second Public Review Period
● August 10th - August 16th: SBC Internal Revisions 
● August 16th: Final Draft & Summary of Public 

Comments Posted
● August 16th - August 23rd: Review of Final Draft by 

Governing Council
● August 23rd: Vote by Governing Council
● August 29th: SBC Submits Approved Final Version to 

State

Status of the Plan, ways to comment, and relevant materials 
can always be found at SierraJobsFirst.org/strategic-plan/

13



14

1. State Budget Cuts: Proposed Budget cuts $150 

million from Implementation Fund, $50 million each 

from next three fiscal years. 

2. Catalyst: Funding unchanged.

3. Advocacy Letter: SBC and the other 12 Regional 

Conveners have submitted a letter urging the state 

to restore full funding to the Implementation Fund.

Program Funding 
Update



Q&A & Next Steps

15

● Please provide comment on the Strategic Plan in either or both comment periods.

● SBC will provide a copy of funding advocacy letter to local agencies.

● SBC will continue to provide updates as requested.



Thank you.

Follow up info: 

Steve Frisch

Sierra Jobs First

Email: jobsfirst@sierrabusiness.org

Website: sierrajobsfirst.org

mailto:cerf@sierrabusiness.org


Catalyst Fund Project Criteria - Required by State Interagency Team

Equity
Required Criteria Examples
At least 40% of funds provide direct,
meaningful, and assured benefits to
disinvested communities

Project benefits communities located within
Justice40/ICARP DAC Tool-defined
disadvantaged communities

Includes an applicant or co-applicant
located in or serving a disinvested
community

Project partners with a CBO, tribe, or
business serving disinvested communities

Project has support from a disinvested
community within the project boundary

Align with Executive Order N-16-22 (Racial
Equity)

Project can conduct outreach to
communities that will benefit/be impacted
(translation, outreach partners, meeting
people where they are)

Includes equity impact assessment (SBC
hopes to have a template with the final RFP)

Project identifies stakeholders and any
unintended adverse impact of the project
with alternative plans as needed

Sample questions:
https://www.raceforward.org/sites/default/f
iles/RacialJusticeImpactAssessment_v5.pdf

Includes displacement analysis and
avoidance strategy (SBC hopes to have a
template with the final RFP)

Project includes methods to avoid
community and business displacement due
to gentrification, land use planning, lack of
transportation, or climate change impacts

Community engagement & feedback
mechanisms

Project has a community engagement plan
and outlets to communicate project updates
and receive feedback

Climate
Required Criteria Examples
Alignment with CA Air Resources Board
(CARB) Scoping plan

Project promotes walkability/bikeability/use
of public transit

Project decreases energy-related building
emissions

https://www.raceforward.org/sites/default/files/RacialJusticeImpactAssessment_v5.pdf
https://www.raceforward.org/sites/default/files/RacialJusticeImpactAssessment_v5.pdf


Project expands/benefits carbon storage in
natural and working lands

Alignment with EO N-82-20 (Land and Water
protection)

Project aligns with 30x30 goals by protecting
biodiverty, natural and working lands

Alignment with EO N-19-19 (ZEV Transition) Project aligns with ZEV goal of all new
passenger vehicle sales being ZEV by 2035,
with MD/HD vehicles by 2045

Alignment with the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Act (SGMA)

No basins in the region are required to have
groundwater protection plans under SGMA,
but projects should be aligned with
protecting groundwater levels and
watersheds

Job Quality and Access
Required Criteria Examples
Promotes the creation of family-sustaining
jobs

Jobs created by the project include
healthcare and retirement benefits, safe
working conditions, etc

The average job created by the project pays
a regional “high wage” defined as $64,480 in
the Regional Summary (pg. 98)

Ensure equitable access to quality jobs for
communities throughout the region

The percentage of jobs created that will pay
a “high wage” and donʼt require a college
degree

Jobs created provide on-the-job training and
pathways to advancement

Other Criteria
Required Criteria Examples
Funding model clearly identified Project has a budget outline and sustainable

funding plan for the next phase
Community partnerships leveraged Project has letters of support from

community
leaders/residents/groups/businesses within
the project boundary

Project can leverage match funding List other funding the project has obtained
or intends to apply for (andmeets initial
eligibility)



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-493  

 

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
Appendix 

County Administrator 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

Meaghan McCamman, Assistant County 
Administrator 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the incorporation of the County of Inyo Project List as an appendix to the regional 
Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS).   
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Inyo, Mono, and Alpine counties, along with the City of Bishop and Town of Mammoth Lakes, completed 
a regional Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (CEDS), which is a required document in 
order to access federal funding through the Economic Development Administration (EDA). The Inyo 
County Board of Supervisors approved the CEDS on October 17, 2023, and it was subsequently 
submitted to the EDA through the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG). The CEDS was 
approved by the EDA on January 5, 2024.   
 
The approved CEDS includes a Strategic Action Plan that sets forth goals and objectives around six 
high-level focus areas. These six focus areas represent the consensus of all participating jurisdictions 
and were developed through a series of community meetings and public feedback. These high-level 
focus areas include Access and Connectivity, Community and Culture, Economic Expansion and 
Diversification, Environmental Resilience and Sustainability, Government Affairs and 
Advocacy, and Housing Availability and Land Use.   
 
As the region was developing the CEDS, Inyo County was simultaneously developing our first strategic 
plan in nearly 25 years, which lays out and prioritizes a series of significant projects that the County is 
undertaking. The strategic planning process has included a series of public meetings; electronic and in-
person data gathering from the public as well as County departments and elected officials; and 
significant analysis to ensure alignment with federal, state, and local regulatory requirements and funding 
opportunities. A living draft document was published May 14, 2024.   
 
Inyo County staff have crosswalked the high priority projects and programs in the County's strategic plan 
against the goals and objectives described in the CEDS document. These projects are in various stages 
of planning and implementation by the County and represent ongoing and future work that also further 
the strategic goals of the CEDS. By including these projects and programs in the CEDS document as an 
appendix, the County can ensure these projects meet EDA requirements for potential funding. Staff 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

envisions this appendix to be dynamic and updated regularly as the County's strategic priorities change 
and projects are completed.  
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
This planning document does not have any fiscal impacts. 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could decide not to incorporate the County of Inyo project list into the CEDS as an 
appendix.  This is not advised, as the Economic Development Administration will look for alignment with 
the region's approved CEDS as one of the requirements for funding projects.   
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Inyo CEDS Project List Appendix 
  
APPROVALS: 
Meaghan McCamman Created/Initiated - 6/19/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/19/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1

Eastern Sierra Region - Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy

Inyo County Project List

In 2024, the Inyo County Board of Supervisors embarked on an effort to develop and adopt a 
multi-year Strategic Plan for the County of Inyo for the first time in over 20 years.  Many of the 
goals, initiatives, and projects identified as priorities within the Strategic Plan align with the 
strategic goals and objectives of the regional Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
(CEDS).  This Project List identifies those priority projects of the County that also further the goals 
of the regional CEDS and for which the County make seek funding through the Economic 
Development Administration.  

Access & Connectivity

CEDS Objective: Increase access to digital resources through broadband infrastructure 
buildout

1. Inyo County Project: Broadband Infrastructure Expansion
The County of Inyo has undertaken two grant-funded planning projects related to 
Broadband expansion and seeks future funding to build out last mile infrastructure for 
unserved and underserved areas.  The County includes and incorporates by reference all 
projects and network designs identified in the County’s Broadband Strategic Plan, and 
Local Agency Technical Assistance Program (LATA) funded engineering designs for last 
mile infrastructure.  

CEDS Objective: Enhance the regional transportation network to provide residents, 
visitors, and businesses with more accessible, reliable options for moving in, out, and 
within the region

2. Inyo County Project: Commercial Air Service Infrastructure
Inyo County’s Bishop Airport (BIH) was certified for commercial air service (Part 139) in 
2021, and began offering seasonal daily flights with United Airlines.  The County now must 
secure funding for the planning, environmental review, design work, and ultimately 
construction of a new commercial service terminal for BIH. This may include additional 
projects such as runway safety improvements and construction of a concrete aircraft 
parking apron at the site of the proposed new terminal building.  

3. Inyo County Project: Enhanced Ground Transportation Services 
Inyo County’s Strategic Plan involves a variety of projects related to the development and 
expansion of public transit infrastructure, which will allow citizens to move easily around 
the region while reducing VMT, and will provide increased access to visitors – especially 
those who hike into the County’s towns from nearby trails.  Upcoming projects include a 
bus stop and shelter in the community of Wilkerson, and a potential collaboration with the 
Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) and Cerro Coso Community College to establish 
transit opportunities for students attending the Bishop and Mammoth campuses.  

Community and Culture

CEDS Objective: Garner support for economic development by developing and capitalizing 
on strong community engagement

4. Inyo County Project: Community Revitalization through Effective Planning



2

The Planning Department supports small towns throughout Inyo County’s unincorporated 
area in strategizing the future of their downtowns and residential areas.  This project 
includes a review of existing plans in order to identify the issues, opportunities, and needs 
which could be addressed through visioning, public input, and plan revisions, and includes 
the completion of necessary requirements such as integration of those plans into the 
County General Plan and completion of CEQA requirements.  

CEDS Objective: Enhance quality of life with additional amenities to attract and retain 
talent

5. Inyo County Project: Quality Parks and Recreation Facilities 
The County’s strategic plan emphasizes the importance of investing in new infrastructure 
within each of our small communities to better the lives of its residents and visitors. New 
and improved facilities generate local jobs, provide opportunities for new business and 
expansion of existing ones, while making Inyo County a great place to live. The following 
amenities would improve quality of life and provide economic benefits: 

1. Improvements to County owned and County-run campgrounds and parks, 
including restrooms, parking areas, playgrounds, glamping opportunities, shade 
structures, and equipment. A first step in this process might be a parks 
improvement plan to help prioritize and develop improvement and maintenance 
schedules. 

2. Improvements to sports fields, ballparks, and turf, including lighting, to make Inyo 
County’s beautiful sports facilities a destination for games and tournaments for 
locals and visitors. 

3. Investments in the archives and artifacts managed by the Eastern California 
Museum and marketing the Museum to make it a destination for locals and tourists 
alike. 

4. Evaluate the need and feasibility of an indoor recreation center and/or community 
center in the City of Bishop. 

Economic Expansion & Diversification

CEDS Goal:  Grow and diversify regional economy through support of existing and new 
businesses

6. Inyo County Project: Small Business Resource Center
With a $50,000 planning grant from the EDA, Inyo County has partnered with a private 
entrepreneur and a nonprofit business development organization to create the Eastern 
Sierra Small Business Resource Center (SBRC), in a redeveloped storefront in downtown 
Bishop.  The SBRC is currently undergoing construction and will be open in Fall 2024 to 
provide resources, education, assistance and networking opportunities for new and 
existing small businesses.  Inyo County will continue to work with partners to develop and 
support programming of value to local business owners and entrepreneurs.  

7. Inyo County Project: Make Inyo County’s Downtowns a Destination 
Much of Inyo County’s tourist traffic is from people passing through – driving to Mammoth 
in Mono County to ski; or driving to Death Valley, Yosemite, or to trailheads in the White 
Mountains or Inyo National Forest.  Creating, marketing, and supporting new festivals and 
events that make Inyo County’s towns a destination will bring more tourists to the County’s 
small, locally owned businesses and provide opportunities for pop ups, food trucks and 
vending. 

8. Inyo County Project: Visitor Information and Welcome Centers



3

Creating welcoming and exciting venues to capture the attention of tourists heading to the 
myriad nearby recreational destinations could be enhanced through the creation and 
staffing of local Visitor Information and Welcome Centers. Inyo County seeks to work with 
allied agencies such as local Chambers of Commerce to understand the need and develop 
plans for visitor and welcome centers in appropriate communities.

Environmental Resilience & Sustainability

CEDS Objective: Reduce the challenges experienced by residents and visitors during 
climate events

9. Inyo County Project: Vegetation Management, Home Hardening, and Wildfire 
Mitigation Efforts
The County is working with wildfire prevention and other specialists to develop 
comprehensive strategies for defensible space and home hardening around Inyo County 
communities.  Additional work will entail collaborations with agency partners and property 
owners to perform appropriate vegetation management efforts to reduce the risk of wildfire 
and working with schools and businesses to develop the workforce necessary to perform 
the work necessary to mitigate wildfire risk throughout Inyo County’s vast acreage. 

CEDS Objective: Consider sustainable tourism as a budding industry with workforce 
needs and entrepreneurial opportunities

10. Inyo County Project: Regional Recreation Improvements and Stewardship
An immediate opportunity to build upon interagency collaboration is in the arena of 
regional outdoor recreation sites, including campgrounds, trailheads, parking areas, and 
climbing areas.  The bridge from enhanced recreation infrastructure to regional economic 
development are significant. Inyo County recommends that all projects related to outdoor 
recreation infrastructure, improvements, and stewardship efforts be accepted as key 
elements and directives of the CEDS.

Government Affairs and Advocacy

CEDS Goal: Promote stronger government affairs and advocacy efforts
11. Inyo County Project:  Investment in High-Quality Government Employees, Service 

Infrastructure, and Improved Access and Facilities
Inyo County has begun the process of investing in employees, technology, infrastructure 
and capacity to strengthen and improve public access, communication, customer service, 
and facilities.  Additional investments in capacity and services described in the Inyo 
County strategic plan are incorporated by reference.  

Housing Availability & Land Use

CEDS Objective: Expand additional housing options within affordable range for regional 
workforce

12. Inyo County Project: Community Infrastructure to Allow Expansion
Inyo County manages the drinking water and wastewater systems in many of the small 
towns throughout the unincorporated County.  These systems are long past their 
recommended lifespan and need upgrades in order to support any expansion in housing 
or tourism.  Upgrades and replacement of basic infrastructure is a critically necessary 



4

first step before any significant economic development initiatives throughout the County 
can take place. The first major step in this effort should be to conduct a Municipal 
Service Review for each of our Special Districts and from that develop a multi-year 
strategic plan aimed at improving operations and service capacity

13. Inyo County Project: Complete Housing Needs Assessment for Workforce and 
Special Populations
The County is investing heavily in identifying avenues to improve housing availably and 
affordability despite the lack of developable land available.  Working with experts in 
housing development, we hope to create a strategy that will expand access to housing 
for critical workforce as well as seniors, justice-involved, and other special populations.  



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-464  

 

Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement Between the County 
of Inyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower 

Owens River Project 
Water Department 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Holly Alpert, Water Director Holly Alpert, Water Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Amendment No. 2 to the "Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower Owens River Project" 
and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Lower Owens River Project (LORP) Post-Implementation Agreement (Agreement) was developed 
by County and LADWP staff to satisfy the requirement of the Long-Term Water Agreement, Section XII, 
that states, “Once the (Lower Owens River) project has been constructed and completed, the 
Department and the County would jointly operate and fund the non-pumpback portions of the project.”  In 
order to provide for joint operation and funding of the LORP, the LORP Final Environmental Impact 
Statement, Section 2.2.2.2, states, “After adoption of the LORP, the governing bodies of the County and 
LADWP will adopt a policy that sets forth each entity’s responsibilities for LORP funding during the 
implementation and post-implementation periods.  The policy will also describe the procedures for 
managing the LORP during the post-implementation period.”  The Agreement contains those policies 
and procedures.  
 
On October 18, 2009, your Board approved the “Agreement Between the County of Inyo and City of Los 
Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower 
Owens River Project” (also known as Post-Implementation Agreement).  The Los Angeles Board of 
Water and Power Commissioners approved a corrected version on May 18, 2010, and your Board 
approved the same corrections on June 8, 2010.  The initial term of the Agreement was 15 years, with 
the original agreement expiring July 11, 2022.  On July 5, 2022, your Board approved Amendment No. 1 
to the Agreement, which extended the terms of the Agreement for two years, to July 11, 2024. 
 
Inyo County and LADWP staff propose to extend the term of the existing Agreement another two years 
to July 11, 2026.  In addition, certain dates in Section J of the Agreement pertaining to the timing of 
adjustments to the LORP Credit and LORP Trust also will be extended two years for 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

consistency.  During the period of the extension, Inyo and LADWP will re-evaluate the Agreement.  
  
It is requested that your Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the “Agreement Between the County of 
Inyo and City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power Concerning Operation and Funding of the 
Lower Owens River Project” and authorize the County Administrative Officer to sign.  The Los Angeles 
Board of Water and Power Commissioners will consider Amendment No. 2 in July 2024.   
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 504103 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
Funding for the LORP is provided for and circumscribed by a lengthy series of agreements and Court 
orders. Extending the Term of the Agreement will continue the procedures to establish the fiscal year 
work plan and budget and the agreed upon accounting procedures that have been implemented for the 
past 17 years to pay the County’s LORP costs from the LORP Credit and Trust.  
 
The LORP Credit currently has a balance of $408,282.  This amount will be reduced to zero when 
expenses approved in the 2023-24 LORP work plan and budget are subtracted.  The LORP Trust 
balance as of May 31, 2024, is $2,114,832.24. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
The Trust will continue to provide for the costs of LORP operations and maintenance through the term 
of this amendment. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose to not approve this amendment and instead direct staff to continue to work with 
LADWP to incorporate the Board's desired modifications. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. LORP Post-Implementation Agreement  
2. LORP Post-Implementation Agreement Amendment No. 2 
  
APPROVALS: 
Holly Alpert Created/Initiated - 6/3/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/3/2024 
Holly Alpert Approved - 6/7/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/12/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



·--- Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

DUPLICATE ORIGINAL 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND CITY OF 
LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER 

CONCERNING OPERATION AND FUNDING 
OF THE LOWER OWENS RIVER PROJECT 

RECITALS 

I. In 1991, the City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power ("LADWP") and the 
County of In yo ("County") entered into the Agreement Between the County of lnyo and the 
City of Los Angeles and its Department of Water and Power on a Long Term Groundwater 
Management Plan for Owens Valley and lnyo County ("Water Agreement"). The impacts 
of the Water Agreement were addressed in an environmental impact report that also 
addressed the impacts of LADWP' s groundwater pumping operations in the Owens Valley 
from 1970 to 1990 (" 1991 EIR"). 

2. The Water Agreement provides for, among other things, the implementation of the Lower 
Owens River Project ("LORP"), which includes the rewatering of a portion of the Owens 
River ("Riverine Area"), the maintenance of certain off-river lakes and ponds ("Off River 
Lakes and Ponds"), establishment of a waterfowl habitat area in the Blackrock area 
("Blackrock Waterfowl Area"), enhancement of habitat in the Owens River delta area 
("Delta Area"), and a pump station. The 1991 EIR further identified the LORP as an 
LADWP compensatory mitigation measure for impacts related to LADWP's groundwater 
pumping from 1970 to 1990 that were difficult to quantif'y or mitigate directly. Neither the 
Water Agreement nor the 1991 EIR nor any other document identifies the LORP as a 
mitigation measure for any activity undertaken by the County. The Water Agreement and 
the 1991 EIR provided that the impacts of the LORP would be addressed in a separate 
environmental impact report. 

3. Section XII of the Water Agreement provides that: (I) the County will fund one-half of the 
LORP initial construction costs (up to a maximum of $3.7 5 million-less any funds 
contributed to cover the initial construction costs by the State of California or other 
non-LADWP sources); (2) LADWP will fund the remaining initial construction costs of the 
LORP; and (3) LADWP and the County will jointly fund and operate the LORP after it has 
been implemented (except for the costs of operating and maintaining the pump station, 
which will be funded by LADWP). 

4. In 1997, LADWP and the County entered into a settlement agreement called a 
Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the California Department ofFish and 
Game, the California State Lands Commission, the Sierra Club, and the Owens Valley 
Committee. The purpose of the MOU was to resolve challenges to the legal adequacy of 
the 1991 EIR, and the implementation of the LORP. The MOU specifies the amount of 
baseflow to be maintained in the river, the release of higher seasonal habitat flows, and 
delineated a schedule for establishing the baseflow in the river. 

5. In 2004, LADWP and the County each adopted an Environmental Impact Report that 
addressed the LORP ("Final LORP EIR"). 

I 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

6. The schedule in the MOU for establishing baseflows in the LORP was not met. On 
August 8, 2005, the Inyo County Superior Court, in case number SlCVCVOl-29768, 
issued an order ("Court Order") that required LADWP to pay $5,000.00 per day, 
commencing on September 5, 2005, into an escrow account established by LADWP and 
the County until LADWP established a permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the 
LORP. Under the Court Order, the proceeds of the escrow account are only to be used to 
pay the costs of: (1) the Special Master (appointed as part of the Court Order); (2) the. 
County's share of the post-implementation costs of the LORP; (3) the cost of monitoring 
habitat indicator species for a five-year period at the direction of the California Department 
ofFish and Game in an amount not to exceed $100,000.00; and (4) the costs of the escrow 
account. 

7. On September 16, 2005, the County and LADWP entered into a settlement agreement 
("LORP Funding Agreement") whereby LADWP agreed to provide $5,242,965.00 (with 
adjustments) to the County. With regard to the County's obligation to fund $3.75 million of 
the LORP implementation costs, the LORP Funding Agreement provides that LADWP will 
provide a credit to the County in the amount of$2,989,932.00. The LORP Funding 
Agreement also acknowledges that the provision of this credit, in combination with the 
County's previous application of$360,000.00 obtained from the U.S. Bureau of 
Reclamation, $250,000.00 obtained from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development, and $150,068.00 obtained from the EPA to LORP initial construction costs, 
fully discharged the County's obligation for the payment of$3.75 million for the LORP 
initial construction costs. 

8. With regard to the County's obligation to fund a portion of the LORP post-implementation 
costs, the LORP Funding Agreement provides as follows: (1) the difference between 
$5,242,965.00 and the $2,989,932.00 that will be applied to the LORP initial construction 
costs (a difference of$2,253,033.00), will be a credit held in trust by LADWP (this "Post 
Implementation Credit" will be used to partially fund the County's obligation to pay 
one-half ofthe LORP post-implementation costs); (2) each year, the then remaining 
amount of this Post Implementation Credit will be reduced by the County's share of the 
LORP post-implementation costs until the $2,253,033.00 credit has been reduced to zero; 
(3) each year, the then remaining unexpended portion of the $2,253,033.00 will be annually 
adjusted upward or downward in accordance with the Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside All 
Urban Consumers Price Index ("CPI") or its successor; ( 4) the annual CPI adjustment will 
take place prior to deduction of a credit for County's annual share of the LORP 
post-implementation costs; and (5) the CPI adjustment will commence when LADWP has 
established a permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the LORP. 

9. The LORP Funding Agreement also provides that the escrow account, required to be 
established by the Court Order, will be established in the In yo County Treasury as a trust 
account and that the interest earned on the fund balance will remain in the account ("Trust 
Account"). The LORP Funding Agreement also provides that only after the $2,253,033.00 
Post Implementation Credit (adjusted as described above) has been reduced to zero, will 
the County begin to pay its share of the LORP post-implementation costs from the trust 
account established by the Court Order. 

2 



:Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

10. On July 11, 2007, the parties to the MOU entered into a Stipulation and Order, 
("Stipulation and Order"). The Stipulation and Order resolves issues involving compliance 
with the Court Order. In the Stipulation and Order, the parties agree that as of July 11, 
2007, LADWP had established a permanent baseflow of approximately 40 cfs in the 
LORP. The Stipulation and Order also provides for monitoring and reporting of the 
baseflow flows throughout the LORP. 

11. With the entry of the Stipulation and Order on July 11,2007, LADWP ceased making 
payments of $5,000.00 per day into the Trust Account established pursuant to the Court 
Order because, as of that date, LADWP had established a permanent baseflow of 
approximately 40 cfs in the LORP. On July 11, 2007, there was $3,368,017.17 in the Trust 
Account. 

12. On April 28, 2008, Ecosystem Sciences, Inc. released a final LORP Monitoring, Adaptive 
Management and Reporting Plan ("LORP Adaptive Management Plan"). 

13. Section II. A. of the MOU provides that the "MOU Consultant" (Ecosystem Sciences, Inc.) 
is required to prepare a plan for the LORP and that "DWP and the County will direct and 
assist Consultants in the preparation and implementation_of the LORP ecosystem 
management plan ("LORP Plan"). As provided below, the future involvement of the MOU 
Consultant in the LORP will be determined by LADWP and the County. 

AGREEMENT 

In consideration of the recitals above and the following covenants and provisions, LADWP and 
the County (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties," and individually referred to as a 
"Party") agree as follows: 

I. IMPLEMENTATION PERIOD 

A. All construction, channel modification, planning, and development work, including 
the completion of all required final LORP plans and other related pre-implementation 
work performed by Ecosystem Sciences, Inc.; the preparation of the ElR on the 
project; and any other necessary work for initial operation of the project (including 
channel modifications downstream of the Intake that have been made to correct a 
flow impedance problem) are to be considered as costs of implementing the LORP. 

B. LADWP will pay all costs of implementing the LORP that are not funded by sources 
other than LADWP. As provided in the LORP Funding Agreement, LADWP will pay 
the County's $3.7 5 million share of the LORP implementation costs. 

3 



'Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

II. POST-IMPLEMENTATION PERIOD 

A. COMMENCEMENT OF POST-IMPLEMENTATION FUNDING 
OBLIGATIONS 

The commitments of LADWP and the County to jointly fund and operate the 
post-implementation costs and activities of the LORP commenced on July 11,2007. 
1n this agreement, the Parties define their responsibilities for jointly funding and 
conducting post-implementation activities required to be undertaken during the 
15-year period following July 11,2007 (until July II, 2022). After July 11, 2022, the 
required flows will continue to be maintained and the flow compliance monitoring 
required by the Stipulation and Order will continue to be conducted; however, the 
Parties will decide what level of operations, maintenance, habitat morlitoring, and 
adaptive management will be conducted. The Parties do not intend by this agreement 
to redefine or reinterpret any provision of the MOU; however, by Section P of this 
agreement, the Parties intend to modify Section A.2 of the LORP Funding Agreement 
dated September 16, 2005. 

B. POST-IMPLEMENTATION COSTS AND ACTIVITIES THAT ARE THE 
SOLE RESPONSffiiLITY OF LADWP 

Unless otherwise agreed to by the Parties, LADWP will have the sole responsibility 
for planning, operating, and/or conducting the following activities and for all costs 
arising from such activities. 

1. All operation and maintenance costs of the LORP pump station, including 
hydrologic monitoring and data collection and reporting costs, the maintenance 
of all roads used exclusively to provide access to these facilities, all pipelines, 
electrical transmission lines, release structures (excluding the delta release 
control structure called the Langemann gate), dikes, dams, flow measuring 
devices and ponds associated with the facilities. 

2. On July 9, 2009, the Standing Committee designated four permanent flow 
monitoring stations in the river (three of the permanent monitoring stations 
consist of a single station, and the fourth station located at the pumping station 
consists of three monitoring stations). The two temporary monitoring stations 
located at Mazourka and Reinhackle will be replaced with permanent 
monitoring stations. LADWP will design and construct these permanent flow 
measuring stations. 

3. All costs of monitoring, inspecting, maintaining and repairing LADWP roads 
identified on Exhibit A; however, if, as a result of activities attributable to the 
LORP (including seasonal habitat flows), a road requires major renovation, 
capital improvement, or unanticipated repair, such work and the funding for 
such work will be included in an annual work plan as provided in Section II.F. 

4 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

4. As provided in Mitigation measure V-2 of the LORP FEIR, for the first seven 
years of the LORP, LADWP will provide funding up to $50,000 per year for 
monitoring and control of noxious weeds within the LORP area, and $150,000 
per year for monitoring and control of noxious weeds outside the LORP area 
that could serve as a seed source for the LORP area (LADWP began making 
payments of $200,000.00 for these purposes in fiscal year 2005-2006; therefore, 
LADWP's obligation to provide such funding terminates after it has provided 
such funding for the 2011-2012 fiscal year). Prior to providing such funding for 
the 2009-2010 fiscal year, and prior to providing such funding for each 
remaining fiscal year, LADWP shall adjust the amount of the payment upward 
or downward in accordance with the April Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside All 
Urban Consumers Price Index or its successor; however, as a result of the 
adjustment, the amount ofthe annual payment shall not be reduced to less than 
$200,000.00. 

5. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the intentional introduction into the 
LORP area by LADWP (or the introduction into the LORP area with the 
express consent of LADWP) of any individual (or individuals) plant or animal 
with special status under state or federal law, including threatened, endangered, 
candidate, or rare species, and the monitoring and/or management of any such 
introduced species. 

6. All costs associated with the management and monitoring oflivestock grazing 
and utilization in the project area. 

7. The cost of any water supplied to any component or element of the LORP. 

8. All costs associated with the implementation of mitigation measures and with 
the restoration or repair of facilities or property that were damaged or 
deteriorated as a result of LORP construction activities during project 
implementation and/or other activities associated with project implementation 
(including the correction of initial design defects). 

9. The payment of a Non-Compliance Payment assessed pursuant to the 
Stipulation and Order dated July 11, 2007; however, LADWP shall not be 
responsible for the portion of such a payment that is attributable to an action or 
inaction by the County (see Section II.C.4. of this agreement.) 

10. The costs ofLADWP's personnel in the planning and development of work 
programs and budgets (including determinations of the need for adaptive 
management measures) or in any subsequent modifications thereof. 

C. POST -IMPLEMENTATION COSTS AND ACTIVITIES THAT ARE THE 
SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE COUNTY 

Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the County will have the sole responsibility 
for planning, operating, constructing, and maintaining the following activities (should 

5 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

any such activities be planned, constructed and maintained) and for all costs arising 
from such activities. 

1. The development of a recreational use plan for the portion of the Owens River 
within the project area. (Should any such plan be developed, the impleinentation 
of the plan or of any component of the plan will require approval by LADWP 
before it is implemented.) 

2. The development of any campgrounds along the Owens River within the project 
area. (Should any such campground be proposed for development, the 
campground will require the approval ofLADWP before it is implemented.) 

3. Except as provided in Section II.B.l, the costs of monitoring, inspecting, 
maintaining and repairing the County maintained roads identified on Exhibit A; 
however, if, as a result of activities attributable to the LORP (including seasonal 
habitat flows), a road requires major renovation, capital improvement, or 
unanticipated repair, such work and the funding for such work will be included 
in an annual work plan as provided in Section II.F. During the release of a 
seasonal habitat flow, the County will monitor the culverts and bridges at the 
point where the County roads shown on Exhibit A cross the river (the purpose 
of the monitoring will be to determine whether the seasonal habitat flow has or 
tnay damage the road, bridge, or culvert and whether debris plugs have or may 
form), and the County will remove any debris plugs as necessary to minimize 
flooding of, or damage to, the roads. If the County does not have the equipment 
necessary to remove such debris plugs, LADWP, if it has available equipment, 
will assist in removing such plugs. 

4. The payment of any portion of a Non-Compliance Payment assessed pursuant to 
the Stipulation and Order that is attributable to an action or inaction by the 
County. For the purposes of this section, the failure to agree to an annual work 
plan and/or budget by a Party shall not be deemed an action or inaction. 

5. The costs of County personnel in the planning and development of work 
·programs and budgets (including determinations of the need for adaptive 

management measures) or in any subsequent modifications thereof. 

D. POST-IMPLEMENTATION COSTS AND ACTIVITIES THAT ARE THE 
JOINT RESPONSIBILITY OF LADWP AND THE COUNTY 

The following activities shall be addressed in each annual work plan and budget 
prepared by the Parties. (Annual work plans and budgets are described in 
Section 2.2.1 of the Final LORP EIR and in Section II.F of this agreement.) 

1. The costs associated with operating and maintaining the flow measuring stations 
and the costs of hydrologic monitoring and data reporting associated with the 
physical features of the LORP. As provided in Section F.2 of the July II, 2007 
Stipulation and Order, ten flow monitoring stations must be maintained and 
operated until at least July II, 2009, and at least four permanent monitoring 

6 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

stations must be maintained and operated after that date. On July 9, 2009, the 
Standing Committee designated the four permanent monitoring stations that will 
be operated and maintained after July 11, 2009. The four permanent flow 
measuring stations are shown on Exhibit B. 

2. LADWP and the County will each be responsible for one-half the costs of a 
portion of the annual cost of maintaining ditches and Aqueduct spillgates, 
including the delta release control structure (a "Langemann Gate") and the 
LORP Spillgate Structure located near the Los Angeles Aqueduct Intake (which 
also includes the Lower Owens River release control structure; the release 
control structure is a Langemann Gate), shown on Exhibit C, that are above the 
pre-LORP annual average baseline cost of maintaining the ditches and spillgates 
during the ten fiscal years from 1996-1997 to 2005-2006. The pre-LORP 
baseline cost of maintaining the ditches and spill gates shown on Exhibit Cis 
$56,863.00. When this pre-LORP baseline cost for maintaining ditches and 
spillgates was adjusted through November 2009, an adjusted baseline cost of 
$60,819.00 resulted. Each January, this adjusted baseline cost of maintaining 
the ditches and spillgates shall be annually adjusted upward or downward in 
accordance with the November Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside All Urban 
Consumers Price Index or its successor. If, in the future, there is a significant 
change in non-LORP-related uses supplied by a ditch or spillgate shown on 
Exhibit C, the Parties will renegotiate appropriate changes to this section. 

3. The annual costs of habitat and water quality monitoring and associated data 
collection and reporting. 

4. The costs of consultants, if any (including Ecosystems Sciences), who assist in 
LORP-related monitoring, data collection, data analysis, and/or reporting. 

5. The costs of monitoring, treatment, and public education for mosquitoes 
(including the use of a helicopter for aerial spraying) arising from the various 
components of the LORP. (The County may use funds derived from its annual 
benefit assessment for mosquito control to fund its share of the cost of such 
work included in an annual work plan and budget.) 

6. LADWP and the County will each be responsible for one-half the costs of a 
portion of the annual costs of maintaining the Blackrock Waterfowl Area 
spillgates, ditches, dikes, berms, ponds, and other features shown on Exhibit D 
that are above the annual average pre-LORP baseline cost of maintaining the 
ditches, spillgates, dikes, berms, and other features during the ten fiscal years 
between 1996-1997 and 2005-2006. The pre-LORP baseline cost of 
maintaining the Blackrock Waterfowl Area features shown on Exhibit Dis 
$62,798.00. When this pre-LORP baseline cost for maintaining the Blackrock 
Waterfowl Area features was adjusted through November 2009, an adjusted 
baseline cost of$ $67,380.00 resulted. Each January, this adjusted baseline cost 
of maintaining Blackrock Waterfowl Area features shall be annually adjusted 
upward or downward in accordance with the November 
Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside All Urban Consumers Price Index or its 

7 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

successor. If, in the future, there is a significant change in non-LORP-related 
uses supplied by the Blackrock Waterfowl Area features shown on Exhibit D, 
the parties will renegotiate appropriate changes to this section. 

7. The costs of beaver control and beaver dam removal. 

8. The costs of salt cedar control that are covered by the funding for salt cedar 
control provided pursuant to Section 6 of the Stipulation and Order entered on 
September 15,2004 in the case of Sierra Club and Owens Valley Committee v. 
City of Los Angeles eta!. (case number SI CVCVOI-29768). 

9. The costs associated with the preparation of an annual report as required by 
Section 2.10.4.ofthe Final LORP EIR and by Section L of the Stipulation and 
Order. (The report shall include data collected during the year, results of 
analysis, and recommendations for the need for adaptive management 
measures.) 

10. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, the costs of permits or environmental 
assessments associated with the conducting any of the activities described in an 
approved annual work plan or in an approved amended annual work plan 
including, but not limited to, California Department ofFish and Game 1601 
permits, Regional Water Quality Control Board 401 permits, United States 
Army Corp of Engineers 404 permits, and any California Environmental 
Quality Act compliance. (The implementation of some post-implementation 
activities may be subject to the ability to obtain permits to conduct the 
post-implementation activities.) 

E. OTHER POST-IMPLEMENTATION WORK 

Any post-implementation cost or activity that the Parties deem necessary that is not 
listed in II.D above may be included in an annual work program and budget described 
in Section II.F below. Such costs and activities include, but are not limited to, 
adaptive management measures, control of noxious weeds within the LORP area, 
replacement of capital improvements, and salt cedar control attributable to the LORP 
that is proposed to be conducted that will cost more than the funding available for salt 
cedar controlpursuant to Section 6 of the Stipulation and Order entered on 
September 15,2004 in the case of Sierra Club and Owens Valley Committee v. City 
of Los Angeles et al. (case number SICVCVOI-29768). 

F. POST -IMPLEMENTATION WORK PLANS AND BUDGETS 

1. With regard to annual work plans and budgets, Section 2.2.1 of the Final LORP 
EIR provides in pertinent part as follows: 

Also, following the implementation of the LORP, in December of 
each year, the Technical Group will develop and adopt an annual 
work program describing the work to be performed in regard to the 
LORP (including the implementation of adaptive management 

8 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

measures) during the following fiscal year. Each work program will 
identifY who will perform or oversee the work, a schedule for the 
performance of the work and a budget. Following adoption by the 
Technical Group, the work programs will be submitted to the County 
and LAD WP governing boards for consideration of approval. 
Meetings of each governing board are open to the public. Before the 
work plans and accompanying budgets can be implemented, they 
will have to be approved by each governing board. 

If the Technical Group is in disagreement over the need to 
implement an adaptive management measure or over the content of a 
work program, the disagreement will be submitted to the lnyo 
County/Los Angeles Standing Committee ("Standing Committee'') 
for resolution. The Standing Committee was formed in 1982 and 
consists of both managers and elected and appointed officials from 
the County and LAD WP. Its meetings are open to· the public. If the 
Standing Committee is unable to resolve a disagreement, the 
disagreement will be submitted to the governing boards of each 
entity for resolution. If the governing boards are unable to agree on 
all, or any part, of a work program, the portion of the program in 
disagreement will not be implemented. Further, if the governing 
boards are in disagreement over the need to implement an adaptive 
management measure, the measure will not be implemented. 

2. By approximately April 1, 2010, and by approximately the 1st of April of each 
following year, if the Technical Group is in agreement on an annual work plan 
and budget, then each Party shall submit to its governing board or to its 
designee a work plan and budget for any post-implementation cost or activity 
that is attributable to the LORP and that is planned to be conducted by the 
Parties during the year commencing the following July 1, together with a 
recommendation that the work plan and budget be approved. (A copy of the 
2009-2010 Work Plan and Budget that has been approved by the Technical 
Group is attached as Exhibit E.) Each work plan shall include activities 
identified in Section II.D and may include activities described Section !I.E. 
Each work plan and budget will identify the activities (including any adaptive 
management modifications deemed necessary) for each of the four LORP 
physical features (Riverine Area, Delta Area, Off River Lakes and Ponds, and 
the Blackrock Waterfowl Area) and any other components of the LORP. 

3. Each work plan shall identify who will perform or oversee the work, activity or 
program (i.e., LADWP and/or the County and/or outside contractor), and shall 
include a schedule for the performance of the work, activity or program. For 
each item in the budget, the budget shall identify the work that will be 
conducted by each Party. Each work plan will divide the planned work using the 
procedure employed by the Parties in developing the 2009-2010 Work Plan and 
Budget. Each Party will bear its own costs for conducting its portion of the work 
described in the work plan. As may be applicable, the following principles shall 

9 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

guide the assignment oflabor rates in the preparation of a work plan and 
budget: 

a. If the Parties agree that LADWP will conduct work for the reason that 
LADWP would prefer to conduct the work even though the County is 
willing to perform the work, the costs of such work will be shared by the 
Parties using the County's labor rates (or a contractor's labor 
rates--whichever is lower). 

b. If the Parties agree that LADWP will conduct work because the County is 
unable to conduct it, the costs of such extra work will be shared by the 
Parties based upon LADWP's labor rates. 

c. If the Parties agree that the County will conduct work for the reason that the 
County would prefer to conduct the work even though LADWP is willing to 
perform the work, the costs of such work will be shared by the Parties based 
upon LADWP's labor rates. 

4. If the work plan and budget calls for services or work to be performed by a 
contractor, the work plan will identify which Party will be responsible for 
awarding and administering each such contract. Beginning with the 2010-2011 
fiscal year, the County will award and administer any contract with Ecosystem 
Sciences, Inc., unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, for work agreed upon by 
the Parties involving the LORP (exclusive of a contract for the management and 
monitoring oflivestock grazing and utilization in the LORP area). 

5. In the event that the Technical Group is in disagreement over whether an item 
should be included in a work plan, over the amount of work performed on an 
item, over whether an item should be included in a budget, over the amount of 
an item to be included in a budget, or over another work plan-related item, the 
issue(s) in disagreement shall be submitted to the Standing Committee for 
resolution. If the Standing Committee resolves the disagreement, each Party will 
submit the recommended resolution to its governing board or to its designee, 
together with a recommendation that it be approved. If the Standing Committee 
carmot resolve a disagreement, the issues in disagreement will be submitted to 
the governing boards of each Party for resolution. Alternatively, before 
submitting the disagreement to the governing boards, the Standing Committee 
may agree to submit the disagreement to an impartial third party to review the 
issue or issues in disagreement and to issue a non-binding recommendation for 
resolution of the disagreement. If a third party recommendation is issued, and 
the disagreement is not resolved, the governing boards may consider the 
recommendation of the third party, but neither board is required to accept or 
implement the recommendation. If the governing bodies carmot resolve a 
disagreement, the activity or adaptive management measure in question will not 
be jointly conducted or funded; however, one Party may agree to conduct such 
an activity or implement an adaptive management measure at its own cost and 
to fund any increased costs (operation, maintenance, etc.) that result from the 
activity or measure in subsequent years. Concerning funding for activities 

10 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

described in Sections II.D and II.E, Section 2.2.2.2 of the Final LORP EIR 
provides in pertinent part: 

As required by law, decisions as to the availability of funding for 
the LORP will be made annually by the Inyo County Board of 
Supervisors and by the LAD WP Board of Water and Power 
Commissioners. In the event that one or both governing boards 
determine that there are insufficient funds available to cover the 
entity's share of the costs of the LORP, each entity will evaluate 
the situation and will take such action as it deems appropriate 
under the then existing applicable law. 

6. To the extent that the County finds that funding is available, the County will 
first provide funding for activities included in annual LORP work plans and 
budgets that are essential to complying with applicable court orders and legal 
commitments. A list of such activities, in descending order of priority, follows: 

a. Work and activities required to maintain required flows in the river and 
required water supplies to the other components of the LORP. 

b. Maintenance and operational costs associated with flow compliance 
monitoring and reporting required by the Stipulation and Order. 

c. Habitat and water quality monitoring as described in the then current version 
of the LORP Adaptive Management Plan or required to comply with the 
requirements of Lahontan Region Water Quality Control Board. 

d. The preparation of an annual report as required by Section 2.1 0.4 of the 
Final LORP EIR and by Section L of the Stipulation and Order. 

e. Other work and activities including the implementation of adaptive 
management measures. 

7. Once an annual work plan and budget have been approved, the County and 
LADWP shall each have the right to monitor and review the work and activities 
performed by the other Party to ensure compliance with the work plan and 
budget. Also, neither Party shall approve a change order or a modification of 
any contract that provides for work and services that are identified in the work 
plan as being jointly funded by the Parties unless the change order or 
modification has been approved by the Parties. 

G. AMENDMENT OF WORK PLANS AND BUDGETS 

I. In the event that the need to conduct post-implementation activity arises 
following the adoption of an annual work program and budget, the Technical 
Group shall develop an amended work program, a schedule, and an amended 
budget that identifies the work that will be conducted by each Party. The cost 
sharing for the work identified in the amended work plan shall be as provided in 

11 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With TechnicalCorrections of May 18, 2010) 

Section F .3. The amended work plan and budget shall be submitted by each 
Party to its governing board or to its authorized designee together with a 
recommendation for approval. 

2. In the event that the Technical Group is in disagreement over the amended work 
program or amended budget, the issues in disagreement shall be resolved as 
provided in Sections II.F.5 and II.F.6. 

H. URGENT WORK 

1. In the event of a situation where it is necessary to immediately conduct 
post-implementation work or an activity in order to protect public health or 
safety, to comply with the provisions of the Stipulation and Order, or to ensure 
the integrity or the efficient operation of the project, LADWP and/or Inyo 
County, will conduct the work (or cause the work to be conducted). The In yo 
County Administrator and the Manager of the Los Angeles Aqueduct will meet 
within 48 hours from commencement of the work and attempt to agree on the 
need for the urgent work. As soon as practicable thereafter, the Parties will 
prepare a report that describes the work conducted, the cost of the work, and a 
recommendation as to the portion of the cost of the work to be funded by each 
agency. In the event that these individuals are in disagreement over the need for 
the urgent work or the apportionment of costs, if the other Party does not object, 
the other Party may continue to conduct such an activity at the risk of assuming 
the entire cost of the activity being conducted. 

2. Ifthere is no agreement on the urgency of the activity or the cost apportionment, 
the issue(s) in disagreement shall be submitted to the Standing Committee for 
resolution. If they cannot resolve a disagreement, the issues in disagreement will 
be submitted to the governing boards of each Party for resolution. If the 
governing bodies cannot resolve .a disagreement, the issues in disagreement 
shall be resolved as provided in Sections II.F.5 and II.F.6. 

I. POST-IMPLEMENTATION THIRD PARTY FUNDING 

The Standing Committee may agree that the Parties will jointly seek funding from a 
third party for the post-implementation costs of the LORP. LADWP will not 
unreasonably withhold permission to the County for the use of Los Angeles-owned 
lands for a post-implementation project proposed to be funded by third-party funds as 
long as the proposed project is consistent with this agreement and the goals of the 
LORP. Any such jointly agreed upon third-party funds obtained will be expended as 
agreed by the Standing Committee. This provision for Standing Committee 
agreement on third-party funding does not preclude either Party from individually 
seeking funding from a third party to fund its share of the post-implementation costs 
of the LORP. However, unless the Parties otherwise agree upon an amendment to the 
work plan and budget, the receipt of funds from a third party by one Party will not 
affect the post-implementation funding commitment of the other Party. Moreover, it 
shall be the responsibility of the Party receiving the third-party funding to pay any 
costs and perform any compliance work related to the funding received. 

12 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

J. ADJUSTMENTS AND PAYMENTS 

1. Initial Adjustment of the Post Implementation Credit 

Within ten days of approval of this agreement by the governing boards of the 
Parties, LADWP shall adjust the Post Implementation Credit described in 
Recitals 7 and 8 by increasing it by 2.9 percent, an increase in accordance with 
the July 2007 Los Angeles-Anaheim-Riverside All Urban Consumers Price 
Index ("price index"). 

2. Debits and Payments 

a. Except for $22,652.00 in costs for adaptive management measures that will. 
be conducted during 2009-2010 that were not conducted in previous years, 
the County's share of the costs of the 2009-2010 work plan and budget 
($243,524.00) shall be the amount of the County's financial obligations for 
the June 11, 2007 to June 30, 2008 period and for the 2008-2009 fiscal year. 

b. Within 30 days after approval of this agreemeht by the governing bodies of 
the Parties, LADWP shall take the following actions in the following order: 

1. To cover the County's obligation for July 11, 2007 to June 30,2008 
period, LADWP shall reduce the Post Implementation Credit by 
$243,524.00. 

n. Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 
5.7% based upon the July 2008 price index. 

111. To cover the County's obligation for 2008-2009 fiscal year, LADWP 
shall reduce the Post Implementation Credit by the amount of 
$243,524.00. 

IV. Reduce the remaining balance of the Post Implementation c;redit by 
1.3% based upon the April 2009 pricte index. 

v. Reduce the remaining balance by the amount of $266,176.00, 
reflecting the County's share of the costs for the 2009-2010 work plan 
and budget, including adaptive management. 

c. Commencing on July 10, 2010, and effective as of July I 0 of each following 
year fm; as long as a credit remains in the Post Implement Credit, LADWP 
shall adjust the amount of the credit upward or downward in accordance 
with the previous April's price index. 

13 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

d. On each July 21 following July 21,2009 through July 21,2021 (or on the 
next business day thereafter if a July 21 is not a business day) for as long as 
sufficient funds remain in the Post Implementation Credit, LADWP shall 
annually reduce the credit by the County's cost obligation identified in that 
year's annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

e. Once the balance in the Post Implementation Credit has been reduced to an 
amount that is insufficient to cover the amount of the required debit, 
LADWP will reduce the Post Implementation Credit to zero, and the County 
will make a payment to LADWP from the Trust Account in the amount of 
the difference. Thereafter, on or before July 21 of each year through July 21, 
2021, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP from the Trust 
Account in the amount of the County's cost obligation identified in an 
annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

f. If, on or before November 1, 2021, the amount remaining in the Trust 
Account is insufficient to cover a required payment to LADWP, the County 
shall pay the remaining balance in the Trust Account to LADWP and shall 
make a supplemental payment in the amount of the difference to LADWP; 
on or before November 1 of each year through November 1, 2021, the 
County shall make an annual payment to LADWP in the amount ofthe 
County's share of any post-implementation cost or activity (including 
adaptive management measures) identified in an annual work plan and 
budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

g. If an amendment to a work plan and budget is agreed upon as provided in 
Section II.G or if a modification of a work plan and budget to conduct 
urgent work is agreed upon as provided in Section II.H, within 60 days of 
the agreement, either the Post Implementation Credit, and/or the Trust 
Account will be debited in the amount of the County's share of the increased 
costs or the County will make a payment to LADWP in the amount of the 
County's share of the increased costs. 

h. Each year, at the election of the County, the County may reimburse itself 
from the Trust Account for LORP-related, non-reimbursed costs incurred by 
the County for activities or work performed by the County under an annual 
work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

3. Annual Accounting Reports 

a. Beginning on October 31, 2Q09 and on or before each October 31 thereafter 
through October 31, 2022, an annual accounting report that describes the 
work performed pursuant to the previous year's approved work plan, and the 
costs incurred by each Party in performing such work shall be submitted to 
the governing board of each Party or the Party's designee. The accounting 
report will identify the difference, if any, between the actual costs incurred 
by each Party and the actual work performed by each Party as compared to 
the costs and work for that Party that were identified in that year's approved 

14 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

work plan and budget. The costs will be documented by timesheets and 
other appropriate documentation. It is recognized that actual costs incurred 
by the Parties will likely be different than the amounts budgeted in the 
approved work plan(s). The accounting must be approved by the governing 
board of each Party or by the Party's designee. 

b. Except as provided in Section II.J.3.c below, if a Party fully performs the 
share of the work allocated to it in an annual work plan (as may be . 
modified) and if the Party has fully funded its share of contract costs (as 
may be modified by change order) as identified in an annual budget, that 
party is in compliance with this agreement, and there shall be no 
reconciliation of hours or costs even if an annual accounting report or an 
audit shows that the Party expended more or less time in performing the 
work than was estimated in the annual work and/or budget. However, the 
results of any annual accounting report, audit, or other information maybe 
used to guide the development of future years' annual work plans. 

c. If an annual accounting report shows that the amount paid by a Party for 
contract services and/or contract work was less than the amount budgeted 
for the contract services and/or contract work, to reconcile the change with 
the approved budget, the accounting report will specify whether a payment 
should be made by LADWP to the County or whether a debit from the Post 
Implementation Credit and/or Trust Account or whether the County should 
make a payment to LADWP. (There is no need to reconcile increased 
contract costs since the work plan will be modified if, pursuant to 
Section F.8, there is an agreed upon contract change order that increases the 
cost of the contract.) 

d. At any time within three years after submission of the accounting, either 
Party shall have the right to conduct an audit of the expenditures itemized in 
the accounting by providing 30 days calendar notice to the other Party. The 
Party being audited shall provide the other Party with an office to conduct 
this audit along with all requested documents and information at no cost to 
the other Party. The Party conducting the audit shall bear the costs of 
conducting the audit. The Party conducting the audit shall promptly conduct 
and complete it and shall notify the other Party in writing of any expenditure 
that it believes is improper. The Party being audited shall promptly respond 
to any claim of an improper expenditure in writing. If the County and 
LADWP are in disagreement over whether an expenditure was improper, the 
matter will be submitted to the Standing Committee for resolution. If the 
Standing Committee is in agreement, the Parties will submit a proposed 
resolution of the matter, if any, to the governing boards of each entity or 
their designees. If the Standing Committee cannot agree, the issue(s) in 
dispute will resolved as provided in Section ILK. 

15 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

K. DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

1. Any dispute arising under this agreement that cannot be resolved by the Parties, 
except those disputes that are subject to dispute resolution under Sections II.F.5 
and II.F.6, may be submitted to dispute resolution under Section XXVI of the 
Water Agreement. The Parties agree that because any dispute arising out of this 
agreement that has not been resolved by the Parties has already been considered 
by the Technical Group and the Standing Committee, dispute resolution under 
Section XXVI of the Water Agreement will commence by submitting the matter 
to mediation/temporary arbitration as described in Section XXVI.C of the Water 
Agreement. 

2. Such mediation/temporary arbitration must be commenced by providing the 
Standing Committee with a written notice within 45 days of a failure by the 
governing boards of the Parties to resolve a dispute. A failure to submit the 
notice within the 45-day period shall be a waiver of the right to dispute an issue. 
The written notice shall describe the dispute and the disputing Party's argument 
in favor of its position. The other Party shall submit its argument in favor of its 
position to the other Party and to the mediators within 30 days of the submission 
of the initiating Party's notice. If, within 45 days of the submission of the 
responding Party's argument, the dispute has not been resolved, the mediators 
shall submit written findings to the Standing Committee. If a Party disagrees 
with the findings of the mediators, the dispute may be submitted to a Superior 
Court Judge as provided in Section XXVI.D of the Water Agreement. 

L. NO FINANCIAL SET OFF 

In the event that LADWP believes that this agreement has given rise to an obligation 
of the County that the County has not paid, in the absence of a final judgment from a 
court of competent jurisdiction that expressly allows LADWP to set off such an 
obligation of the County against any funding required to be provided or credited by 
LADWP to the County under the Water Agreement or under the LORP Funding 
Agreement, LADWP shall not reduce the amount of any payment to the County 
called for by the Water Agreement. · 

M. AMENDMENTS 

This agreement may only be amended by written agreement of LADWP and the 
County. After the completion of the 2010-2011 fiscal year, the Parties will consider 
whether any of the other provisions of this agreement should be amended to better 
reflect the Parties' experience during the first five years of this agreement. 

N. AMENDMENT OF SECTION A.2 OF THE LORP FUNDING AGREEMENT 

The last sentence of the third paragraph of Section A.2 (page 5) of the LORP Funding 
Agreement between the County and LADWP provides that the County will only be 
required to pay its share of the LORP post-implementation costs from the Trust 
Account after the Post Implementation Credit has been fully expended. 

16 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

Section II.J.2.h above provides that each year, at the election of the County, the 
County may reimburse itself from the Trust Account for LORP-related, 
non-reimbursed costs incurred by the County for activities or work performed by the 
County under an annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. In 
order to make the provisions of the LORP Funding Agreement and this agreement 
consistent, the last sentence of the third paragraph of Section A.2 (page 5) of the 
LORP Funding Agreement is amended to read as follows (amendments are shown in 
italics): 

Only after the credit has been fully expended will be the County be 
required to pay to LADWP its share of the LORP post-implementation 
costs from the trust account established pursuant to section B below; 
however, before the credit has been fully expended, the County may 
reimburse itself from the trust account for LOR- related, non-reimbursed 
costs incurred by the County for activities or work performed by the 
County that the County conducts under an annual work plan and budget 
that has been approved by the County and LADWP. 

0. CONSULTATION WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND 
GAME ON SEASONAL HABITAT FLOWS 

1. The 1997 Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power, County oflnyo, California Department ofFish 
and Game ("DFG"), California State Lands Commission, Sierra Club, and the 
Owens Valley Committee, Section II.C.l.b.ii, addresses a seasonal habitat flow 
in the riverine riparian system. The section states: 

A seasonal habitat flow. It is currently estimated that in the 
years when the runoff in the Owens River watershed is 
forecasted to be average or above aver-age, the amount of 
planned seasonal habitat flows will be approximately 200 eft, 
unless the Parties agree upon an alternative habitat flow with 
higher unplanned flows when runoff exceeds the capacity of the 
Los Angeles Aqueduct. (The runoff forecast for each year will 
be DWP's runoff year forecast for the Owens River Basin, 
which is based upon the results of its annual April] snow 
survey of the watershed.) In yem;s when runoff is forecasted to 
be less than average, the habitat flows will be reduced from 
200 eft to as low as 40 eft in general proportion to the 
forecasted runoff in the watershed. The amount of the annual 
habitat flow will be set by the Standing Committee, subject to 
any applicable court orders concerning the discharge of water 
onto the bed of Owens Lake and in consultation with DFG, and 
be based on the Lower Owens River Riverine-Riparian 
Ecosystem element of the LORP Plan, which will recommend 
the amount, duration and timing df flows necessary to achieve 
the goals for the system under varying hydrologic scenarios. 

17 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

2. In order to address the requirement that the amount of annual habitat flow 
will be set by the Standing Committee in consultation with DFG, 
including the amount, duration, timing, and ramping of water releases to 
the river, the following process will be followed. 

a. Soon after the first of April each year, LADWP will 
develop its annual runoff year forecast for the Owens River 
Basin. The runoff year forecast will be developed as 
described in Section 2.3.5.3 of the LORP EIR. 
within 21 days of the release of runoff year forecast, 
LADWP and the County will transmit a recommendation or 
separate recommendations concerning the amount, 
duration, timing, and ramping ofthe seasonal habitat flow, 
along with LADWP 's annual runoff year forecast for the 
Owens River Basin, to DFG. DFG will be requested to, 
within ten business days from receipt of the 
recommendation, provide their concurrence with the 
recommendations or provide their own recommendation as 
to the amount, duration, timing, and ramping of the 
seasonal habitat flow along with the scientific basis for its 
differing recommendation. 

b. The Standing Committee will meet before the release of each 
seasonal habitat flow to consider setting the amount, duration, 
timing, and ramping of seasonal habitat flow. An action item 
entitled "Setting the Seasonal Habitat Flow" will be placed on 
the agenda of that Standing Committee meeting during which the 
LORP seasonal habitat flows will be considered. The Standing 
Committee will provide an opportunity for DFG to make a 
presentation at the meeting concerning its recommendations. 
Following the presentation, the Standing Committee will 
act on setting the seasonal habitat flow. 

P. CONSULTATION WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND 
GAME ON THE AMOUNT OF FLOODED AREA IN THE BLACKROCK 
WATERFOWL HABITAT AREA 

I. Section II. C.4 of the 1997 Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, County oflnyo, California 
Department ofFish and Game, California State Lands Commission, Sierra Club, 
and the Owens Valley Committee, addresses the "1500 Acre Blackrock 
Waterfowl Habitat Area." The section states: 

Approximately 5 00 acres of the habitat area will be flooded at 
any given time in a year when the runoff to the Owens River 
Watershed is forecasted to be average or above. In years when 
the runoff is forecasted to be less than average, the water 
supply to the area will be reduced in general proportion to the 

18 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

forecasted runoff in the watershed. (The runoff forecast for 
each year will be DWP's runoff year forecast for the Owens 
River Basin, which is based upon the results of its annual 
April] snow survey of the watershed.) Even in the driest 
years, available water will be used in the most efficient manner 
to maintain the habitat. The Wildlife and Wetlands 
Management Plan element of the LORP Plan will recommend 
the water supply to be made available under various runoff 
conditions and will recommend how to best use the available 
water in dry years. The amount of acreage to be flooded in 
years when the runoff is forecasted to be less than average will 
be set by the Standing Committee based upon the 
recommendations of the Wildlife and Wetlands Management 
Plan and in consultation with DFG. " 

2. In order to address the requirement that when runoff is forecasted to be less than 
average, the amount of acreage to be flooded will be set by the Standing 
Committee in consultation with DFG the following process will be followed. 

a. Soon after the first of April each year, LADWP will develop its annual 
runoff year forecast for the Owens River Basin. The runoff year forecast 
will be developed as described in Section 2.3.5.3 of the LORP EIR. In the 
event the runoff forecast equals or exceeds "normal runoff' as defined in 
Section 2.3.5.3 of the 2004 Final LORP EIR, no further action is required. 

b. If the runoff forecast is for less than the normal runoff, the year will be 
considered a Dry Year, and consultation with the Department of Fish and 
Game ("DFG") will occur on the development of a Dry Year Blackrock 
Management Plan. In a Dry Year, by approximately the second or third 
week in April, LADWP and the County will transmit the recommendation 
concerning the amount of acreage to be flooded, along with LADWP's 
annual runoff year forecast for the Owens River Basin to DFG. DFG will be 
requested to, within ten business days from receipt of the recommendation, 
provide their, concurrence with the recommendation or provide their own 
recommendation as to the amount of acreage to be flooded, along with the 
scientific basis for its differing recommendation. 

c. In dry years when DFG has a differing recommendation, a report on the 
difference will be provided to the Standing Committee and a Standing 
Committee meeting will be scheduled. An action item entitled 
"Establishment of Dry Year Blackrock Management Plan" will be placed on 
the Standing Committee agenda. The Standing Committee will provide an 
opportunity for DFG to make a presentation at the meeting concerning its 
recommendations. Following any such presentation by DFG, the Standing 
Committee will consider adoption of a Dry Year Blackrock Management 
Plan. 

19 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

Q. LONG TERM 1600 AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND GAME 

Section II.I.2 of the MOU requires a long-term agreement with DFG under. 
Section 160lofCalifornia Fish and Game Code "that covers any such activities that 
are described and addressed in the LORP EIR." LADWP is seeking this agreement 
with DFG and began discussions with DFG and the County on draft of the agreement 
in September 2008. DFG released a copy ofLADWP's 1600 application to the 
parties to the MOU in June 2009. LADWP shall consult with the County prior to 
entering into the agreement (and visa versa if the County is required to enter into its 
own 1600 agreement). 

R. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY 
ACT 

The Final LORP Monitoring, Adaptive Management and Reporting Plan, prepared by 
Ecosystem Sciences Inc. and dated April 28, 2008, made a change to the project 
description contained in the LORP EIR by adding augmentation of seasonal habitat 
flows as an adaptive management measure. LADWP has prepared and released to the 
parties to the MOU an addendum to the Final LORP EIR that addresses this change. 

S. CONSULTATION WITH THE LORP ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

1. The Final LORP Monitoring, Adaptive Management and Reporting Plan dated 
April28, 2008 provides that a LORP Advisory Committee consisting ofDFG, 
the Sierra Club, the Owens Valley Committee and LADWP lessees in the 
Owens Valley will be consulted at least twice in each monitoring year. 
Section 3.3 of the LORP Adaptive Management Plan (pages 3-6) provides that 
the first consultation will occur after the annual "rapid assessment survey" to 
inform the parties and alert them to issues or concerns that will need to be dealt 
with when making adaptive management decisions. The Advisory Committee 
will be provided with a communication on the issues and concerns derived from 
the annual rapid assessment survey, and the Advisory Committee will be invited 
to submit written comments on the need for adaptive management that are based 
upon the results of the survey. 

2. Section 3.3 of the LORP Adaptive Management Plan (pages 3-6) also provides 
that a second consultation will occur once the "Scientific Team" has drafted its 
recommendations for adaptive management and compiled monitoring data and 
analyses. In accordance with Section L of the July 2007 Stipulation and Order, 
the Advisory Committee and the public will be provided with the draft of the 
annual LORP report, which will include "results of analysis and 
recommendations on the need for adaptive management actions" (described in 
Section 2.1 0.4 of the Final LORP EIR), at least 15 days in advance of a public 
meeting on the information contained in the report. The Advisory Committee 

20 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

and the public will have the opportunity to offer comments on the draft report 
within a 15-day period following the public meeting. Following consideration of 
any comments submitted, the Technical Group will conduct a meeting as 
described in Section 2.1 0.4 of the Final LORP EIR. 

T. TERM 

The provisions of this agreement will terminate on July 11, 2022; however, for the 
purpose of allowing for an audit to be conducted pursuant to Section I!.J .3 .d, and to 
allow time for the reconciliation of any accounting disputes that may arise under 
Section II.J.3.d the Parties agree that the· applicable provisions of the agreement will 
be extended as necessary for those limited purposes. The Parties will make a 
determination of the obligations for any ongoing operation and maintenance activities 
and associated funding at the time of the effective termination of this agreement. 

U. NOTIFICATIONS 

Any notification required by this Agreement shall be made as set forth below. 
A change in the recipient or a change of the address of a recipient will be provided in 
writing to the other Party. 

To the County: 

Inyo County Administrator 
P.O. DrawerN 
Independence, California 93 526 
Email: kcarunchio@inyocounty.us 

Director, Inyo County Water Department 
P.O. Box 337 
Independence, California 93526 
Email: bharrington@inyocounty.us 

ToLADWP: 

Director of Water Operations 
Box 51111 
Room 1460 
Los Angeles, California 90051-5700 
Email: martin.adams@ladwp.com 

Manager, Aqueduct Business Group 
300 Mandich Street 
Bishop, California 93514-3449 
Email: gene.coufal@ladwp.com 

21 



Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement 
(With Technical Corrections of May 18, 2010) 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Los Angeles Department ofWater and Power and the 
County of In yo have caused this Lower Owens River Project Post Implementation Agreement to 
be executed by their duly authorized representatives. 

City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 

Dated: _&_,_(_r .L_(f_O_ 

County of In yo 

Dated: 00 -/) -)010 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY 
CARMEN A. TRlJTANICH, CI1Y ATTORNEY 

DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER 
THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES BY THE 

BOARD OF WATER AND POWER COMMISSIONERS 
OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES 

By: 

And: 

By: 

Inyo County Administrator 

22 



II Exhibit A II 

I SHEET 1 of4 I 
LORP 

lnyo County & LADWP 
Maintained Roads 

' 

.. ·-----·---'[ ------~~ 



36 31 32 

03 

29 2B 

31 32 32 



I 

'lo-':c--t---.;; .. ~,._j~ .... = = a>,,-

34 

01 

Z! 

I 

1----
i "' 

0 

Jl Exhibit A IJ 

I SHEET 3 of4 I 
LORP 

lnyo County & LADWP 
Maintained Roads 

0.5 1.5 
HHH E""3 

Miles 

INYOCOUNTY 
MAINTAINED ROADS 

•"· '· .. LADVVP MAINTAINED ROADS 

13 

' 

19 

I ~ .. . . L ,., -_ __,, 3J 

--,--1 ! 

r , 

-I ___ ------·}----·-··- . 

! 
' 

-+ 
l\ 07 

18 



"' 07 

II Exhibit A II 

I I SHEET 4 of4 
17 

LORP 
lnyo County & LADWP 

Maintained Roads 

N 
0 0.5 1 1.5 W+E BBB I I 

Miles 

' 
IN YO COUNTY 
MAINTAINED ROADS 

LADWP MAINTAINED ROADS 

"' 31 "' .. " "' 

02 01 

13 '--.18 

21 10 21 22 

"' "' Z1 

"' 

31 

"' "' "' "' 02 01 "' 

"' "' 10 11 12 07 



INDEPENDENCE 

Legend 

• MEASURING STATIONS 

DITCHES AND 
- OVV'ENS RIVER 

LOS ANGELES 
-AQUEDUCT 

II Exhibit B II 
LORP 

Location Map 
Permanent Flow Gaging Stations 

Miles 
0 2 4 
H H I 

N 

W+E 
s 

RIVER AT MAZOURKA CYN RD 

OWENS RIVER AT REINHACKLE SPRINGS 

P,f! M P BACK STAT I 0 N 
- S>T~ATION OUTFLOW 
- LAN•GEMANN GATE 
- PON;y,_SPILLWAY 



INDEPENDENCE 

OWENS RIVER AT INTAKE 
(Langemann Gate) 

II Exhibit C II 

LORP 
Spillgates and Ditches 

To Be Maintained 
(Exclusive of the 

Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area) 

0 
H H 

Mles 
2 4 

Billy lake Outlet S!rucb.Jre and Culvert 

OWENS RIVER AT MAZOURKA CYN RD 

Georges Retum To Owens River 

OWENS RIVER AT REINHACKLE SPRINGS 



Blackrock Ditch 
Return to Owens River 

Upper Twin L 

II Exhibit 0 II 
Blackrock 

Management Area 
Berms, Ditches and Structures 

To Be Maintained 

"" 1,000 4,000 6,000 

N 

W+E 
$ 

-· 

Goose Lake Return 

1. Lacey Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
2. Winterton Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
3. 4 Corners Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
4. Drew Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
5. Div. #5 Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
6. Waggoner Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 
7. Lower Twfn Diversion Cordrol, Measuring Station. & Ditch 
8. Upper Twfn Diversion Control, Measuring Station & Ditch 

legend · 

• Water Control 
~Berm 

c:::JManagement Areas 



Exhibit E 

2009-2010 Fiscal Year 

Lower Owens River Project 

Workplan and Budget 

FINAL 
Prepared by Inyo County Water Department 

and 
Los Angeles Deplll'tment of Water and Power 

March 30, 2009 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

This 2009-2010 Fiscal Year (July I to June 30) Lower Owens River P.roject Workplan was 
jointly prepared by staff of the In yo County Water Department and the Los Angeles Department 
of Water and Power. This workplan was adopted by the Inyo County/Los Angeles Technical 
Group on March 30, 2008. The Technical Group recommends that the 2009·2010 Fiscal Year 
Lower Owens River Project Workplan be approved by the lnyo County Board ofSupervisors 
und the City of Los Angeles Board of Water and Power of Commissioners. 

Introduction 
The Final Environmental Impact Report for the Lower Owens River Project Section 2.2.1 
provides that in December of each year, the Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) Technical 
Group will develop and adopt an annual work program for the Lower Owen River Project 
(LORP) describing work regarding the LORP to be performed in the following fiscal year, 
including implementation of adaptive management measures. Baoh work program will identify 
who will perform or oversee tasks, a schedule, and a budget. Following adoption by the 
Technical Group, the work programs will be submitted to the County and LAOWP governing 
board for approval. Before a work plan and budget can be implemented, it must be approved by 
each governing board. This document is the work plan for fiscal year July 2009 - June 2010. 

The objectives of this work plan are to maintain compliance with the July 11, 2007 Superior 
Court Stipulation lllld Order in case no. S l CVCVOI-29768, conduct monitoring necessary to 
achieve the LORP goals described in the 1998 Memorandum ofUnderstanding, maintain 
infrastructure necessary to the operation of the LORP, and implement adaptive management 
measures. The following priorities are observed in this workplan: 

I. Work and activities required to maintain required flows in the river and required water 
supplies to other LORP components. · 

2. Maintenance associated with flow compliance monitoring and reporting associated \vith 
the above referenced Stipulation and Order. 

3. Habitat and water quality monitoring described in the LORP Monitoring t~~id Adaptive 
Mm1agement Plan (ESI 2008), or required to comply with the requirements of !he 
Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

4. The preparation of tbe LORP Annual Report as required by Section 2.1 0.4 of the LORP 
final EIR and by Section L of the above referenced Stipulation and Order. 

S. Other work or activities including the implementation of adaptive management measures. 

Section I of this workplan covers maintenance, monitoring, mosquito abatement, weed 
management, salt cedar contro~ and operations. Section 2 of this workplan addresses adaptive 
management measures. Weed management and Saltcedarcontrol activities are tasked and 
funded under separate agreements and not described in this work plan. 

March 30, 2009 2 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Summa; 2009- 2010 fiscal year Monitoring and Adaptive Management Budget. 
I Cateso Total I 

Hydrologic monitoring $255,9~ 
Blologio and Water Quality $77,989 
Maintenance $239.187 
Mosquito Abatement $127 .ooo• 
Adaptive Manasement $45.304 

I Total $745,433 I 
• includes 567,000 conlingency for ..,rial nppliCUiions 

The budget amount reflects the additional costs above equal sharing of work by the parties and 
does not include the costs oflnyo and LA staff times where they oftSet. 

March 30, 2009 3 



2009- 2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Section J. Malnwnanee and Monitoring Tasks 

The maintenance and monitoring portion of this work plan consists of seven categories of tasks: 
maintenance, hydrologic monitoring, biological/water quality monitoring, range monitoring. 
mosquito abatement, weed management, and salt cedar control . 

Maintenance. Maintenance activities consist of cleaning sediment accumulations and other 
obstriiCtions from water measurement facilities, cleaning sediment and aquatic vegetation from 
ditches, mowing ditch margins, fence repair, and adjustments to flow control structures. 
Estimates ofthe level of effort necessary for maintenance were based on the level of effort that 
was required during 2008- 2009. 

Hydrologic Monitoring. Hydrologic monitoring consists of monitoring, analyzing, and reporting 
river basellows and seasonal habitat flows, the flooded extent of !he Blackrock Waterfowl 
Management Area (BWMA), the levels of the Off-River Lakes and Ponds, and baseflows, pulse 
flows. and seasonal habitat flows to the Delta. Estimates of the level of effort required for 
hydrologic monitoring were based on the level of effort required during 2008 - 2009. with the 
exception that it was assumed that the number of measuring stations in the river corridor would 
be reduced to four, and that the temporary flow measu«ment stations in the delta will be 
discontinued. This assumption is based on the Standing Committee taking action on the 
permanent monitoring stations early in the 2009-2010 fiscal year. 

Currently, lhe flooded acreage of !he BWMA is being measured by walking the perimeterofthe 
flooded area on foot with GPS every two weeks. Based on the measured Rooded area. flows 
have been adjusted to maintain a fixed acreage. Two problems have arisen: {I) because lhe 
flows have been adjusted constantly, no relation has been apparent between water inputs and 
flooded acres, and (2) walking the perimeter of the flooded area has proven prohibitively costly 
due to the man-hours required. Discussion on changing the method of determining the flooded 
extent by, developing a relationship between applied water and flooded acreage by holding the 
inflow rate constant and allowing the flooded area to equilibrate to an approximately fixed 
acreage are ongoing. Under this proposed monitoring method, the acreage will be measured on 
foot twice per quarter (approximately every six weeks) with intermediate assessments of flooded 
acreage by using remote sensing. If this monitoring is utilized, the budget for hydrologic 
monitoring will be reduced by $72,524. 

BjoJogicalfWater Oualjtv Monitoring. Biological and water quality monitoring is related to lhe 
tasks indicated in the Table 4;01 of the LORP Monitoring and Adaptive Management Plan 
(MAMP). Note that baseflow compliance, BWMA flooded extent, and Off-River Lakes and 
Ponds flooded extent are considered under Hydrologic Monitoring above. It is assumed that 
most monitoring will be jointly conducted by lnyo and LA and that the hours of each agency 
spend during 09-10, will of&et one another. Range trend work will be planned, budgeted, and 
conducted by LADWP and is not included in this work plan. Fish condition monitoring is 
incorporated into the budget for water quality measurements. Ecosystem Sciences Incorporated, 
the MOU Consultant, will be involved with the Rapid Assessment Surveys. Baseflow Water 
Quality, Seasonal Habitat Flow, Seasonal Habitat Flooding Extent, Seasonal Flow Water 

March 30, 2009 4 



2009- 2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Quality, Avian Census', Landscape Vegetation Mapping, and the Annual Report Preparation 
including adaptive management recommendations. 

Range Monitoring. Range monitoring is related to the tasks described in section 4.6 of the 
M AMP. Three types of monitoring will take place thai are directly related to the management of 
livestock ~ng: irrigated pasture condition scoring, utilization and range trend. Irrigated 
pasture condition scoring is a tool used by managers to systematicaUy track the condition of 
irrigated pastures. Utilization monitoring tracks the amount of biomass removed from non
irrigated fields and Range trend tracks the long-term effeet of grazing and grazing management 
prescriptions on the grazing resource. Additionally, annual field inspections and evaluations will 
be conducted. Range monitoring will be conducted by LADWP and is not a shared cost, and 
therefore not budgeted in this work plan. 

Mosquito Abatement. For the fiscal year2009-20IO,Ihe Owens VaUey Mosquito Abatement 
Program (OVMAP} plans to continue a comprehensive Integrated Mosquito Management Plan 
{IMMP) when addressing the new and developing sources within the LORP in accordance with 
its mission of protecting public health. This JMMP consists of an expansion of currently used 
materials and methods for the surveillance and control of mosquitoes across the OVMAP 
boundary as well as contingency planning for late season flushing flows. This budget anticipates 
field surveillance of potential larval habitat for mosquito production, larviciding, pupaciding, 
adult mosquito surveillance with light traps, mosquito borne disease surveillance, and treatment 
for adult mosquitoes. 

The budgeted amount of$127,000 includes a contingency of$67,000 in the event that 
supplementary aerial treatments are necessary. The use oftbis contingency required concurrence 
by both the Inyo County Chief Administrative Officer and LADWP's Aqueduct Manager. 

Weec! Control. The lnyo/Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner's Office receives funding 
from LADWP to control and eradicate several different invasive weed species both within the 
LORP boundaries, and in areas within the watershed that that may serve as a seed source that 
could impact the LORP area. These invasive weed species include: Lepidlum farifofitrur, 
Acropti/on reprms, Cirsium arvrmse, Centaurea solstitialis, Cenlallrea macu/osa, and Carde,-ia 
draba. These populations are managed using integrated pest management methods, including 
mechanical, chemical and biological controls. Currently, there are 98 sep!lfllte sites, on LADWP 
lands, spread over an area of29,755 gross acres that Agricultural Commissioner's Office 
manages. Of these sites, 12 are within the LORP boundaries. 

Along with weed treatment activities, the Agricultural Conimissioner's Office provides mapping 
and monitoring of these infestations from year to year. Information gathered includes net and 
gross acreage, species, location, and the date when the selected management aclivity was 
condiiCied. The Agricultural Commissioner's Office also provides outreach to the public that is 
specific to the weed issues threatening the LORP, through educational materials targeting 
reereationallsts visiting the area, and responds to and interacts with the public regarding any new 
weed locations found within the LORP area. LORP weed· control activities are funded through 

March 30, 2009 s 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

agreements outside of the LORP Annual Work Plan, and are therefore not included in the budget 
presented here. 

Saltces!ar Control. The County Water Department's saltcedar control program will concentrate 
on the tributaries to-the Lower Owens River channel. The purpose of working on the LORP is to 
reduce the likelihood of the creeks and streams spreading saltcedar throughout the Owens River 
re-watered channel. The current focus is to reduce the chance of infestation by treating areas in 
the river drainage basin. One permanent, one shared employee and six seasonal field assistants 
are expected to work on the control program during the treatment season (December-March). 
Monitoring and follow-up treatments by the Saltcedar Project Coordinator will occur during the 
balance of the year. LORP saltcedar control activities are funded through agreements outside of 
the LORP Annual Work Plan, and are therefore not included in the budget presented here, 

Maintenance and Monitoring Tasks Budget 

The attached spreadsheets provide the budgets for hydrologic monitoring, biologic/water quality 
monitoring, maintenance, and mosquito abatemenL The following table summarizes the costs of 
the monitoring for the fiscal year July I. 2009 through June 30, 2010 and specifies the costs 
incurred by In yo County, Los Angeles and the cost of the MOU consultant. 

!Catesory 
Hydrologic monitoring 
Biologic and Water Quallly 
Maintenance and Operatlo1111 
Mos uito conlr<JI 
otal 

March 30, 2009 

lnyocoats 
$0 

$6,779 
$0 

$63500 
$70279 

LA costs MOU Consultant Tutal Cost I 
$255.953 $0 $255,953 

$0 $71,210 $77,989 
$239,187 so $239,187 

$63 so $127 000 
$1158 640 $71 210 $100 1 

6 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Generally, staff hours for the lnyo County and LADWP to conduct the biologic and water quality 
monitoring offset one another. There are 367 total people days necessary to complete the 
proposed biologicallltld water quality monitoring, of which Inyo has 19 more people days 
allocated than LADWP. There is no offset for the Maintenance, Operations, or Hydrologic 
monitoring to be performed by LADWP. Additionally, LADWP has allocated 245 people days 
for Range Monitoring which is not a shared monitoring cost. Based on this budget, In yo is 
required to compensate Los Angeles $279,786 for the differential in expenditures for 
Maintenance, Operations, and Hydrologic monitoring. This value is calculated by subtracting 
the dollars lnyo County will spend during the fiscal year from the amount spent by LADWP and 
dividing the difference in halflllld adding halfofthe cost of the MOU Consultant. If the 
alternative monitoring plan for the BWMA is approved, this cost would be reduced by $36,262 
to $243,524. lnyo County's cost share of implementing the Adaptive Management Measures is 
an additional $22,652. 

Section 2. Adaptive Management Measures 

The Adaptive management recommendations made by the MOU consultant for inclusion in the 
LORP Annual Report to the Standing Committee have been copied in their entirety below. 
Recommendations for the Rapid Assessment Surveys, Water Quality, and Land Use are in 
progress at this lime or wi II be incorporated in the upcoming field seasons monitoring efforts. 
The Workplan and Budget associated with the MOU consultant recommendations for the 
Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area are described in this section, and also above under the 
hydrologic monitoring section. The Workplan and Budget associated with the Delta Habitat 
Area follow below. Based on comments received on the River Flow recommendation from the 
LORP Annual Monitoring Report, Inyo County and LADWP believe that prior to the 
development of a workplllll for that item, an MOU Group meeting must be held to discuss bow to 
move forward. 

March 30, 2009 7 



2009- 2010 Fiscal Year lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Table of Adaptive Management Rec::ommendalions. LORP Annual Report 2008. 

Della Habllallwa 
(DHA) 

March 30. 2009 

cdi<CIGn. 
Monag11111at Fllllnt RAS o11«1s $~.0U4 IIICIU<Ie a eologcncal - 01....,., Annual 

be nragraiM In «dar 10 botlar analyZ& -.gao fRlm ,_10 par. 
H __ , Poronniai ___ Cit<lalleurcllllerontollooiii1CI ~o)tohlll&sFilla<lficm 

pravlous years. Lcoallon& should be vari!od 81d lrotlad mulllplo limn 1o pr1V8111 Alrller lll!pllt1siCJn. 
Exotic Woods; 2008 RAS- <ltnao _.,-onccmpasaino mucnor alGI 118 ftoodploin over o 
rougllly 10 ""'*"<lcln ot'lhliiMif. TI'W oroaonleon cpj>OI'~for - managt.,.ol. CCI!llft)l rnelllcok 
indll<ling phytlcal.llidogical contrel, 1114<:11-conlr<l. Wo'""""'"'eo4 dOvOiooino a•ludy CIOSiOn Glen•"' 
m .. omtlho<laolconlrc:lkibellltd IOteOIOtloclo<l uefontoflholnl"lotialllldmonllor-. 
Wood!~ ROGNilmolll: Woody reCNilmlnl - lo bo o:alltng twQ19110Ut lhe IOC<Ii>foin. F""'o data 
eollecton oflorlt oholldlndudo cai8Qcdcel-dc!:umon!no lho numbar ofn0r1- parloeolcln. 
GlUing Ma-lllllllUts: SUpplomenl<lllao<llng IlleS v.tlllh lhellaolplaltl -fll'sUI>plemOnl areu are 
nolpemllllod-llleripafllland ~orees. Conmlalcn 111fll>llmeosand removal 
TIIIRVIolc: Jlo-1.-.lnformalltn lltd lho spolal dole on il1o spodlc locaD..,.-. ...,..Ilk Ofll<ll<abon 
wn perlornlod. 2008 RAS documonlad 700 larnoriok pdn1o, IIIII reporting il--84 rHVIII. U.ing 
~criool doto lor tamar1a1c-- -oiO many rop-g ;,..,. •. Dolo.,..,.. ... and labol<ltion 
m-11 dlflbiiiO rnol<o adoptive """"lJomtnl """"""""daii<N conctlllinglamariolc. 
T•-s .. dn- 2C08 RASoaodlin08li6S allnoedto be llislled. vorllodlltd kootod. 
T"""'rlsk Sfaoh; largo """" phs Jhould - 10 bo cl1iA>4<l bumod ·- "'"""d 1rtm lho 
suoarnl">rlkll. Plio now olaoh In~~~~~ .,...,n<t onalra4rnbank>. .....,.LADWP can rli11PC15• of-.. 
Rood" oato abun- andlmpadols -· 

appljanctt~ lniO ... tlccl<JIOIIUI. 

oNood tomoot llr!no Pool lowr~cr-mlnlm.m- oiO.!idolorono year. 
•R.........,d-uaang tho DI!Aiodollfmlno lllhal<lllftaoomayh .. o C>OOUrrod to-lslionrOOCUf<el 
(woogund ""II' c Won) prior lomoldnQ otrt aclopllvo m1t109amonl- "'!110Cik-to ........ 
pulae tows lhil ll!!l!!!q. 20011. 

'j•Nodalo- tlaldiljllayedCI-CdlocloO_o_lo_. E<:os"""'ScilfiCH -nOlablo lo 
vorlly tho condulliont read1acllor land .... «mPianco willC>UI.....,alm d1l10 dola ooL 

, •SUmmarized- resu~~or-.a f« lnlo year llldlcotoslhat o1 iJrigalodpaa"reo ,..., manit<ro4 1n<1 an oro m 
I eompllance. 
· • Reoommondlhal LADWP """""•lflhlir-PIB<41110nlln .. paslt.lros and fields and eoOootan~ roport a 

I cornplelo flloiUIIIIzalon, lltlg-paolwoolltdrange fiend rncOiitcrlng dato fer 1110 20011 . 
. •R.-nd""" .n liVoolcd< gra>lngplona be <e>iowediii1CI ~doled to lllOy aro ccmpalillla v.ilh lite LORP 

M<llilDJrlg.l!l/apllvt ,.....,_and RepDI1lng Plan 
....... consdlalonlll ac:tJnatPQNIH. 
• RK<IIIrnti1Cllhalnch!J•zfn0 1 .... have na """mailcring Ollll1>larllltotinc1Udos il1o lacoiCII'I o1 .,..,...., 
Ond-~I!JOICII OO<:hpaalureand aeid. 

•Roccmmend lhalall ranee a 1180010811' 10 manage O"ll%i'O be canplelod8$•oon as .,...ltJlo- Mllbe!Qre 1110 
end of 20011. 

8 

• 



2009- 2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

Modifleatlon of Dow management and flooded area measurement in tile BWMA 

The 1997 MOU calls for .. Approximately 500 acres of the habitat area will be flooded at any 
given time in a year when the runoff to the Owens River watershed is forecast to be average or 
above average. In years when the runoff is forecasted to be less than average, the water supply 
to the area will be reduced in general proportion to the forecasted runoff in the watershed." The 
relationship between Owens Valley runoff to flooded acreage is further described in Ecosystem 
Sciences August 2002 LORP Plan and Section 2.5.5 of the 2004 LORP EJR. Regulation of 
water delivery to maintain a set flooded acreage has proven difficult and the resulting relation 
between water supplied and flooded acreage has been erratic. Recognizing that the relationship 
between the amount of fiooded acreage and water release to the habitat area is poorly known and 
will continue to be so, at least. until an adequate data base is developed, maintaining the required 
flooded acreage will be conducted according to a schedule fixing constant water delivery rates 
over fixed seasonal time periods. The purpose of this adaptive management measure is to 
develop an efficient method of monitoring and managing the Blackrock Waterfowl Management 
Area (BWMA), while still providing the desired benefits to wetlands and waterfowl. The 
adaptive management measure will be undertaken as an experiment to: 

I. Determine the relationship between flooded acreage and water supplied for each BWMA 
unit, and to determine how that relationship changes seasonally. 

2. Develop an efftcient method of evaluating flooded acreage. 
3. Develop a long-term protocol for managing the BWMA. 

Seasonal water delivery flow rates will be set for each habitat area based on water use per acre 
flooded ratios developed from existing data. Using the available flooded acreage and water 
supplied data, an acre-foot per acre ratio of water used to acres flooded will be used to set flow 
rates. Flow will be set at the beginning of a season and held at that rate for the season. The 
length of each season is defined. At the midpoint and end of each seasonal time period the 
perimeter of the flooded acreage will be mapped to delineate the extent of flooding for the 
corresponding flow. This data will be used to establishing ratios for future seasonal flows. 

The flooded acreage and flows will be based on the current runoff years forecast at the beginning 
of seasonal time period. Flooded acreage will he evaluated using GPS at the start/end of each 
season, and at each season's mid-point Remote sensing will be investigated as a method for 
evaluating flooded acreage, using the GPS flooded perimeters for ground-truth and calibration. 
Accuracy of flow measurements will be assessed as the data accumulate. 

Delta Habitat Area Flow Assessment 

Background 
Two separate management requirements exist for the Delta Habitat Area (DHA); a short-tenn 
requirement of providing a minimum flow ofO.Scfs to the Brine Pool for a full year following 
project implementation, and a long-tenn requirement· of maintaining and enhancing the 2005 
Delta acreage (1,160 ac). The Brine Pool requirements should be met in March 2009. Meeting 
the DHA habitat requirements are more problematic. 

March 30, 2009 9 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

The long-term requirement of maintaining and enhancing the DHA requires further investigation. 
The only project objective that has been met is that an average annual flow of 6 to 9cfs passed 
the pumpback station to the DHA. In fact, data from the period of July 12th, 2007 to September 
30th, 2008 indicates that an average annual flow of 11.6cfs flowed to the DHA- These data 
include the seasonal habitat flows and some additional high flows resulting from precipitation 
(natural variation) and pump station calibration and testing (which allowed river flows to bypass 
the station and flow into the DHA). If habitat flows are not included, the average annual flow 
passing the pumpback station to the DHA was 8.8 cfs. 

LADWP's dust control project also affects the DHA. The dust control project brackets, or 
confines the DHA on both the east and west sides and, likely has raised shallow groundwater 
conditions which is effecting DHA water spreading and potentially infiltration rates. The 
prolonged effects of the seasonal habitat flows coupled with the above mentioned effects all have 
had an accumulated impact on the DHA. 

The management of the DHA centers on providing the area ao annual base flow of 6 to 9cfs, and 
supplementing that flow with four seasonal pulse flows designed to enhance habitat for 
waterfowl and encourage wetland development. Four pulse flows are scheduled to be 
implemented once the Brine Pool requirement is met in March 2009. 

The important questions that require investigation relate to how the DHA has responded to a 
changed surrounding landscape (the dust control project) and a changed water regime since 
baseline conditions were measured. Dust control structures, levees and roads on the east and west 
side of the DHA bave converted the area frOm an open ecosystem to a confined or closed 
ecosystem. Prior to this confmement, the DHA channels could naturally shift from time to time 

· as vegetation developed and forced lateral movements thereby creating dynamic conditions for 
the enhancement ofwetlaod areas and habitat. 

During the seasonal habitat flow water broke out ofthe west chaonel at the upper end of the delta 
and flowed west along a dust control levee/cell and gravel area. Water coursed through a 
remnant channel to the west of the PHA. Prior to the seasonal habitat flow this remnant channel 
was dry. Rather than allow water to flow to the historic end point of the remnant channel it was 
diverted by a dust control project levee/road and flowed into a dust control cell. This water may 
have created additional wetland habitat had it been allowed to follow its historic course. II 
appears that this water did not enhance the DHA wetland or contribute to its maintenance, and 
may have had a deleterious effect on dust control measures. 

Initial examination of remote imagery from the years 2000, 2005 and 2008 indicate that 
vegetation conditions in the DHA have chaoged. The amount of acreage (extent) and 
composition (species assemblage) change is not well quantified at this time. Yet, given the new 
physical conditions which will influence how water is transported through, beneath and around 
the DHA, and because the DHA 's vegetation has cbaoged since the initial planning and 
collection ofbaseline data, the use of the four pulse flows to enhance and maintain the wetlands 
need to be reevaluated; especially since there is some evidence that the wetlands are tending 
toward less diversity and more mono-culture. 

March 30, 2009 10 



2009 - 201 0 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work plan 

Planned Work 
The LQwer Owens River Project Monitoring, Adaptive Management; and Reporting Plan (Table 
4.01} describes monitoring efforts to determine wetland habitat development and vegetation 
mapping be conducted in year 3 ofthe project. Due to concerns described above it has been 
proposed to ac~elerate that monitoring by one year conducting it during the 2009-2010 fiscal 
year. Ecosystem Sciences will evaluate the DHA to determine what changes may have occurred 
to vegetation resources (acreage and composition) in winter/spring 2009. LADWP acquired a 
September 2008 Quickbird Satellite Image of the DHA that allows for in-depth study of the 
vegetation resources oftbe area. Current and past satellite imagery coupled with ground·truthing 
of vegetation, flow data, shallow groundwater, and comparisons to baseline conditions will 
provide insight to DHA changes and allow for adaptive management decisions related to 
modification of seasonal pulse flows as necessary. 

The following tasks will be conducted to evaluate DHA conditions and develop 
recommendations for the DHA: 

I. Evaluation of land cover change. This task will use remote sensing, vegetation transects, 
and channel cross-section surveys to evaluate change from pre-LORP conditions. 

2. Evaluation of hydrologic changes in the DHA. This task will use groundwater data and 
flow data to evaluate hydrologic changes in the DHA from pre-LORP and pre·dust 
abatement hydrologic conditions. 

3. Evaluation of linkage between hydrologic changes and vegetation changes. The results 
of tasks I and 2 will be assessed to determine the effects ofhydrologic changes on 
vegetation cover. 

4. Recommendations for DHA management. Based on the linkages identified in task 3, the 
consultant will develop recommendations will be made aimed at managing DHA flows to 
better achieve the DHA goals of maintaining and enhancing delta habitats. 

Deliverables 

Ecosystem Sciences will produce a report that evaluates the following questions in relation to the 
DHA and the appropriate flows to maintain the required habitat conditions: 

How has vegetation cover and composition changed since the LORP began? 
How bas the LORP changed the hydrology of the DHA? 
How have dust control measures changed the hydrology of the DHA? 
What is the relation between hydrologic change and land cover change in the DHA? 

The report will also include adaptive management recommendations aimed at better achieving 
the LORP goals for the DHA. 

Sche<iule 
Worlc will be perfonned in the winter and early spring of2009. 

March 30, 2009 II 



2009-2010 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Workplan 

2009-2010 Fiscal Year Atlaptlve Management Measures Workplan Budget 

Dally Equipment 
OrganlzatloniClass Dl!ya rata rate Total LA Com ESI Costs 

Adaptive Management 
measures 

· Delta Habitat Area 
I Assessment LAOWP Survev 20 4TI 45 $10440.00 $10,440.00 

ESI Principal 20 1032 $20640.00 
ESI Senior 15 680 $10 200.00 
ESIAdmln 2 512 $1.024.00 
ESI Expenses $3000.00 $34,864.00 

' 
! AdaptW. Management Total $46304.00 

March 30, 2009 12 



Principle 
Assoclale 

Ptlneiple 
Assoelete 

Flow · 
Ptlnelple 

Assoelele 
Species Habltal 

Principle 
Assoclale 

FlOw Flooding extent 
PrinCiple 

Associate 

Principle 
As&c!Qate 

VegMapping 
Pllnciple 

Associate 

PtlnCiple 
As110clate 

lt.an""""'P'> ~regelafion Mapping 
Prlncipl& 

AsiiOCIII!& 

SubloUII 

Ptlnclple 
Aaeoelete 

Plinciple 
Associate 

Expensei are per diem and mtage• 

10 

0 

6 

1 

3 
3 

5 

2 

.1 

1 

. 1 

5 

1 
5 

1 

2 

2 

3 
2 

1 

2 

2 

1 

1 

10 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
680 

1032 
650 

1032 
880 

1032 
680 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 

150 
150 





Z000.2010 Coal- .lilly'· EquljloiOMCOII TOIOI "'-d COOl - 20119 -.Aloe Jill¥ 1. 2000 Jill¥ '· 2tlO!IIllll".gil 
30,2010 -June"'- June 30.2010 

15 S20.53U3 SU07.2!1 

• $754.38 l$0.51 .. 51.177.84 $807.$) 

20 $6.191.53 $7111.00 

• 11.333.49 Slec!OO 

• $:1,097.67 $3<0.00 

10 $3.23U6 SO. GO 
0 $0.00 SO. GO 

42 $15.399.02 so.oo 

0 $0.00 SO.OG 
0 lOGO 5000 

19 $1.814..01 lO.OO 
51 $17,911.98 so.ao 
•• $6,1109.34 so.oo $1,MSI.34 

, .. $31.046.00 $4.068.00 
10 $1.334.10 $700.00 
21 17.6$3.05 Sa<O.OO 

148 $31.U7.00 $0.00 

0 so.oo so.ao 
0 so.oo so.oo 

31 511.2-4$.-31 50.00 
12 $$.434.16 so.ao 
19 10.02176 SG.Oo 
20 $7,7118.00 suo 
0 so.oo so.oo 
0 to.OO 10.00 

17 $6,2<7.39 10.00 
20 S7,o24.30 $0.00 

7 ~110.21 10.00 
6 S.U:27,2U so.oo 

t $2.721.30 $34206 
0 so.oo $0.00 

• $ ... 17.72 sao.oo 
0 so.oo so.oo 
0 so.oo so.oo 
7 $2.4tt.llll so.oo 

0 $0.00 so.oo 
0 10.00 so.oo 
• $1.874.22 -5 $1.756.9 so.oo 
3 $1,$52.79 so.ao 

0 $0.00 so.oo 
0 10.00 $0.00 
0 1000 so.oo 

0 SO.OG 1000 
0 - -0 so.oo 10.00 

0 so.oo $0.00 
0 so.oo $1!.00 
0 50.00 '"-"" 0 so.oo $0.00 
0 10.00 $0.00 





(4 Stali»s) PIMIW 8rAwel (»r..tor t53.1J 11<11t.a Mower a&:uz ,..,. 
-OriwaoMCK 3 astl dwrlp hduo - a.. ... 
~~rt.&Qn. ~tndlt.liSOI 

3M 10fl4x.4 ,ct.. up 
dapperv-rJ 

Buit«nQ Repaif Mart ., .... 1013..31 :»1 ton 4114 PiCk• vp ., 5.17 
2~ TNCkOrivartMCH .. 33.tol 178UG ~bi~4JIIck-up " "' 

t3~)'SOI,1t)\04\f) "'*'"' 21 of0.74 JOGI.IO M(Jr,wf ... JUt 
1•lNCJo:~H .. ::su .. Ht3.0" 14-tlduq)tMkt .. 1.S3.8 
Powar 5JiaoAJ OpeGtor 21 4U9 11S8.83 Gradlil " .... 
2•Trudi~H .. "'" 17tUI 2•3a.di«Jump1NCM .. 15.31 - 225 40.74 ltii..S Uclwtr 225 tD.?t 
'•lMt~CH -450 3$,14 t41t3 2•3-.alctl.lmplrUCk$. ... Ui.38 ,......., PCMUf Sbowl Otlr.llOI' 110 <3.20 ..,..., Gradall .. ..... 
2·1 .... -<IMCH .,. 3U4 814U ~ .. 3-Retdumplrvoks 210 , .... 

LaJc.a-to Rl¥er Olt;ti 

(6 4ayl pel ~-· ~· •• 40.74 113l.S BactbOU:nd nilef •• , ... 
t • Tnd Driwu1MCH .. 33.14 1401..3 t• a aara~ dump ruct:~ .. ..... - P<lwer Slmet Opltlafct .. .... , ...... _ .. 25.64 
2YTI\ICk~MCH .. .~ .. 23U.GI 2·3adJMp~t 12 1.5.38 

"'*'"' ... <034 &4H.t eM*hoe•traJ• 13$ IU$ 
2• TtutkDrivefiMCH .,. nl4 847.1 2·ta~tt1d"""'WCU .,. t5.31 ... """' Power Shov-M OperaW •• ..... t.948.o5 OntiMII .. ..... 
Op- •• 40.74 tau lkdhoo-01'6 ttdtt .. , ..... 
t • Trudl OriYifiMC» •• "'" 149U I •3DDhl~fte:ks .. f$.31 

GlorgeaancJSJovtnt - ... ..0.14 f:a33.2 81ac:51hound tre6tr ... , .... 
1 • TNCk Dri\lut".IUCH, .. 33," t49t.S t 4axel..,truc:U .. ,...,, 
Powrw ShGWII 0pera1or .. .... mr.e&On:~ .. 2>.04 
3: • Tt\lell OriveuMCH IQ ~.14 I3S8 6& 3 -3 DBI4ump IA.II;b l&i .. ,. , ........ ""' __ ,.,. 

zr 37.53 1013.31 :.Vo4100-4:t:4 pd-vp Z1 U7 
2 • Tftlclr. DmotiMCH .. 33.14 178M$ 3H tc11t 4l4 DIP:• ua: Z1 SJ'I 

Aquedsdltld~K - :13-M 81131.2 314 !Nm4t4 -~up .... •. n 

--Man .. >7.15> an :t 3t4 m Ot ph::t•USJ .. a.rr 
2. TRICk DIIWJI'IICH ... "'-" ISSIU 3H 1014 4a4 l!li;k .. uo .. ...,, 

$UIO,It:J 



Range Monitoring_ 
Task People DIIYIII 

UtUizatlon 4ll 
lrri!Jeted Pasture Condition 5 
Range Trend 160 
Annual Field Ins ; (see 2-59 of EIRl 20 
Field Evaluations (see 2-59 of EIR) 5 
AnalYsis and RePOrting 15 

Total ~ 



1 
 

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF WATER 
AND POWER CONCERNING OPERATION AND FUNDING OF THE LOWER OWENS RIVER 

PROJECT 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 2 to the Agreement Between the County of Inyo (County) and City of Los 
Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) Concerning Operation and Funding of the Lower 
Owens River Project (LORP) (Agreement) is made and entered into by and between LADWP and the 
County, who are referred to under this Amendment as "Party" and collectively as the "Parties". 

WITNESSETH 
WHEREAS, the Agreement was approved May 18, 2010, with a termination date of July 11, 

2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agreement was extended for two years through Amendment No. 1 until July 

11, 2024; and 

WHEREAS, operations, maintenance, hydrologic monitoring, and some adaptive 
management will continue in the LORP beyond the expiration of the Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, representatives of the LADWP and the County have prepared Amendment No. 
2 to the Agreement to their governing boards for approval to extend the Agreement for a period of 
two years (until July 11, 2026) to allow for the continuation of joint funding of LORP post-
implementation costs by LADWP and the County; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

AMENDMENT 

Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement 

Section II.A. Commencement of Post Implementation Funding Obligations, currently reads: 

The commitments of LADWP and the County to jointly fund and operate the post- 
implementation costs and activities of the LORP commenced on July 11, 2007. In this 
agreement, the Parties define their responsibilities for jointly funding and conducting post-
implementation activities required. After July 11, 2024, the required flows will continue to be 
maintained and the flow compliance monitoring required by the Stipulation and Order will 
continue to be conducted; however, the Parties will decide what level of operations, 
maintenance, habitat monitoring, and adaptive management will be conducted. The Parties 
do not intend by this agreement to redefine or reinterpret any provision of the MOU; 
however, by Section P of this agreement, the Parties intend to modify Section A.2 of the 
LORP Funding Agreement dated September 16, 2005. 
 
Section II.A. Commencement of Post Implementation Funding Obligations, is now amended 
to read: 

The commitments of LADWP and the County to jointly fund and operate the post- 
implementation costs and activities of the LORP commenced on July 11, 2007. In this 
agreement, the Parties define their responsibilities for jointly funding and conducting post-
implementation activities required. After July 11, 2026, the required flows will continue to be 
maintained and the flow compliance monitoring required by the Stipulation and Order will 
continue to be conducted; however, the Parties will decide what level of operations, 



2 
 

maintenance, habitat monitoring, and adaptive management will be conducted. The Parties 
do not intend by this agreement to redefine or reinterpret any provision of the MOU; 
however, by Section P of this agreement, the Parties intend to modify Section A.2 of the 
LORP Funding Agreement dated September 16, 2005. 

 

Section II.J.2.d. Debits and Payments, currently reads: 

On each July 21 following July 21, 2009, through July 21, 2023 (or on the next business day 
thereafter if a July 21 is not a business day), for as long as sufficient funds remain in the 
Post Implementation Credit, LADWP shall annually reduce the credit by the County's cost 
obligation identified in that year's annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section 
II.F. 

Section II.J.2.d. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read: 

On each July 21 following July 21, 2009, through July 21, 2025 (or on the next business day 
thereafter if a July 21 ls not a business day), for as long as sufficient funds remain in the 
Post Implementation Credit, LADWP shall annually reduce the credit by the County's cost 
obligation identified in that year's annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section 
II.F. 

 

Section II.J.2.e. Debits and Payments, currently reads: 

Once the balance in the Post Implementation Credit has been reduced to an amount that is 
insufficient to cover the amount of the required debit, LADWP will reduce the Post 
Implementation Credit to zero, and the County will make a payment to LADWP from the 
Trust Account in the amount of the difference. Thereafter, on or before July 21 of each year 
through July 21, 2023, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP from the Trust 
Account in the amount of the County's cost obligation identified in an annual work plan and 
budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

Section II.J.2.e. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read: 

Once the balance in the Post Implementation Credit has been reduced to an amount that is 
insufficient to cover the amount of the required debit, LADWP will reduce the Post 
Implementation Credit to zero, and the County will make a payment to LADWP from the 
Trust Account in the amount of the difference. Thereafter, on or before July 21 of each year 
through July 21, 2025, the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP from the Trust 
Account in the amount of the County's cost obligation identified in an annual work plan and 
budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

  



3 
 

Section II.J.2.f. Debits and Payments, currently reads: 

If, on or before November 1, 2023, the amount remaining in the Trust Account is insufficient 
to cover a required payment to LADWP, the County shall pay the remaining balance in the 
Trust Account to LADWP and shall make a supplemental payment in the amount of the 
difference to LADWP; on or before November 1 of each year through November 1, 2023, 
the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP in the amount of the County's share of 
any post-implementation cost or activity (including adaptive management measures) 
identified in an annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

Section II.J.2.f. Debits and Payments, is now amended to read: 

If, on or before November 1, 2025, the amount remaining in the Trust Account is insufficient 
to cover a required payment to LADWP, the County shall pay the remaining balance in the 
Trust Account to LADWP and shall make a supplemental payment in the amount of the 
difference to LADWP; on or before November 1 of each year through November 1, 2025, 
the County shall make an annual payment to LADWP in the amount of the County’s share of 
any post-implementation cost or activity (including adaptive management measures) 
identified in an annual work plan and budget approved pursuant to Section II.F. 

 

Section II.J.3. Annual Accounting Reports, currently reads: 

Beginning on October 31, 2009, and on or before each October 31 thereafter through 
October 31, 2024, an annual accounting report that describes the work performed pursuant 
to the previous year’s approved work plan, and the costs incurred by each Party in 
performing such work shall be submitted to the governing board of each Party or the Party’s 
designee. The accounting report will identify the difference, if any, between the actual costs 
incurred by each Party and the actual work performed by each Party as compared to the 
costs and work for that Party that were identified in that year’s approved work plan and 
budget. The costs will be documented by timesheets and other appropriate documentation. 
It is recognized that actual costs incurred by the Parties will likely be different than the 
amounts budgeted in the approved work plan(s). The accounting must be approved by the 
governing board of each Party or by the Party’s designee. 

Section II.J.3. Annual Accounting Reports, is now amended to read: 

Beginning on October 31, 2009, and on or before each October 31 thereafter through 
October 31, 2026, an annual accounting report that describes the work performed pursuant 
to the previous year's approved work plan, and the costs incurred by each Party in 
performing such work shall be submitted to the governing board of each Party or the Party's 
designee. The accounting report will identify the difference, if any, between the actual costs 
incurred by each Party and the actual work performed by each Party as compared to the 
costs and work for that Party that were identified in that year's approved work plan and 
budget. The costs will be documented by timesheets and other appropriate documentation. 
It is recognized that actual costs incurred by the Parties will likely be different than the 
amounts budgeted in the approved work plan(s). The accounting must be approved by the 
governing board of each Party or by the Party's designee. 



4 
 

Section II.T. Term, currently reads: 

The provisions of this agreement will terminate on July 11, 2024; however, for the purpose 
of allowing for an audit to be conducted pursuant to Section II.J.3.d, and to allow time for the 
reconciliation of any accounting disputes that may arise under Section II.J.3.d the Parties 
agree that the applicable provisions of the agreement will be extended as necessary for 
those limited purposes. The Parties will make a determination of the obligations for any 
ongoing operation and maintenance activities and associated funding at the time of the 
effective termination of this agreement. 

Section II.T. Term, is now amended to read: 

The provisions of this agreement will terminate on July 11, 2026; however, for the purpose 
of allowing for an audit to be conducted pursuant to Section II.J.3.d, and to allow time for the 
reconciliation of any accounting disputes that may arise under Section II.J.3.d the Parties 
agree that the applicable provisions of the agreement will be extended as necessary for 
those limited purposes. The Parties will make a determination of the obligations for any 
ongoing operation and maintenance activities and associated funding at the time of the 
effective termination of this agreement.   

Except as herein amended above, all other terms and conditions of Agreement shall remain in full 
force and effect.  

 



5 
 

This Amendment No. 2 may be executed in one or more counterparts, and by the parties in 
separate counterparts, each of which when executed shall be deemed to be an original but all of 
which taken together shall constitute one and the same amendment. The parties further agree that 
facsimile signatures or signatures scanned into .pdf (or signatures in another electronic format 
designated by LADWP) and sent by e-mail shall be deemed original signatures. This Amendment 
No. 2 consists of five (5) pages. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Amendment No. 2 to the 
Agreement on the date indicated. 

 

 

 
DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER 
OF THE CITY OF LOS ANGELES BY 
BOARD OF WATER AND POWER COMMISSIONERS 

 
By:   

JANISSE QUINONES 
General Manager  

 
Date:   
 

 
And:   
 

Board Secretary 

 
COUNTY OF INYO 

 
By:   

NATE GREENBERG 
        Inyo County Administrator 

 
Date:   

 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

June 25, 2024   Reference ID:  
2024-477  

 

Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Lower Owens River Project Work 
Plan, Budget, and Schedule 

Water Department 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Holly Alpert, Water Director Holly Alpert, Water Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Adopt the 2024-25 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Lower Owens River Project (LORP) Work Plan for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year has been jointly 
developed by the Inyo County Water Department (ICWD) and the Los Angeles Department of Water and 
Power (LADWP). The Technical Group adopted this plan on June 5, 2024, and recommends its approval 
by our respective governing boards.  
  
The LORP work plan, guided by legal agreements, orders, and environmental commitments, outlines 
activities, budgets, and schedules for maintaining compliance with court orders, conducting necessary 
monitoring, and implementing adaptive management measures. Priorities include maintaining required 
river flows, habitat and water quality monitoring, and preparing an annual report.  
  
The budget for operations, maintenance, monitoring, mosquito abatement, noxious species control, and 
reporting activities totals $729,851.54, with Inyo County contributing $80,000 and LADWP contributing 
$649,851.54. Calculated based on the difference of expenditures between Inyo County and LADWP and 
divided evenly, the work plan will ‘cost’ the County a combined total of $364,925.77, which will be paid 
from the LORP Trust Account held by the County. The remaining balance of the Trust after this payment 
will be $1,632,500.04. 
  
The work plan describes specific tasks to be performed. These include operations and maintenance of 
river and waterfowl conveyances (LADWP), hydrologic monitoring (LADWP), biological monitoring 
(ICWD/LADWP), and adaptive management (ICWD/LADWP). It also addresses mosquito abatement 
(Inyo Ag), noxious species control (Inyo Ag/LADWP), and salt cedar control (ICWD/LADWP) within the 
LORP boundaries. Range monitoring is included in the work plan, but the task is the sole responsibility of 
LADWP.  
  
Key components of the Adaptive Management section include implementing the Interim Blackrock 
Waterfowl Management Area Plan (BWMA; Inyo/LADWP), monitoring the flooded extent of the BWMA 
waterfowl basins (ICWD), BWMA avian and vegetation monitoring (Inyo/LADWP), assessing tree 
recruitment (ICWD), conducting rapid assessment surveys (ICWD), analyzing aerial photos (LADWP), 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

and monitoring water quality (ICWD).  
  
The work plan provides a schedule that outlines when monitoring and reporting activities are to be 
carried out throughout the fiscal year. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund Budget Unit 504103 

Budgeted? Yes Object Code  
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
As of May 31, 2024, the LORP Trust holds $2,114,832.24.  After expenses from the 2023-24 and 2024-
25 fiscal years are paid, the remaining trust balance will be $1,632,500.04. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
It is estimated that the remaining Trust balance will provide for another 4-5 years of LORP expenses. 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Direct staff to work with LADWP to modify the 2024-25 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work 
Plan, Budget, and Schedule 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
Inyo/Mono Agricultural Commissioner's Office, LADWP 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. 2024-2025 LORP Work Plan and Budget 
  
APPROVALS: 
Holly Alpert Created/Initiated - 6/6/2024 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 6/6/2024 
Holly Alpert Approved - 6/7/2024 
Keri Oney Approved - 6/10/2024 
John Vallejo Approved - 6/12/2024 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 6/19/2024 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 6/19/2024 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Prepared by  
Inyo County Water Department and  
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power 

 
 
 
 

Lower Owens River Project            
Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule 

2024-2025 Fiscal Year 



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 2 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Inyo County Water Department and the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power jointly prepared 
this 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work plan.  The Inyo County/Los Angeles Technical 
Group adopted this work plan on June 5, 2024.  The Technical Group recommends that the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors and the City of Los Angeles Board of Water and Power Commissioners or their 
designee approve the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year Lower Owens River Project Work Plan. 

 
Introduction 
The Final Environmental Impact Report for the Lower Owens River Project (LORP) Section 2.2.1 provides 
that the Long-Term Water Agreement (LTWA) Technical Group will develop and adopt an annual work 
plan for the LORP, which describes LORP work to be performed in the following fiscal year.  This work 
plan identifies who will perform or oversee tasks, a schedule, and a budget.  This work plan and budget 
were prepared according to the Agreement between the County of Inyo and City of Los Angeles 
Department of Water and Power Concerning Funding of the Lower Owens River Project (Funding 
Agreement) sections D, E, and F.  Following adoption by the Technical Group, the work plan will be 
submitted to the County and LADWP governing boards for approval.  Each governing board must 
approve the plan before this work plan and budget can be implemented.  The Work Plan, Budget, and 
Schedule are in effect from July 1, 2024 – June 30, 2025.  
 
The objectives of this work plan are to maintain compliance with the July 11, 2007, Superior Court 
Stipulation and Order in Case No. S1CVCV01-29768, conduct monitoring necessary to achieve the LORP 
goals described in the 1997 Memorandum of Understanding, maintain infrastructure necessary to the 
operation of the LORP, and implement adaptive management measures.  The following priorities are 
observed in this work plan: 
 

1. Work and activities required to maintain required flows in the river and required water supplies 
to other LORP components. 

2. Maintenance associated with flow compliance monitoring and reporting associated with the 
above referenced Stipulation and Order. 

3. Habitat and water quality monitoring described in the LORP Final EIR, or required to comply with 
the requirements of the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board. 

4. The preparation of the LORP Annual Report as required by Section 2.10.4 of the LORP Final EIR 
and by Section L of the above referenced Stipulation and Order. 

5. Other work or activities including the implementation of adaptive management measures.   
 
Section 1 of this work plan covers the budget and schedule for operations and maintenance, monitoring, 
mosquito abatement, noxious species control, saltcedar control, and reporting activities.   

Lower Owens River Project            
Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule 

2024-2025 Fiscal Year 



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 3 

Section 2 outlines Adaptive Management activities identified to be conducted in the 2024-2025 fiscal 
year.   
 
The budget amount reflects the additional costs above equal sharing of work by the parties and does 
not include the costs of Inyo and LA staff times where they offset. 
 
LORP Operations & Maintenance, Monitoring, and Adaptive Management Budget 
 
Table 1 summarizes the costs of operation, maintenance and monitoring for the fiscal year and specifies 
the costs incurred for standard operations, maintenance, and monitoring, as well as for Adaptive 
Management.  A summary of these activities follows in Sections 1 and 2 below. 
 
In 2024-2025 a total of 4 people days will be required to complete standard biologic monitoring tasks.  
Inyo County and LADWP will each contribute 2 days.  Maintenance, Operations, and Hydrologic 
monitoring are tasks solely performed by LADWP, and are shared costs between Inyo County and 
LADWP.  LADWP has allocated 80 days for Range Monitoring, which is a LADWP cost.  Inyo County and 
LADWP will perform additional Adaptive Management tasks over 262 people days (Inyo County and 
LADWP each 131 days).   
 
Based on this budget, total cost for the fiscal year is $729,851.54 with Inyo County contributing $80,000 
and LADWP contributing $649,851.54.  Inyo County’s Post Implementation Credit will be decreased by 
$284,925.77.  The credit deduction is calculated by subtracting the dollars LADWP will spend during the 
fiscal year from the amount spent by Inyo County, and dividing this figure by two. 
  



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 4 

 
  

Inyo County 
Budgeted Staff Work 

Days
Value of Additional Staff Time, 

Materials, and Equipment Payment/Credit

Biological Monitoring 2 $0.00

Mosquito Abatement  - $30,000.00 

Noxious Species Control  - $50,000.00 

Adaptive Management 131 $0.00 

Inyo County Totals 133 $80,000.00 ($284,925.77)

LADWP 
Budgeted Staff Work 

Days
Budgeted Value of Additional Staff 

Time, Materials, and Equipment

Hydrologic Monitoring  - $69,660.00 

Biological Monitoring 2 $0.00

Operations and Maintenance  - $475,983.54 

Mosquito Abatement  - $30,000.00 

Rodent Control  - $18,000.00 

Adaptive Management 131 $56,208.00 

LADWP Totals 133 $649,851.54 

Combined Total 266 $729,851.54 
Inyo County Credit Adjustment 
 (1/2 of the Difference in 
Expenditures between Inyo 
County and LADWP)

($284,925.77)

Table 1.  LORP Work Plan Summary Budget, FY 2024-2025



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 5 

Footnote to Table 1. Post Implementation Credit and Trust Accounting 
 

Original Post Implementation Credit   2,253,033.00 2,253,033.00 

Increase Post Imp Credit by 2.9% based on the July 2007 price Index 2.9% 65,337.96 2,318,370.96 

County’s obligation for July 11, 2007 to June 30, 2008 period   243,524.00 2,074,846.96 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 5.7% 
based upon the July 2008 price index 5.7% 118,266.28 2,193,113.23 

County’s obligation for 2008-2009 fiscal year   243,524.00 1,949,589.23 

Reduce the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 1.3% 
based upon the April 2009 price index -1.3% 25,344.66 1,924,244.57 

County’s share of the costs for the 2009-2010 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management.    266,176.00 1,658,068.57 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 1.9% 
based upon the April 2010 price index effective July 10, 2010 1.9% 31,503.30 1,689,571.88 

County’s share of the costs for the 2010-2011 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective July 21, 2010.    317,805.00 1,371,766.88 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 3.3% 
based upon the April 2011 price index effective July 10, 2011. 3.3% 45,268.31 1,417,035.18 

County’s share of the costs for the 2011-2012 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective July 21, 2011.    48,278.00 1,368,757.18 

County’s share of the costs for the Amended 2011-2012 work plan and 
budget, effective July 21, 2011.   57,687.00 1,311,070.18 

 Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 
1.5% based upon the April 2012 price index effective July 10, 2012. 1.5% 19,666.05 1,330,736.24 

County’s share of the costs for the 2012-2013 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective July 23, 2012.   14,084.00 1,344,820.24 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 0.9% 
based upon the April 2013 price index effective July 10, 2013. 0.9% 12,103.38 1,356,923.62 

County’s share of the costs for the 2013-2014 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective June 21, 2013.   41,979.00 1,398,902.62 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 1.4% 
based upon the April 2014 price index effective July 10, 2014. 1.4% 19,584.64 1,418,487.25 

County’s share of the costs for the 2014-2015 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective June 21, 2014.   78,483.00 1,340,004.25 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 0.5% 
based upon the April 2015 consumer price index. 0.5% 6,700.02 1,346,704.28 

County’s share of the costs for the 2015-2016 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective June 21, 2015.   73,755.00 1,272,949.28 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 2.0% 
based upon the April 2016 consumer price index. 2.0% 25,458.99 1,298,408.26 

County’s share of the costs for the 2016-2017 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management effective June 21, 2016.   84,704.00 1,213,704.26 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 2.7% 
based upon the April 2017 consumer price index. 2.7% 32,770.02 1,246,474.28 

County’s share of the costs for the 2017-2018 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2018.   114,857.00 1,131,617.28 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 4.0% 
based upon the April 2018 consumer price index. 4.0% 45,264.69 1,176,881.97 

County’s share of the costs for the 2018-2019 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2019.   139,493.00 1,037,388.97 

 
  



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 6 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 3.3% 
based upon the April 2019 consumer price index. 3.3% 34,233.84 1,071,622.80 

County’s share of the costs for the 2019-2020 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2020.  

132,557.50 939,065.30 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 0.7% 
based upon the April 2020 consumer price index. 0.7% 6,573.46 945,638.76 

County’s share of the costs for the 2020-2021 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2021.   252,481.42 693,157.34 

Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 3.6% 
based upon the April 2021 consumer price index. 3.6% 24,953.66 718,111.01 

County’s share of the costs for the 2022-2023 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2022.   175,435.79 

542,675.22 
Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 7.9% 
based upon the April 2022 consumer price index. 7.9% 

42,871.34 585,546.56 
County’s share of the costs for the 2022-2023 work plan and budget, 
including adaptive management, effective October 31, 2023.   192,211.26 393,335.30 
Increase the remaining balance of the Post Implementation Credit by 3.8% 
based upon the April 2023 consumer price index. 3.8% 

14,946.74 408,282.04 
The annual CPI adjustment will take place prior to deduction of a credit for County's annual share of the LORP post-implementation costs (PIA 
8.4).  The LORP Trust Account Balance as of March 7, 2024 was $2,103,480.70 
 
  



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 7 

Section 1.  Maintenance and Monitoring Tasks 
 
LORP Tasks 
The maintenance and monitoring portion of this work plan consists of four categories of tasks: 
operations and maintenance, hydrologic monitoring, biological monitoring, and range monitoring.     

 
Operations and Maintenance  
Maintenance activities consist of cleaning sediment accumulations and other obstructions from water 
measurement facilities, cleaning sediment and aquatic vegetation from ditches, mowing ditch margins, 
adjustments to flow control structures, maintenance/replacement of existing structures, and necessary 
annual maintenance to spillgates, ditches, dikes, berms, ponds and other features in the BWMA.  
Operation activities consist of setting and checking flows and ensuring that necessary flows reach the 
river to maintain mandated base and seasonal habitat flows.  Estimates of the level of effort necessary 
for maintenance are adjusted as required by section II.D of the Funding Agreement, and provides that 
costs for maintenance above the baseline costs for facilities in the river corridor and the Blackrock 
Waterfowl Management Area (BWMA) shall be shared.   
 
Budgeted Operations and Maintenance costs and associated material costs for 2024-2025 are included 
in Table 2.  The estimated costs for River corridor and BWMA facilities are $275,015.20 and $385,783.85 
respectively, for an overall 2024-2025 operations and maintenance expenditure of $660,799.05.  This 
figure reduced by the combined CPI-adjusted baseline costs for the river corridor and BWMA facilities is 
$475,983.54 (Table 2). 
  



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 8 

 

Table 2. LORP Operations and Maintenance Budget- 2024-2025 Fiscal Year
Labor Equipment

Location/Activity Labor type Hours Labor Rate Total Labor Equipment/Materials Hours Rate Total Equip
River

Cleaning Building Repairman 10 $52.66 $526.60 3 axle dump truck 30 $94.12 $2,823.60
MCH 50 $46.48 $2,324.00 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 100 $41.96 $4,196.00
Equipment Operator 10 $57.13 $571.30 Excavator 30 $132.61 $3,978.30
Power Shovel Operator 30 $60.24 $1,807.20 Mower 10 $48.93 $489.30
Truck Driver 30 $48.77 $1,463.10

Subtotal 130 $6,692.20 170 $11,487.20

Maintenance Building Repairman 40 $52.66 $2,106.40 3 axle dump truck 40 $94.12 $3,764.80
MCH 340 $46.48 $15,803.20 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 620 $41.96 $26,015.20
Equipment Operator 100 $57.13 $5,713.00 Bull Dozer 80 $92.51 $7,400.80
Power Shovel Operator 40 $60.24 $2,409.60 Excavator 40 $132.61 $5,304.40
Truck Driver 40 $48.77 $1,950.80 Mower 20 $48.93 $978.60

Subtotal 560 $27,983.00 800 $43,463.80

Cleaning MCH 120 $46.48 $5,577.60 3 axle dump truck 40 $94.12 $3,764.80
Equipment Operator 80 $57.13 $4,570.40 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 160 $41.96 $6,713.60
Power Shovel Operator 40 $60.24 $2,409.60 Backhoe and trailer 40 $56.29 $2,251.60
Truck Driver 40 $48.77 $1,950.80 Excavator 40 $132.61 $5,304.40

Loader 40 $110.68 $4,427.20
Subtotal 280 $14,508.40 320 $22,461.60

Cleaning/Mowing Power Shovel Operator 40 $60.24 $2,409.60 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 160 $41.96 $6,713.60
MCH 160 $46.48 $7,436.80 Excavator 40 $132.61 $5,304.40
Equipment Operator 80 $57.13 $4,570.40 Loader 40 $110.68 $4,427.20
Truck Driver 10 $48.77 $487.70 Mower 40 $48.93 $1,957.20

Low bed/side dump 10 $104.99 $1,049.90
Water truck 20 $54.23 $1,084.60

Subtotal 290 $14,904.50 310 $20,536.90

Cleaning MCH 100 $46.48 $4,648.00 3 axle dump truck 40 $94.12 $3,764.80
Equipment Operator 80 $57.13 $4,570.40 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 200 $41.96 $8,392.00
Power Shovel Operator 20 $60.24 $1,204.80 Backhoe and trailer 80 $56.29 $4,503.20
Truck Driver 40 $48.77 $1,950.80 Excavator 20 $132.61 $2,652.20

Subtotal 240 $12,374.00 340 $19,312.20

Cleaning/Mowing MCH 120 $46.48 $5,577.60 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 240 $13.60 $3,264.00
Equipment Operator 80 $57.13 $4,570.40 Backhoe and trailer 30 $56.29 $1,688.70
Power Shovel Operator 40 $60.24 $2,409.60 Excavator 40 $132.61 $5,304.40

Loader 20 $110.68 $2,213.60
Mower 30 $48.93 $1,467.90

Subtotal 240 $12,557.60 360 $13,938.60

Cleaning Equipment Operator 40 $57.13 $2,285.20 3 axle dump truck 180 $94.12 $16,941.60
Power Shovel Operator 60 $60.24 $3,614.40 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 100 $41.96 $4,196.00
Truck Driver 180 $48.77 $8,778.60 Bull Dozer 40 $92.51 $3,700.40

Excavator 60 $132.61 $7,956.60
Subtotal 280 $14,678.20 380 $32,794.60

Labor Equipment
Location/Activity Labor type Hours Labor Rate Total Labor Equipment/Materials Hours Rate Total Equip

Building Repairman 40 $52.66 $2,106.40 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 40 $41.96 $1,678.40
MCH 40 $46.48 $1,859.20 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 40 $41.96 $1,678.40

Subtotal 80 $3,965.60 80 $3,356.80
River Subtotal $107,663.50 $167,351.70

Measuring Station Maintenance

Intake Spillgate 

Thibaut Spillgate and Ditch

Independence Spillgate and Ditch

Locust Spillgate and Ditch

Georges Ditch

Alabama Spillgate

Delta Spillgate



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 9 

 

  

Table 2. LORP Operations and Maintenance Budget- 2024-2025 Fiscal Year (continued)
Labor Equipment

Location/Activity Labor type Hours Labor Rate Total Labor Equipment/Materials Hours Rate Total Equip

Maintenance MCH 260 $46.48 $12,084.80 3 axle dump truck 120 $94.12 $11,294.40
Equipment Operator 120 $57.13 $6,855.60 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 400 $41.96 $16,784.00
Power Shovel Operator 140 $60.24 $8,433.60 Excavator 140 $132.61 $18,565.40
Truck Driver 180 $48.77 $8,778.60 Loader 40 $110.68 $4,427.20
` Mower 80 $48.93 $3,914.40

Low bed/side dump 60 $94.12 $5,647.20
Water truck 60 $54.23 $3,253.80

Subtotal 700 $36,152.60 900 $63,886.40

Maintenance MCH 20 $46.48 $929.60 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 40 $41.96 $1,678.40
Power Shovel Operator 20 $60.24 $1,204.80 Low bed/side dump 6 $94.12 $564.72
Truck Driver 6 $48.77 $292.62 Quadtrac/excavator 20 $48.93 $978.60

Water truck 6 $54.23 $325.38
Subtotal 46 $2,427.02 72 $3,547.10

A&R data A&R Keeper (1.5 FTE) 3089 $48.61 $150,156.29 3/4 ton 4x4 pick-up 3089 $41.96 $129,614.44
Subtotal $150,156.29 $129,614.44
BWMA Subtotal $188,735.91 $197,047.94

River Total $275,015.20
BWMA Total $385,783.85
Total O and M $660,799.05
CPI Adjusted O & M $475,983.54

Basel ine Costs  (described in Post -Imp) River BWMA Tota l  CPI adjustment

CPI adjustment $56,863.00 $62,798.00 $119,661.00

2006-2007               4.5% $59,421.84 $65,623.91 $125,045.75

2007-2008               3.1% $61,263.91 $67,658.25 $128,922.16

2008-2009              -1.3% $60,467.48 $66,778.69 $127,246.17

2009-2010               0.9% $61,011.69 $67,379.70 $128,391.39

2010-2011               0.7% $61,438.77 $67,851.36 $129,290.13

2011-2012               3.0% $63,281.93 $69,886.90 $133,168.83

2012-2013               2.1 % $64,610.85 $71,354.53 $135,965.38

2013-2014               0.4% $64,869.30 $71,639.94 $136,509.24

2014-2015               1.3% $65,712.60 $72,571.26 $138,283.86

2015-2016               1.6% $66,764.00 $73,732.40 $140,496.40

2016-2017               1.8% $67,965.75 $75,059.59 $143,025.34

2017-2018               3.6% $70,412.52 $77,761.73 $148,174.25

2018-2019               3.6% $72,947.37 $80,561.15 $153,508.52

2019-2020               3.2% $75,281.69 $83,139.11 $158,420.80

2020-2021               1.0%        $76,034.50 $83,970.50 $160,005.00

2021-2022               6.0%               $80,596.57 $89,008.73 $169,605.30

2022-2023               6.0% $85,432.37 $94,349.26 $179,781.62

2023-2024               2.8% $87,824.47 $96,991.04 $184,815.51

Blackrock Ditch
Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area

Thibaut Pond Maintenance

Patrol & Flow Changes  (River and BWMA)

TOTALS



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 10 

Hydrologic Monitoring 
Hydrologic monitoring consists of monitoring, analyzing, and reporting river baseflows and seasonal 
habitat flows, the flooded extent of the Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area (BWMA), the levels of 
the Off-River Lakes and Ponds, and baseflows, pulse flows, and seasonal habitat flows to the Delta.  
Budgeted hydrologic monitoring costs for the 2024-2025 fiscal year are $69,660.00 (Table 3).  
 

 
 

 
Biological Monitoring  
Biological monitoring, analysis, reporting, and report preparation will be jointly conducted by Inyo and 
LADWP as to comply with LORP Final EIR and MOU requirements (Table 4).  Inyo County staff will 
monitor the flooded extent of the BWMA.  The flooded extent will be primarily determined by using 
remote sensing of high-resolution satellite imagery with ground truthing to determine accuracy.  Inyo 
staff will be responsible for the entirety of the work and commit a total of 4 person days.  There will be 
no off-setting costs. 
 

 
 

Range Monitoring 
Range monitoring is related to the tasks described in the LORP Final EIR.  Three types of monitoring will 
take place that are directly related to the management of livestock grazing: irrigated pasture condition 
scoring, utilization monitoring, and range trend monitoring.  Range monitoring will be conducted by 
LADWP and is not a shared cost, and therefore is not budgeted for in this work plan (Table 5). 
  

Person days Labor Costs Equipment Cost
Total Predicted Cost 
July 1, 2024 through 

June 30, 2025

   River Stations 25 13,750.00$           5,800.00$              19,550.00$                 
   Seasonal Habitat 6 3,300.00$             240.00$                 3,540.00$                    
   Off River Lakes & Ponds 8 4,400.00$             320.00$                 4,720.00$                    
   Flow to Delta 4 2,200.00$             3,160.00$              5,360.00$                    
   Blackrock Waterfowl 6 3,300.00$             3,240.00$              6,540.00$                    
   Reporting Compliance 5 2,750.00$             200.00$                 2,950.00$                    

   Reporting Compliance 60 27,000.00$           -$                             27,000.00$                 
Total Hydro Budget 69,660.00$                   

HYDRO OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

ENGINEERING

Biological Monitoring Days Inyo Days LA Days
Blackrock Waterfowl Management Area
Waterfowl Area Wetted Acreage 4 4 0

Total Person Days on Project 4 4 0

Table 4.  Biological Monitoring Budget, FY 2024-2025



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 11 

 
 
Mosquito Abatement  
For fiscal year 2024-2025, the Owens Valley Mosquito Abatement Program (OVMAP) will continue a 
comprehensive Integrated Mosquito Management Plan (IMMP) when addressing the new and 
developing sources within the LORP in accordance with its mission of protecting public health.  This 
IMMP consists of an expansion of currently used materials and methods for the surveillance and control 
of mosquitoes across the OVMAP boundary as well as contingency planning for late season flushing 
flows.  The $60,000 budget anticipates field surveillance of potential larval habitat for mosquito 
production, larviciding, pupaciding, adult mosquito surveillance with light traps, mosquito borne disease 
surveillance, and treatment for adult mosquitoes.   
 
Noxious Species Control  
The Inyo and Mono Counties Agricultural Commissioner’s Office conducts operations to control and 
eradicate several invasive weed species within the LORP boundaries.  These invasive weed species 
include:  perennial pepperweed (Lepidium latifolium), Russian knapweed (Acroptilon repens), Canada 
thistle (Cirsium arvense), yellow star thistle (Centaurea solstitialis), spotted knapweed (Centaurea 
maculosa), hairy whitetop (Carderia pubescens), and heart podded hoary cress (Carderia draba).  These 
populations are managed using integrated pest management methods, including mechanical, chemical, 
and biological controls.   
 
For fiscal year 2024-2025, Inyo County will be responsible for treating weeds in the LORP.  The budget 
for noxious weed control is $50,000.  An increase in perennial pepperweed in the LORP in recent years 
will require additional funding and efforts to contain the existing population and prevent spread.  
Additional funding for Inyo County will be sought from outside sources.   
 
Additional weed treatment and surveillance by LADWP and ICWD is described in Section 2. Adaptive 
Management. 
 
Saltcedar Control 
Due to lack of enhanced funding, Inyo County’s saltcedar control program has been scaled back. The 
effort will focus on surveying and treatment of saltcedar resprouts along the Owens River in the LORP. 
Inyo County’s LORP saltcedar control activities are funded through the Inyo/Los Angeles Water 
Agreement.  LADWP and Inyo County programs will work cooperatively to treat saltcedar, which may 
include areas in the LORP as resources are available.  
 
Adaptive management 
Inyo County and LADWP have identified adaptive management and monitoring tasks to complete in the 
2024-2025 fiscal year.  Refer to Section 2 for more information. 
  

Table 5. Range Monitoring (LADWP only), FY 2024-2025
Task Person Days

Utilization 35
Irrigated Pasture Condition 5
Range Trend 30
Analysis and Reporting 10

Total 80



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 12 

Schedule 
 
Table 6. Schedule of Monitoring and Reporting Activities for FY 2024-2025  

 
 
  

Period Monitoring

July 1-August 30, 2024 Rapid Assessment of  the River

September 1 – December 2, 2024 LADWP/Inyo Prepare Draft LORP Report

September 15, 2024 - March 1, 2025 Start and end dates for flow releases to BWMA

October 1 - October 31, 2024 Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Work Plan and Budget Reconciliation

Thursday, October 31, 2024 Transmittal of LORP Accounting Report to Governing Boards

November 4-8, 2024 Measure BWMA Flooded Extent

Monday, December 2, 2024 Draft Report transmitted to MOU Parties

Wednesday, January 8, 2025 Public Meeting for Draft LORP Report

Wednesday, January 15, 2025 Technical Group Meeting to Adopt LORP Annual Report 

March 3-8, 2025 Measure BWMA Flooded Extent

March 1 – April 30, 2025 Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Work Plan and Budget Development

May 1 – May 31, 2025 Transmittal of LORP Work Plan, Budget, and Schedule to governing boards for approval

April 1 - June 30, 2025 Noxious Species Treatment

May 2 - June 15, 2025 Seasonal Habitat Flow



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 13 

Section 2.  Adaptive Management 
 
Implementation costs of both the Interim BWMA Plan and adaptive management for the river are 
provided below.  These costs are to be shared equally between LADWP and Inyo County.   
 
Adaptive Management with Additional Costs 
 
Implementation of the Interim BWMA Management and Monitoring Plan 
LADWP and Inyo County have implemented the first two years of the five-year Interim BWMA 
Management and Monitoring Plan (Interim Plan) in 2021 and 2022.  The Interim Plan was suspended in 
FY 2023-2024 because of high runoff and the need for associated water spreading.  The third year of the 
plan will resume in FY 2024-2025 and will include repairing and improving a berm along the Winterton 
unit as to better control flooding.  Additionally, mowing will occur in the west Winterton unit (which has 
been inactive the last 2 years), in preparation for flooding in late fall.  This work will be conducted by 
LADWP and is budgeted at $56,208.00 (Table 7).  Costs will be shared equally by LADWP and Inyo 
County. 
 
Table 7.  BWMA Adaptive Management Costs 

 
 
Adaptive Management without Additional Costs 
 
1. Monitoring Associated with the Interim BWMA Plan 
As stated in the Interim BWMA Plan, LADWP and the County will conduct additional monitoring 
concurrent with its implementation on flooded extent, water depths, as well as both avian and 
vegetation monitoring to note response to the new flooding regime.  To be monitored: 
 

1. Flooded extent will continue to be measured both to confirm compliance with the Interim Plan 
and to help describe the effectiveness of seasonal filling and drawdown. Remote sensing with 
field verification will be used to determine the area associated with the flooding.  Estimates of 

Labor Equipment
Location/Activity Labor type Hours Labor Rate Total Labor Equipment Type Hours Rate Total Equip

MCH 80 $46.48 $3,718.40 3 axle dump truck 80 $94.12 $7,529.60
Power Shovel Operator 80 $60.24 $4,819.20 3/4 ton 4x4 pick- up 160 $41.96 $6,713.60
Truck Driver 80 $48.77 $3,901.60 Excavator 80 $132.61 $10,608.80

Subtotal $12,439.20 $24,852.00

Cleaning MCH 80 $46.48 $3,718.40 3/4 ton 4x4 pick- up 160 $41.96 $6,713.60
Operator 80 $57.13 $4,570.40 Mower 80 $48.93 $3,914.40

Subtotal $8,288.80 $10,628.00

$37,291.20
$18,916.80

Proposed Project Total $56,208.00

TOTALS
Winterton Berm Repair Total
Winterton West 50% Mowing Total

BWMA ADAPTIVE MANAGEMENT COST 2024-2025

Winterton Berm Repair

Winterton West 50% Mowing



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 14 

flooded acreage derived from remote sensing will occur monthly and maps of the wetted area 
will be generated for November 1, 2024, and March 1, 2025.  Water releases will be monitored 
and reported annually.  Staff time commitment for flooded extent monitoring in BWMA is 
outlined in Table 4, as this task is required under the LORP Final EIR.  Inyo County will be 
responsible for the entirety of this task and will take 4 person days to complete. 
 

2. Avian monitoring will be conducted to evaluate the use of BWMA by the habitat indicator 
species during implementation of the 5-year interim program.  Eight seasonal surveys will be 
conducted September-April in each active unit during implementation of the Interim Plan.  It is 
estimated that it will take a total of 40 person days to complete this task and will be evenly 
divided between Inyo County and LADWP. 
 

3. Vegetation monitoring of the BWMA units will characterize species composition and abundance 
as to quantify available forage for water birds.  Monitoring, analysis, and reporting will be 
conducted solely by LADWP and take 16 person days.    
 

The estimated time that monitoring and reporting associated with the Interim Plan will require a total of 
60 person days in the 2024-2025 fiscal year, with Inyo contributing 24 days and LADWP 36 days. 
 
2. Noxious species treatment 
Additional noxious weed treatment will continue in 2024-2025 along the LORP and BWMA.  The LADWP 
will perform all the work at 60 person days.  
 
3. Tree recruitment assessment  
The environmental conditions that have permitted riparian tree establishment on the LORP will be 
evaluated.  In order to correctly predict appropriate tree recruitment locations for native riparian trees 
including black willow (Salix gooddingii), red willow (Salix laevigata), or Fremont cottonwood (Populus 
fremontii), we must first understand: 1) conditions which have permitted tree establishment during pre-
project conditions on the LORP, 2) conditions which have permitted the limited recruitment since 
project inception, and 3) concurrent biological processes which may be inhibiting current germination 
and establishment. First, it is possible, by aging mature trees, to correlate the year of establishment with 
environmental, hydrologic, and physical conditions that existed at that time; methods are described in 
the Type D Monitoring Plan (Appendix 1, ICWD 2021). Second, we can learn from post-project 
recruitment events, recorded via the Rapid Assessment Survey, by revisiting a sample of these sites and 
assessing conditions such as:  landform, surface water elevation, soil substrate, soil salinity, and the 
presence and extent of biotic competition. Finally, the effects of plant competition on germination and 
establishment can be explored via vegetation removal on the wetted channel edge or wetted floodplain 
exposing bare and saturated soils and surveying for recruitment following the SHF. Item three can only 
occur during a near normal runoff year (100%) with an adequate SHF. During the 2024-2025 period, 
these activities will involve 35 field days dedicated to sampling, data collection, analysis, and reporting, 
all to be conducted by Inyo County.   
  



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 15 

4. Rapid Assessment Survey 
Rapid assessments along the river will focus on two main areas of interest: mapping new noxious weed 
populations and mapping locations of woody recruitment that may have established in 2023 along the 
high water line delineated from satellite imagery acquired during seed fly in June 2023. Perennial 
pepperweed will be mapped downstream from known populations, and these data are shared in real 
time with LADWP and County weed management personnel through a shared GIS.  Inyo County will 
perform the whole of this work with 60 person days.  
 
5. Aerial photo analysis of river 
An overflight of the Lower Owens was performed in February 2024 to capture high-resolution 
aerial imagery before leaf-out.  The objective of this study is to understand where the 2023 
flooding deposited sediment in the floodplain, which could act as tree recruitment 
surfaces.  LADWP staff will segment and classify the imagery using three classes:  sediment, 
sedimented tules, and open water.  The result/deliverable of the analysis will be a map 
(classified polygon feature class) showing sediment deposits.  This can be used in future years 
to investigate these areas for tree establishment.  It will take a total of 35 person days, with LADWP 
performing all the work.  
 
6. Water Quality Monitoring 
Inyo County will monitor water quality along the river.  Measurements will include temperature, 
dissolved oxygen, pH, and specific conductance and will be collected monthly except during the seasonal 
habitat flow, where measurements will be collected bi-weekly.  County staff will summarize findings and 
generate a report.  Inyo County will be responsible for the entirety of this work, which will take 12 
person days. 
 
Table 8 shows a total of 262 people-days budgeted for 6 adaptive management tasks, with Inyo County 
contributing 131 person-days and Los Angeles contributing 131 days. 
 

 
 
 

  

Task # Biological Monitoring Days Inyo Days LA Days

1
BWMA Interim Management and Monitoring Plan - 
Monitoring and Reporting

60 24 36

2 Noxious species treatment 60 0 60
3 Tree recruitment assessment 35 35 0
4 Rapid Assessment of river 60 60 0
5 Aerial photo analysis of river 35 0 35
6 Water quality monitoring 12 12 0

Total Person Days 262 131 131

Table 8. Adaptive Management Monitoring 2024-2025



Lower Owens River Project Work Plan, FY 2024-2025 
 

 16 

References 
Inyo County Water Department 2021. Type D Riparian Vegetation Monitoring Annual Status Report 
2020. Accessed at: https://www.inyowater.org/wp-
content/uploads/2021/08/TypeD_AnnualReport_2020_08242021_FINAL.pdf 
 

https://www.inyowater.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/TypeD_AnnualReport_2020_08242021_FINAL.pdf
https://www.inyowater.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/08/TypeD_AnnualReport_2020_08242021_FINAL.pdf

	 Call to Order
	1) Public Comment on Closed Session Item(s) Comments 

	 Closed Session
	2) Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursu

	 Open Session
	3) Pledge of Allegiance
	4) Report on Closed Session as Required by Law
	5) Introductions - The following new employees will b
	6) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	7) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	8) Memorandum of Understanding between the Lone Pine 
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County LPPSR Mosquito Abatement Service MOU 

	9) Inyo Mono County Veterans Services Office - Annual
	Agenda Request Form
	Medi-Cal Certificate of Compliance FY 2024-25
	Subvention Certificate of Compliance FY 2024-25

	10) Health Officer Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	Health Officer Contract 

	11) County of Mono Eastern Sierra Area Agency on Aging
	Agenda Request Form
	Mono County Senior Services FY 23-24 Amendment No. 2

	12) North American Mental Health Services Contract Ame
	Agenda Request Form
	North American Health Services Contract Amendment No. 1
	North American Mental Health Services Telepsychiatry Services Agreement

	13) Memorandum of Understanding for the California Dep
	Agenda Request Form
	Memorandum of Understanding
	Contractor Certification Clauses 
	Info Integrity and Security Statement
	California Civil Rights Law Certification

	14) Crestwood Behavioral Health FY 23-24 Contract Amen
	Agenda Request Form
	Crestwood Amendment No. 3
	Crestwood Behavioral Health Amendment No. 2 
	De-identified Negotiated Rate Agreements

	15) Grant Award Notification for First 5 CA Small Popu
	Agenda Request Form
	Grant Award Notification

	16) Contract Award to Tek84 of Poway, CA for the Purch
	Agenda Request Form
	Tek84 Quotes
	Body Scanner Contract - signed

	17) Inyo County Jail Security and Camera System
	Agenda Request Form
	ISC Scoring Sheets
	ICS Proposal
	Jail Security Contract - signed-1


	 Regular Agenda
	18) Sierra Jobs First Presentation by Sierra Business 
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo County BOS Update
	Regional Specific Catalyst Criteria Info

	19) Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy Append
	Agenda Request Form
	Inyo CEDS Project List Appendix

	20) Amendment No. 2 to the Agreement Between the Count
	Agenda Request Form
	LORP Post-Implementation Agreement 
	LORP Post-Implementation Agreement Amendment No. 2

	21) Fiscal Year 2024-2025 Lower Owens River Project Wo
	Agenda Request Form
	2024-2025 LORP Work Plan and Budget


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	22) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	23) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r


	untitled1: 
	untitled2: 
	untitled11: 
	untitled21: 
		2024-06-07T17:19:09+0000
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-06-18T12:45:46-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-06-18T08:50:40-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


	ContractorBidder Firm Name Printed: 
	Federal ID Number: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing: 
	Date Executed: 
	Executed in the County of: 
	Authorized Signature: 
	Is: Off
	Contract Number: 
	Isnt: Off
	compliance by: 
	ContractorVendor Printed Name and Title: 
	SigDate: 
	CDA ProgramProject: 
	ContractorVendorSig: 
	Date Executed1: 
	Executed in the County and State of: 
	Contractor Name: 
	Fed: 
	Printed Name and Title of Person Signing1: 
	AP: Off
	FA: Off
	HI: Off
	MI: Off
	MS: Off
	SP: Off
	TV: Off
	Signature: 
	Opening Paragraph: 
	1: 
	2: 
	Certification: 
		2024-06-17T13:40:19-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-06-20T14:48:15-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-06-20T13:37:09-0700
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign




